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M2OHOYWT 23

2024 oH, MoHron YncbiH yyraH dpumkadHel BaHk 6onox
Xynannaa XemxnitH BaHKHbI  xyBba QMXWIT ByT33133p
LYYP3aH, BAC H3M3H TyyX3H OH Xun BonoH eHrepnee. bug
2024 oHa xapwnuard Ta ByxsHAS3 WYy XypAaH, Wiyy
HOMOBAPTAMIraAp BYTI2MASXYYH YANUMAra3rss Xyprax, ync
OPHBIXOO HUIMaM, 3AMAH 3CACTUIAH XOrKung XyBb HIM3p
opyynax, BAHKHbIXAa Teaniryit MoHron YAckiH Hap XyHAUAr
OfIOH YNCbIH 30X 333714 ecrex, baTaTrax 30pUAroop OMoH
COKIBIM XUIDK FYALSTION33.
OH3 ByxHWI HaraaxaH xacrasc Aypaaxad, AHY-biH 3acruiit
raspbiH areHtar, OnoH YnceiH XerkanmitH CanxyykuntuitH
Kopnopaurait  ypT  XyrauaaHbl  COHXYYXWNTWAH — r3p33
Bairyymk  uagnaa. DHIXYY CAHXYYXWUNTI3P  AAMXKYYIOH
XXB Hb MoHron Ync aaxb Guumn 6a xkur, ayHa yinassp
3pXN3rUMG, YYH AOTPOO 3MIMTON BU3HEC spxIaryaminr
[IOMXWX3L TYNIXYY XyBb HIM3P Opyynax 6onomxroin
6omnoo.
XXB  HYB-biH Torteoptoit xerxnwmith 17 3opunrof
H3rA9, HOroOH BaHK BOMOX ypPT XyraudaHbl 30punro
TABMH QXWNNQAAr. SH3XYY CTPATErNiAH 30PUNTTOIroo
yAnayynaH, 6un Moxron Yncaac amx yaaa ofioH ynchiH
M3PraXINitH  XepeHre opyynaryaaa  3opuyncaH 50
cas.aM AoNNapbiH HuirMuitH 6onoH HorooH GoHabIr
raprax 4aanad. IHaxyy 6OHA Hb ONOH YNC AAXb XOPEHre
opyynanteiH  Bloomberg TepMuHang GypTraracaH  aHxHbl
6oHA r3ar’3p33 oHwior toM. MeH ganxuitH TOT apast
6artaar AcceT MeHexmeHT KoMNaHWac xepeHre opyynant
TaTCaH MOHron YNChiH QHXHbI XyBUIAH X3BLUMIAH KOMMAHM
6onnoo.

XYHOSTr3C3H,

M'yMuatrax 3axupan

O.OpxoH

FYVLUSTIIX 3AXMPbIH

XXB Hb xapwnuary TeBTdi OaHK BONOXBIHXOO  XyBbA

XAPUNLArYAbIHXaa  X3P3rus3  Waapaiarag HUMLCSH
XapUywnaraTtan,  HaMABAPTAM  CAHXYYIWMAH  yANuMNrssr
Y3YYDK,  canbaptaa MAHAGUMK  CKMANAXBIN  XUU3349r

6wns. DH3 4 yTraapaa bug Tenbep TOOLOOHbI WWA3M
wmirnsn Gonox Apple Pay-uiir 3x 0pOHA0O HIBTPYY/N33.
Xapunuaruma maaHs Apple BpsHauitH Byx Texeepemxkuir
AWWMNaOA, epaee XOEPXOH CeKyHAWMH A0TOp raacanan
6onoH A0TO0AA00 Tenbep TOOLOOroo Tenex Bonomxkromn
6onnoo.

TyyHunsH  Bugnuin  Bycan  Baiiryynnaratait  TOrTOOCOH
OW3HECWIH  XAPWILAQ,  XAMTbIH — QKUANAraq,  WWHD
COHOAQUUAMBIF  YHIMK, ONOH  YNCbiH  BAHK,  CaHXYYTWiH
wvnaryyanir wanrapyynaar Euromoney catryynssc 2024
oHbl “Wunasr baiiryynnarsin bakk”-aap wanrapyynnaa.
BaHK Hb BAMranb OPUHBIT XAMrAANAXAAC FOAHA HUAMMUIAH
Tarw 6aigan, oponLoor A3MXKWX UMIBNZBP  AOPBUTON
anxmyyn xuingsr. OnoH HWATUIAH Y axunnaraa 60n0oH
XYMYYHI3MMIMH COHAQUUAMYYAaap AAMXKYYNaH bua npraguiir
UQAABXKYYIDK, COHXYYTMIAH BONOBCPON ONroX, SPYyN M3aHA,
OW3HEC FPXNBATUIAM AIMXKMXK BatHA. Brg HUArMUIAH 49BLIKA,
SAMIAH 30CTUIH XOKUN XOEP 33P3rudH OpLUAOr r3asrT b6ar
VT3

TOrTBOPTON  XODKMIAM  LOTLIOOX  YANCUAr  BWa  XAMTbIH
QKUNNAraaq, HINAM3A XYC3/ 30PUITYIra3p ByT9X HONOMXKIYIA.
BUAHMIA XyUnH YapPMAMNTOL YHIAWIYIA XyBb HIM3P OPYYX
Oy 30pUNro HIIM HEXeA, XAPWALArY, XaMTpard, XysbLad
533MLUMIY HOPTAA MYH TANAPXAN UASPXUANbE.

Bua xaMTaca unyy CaixaH, TOrTBOPTOM MP33ayir ByTasxk
YagHa r3A3rT UTraNTai BaitHal
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YOWPONATbIH BAT

O.OPXOH RAHN WOOD O.BAH3PATY ASHXM3H[] STEPHANE LAMOUREUX  Y.COJIOHTO
yRuaTrax saxvpan Eperxuitnery [YAU3TraX 3axvprbiH [yAU3TraX 3aXMpPbIH [yAU3TraX 3axvpribIH MyAUaTraX 3aXMPbIH
/2024.04.18 enep xypran/ TOPryyH opnory TapryyH opnory T3PryyH opnory opnory

/2024.02.02 enep xypran/

[TAHLSLUSM C.BAATAP LLTAHBASP N.TAHTOMOEP N.MEHXHACT H.C3PIa/1SH
[yAUSTraX 3aXMPABIH MYAUSTraX 3axvpbiH [YAUSTraX 3axvprbiH TYAUSTIaX 3aXUPbIH TYAUSTIaX 3aXMPbIH TyAUSTraX 30XMPAbIH
opnory oprory opnory oprory opnory opnory
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TOITBOPTOU

XS XWNA
XAMTOAA

Xerxwmk by MoHronbiH A3BLwmun ByxHUIAR
MaHnannary 6axk banHa.

bua xapunuaryganaa xycan, TaMyynangss Xypaxasn
Hb 30PWYIIX, XYN23NTI3C Hb AABCAH CAHXYYTUIH
LOTL, YIANUMATS3T O3BLUMITST TEXHOMOMMOP XYPraH3.

BaHKHBI 10O Hb MEOHIEHWIA HIMK DOMOX 300CHBI X3MD3PT CyypUncaH
Dereesn 300CHbI ronfd AYPCMSTACIH MOHreHWM aBOAPT TACPANTIyit
3prandsx 3PrafTssp AepPBeH 3yr HAMMAH 30BXMCOOC MOHre, 34

Basnar XxypuMTIaraaH apBuxKmK, 3n0ar 431031 OaliXbIH BanraganTan.

XeXWN O3BWNNO XAMTOAA

BaHKHBI QKMATHYYD, XAPWILIATYML, XOPEHre Opyynaruug 33par
XYH OYXHUAr XOMKWUN A3BLUAUAH 3YrT XOMT CAIXOXbIM YPUONQH
LyYOOX, HIMTraX, 30PUMKYYNaX yTraTam.

TOITBOPTOWM XOMKNNA XAMTIAA

TortBOpTOM  XOMIIMINH  TOLOPXOMNONT DONOX  MP334yH  XOWu
YEUNH X3p3arusar Byypyynaxryirasp OSNXUAH ©HeerninH XyH
AMBIH X3P3rL33r XAHraX LOrL, YN ABLbIN BAHK, Xapunuary, TyHL
BONOH yNC OPOH XAMTAAQ O3MXWX, HIM 30PWIrbIH JOP H3MAIX
QKMANAXbIT YPUCICAH YTraTa.



YH3T 3YWIC

Customer centric Recognition Excellence Accessible Teamwork Outperforming Respect
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KOMMAHUNH 3ACAMAN

XXB Hb ONOH yNChbIH TypLUNAradp WANrAPCAH KOMMGHWIAH 3acarnanbiH Byxuit n xam
X3MKIIM XIPINKYYNIH Cxkunnaaar. [1ssa TyBLIHWIA, caitH BairyynnarsiH 3acarnan He
BuaHWIA YN aXUNAAradHbl ron unrmyynary bongor 6unaa. bua KOMNAHWIAH 3acarnanbiH
6yTus93 TeneeneH yavpaax 3esnen (TY3)-uitH BonoH yampanarsii 6aruiH ruwyya,
XyBb HWUANYYNSrYONiAH XAMTbIH COKUNNIArad, HAMT XAPUALAAr HAPWIAH TOOOPXOMNOr.
BaliryynnareiHxaa apxaM 30puiro, 30pUATACO XYPIXUIMH Tyna axunTaH byp éc 3yiH
AMAP X3M X3IMXKIIT YN COKUINAraaHAAda BApUMTAAXLIT Y HOPUBUIGH 3AACAH.

Tollee/IoH YONPOAX 36BI1OJ1

XXB-Hbl TY3 Hb OairyynnarelH Oyxuit n WATAHG WA TOA, YH3HY Liygapra bananbir
UyXanuaaH, HI3TTIN 3aCarnansir Guit BoNroxbiH 33P3rs3 AMAP Y HOXLIeNL TOXMPCOH
QnchiH xapaa, cTpaterk Byxuit 6oANoroop BAHKHBI YN AXUANAraAr YAFIYYIX, ASMKUH
axunnagar.

YOWPONATbIH BAl

XXB-Hbl TY3 Hb OairyynnarelH Oyxuit n WATAHG WA TOA, YH3HY Liygapra banansir
UyXANUaaH, HI3ATTIN 3aCarnanbir Guit BONroxbiH 33P3rs3 AMAP Y HOXLIONL TOXMPCOH
QnchiH xapaa, cTpaterk Byxuit 6oANoroop BAHKHBI YN CKUANAraAr YAFIYYIX, ASMKUH
axunnagar.

AXNNTHY Y[

XXB-Hbl OMXMNTBIH YHASC Hb 3PY XyUTsil, YOABAPNAr CKUNTHYyA Oereen TsOHWIAT
LUYAAPradp yPamLLyynax, 43MKMX, anbaH Tylwaan A3BLLYYASX XOMKIUIAH TOrTonuoor
CAMXPYYNCHAAP XAPUALArYAaaad BAaHKHbI WWAAST YANUMAr33r y3YYK YOaaar.

S0

XXB Hb Xyynb, C 3yiH XAPUYL/IArbIH XYP3I3HA HUALCIH QXUNAX OPUHBIF Bypayynsxvir
YPramk 3pM3I3Cadp MPCOH. Xapwnuard, BusHecwiiH TyHLWyyn OONOH HWAramas
BaHKHBI  LUIMNAST OYTI3rOsXYYH YANUMArSSr y3YYnsH, XyBb HWANYynsrumg Bonow
XAPUILArYABIHXAG OMHE XYNI93C3H YYPras Buenyynaxass wyaapra 6aiix 3apunMTait.

KOMMAHWH 3ACATTIAbIH 30PUTO

KOMNAHWIAH 3acarnanbir CamkpyynaH OfOH YNACbIH WWAASM 3APYMM, TypLUNAryyabiH
XaMka3HA Xyprax. ONoH yncan XynasH 3eBLIeeperaexyiil, H3P XYHATIA YHD LSHTSN,
XOPOHre OpyynanThbir TATAX.

TolleeIoH YONPOAX 36BNSJI

Pannond KOMMA

LomxuH SPOIHIBUNIT
Lambuinkas XYPI/IBAATAP
Harmuag AHXMAA
Asraar SHXM3H[
Iamunrxas OTTOHBUNSI

XKanbaa BONTOPMAA
Kamcpangopx AN SPCANXAH
Saraxyy HAPAHTYAA /2024.11.04 xyptan/

HaaaHwapas HamcypaH
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HOT1004 AYONT, XAHAITT

AOTOOAO AYONT

Hotoon ayaut Hb  BairyynnarbiH - 3acarianbiH - uyxan
BypanasxyyH xacar bereeaq TY3 BonoH  [yiuatrax
yaMpAnarsir xapaat 6yc, spcgang cyypuncaH, boautoit
BaTanraaxyynant, 3eBneree, ryH oinrontT GonoH ancbiH
XapaAraap XaHrax 3amaap banryynnarbiH yHs UaHWAM
buit Bonrox, xamraanax, MeH TOrTBOPTOM bainrax
yagsapbir  63xkyyngsr.  XXBb-Hbl  gotoon  ayauTbiH
yin oxunnaraar TY3-uitH xapbsa AyanTblH XOpoo,
Jlotoon ayauTbiH rasap xapuyLaH axuniax 6anHa.

AYOUNTBIH XOPOO

AyauTbiH XOpPoO Hb BaHKHbI 3acarnan, xyysb TOFTOOMXUIAH
X3P3MKUAT, €C 3YMH X3M X3MX33, CAHXYYIUAH TAMNArHanT,
[10TOO/ XAHANTBIH TOFTONLOO, XOHANOHMiH BONoH AoTooa
QyAUTBIH YN COKUANAFQOHA  CUCTEMTIMrasp  AyrHaNT
orex, baHkHbI XyBbLAA 333Mwuruma, TY3 BonoH bycan
OpONLOrY TaNyyAAn YHIH 368 HOAUT M3433MMIT XyPrax
3amaap baiiryynnarsiH yaMpanara, 30X1MoH bairyynantbiH
Byx TYyBLWWHA CAH 3QCAMNANbIH  TOTTOMLOON  B3XKyynax
30pUNroToN, TY3-UAH XAHAATBIH UYWF YYPIUIAr X3P3rKyyiary
XOPOO oM. AyaAnTbIH XOPOO Hb 3 FULLYYHWIA ByPanasXyyHTSArs3p
(yyH3C xapaat Byc 2 ruwyyHTa) AyauTelH XOPOOHB! AYP3IMA
30ACAH 3pPX, YYPras X3P3NKYYASH Qxunax baiHa.

[lotooa ayauTbiH rasap Hb UMM yypruitH  GonoH
30XMPraaHbl — acyygnaap  TY3,  AyauTbiH  XOPOOHA

XQAPLAANATACK, MYMUSTTEX yaMpAiaradc xapaar bycaap
yin axunnaraaraa seyynaar bereea TY3, AyautelH xOpooHA
KIaa TAMAATHOX, FYMUSTMAX YAMPAIArah QyauTbiH YP AYHT
M3/93/13X 30PUMAAP CXKWINGAAr. AyAuTbiH XOPOO Hb [OTOOA
QYOUTBIH CXTTbIH TOIOBNOrese, MyAUSTraAMAr xananusH, JAlbiH

ﬂ'OTOOT AYﬂMTb]H YN axunnaraa, xapadr byc bainana XaHANT TABUXbIH 33P3rU33

[I0TOOA QyANTbIH VAN CKUNAraar SIMKUH CXXKUINCAAT.
BATA” rAAN(YYﬂAﬂT [otoon ayautbiH rasap He OnoH ynckH [4OTOOA AyAUTOPYYAbIH
MHCTUTYTUIAH rapracaH ONoH yNCbIH M3PraXMiiH NPAKTUKUIAH
XYP33, ONOH YNCbIH CANH TYPLUNArbIT YN GXMANArAaHAAA YAMPACMXK, XWLINT BONIoH,
BaHKHbBI 30CArNAn, SPCA3MUIH YAMPANArd, XAHANTLIH YP AyHTS baigang xapaar byc,
3pcaana cyypuncad, boantoi BaTtanracskyynant XWiH, YHIMK AYFH3H, CAMXpPyynax,
BaHKHBI 30PUATOJ00 XyP3aX BARAANM XyBb HIM3P OPYYNGH CKUANAX BANHA.
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SOMNNH 3ACTUVH ©CONTOO YYN YYPXAN,
YUNYNITIHUM CANBAPY Y TONTOH HENOSN166

[OHB 2024 oHg 4.9 xyBuap ecceHuit -3.6 HarK XyBUIN XeAee O axyiH canbap, 1.4 HIMK XyBUIAM yyn yypxaw,
onbopnonteiH canbap, 0.3 HarK XyBUIAr yinaapnan, bapunrsiH canbap, 4.8 HIMK XYBUII YNUMAT33HWIA candap,
2.0 HaMK XyBWIAT BYTI3rA3XYYHUI LU3B3P TATBAP OYypAyY/NCaH BAlHA. Yyn yypxainH onbopnont, yinumnnrasHui
canbapbiH MOIBXKW, YYHWUAr AArACAH TATBAPBIH ©HAGP OPSIOrO ©CeNTUIAM FONMOH A3MXIS3. Yyn yypxai,
onbopnonTsiH canbapsii Hamarasn eprer (2015 owbl 33paruyynax yHa3p) 2024 oHg 4.3 ux Haag Terper

Bonx, emHex oHooc 419.2 (10.8%) Tapbym Terpereep ecnee. YRNUMArasHMiA cOnBAPbIH HUAT HIM3IA3N
eprer (2015 oHbl 33paruyynax yHasp) 2024 oHg 16.3 ux Haan Terper Bomk, emHex oHooc 1.5 (9.8%) wx
Hasg Terpereep ecnee. YyHE T93B3p, YANUMIra3HUA Bycap yin axunnaraaHbl canbapbiH HIM3rasn eprer

©CCOH Hb MOJIJIOH HeNIeenxa3. XCIpVIH Liar araapbiH TACNAMXKIYA HexuUen 60io1aac WAnTraancaH xenee
M O H roﬂ yﬂ C bl H QX axylH canbapbliH ArLUMAT 3AMIMH 3ACTUIMH ©CONTe Coper Henee Y3yyacaH xaB33p baitHa. Xenee ax

axyiH canbapbiH Hamarasn epter (2015 oHbl 33paruyynax yHasp) 2024 oHn 2.8 ux Haan Terper Gomx,
aﬂVI l;] H 3ACAr emMHex oHooc 1.1 (28.7%) ux Hasag Terpereep Byypcan Hb [AHB-ui eepunentes 3.6 Hark xysuap ceper
Henee y3yyncaH banHa.

80.0
OHB, UX HAAL TErPOreep .
539
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2.1
'67 '271 8.5 06
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@ [IHB, oHbl yH33p [IHB, 2015 oHbl 33paruyynsx yHasp
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MOHTIOJ1 YICbIH 323/KUX 32P21J12]1
H3I LUAT AXMX “B+", “B2, TOTTBOPTOWN”
BOJIJTOO

OnoH yncbiH TIPryynax 333MXMX 33P3M3N TOrTOOrY AreHTNaryynadc MoHron yncbiH

392MKMX 33PMNNIAT axuyncaH Hb 2024 oHbl oHUIOX yiin siegan 6onnoo. OnoH ynceiH

“Fitch” arentnar MoHron YnceiH 393/mkux 33parnanuiir “B+, Tortsoproin” bonrox, “S&P

Global” arentnar “B+, separ” bonroH axuyncan 6on Moody’s areHtnar 33smxux
o

33parnauinr “B2”, XaTUIMH Tenesuir “TOrtBOpPTON” 33parnang TyC TyC OXUYNCAH Hb
cyynuian 10 unuitH 234 TyBLUMH HBonos.

B+ B2 TtorteopTOM

MoHron Ync ragaan epuitH fapamtaa Byypyymx, CaHxyy, TOCBUIH caxunra 6atbir
CAXVXAAC TOAHA BOMKOTbIH HEOLee TOrTMON H3M3IAYYX, YNC TepWiH TOrTBOPTOM
Bananbir BypayYNCaH 33p3r Hb YYHA HONeemkad. 333/KUX 33PN A93LWUICHIIP
MoHron Yncaf raaaaabiH XepPeHre OpyynaryfblH UTFaX UTMaM CAMXKMPY, ONOH YNChIH
CAHXYYTWIAH 30X 3337133C WYYy TAATAN HEXUeNneep CAHXYYXWIT Tatax Bonomxuir
H3M3rYYN3X AABYY TANTAW FOM.

Kunuitn undnsu

13.4 13.2
9.0
7.9
° ' |
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HYYPCHUM SKCMOPTBIF.
BUET XoMX33 TYYX3IH

N0 TYBLWWMHA XYP/123

Motron Ync 2024 oHp HWiAT 83.7 casti TOHH HYYPC SKCMOPTONCOH Hb MAHAW YNChIH
TYYX3HA OHX YOAA HyypcHwit skcnopT 80 cast TOHH AGBCOH y3YynanT toM. Har ToHH
Hyypeuir  gyHpkaap 103.9 am.ponnapoop  Huinyymk, 8.7 Tapbym am.ponnapbiH
opnorbir onx33. 2023 OHTOM XAPbLYYNOXAL HYYPCHUIA SKCMopThiH breT xamxa3 20.3
XyBUOP ©CCOH X3AMUM U HUIT YHWUIAH AYHIMIAH XyBba 2.3 xyBrap ByypcaH baiiHa.

XapWH yyn yypXaiH rapantail ron HSpWitH 3ypraaH 3pasc ByTasrasxyyHWit SKkCnopTbiH
HUAT AayH 13.2 T9SPByM aM.JONNAPT XyPY, ©MHEX OHOOC TABAH XYBUIMH ©CONT Y3YYNna3.

NHDAAL 2024 OHbl 2USCT MOHIONIBAHKHbBI 3OPUITOT
TYBLUH23C AABX SPYUMXMB:

OHbl TypLL TeB BAHKHBI 30PUNTOT WHTEPBANS Xa4ranaraax bacaH
VHGAAL QNryyp SPUMMXKWH, OHbl 3USCT XauitH 9.0 xyBba Xypu
30PUATOT TYBLUHI3C T HAMK XyBMUAP ACBAB.

FTAOAAL BANMKOTbIH AJIBAH HEOOU TYYXSH 231

XOMX33HA XYPN123:

2024 oHbl 3uscT MoHron YncelH ragaan BantoTeiH anbax Heel 5.5
11.8‘%) TopbyM am.gonnap Oaex, eMHex oHooc 11.8 xyeuap ecnee. 2024

OHJ} TONDOPWIH TIHLSN ALUMITAR FAPCaH Teauiryit MoHron YncbiH

393/KMX  33P3MBN axuk, OaHKHYyd rapaan 3ax 33sn133C 6oHp

BOCroCOH 33P3r Hb BANMOTbIH HOOL| HIMIMAIXS/ HONOOMKI3.




Kunuitn tTainan 2024

MOHron yncblH XyBbA APUMKAAHBI BAHKHYY CaHXYYrUitH
3YyUNanblH  YYPrUAr FONUNOH FYAUSTI3X, CAHXYYrWidH
BairyynnarsiH - XypTasmxTain  Baianbir - HIM3IrAYYNX,
CAHXYYIWIH cucTemg uyxan baip cyypwiir 33amx baiHa.
BaHKHbEI CEKTOPLIH TOrTBOPTON BANAAN Hb CAHXYYrUitH
CMUCTeMUIAH 3PCA3N AAAX YaABAP, EPEHXWIA 3yparnansIr
xapyynaar uyxan ysyynsar tom. 2024 oHa BaHKHbI

CEKTOPbIH HWIT OKTUBBIH X3MX33 XWUAUIH XyBnap
YPMaMXKN3H 6cex X HAAO TOrpert xXypnas.

BaHKHbI ceKTopbIH HUIT U3B3P 33931 2024 OHbI SLCHIAH
bananaap HAAT akTvBbiH 49.3 xyBuiir Bypayymk baiHa.
OHrepceH OHbl 3UICT3 xapbUyynaxad HUiAT 3331 35.5
xyBuap bytoy 9.6 ux Hasg Terpereep ecex 36.78 ux
HOAA TerperT xypnaa. HWiT 39anuitH ecentuiiH 15.4 Hark
XyBb OYyIOy XAMIWIH ©HOOP XYBUAr WPrIAWIAH 333MMIH
ecenT bypayymk bairaa bereen TeCBUIH TOAOTIONOOP
LQNWH, T3TM3BPUIAM ye LIaTTAaNraap H3M3rayynacHasp
OPXWUIH HIPMIICIH OPMIOro ©CeX, YNMAApP epPXYYAUNIH
©P-OPNOrblH XAPbLAGHBI XA3rAAPAANTLIH XYP33HI ABAX
OONOMXUT  339MWIAH AYH HIMIMACOH Hb XIP3IMMIIDHMNA
393/IMIAH ©CONT SPUNMKUXIL, HONOOMK33. TANNAHT OHbI
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@ 3337uitH Bary /

Kunuitn ecent

sucuMitH  Baianaap BaHKHBI CEKTOPbIH  YaHAPryit
392nmitH TyBLUMH 5.08 xyBb Bomx cyynuitt 10 xunuitH
XAMIUIH JOOA TYBLUMHE XyPY Camxupnaa.

XAPUNUAX, XAOTATTAMX

BaHkHbI CEKTOPbIH xapunyardaac TATaH
TOBNOPYYNCIH xapwnuax, xagranamx 2024  oHbl
sucUitH  baiagnaap  HWIAT - naccuebiH - 62%-uitr
Bypayymk BaiHa. Xapunuax, XO4ranami XuaniH
13.3 xyBuap ecex 39.6 ux Hasn Terper bonxaa.
Toapyynban, xaaranamk emHex OHbl 3aucasc 21.2
XyBUAP ©COX 25.6 UX HASAL, TOrperT, XapuILax eMHexX
oHbl 3ucaac 1.3 xyenap ecex 14.0 vx Hasg Terpert
XYPC3H baitHa.

ALLNTT AXKUITTATAA

2024 oHp BaHKHBI Canbap eMHeX XWUMWIAH aLUruir
32.9 xyBuap Hamaroyymx 172 wx Hasa TerperuiitH
awmrTain  axunnaa. baHkHyyd awurt  axwnnaraa
COMKMPY, ©6pWIMH  XepeHre HaMaraax baiiraa
Hb OQHKHBI CUCTEMUIH 3pCAsN AJOX  UYOOBAPLIN
H3M3rAyYX BaiHa.

1720

290

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

@ XKunuitn awmr /

AWMIT GXWINCIGHS! GOPHiAH XOPGHIOHA 333X XyBb

BAHKHbI CEKTOP
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2024 OHbl OHLTOX YW ABOAT

XXB-aac ynamxnan 6onrox 3oxvon baiiryynaar “Trade Finance Forum
2024" apra xamx33 “Restore & Unlock” cagasraiirasp 6onnoo. OnoH yncbiH
STORE: XyAQIAAQ, TYYHUIA COHXYY>XUNTUIAH CYYNNIAH YEWNIAH Ynr XOHANAra, Xerkniir
UNLOC  xsnanusx, ByTssrasxyyH yinunnrsarsspas AAM)yynaH XapuaLarygsiHxaa
©pCenaex YaABAPLIr HIMIIAYY/ND3.

>
BNY MELLON

Motron Ync 2019 ona PATD-biH
Caapan XarcaanTa OpcHooOpP
MoHronbiH apumkaaHbl GaHKHyya
A3MXUIH aM.A0oNNapbIH Tenbep
TOOLIOOHBI CUCTEMBIC XACATACAH.
XapuH XXB AHY-biH KNMPUHTWAH
TOM 6aHk Bonox BANK OF NEW
YORK MELLON-Tait xamtpaH
axunnax, MoHron Ynceir 4snxuiH
am gonnapeiH TenbepuitH cuctema
3praH xonbonoo.

N Y

® Pay ARCHITECTS

LlsnxvitH TenBep TooLOOHI MoHron YncbiHxaa YHA3CHMI
komnanu Al+ Partners-Tait xamTpaH
canbap TOOLOOHbI TOBYYANAHXID
[IOTOP UHTEPbEP TOXVXKUNTBIF
©OPUNIIK XN,

wvnasr wuitasn ApplePay
yinuunrasr MoHron Yncaa aHxnaH
H3BTPYY/N33.

» Security e

Standards Council
BankHbl TeneeneH yampaax

. Y . Xyoum A M o e
3eBeNMiiH WHIAEaPap lyiilaTroX PIPUINIBIEEIETE [MISIET) s L YF?MMWM%‘H TenbepwiitH KapTbiH atoynryit 6anansit onoH ynceit PCl DSS 4.0 ctanaaptsir
yavpanaraac 6YCCUZL OKNTHYYAbIH 3) ypxuronsr  bomk, 5 paxe  xungds

Byrosmxi Lamsr 25 xypron AT YPramkioe] 300 IxapIa L amwvlmmvm XCIMI'CICU'IC\I‘H 8 paxb xunass batnamxaa I:Clp,ElOH aBnaa. IH3 Hb
MOHIEH YPAMLYYNIGn ONroX, 2 XapHILAriva aroynryi bananbiH Byxuit N LIAAPANAryyabir AMXUATTAR X3P3NKYYISH XUANOX,
XyBAAP ROXMH HIMITAYYNNS3. CYMEP  YPAMLUYYAIbIH ~ TAYH  XAYC, XAPWALArUMIH KAPT BONOH XyBUIH M3A33MMIAH HyyLNONbIF 3aAPYynax
A A rapayymx ernee. 35pcAsn33¢ ByPaH XaMraanaH aXuUNaaraa AaxuH BatancaH oM. /
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2024 OHbl OHLTOX YW ABOAT

.
ontsahe essischat
|y A
Zusammenarbeit (61Z) 6mbH

~

Xyaanaaa, xerkuith 6ark 6onoH XaHborasiH XerkinitH
Xypaacryyp Otoy TonroiH caH Hap XapWILAH OMArOLYIbIH
caHamx buunr baitryynnaa. Canamk buuur baiiryyncHaap
xoép Tan “MoHron Ync aaxk BYC HyTrUiiH HOTOOH Xerkuir
[3MXKMX 63n13H BananbiH TOcen”-UitH XypP33HA XAMTPAH

QXNUINAX oM.

MoHron y}'ICOl:L QHX yAAaa ONIOH yNCbiH XCAMIUIAH TOM 6OI'IOBCPOI'IblH

apra xamxa3 6onox STEAMEX 2024 soxuoH baitryynaranaa.

Sraxyy Tecena xamparaax xycantai 21 aimmruin 100 OAT Lk
Tenbepuiir XXb Tenx AsMXuH axunnanaa

Xyaanaaa Xerxnwith baxk fepmatibl OnoH YncbiH XamTbiH
Axwmnnaraarsl Huitramnartain xamtpan “SFME” Tecnuitr
X3P3MKYYN3X F3P33HA FApbIH YC3r 3ypaaa. MoHron ynceiH
TOTTBOPTO XOMKMN BONOH HOFOOH MP33aYIA YNrN3CaH XKIB-niir

namxux, XIB apxnaruasn CaHxyyruitH XypTa3MXUiAr HIM3rAyynax
30PUNroTOA oM.

%

\

Xyaanaaa Xerwinith 6aHK ypT XyrauadHsl CTPATENN 30PUATbIHXOO
Xyp33HA MoHron YncklH 3auitH 3acruiii xeaenrery xyy 601coH
XKVXKWT JyHI BU3HECYYAUIATr MASBXTIN A3MKMH COKUNIQAAT. DHIXYY
BoanoreiHxoo xypasHa Auxuran kpeaut XXK-tai xamtpaH
axunnaxaap bonnoo.

v

evelop
manceq

Xyaannaa, XenxnuitH BaHk
Hb AHY-bIH 3aCTWitH raspeiH
arentnar, OnoH YncbiH XerkimiH
CanxyyxuntuitH Kopnopat
6ytoy DFC-13i1 (U.S. International
Development Finance Corpora-
tion) Baitryyncan ypt XyrauaaHs!
CAHXYYXXWUITUIAH F3P33r Y33rNaX
&cnon aMXUNTTan 30XMoH
Baiiryynaranaa. Haxyy rapaar
y33racH33p MoHron ynceiH 6aHk
CaHXYYTuitH baiiryynnara He AHY-
biH XCK-aac wyya caHxyyxunt
60CrocoH aHxHbI Toxronaon 6onx
6aitHa. Tyc camxyyxuntasp XXb
Hb MoHron Ync gaxs 6uuun 6a
XKVXWT, AyHA YANABIPNSN, SM3Tai

BusHec apxnaru,qmﬁr A3MXUX 33311,

YYP OMbCranbiH ©0PUNenTTait
TIMU3X3A 30pLyynax 3amaap
MY-bIH TOrTBOPTO CAHXYYXWNT,
TOrTBOPTON XONKNIL ASMXKIIT
Y3YYN13X TOM anxam 6onox toMm.

fA_-;‘gt_;

/

~

EUROCHAMBER
SLIA

EuroChamber Mongolia-c 3ox1oH
6aiiryyncar “The EU Global
Gateway Strategy and Financing
Opportunities” apra xamxasr
Xyaanaaa XerxnuitH baxk
A3MXUH QXWINAA. YyNn3anTeiH
yesp “Global Gateway Strategy”
TOCINIAH XYPI3H [19X CEKTOPYYbIH
XOPOHI® OPYYNANTHIF AIMXKMX,
TYyHUi1 vn Toa Baiiaan, spx Tarw
TYHLUA3/, HOTOOH, LI9B3P Qoynryii
6ainanbir xaHracaH Asg GyTuyyanir
HIMIIAYYNIIX33P XININLSB.

Kuxur ayna busHec spxnsry
SM3ITSMAYYYAAS3 30PUYNCAH
BE LADY chopymbir aHx yaaa

AMXKUNTTAN 30XKOH Bairyynnaa.
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2024 OHbl OHLTOX YW ABOAT

YHOSCHWUI COEN AMPANTBIH XYPISN3H,
Pro napk xoépbiH AyHA opLumx
Tanbaitg Happy Park-r wnHasp

6yT23n33. ©n6p 6YP, AONOO XOHOT
Byp ©ep e6p X3N3/ILYYNST, IBEHT
apra xamxas, XaMTIar ayyuabiH
TOMNOATTON SHIXYY UONeeT napkaa
BputTo BM3a KapTTAI XapUILary
HapTaa 30puynnaa.

J

Ianxuith SauinH 3acruitH
Dopymbit “LLnH
MannannarugpiH 15 gaxs
YAQArUIH Yyynra yynsant”
BHXAY-biH JanaHb
XOTHOO 60n1n100. 3yHbl
Jasoc dopyma XXB-bir
Teneenx TY3-uitH aapra
Panpond Konna 6onoH
30 H.CapranaH Hap
oponuoo.

Yyn yypxaiH Aonoo xoHor Bytoy
Minig Week & MinePro 2024
OJIOH YFICbIH Y33CraNiaH, Uyynra
Yyn3anT 4 eapuitH TypL 30X1OH
baiiryynaranaa. SHaxyy apra
X3MKIIHNI NBIDH TITrIrussp
[anxuitH Yyp ambCranbiH HOrOOH
CAHMUIAH YHASCHUIA NTFIMXUISMACIH
baiiryynnara Xyaanaaa XeminitH
6aHk axunnanaa.

J

5[FEh

XXB AnoH ynceiH Ynba
BaHKTal XaMTpaH xapuauary
6aiiryynnaryyapii 6ustec yynsant
30X1OoH bBaiiryynnaa. lon 3opunro
Hb MY-bIH 3AMiAH 30CTUIH HeXUen
6aiinan 6onoH busHecHiiH OpuHbIF
TAHUYNAH CypTANUNax, Xoép ynchiH
TepuitH baiiryynnara 6onoH xyBuitH
X3BLUMNIAH BaiiryynnaryyabiH XepeHre
Opyynant, BUSHECHItH XaMTbIH

QXKWANArAAr H3M3TAYYN3X3A OPLUMHO.

Ia;'\_.

Dparu-MoHron xoép opHbI X0OPOH
6u3Hec apxangar busHec apxnary
HapTaa 3opuyncaH VIP xynssH asant
30xuoH baiiryynnaa.

J

~

KOREA
’ TOURISM

ORGANIZATION

XXB 6onoH Korea Tourism Organi-
zation Hb “XaMTbIH CXKMANArAQHbI
CAHAMX BUUMr”-T rapbIH ycar
3ypnaa. NitHxyy xoép yncelH asnan
XXYynunan, apyyn MaHauitH canbapeir
xerxyynax, XXb-Hbl kapTTait
xapwunuard Hapt BHCY-biH asnan
XYYNUNasnbiH 6ONOH 3MH3N3T, 3pyyn
M3HANIH Balryynnaryynan xeHrenent
YPAMLLYYNanTai yinuayynsx 3spar
OMOH TAbIH XAMTbIH CXKWANArAa

3X3/1M193. j

b ®
pi
XXBb BonoH DpaHLbH TEPUitH eMunT
XOPOHre opyynantbiH 6aHk Honox
BPIFrance “Crpareruiti xamTbiH
QXKWNArAaHb! COHAMX Buumnr’-T
rapebiH year 3ypnaa. Crpateruith
XAMTBIH COKMNATAaHbI CAHAMX
BUUrniiH XYP33HA Tanyya Xo&p yncbiH
6u3Hec, aaunitH 3acar, xyaanaaar
[9MXWX 39P3T ONIOH TAMbIH XAMTbIH
AXXWINAraaraa eprexyynsxssp
XQAPULIGH TOXMPONLIOB.
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2024 OHbl OHLTOX YW ABAAJT

OnOH YNChIH 333/KMX 33P3MNaJ1 TOFTOOX YHINra3HWit baiiryynnara Moody’s areHTnar Hb Xyaanaaa,

Xerxmitn BarkHe! 333nxux 33parnanviir B3-aac B2 “Torteoptoii” Gonrox axvynnaa.

UN-Day 2024 6ytoy
HaracaH YHascTHuin
Baiiryynnara (HYB)-
VIAH eaep aMXUNTTa
30xuoH baiiryynargnaa.
“TorTBOPTON, XYPTIIMXKTIM
xerinitH Tenee HYB
BONOH XyBUIH X3BLUMMIAH
XAMTbIH axunaraa”
C3ABWIH JOP 30XMOH
6aryynaracaH a1
YAQArUitH apra XamxasH[
XXB-Hbl OnoH YncbiH
BusHec xeriamiir
xapuyucaH Mynustrax
3aXMpPbIH OpP/Ory
H.CspransH oponunoo.

-

O+
o XAMTIAA

Xyoanaad, XemknuitH 6axk
MowHron Yncapn Torteoproit
CAHXYYXWUNTWIAH LIAP Xypa3r
Tan3x 3opunroop dasH
O3NXUAH HOFOOH XOMKIUAH
UHCTUTYTT3 XAPUILAH
OMNrONWIbIH CaHaMX
61umrT rapbiH ycar 3ypnaa.
YT XaMTbIH QXMANAraaHs!
XYp33Ha Tanyya
TOITBOPTOM CAHXYY>XWATUIAT
H3M3r/yYn3X, HOrOOH
LUMMKUATUIAT SPUMMKYYNIDX
UMrnana Tycrannax
QXXUNNAX, BAHKHDBI
3yraac “TortBopTown
CAHXYYXXUITUIH Xypa3”
BAPUMT BUUTHIAT LIMHIUNDH
Bonoscpyynax oM.

)
COP29

Baku
Azerbaijan

)
&S @B@‘

HYB-biH Cyypb KOHBEHLIbIH
TanyyasiH 29 ayrasp
6ara xypan (COP29)

AsepbaibkaH yncbiH Baky

XOTHOO AMXKMNTTA BOMK
eHpgepnenee. XXb-Hbl

TY3-uitH papra P.Konna He

Baiirans opuunH, opuunH yyp

AMBCTasbH ©8PUNONTUIH

caig C.OpoHtysaraap

axnyyncaH 6art MoHronbiH
BusHecuitn 3eBnenniti
Teneennesp OpoLoxX,
XYBWIH X3BLUIUIAH
XOPOHre opyynanT TaTax
BONOMXNKUIAT HIMIIAYYNIIX
canbap xypangaaxa
OpONLYIoO.

N

)

[Hanxwitt rapaon Tenbep
TOOL|OOHbI YANUMArs3
Y3YYnard Tapryynary

6aiiryynnara 6onox Thunes
6onoH XXb Hap BHXAY-biH
B33XM1H XOTHOO 30XMOH
6airyynaracax SIBOS
2024 apra xamMXKa3HUi
YE3P XAMTbIH CXXUNNArAaHbI
CAHAMX BUUMIT rapbiH ycar
3ypnaa. UHracHasp XXb

XApWALArYaaaad yayymk

Byt rapaa WUmKyynruiH

YANUNAT3ras TOPenXKyyax
anxmaa xuina3.

_

sliblos}

BEIJING

21-24 Oct 2024
XXB-Hbl XaMT ONOH A3NXWIAH
BaHK, CaHXYYruitH apra
X3MX33 bonox “Sibos-2024"
6ar xaMT 0IHOOPOO
AMXUNTTAMR OPOILIOXK
LUMH3N3I CAHAN CAOHAAUUNTa,
cTparerv 30punTyyabiH
Tanaap TypLiara

conmnunoo. /

MoHron aaxe AMepUKuiitH
XyoanaaaHsl TaHXMMAAC
30XMOH banryynaar
XAMIUIAH TOM apra
xamx33 “CSR AWARDS
2024"-H LopbIH raHL
“Diamond” cnioHcopoop XXb

axunnanaa.
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)

Xynanaaa XerxnuitH baHk Mownron Yncaac axx yaaa OnoH yncblH
M3PraXJInitH XepeHre opyynaryaaz 3opuyncad Huitrmuiitn 6onor HorooH
BoHabIr xaanTTai xanbspasp AscTpu YncoiH BeHuith XepeHruitH Bupx assp
rapranaa. Tyc 6oHabir rapraciaap anxuith TOMM apast 6artaar Accet
MeHexmeHT KoMnaHWac xepeHre opyynant TatcaH MOHIosblH AHXHbI
XYBUIH X3BLAWIAH KoMnaHu XXB Bomk BaitHa. MeH xepeHre opyynanTbiH
Bloomberg TepmuHan assp 6yptrantait MoHronbiH aHxHbl Horoon 6onox
HwitrmuitH GoHa tom.

wiener
boerse

Euromoney catryyn sun Byp fanxuit gasap 6aHk, CanHxyyruitt
CanBAPbIHXHbI ONIOAT AMKUNTLIN YHI/X, WNAAATMIAH LUMNArWAT

LIGNrapyynaar WarHanbiH xetenbep bonox “Awards for Excellence”-r
30x1oH baiiryynaar 6unsa. Tarean Tyc catryynasc 2024 oHbl “The
Best Bank for Corporates” 6ytoy “LUnunpar BaitryynnareiH baxk”-aap
Xynanaaa, xeminitH GaHKeIr LWanrapyynnaa.

MoHronbark, CaHxyyruiH
30xuLyynax xopoo, ToC
Xonboo XaMTpaH TorTsopToi
CAHXYYXXUNTUIAH Bognorsir
X3PINKYYIIX, XOrKYYNaX34
YH3TSi1 XyBb HIM3P OPYYNCAH,
canbapTaa MaHnainary
Gaiiryynnaryyasir xun byp
TOAPYYNAQr YNAMXKIANTAN.
Tyc xonbooHooc 2024 onp
XKEHAEPWIH UNIN3NI3P XUIAXK
rYALSTISCOH QoKNyyabir
yHanaH, XXB-bir “XXeHaepuith
Mannait Baiiryynnara”-aap

wanrapyynnaa. )

Amepuk -MoHron xoép opHsl
XOOPOHA busHec apxanaar
6usHec apxnary HapTaa
3opuyncaH VIP xynasH asant
30XMOH baiiryynnaa.

Xyaanaaa, xernnitH 6ank Huitcnanuiin XXuxwr,
[Oywa Yinaespnan, Yinuunraasr Jamxumx Tes
HOYT, 3sanuitt batnan Jaanteii Caxtan
xamTpaH Ynaanbaatap xotbiH XKAYY apxnary
HAPT CaHXYYTUIAH A3SMXIISN Y3YY9X xeTenbep
X3P3MKYYNax33p 6onnoo.

AnoH yncbiH
UNIQLO 6paHasac anbaH
&CHbl XyfanaaH asant
XWX, YANUNNTrI3HNIA
QXUNTHYYABIHXAA AYPIMT
XyBLCEIr ©0punnnes.

N

AreHT BAHKHBI yiinumnrasr
HIBTPYY/K, BAHKHBEI BureT
canbap, Hark baipwaarryi
ByC HyTrUitH xapunuarynag
QreHTaap AAMXKyynaH
ByTa3rm9XYYH, YANUNIrasrss

xyprax 6onomxroit 6onnoo.

KaHaa yncein IMAGE X
KOMMAHUTAM XAMTPAH
XAPWUNLArY, ONOH HUAT3A,
30PUYNCaH M3A33NMNNIH
B3bCANTAA LWMHIUMANDS.
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CAHXYYTUWH TAUNAH

XYPAAHTYM CAHXYYTUMH BAVIIBIH TAMIAH

XepeHre

B3n13H MeHre 6a MoHron6aHKuH Aaxb MEHTOH XePeHre
Bycan 6aHK, caHxyyrvinH 6anryynnara fjaxs MBHreH X8peHre
CaHXyyYrviH xepeHre opyynant

OxwH 6ormoH XapaaT KOMNaHW AaXb XePeHre opyynant
YYCM311 CaHXyYTUH X3ap3aryyp

3330 6a ypbaunraa

Bycan xepeHre

XepeHre opyynanTbiH 30puynantTTai Y Xe[a1ex XepeHre
Bopnyynax 3opuynantTait yn Xefnex XxepeHre

YHAC3H XepeHre, 4383p

ALIMrNax 3pxXT3Mn XepeHre

Buet byc xepeHre, U3Bap

HUNT XOPEHIre

©p Tenbep

Bycap 6aHK, caHxyyruiH bairyynnarsiH xapunauax, xagranamx
ByuaaH xygangax aBax rapasrssp 6opnyyncaH yH3T Laac
XapunuarygblH xapuiuax, xagranamx

YYCM31 CaHXYYMUMIAH X3p3rnyyp

CaHxyyrumH banryynnaraac aBcaH 333/

Xoeppmory erner

[apracaH epuitH YH3T Liaac

Bycan ep Tentep

Typ33cuiiH ep Tenbep

OpﬂOFbIH TaTBapbIiH erner

XOWLWNOrACOH TaTBapblH erner

HWWVT 6P TE/IEOP

©6pUiiH XOPEHTe
XyBblaaT Kanutan
Hamx TeneraceH kanutan

[laxuH yH3r33HUM Heel|

Bopnyynax 60NOMKUT CaHXYYTMAH XOPEHTUIMH Xy PUMTIArACaH X3p3rx33ryi 013 (rap3)

Tycrait 3opuynantTai Heel|

17562
7671
1,669.9
09
2654
41372
466.0
80.0
247
470.6
154

14
9,654.8

331
316.8
6,207.3
166.2
1418.8

260.5
159
557

o0}
N
o B

2022
3238
0.0
145.7
30
110.3

2,3087
1,651.8
19179
5.2
172.2
49335
509.2
533
83
568.0
13.2
253
12166.6

TapbyMm Terpereep
2024
3,094.6
1,396.7
2904.0
0.2
88.8
6179.6
5553
80.7
954
5485
9.0
47.6
15,0004




Kunuitn tTainan 2024

CAHXYYTUWH TAUNAH

N3NTOP3HTY OPIOTbIH TAMIAH

XyYruiH opnoro

XyyrvinH 3apgan

XyYrviH U383p opnoro

LLInMTran, xypaamxuiiH Li3B3p opsioro

Yin axwvnnaraasl 6ycag opnoro (angargan), usssp
XyyruiH Byc U3ssp opnoro

YN axunnaraaHbl opioro

YN axunnaraaHbl 3apgan

YH3 U3HUIH ByypanTbiH HeeUniH angarfan
XapaaT KOMMaHWNH anfargnaac Horgox xyBb
TaTBapblH 6MHEX almr

OpnorbiH TaTBapbiH 3apdan

TalNaHT XUAUIH L3B3P awmr

XAPBUAA Y3IYYIONTYYO

AWNrT axunnaraa

3apAsbiH OpsIorof 33/13X XyBb
LI3B3p xyyruiH 3epyy
©6pUH XBPBHININH Breex
AKTUBbIH 6reex
OcenTuitH xapbLaaHyy,

AKTUBbIH 6CONT

3337uiH ecenT

Xapunuax, xagranamxuinH ecent
©BpUItH XepeHrniH ecenT
AKTVBBIH YaHap

33301 / Xapunuax, xagranamx
333/IMIH aKTUBT 33/13X XYBb
Tenbep TypraH rynusTrax Yagsap
©6pUINH XePeHrUH XapbLiaa

1-p 33p3rN3NUIH 86PUINH XBPOHTUIH XYP3L33
OOPUINH XOPSHI H XYP3NL33

6741
(354.5)
319.6
504
139
64.4
384.0
(172.8)
283
04
2399
(45.7)
194.2

7647
(469.0)
2957
614
547
1161
a7z
(183.8)
(35.4)
43
196.8
(45.6)
151.2

(602.5)
483.5
76.6
879
164.6
6481
(232.2)
(22.6)
(5.0)
3882
(89.6)
298.6




Xerxun [3BLUMA, TOFTBOPTOM XOMKMNA XAMTAQA T3MYYNaH axunnax  Byi
QXXUNTHYYA BONOH QXXWUATHYYABIH BYTa9X Byt onont amxuntyys He Tuubu-uitn
baxapxan oM.

Xynangaa xeminumitH 6aHK Hb XyHWIA HEeUWtH GU3HeCMitH NapTHep 3areapbir
X3P3MKYY/I9H OHOBUTOM CTPATErY TONOBNONT, FYALSTI3MIAH YHIAr3, TACPANTryii
Cypanuary coén, 3anramx xanaa TeneBnenT, xXUTHbI Kapbep Xerkun, WwarHan
ypamiyynan 3spar 2024 oHA aXWUNNOX XYYHUIA CANH COMXOH BaianbiH TapryyH
UMFNISANIAT TOAOPXOMNOH, TYYHZ FONUNIOH QHXAAPY LUMHI3P Tecen xeTenbepyyauiir
X3P3NKYYN3H axxmunnanaa.

Bua 2024 oHpoo 608 LmnH3 3anyydyyabir QXWNA OBY, AXUINOX XYYHWI TOFTBOPTOM
6ananbIr XaHrax axunnax 6aiHa.




Kunuitn tTainan 2024

CAHXYYTUMH CANH CAVMXAH BANOAS

FYWUSTIAAUAH MEHEXMEHT

Xyoonaaa, XemwiiH 6aHK Hb  [YALSTIaNMAH  MeHexMeHTUiH  Tortonuoor 2023
OHOOC X3P3MKYY/N3H axunnax baiiraa bereen ynupan byp BAHKHLI TOBUIH rasap,
HIMKUAH - COKUMTHYYAbIH  ©60AUT  MYALSTIOAMAT  XIMXKUXK, FYALSTIOAWMAT  HIMSMAYYNSX,
YOAABXUIAT XOMKYYN3X BOANOTbIH TYBLUMHUIA CKIYYABIT XMIAXK MYALSTraA3N. [yALSTraAUAH

MEHEeXMEHTUINH TOITONLIOOT X3P3MXKYYN3X3 NPOrpamMM 6onoH
AXMNATHBI axbiH BaripHbl Aaryyx 6oant yp oyH
Oyxuit TYALSTIANIAT XIMXKMX OXUTYYObIr

TOrT™MOn CAMKPYYIX,

AXWANTHYYAbB T

M3393MM193P XAHIaH
QXuUNNax 6anHa.

UATTIVH YPAMLUY YJI1bIH CTPATET A

“3eruitH yyp xetenbep” Hb 4 Xun TAcpanTryin ypramknax bereen 2024
OHO U AMXUATTAR X3parkmx [yUsTrax yaupanaraac Bycop axMNTHyyAblH
ByTaamxmitH LUQ/MHT AaXMH 25 XyBWAP HIMIrOyynsH axunnad. MeH
COKMATHYYAbIH YOAAMK BONOH MYMLSTISAA CYyPUNCAH HIM3IE3N LANMUHIYYAbIH
YHINM33r  yaupan, xun Oyp TOAOPXOWX, TyYHA TynryypnaH wuiAnssp
rapranTyyasir ryALSTraX axunnax baiHa.

Ynnpan Byp Wwungsr axunTHyyasir wanrapyynan 133 rapyit Wunasr axuntHaa
Typk ync, Yexy apan, XanHars apan, Oykyok apnaap asnyynnad. JHaxyy
asanan Hb 2022 0HOOC XOWLL TACPANTIYIn X3P3arkink BaiHa.

200 rapyit axwuntHaa MoHron 6aHk 6onoH TepwiiH, TepwuitH Byc LwarHanaap
warHanaa.

TaMNQHT XyrauaaHa QXWNTHYYObIHXAG CAWH CANXAH, HUAMMWIAH QCYymibir
XYP3I3HA XOHrenenTTail Hexueneep 333uiH OyTaarasxyyH Onrox A3MXKUH
axunnanaa.



BUENWNH BOJIOH
C3Tra/1 3YMH CANH

CAMXAH BAVOAN

BENEFIT BOOK

XXB-Hbl  yH3  USHTOM  oxkunTHyymod — Xapunuard
Balryynnaryynan XeHrenentsn yHasp OyTaarasxyyH,
yinuMnraar asax bonomxkwiir onrox Benefit book-nitr
2023 oHooc xoiiL basxyynaH axunnax banHa.

CAWMH YPBIH KNYBY Y,

AXMNTAH XOOPOHABIH 3pYYN Xxapwnuaar buit Gonrox,
XQAranax, XamTbiH OyTsanu  Bananbir  HIMarayynsx,
QXKUNTHYY/bIH C3TM3 XAHAMXKUIAT ©Crex 60MOH HUIArMUIAH
LMKNBMYYANIAT Y3YYIX, CITM3 XAHIQTYYH CXKWITHYYAbIT
6uit Bonrox 30pUNroop CaH AypbiH Kaybyya yiin
axunnaraa  Asyymk HaitHa. ©epcaniti  COHMPXONbIH
Oynraspas HarACoH  Kybyyd HWAT QXUATHEI BUenitH
DONOH C3Tran 3yMH 3PYYN MIHAUMH CAMH  CONXQH
BaiIbIr A3MXKC3H OMOH YN CXKWANAraaHyya 30XMOH
Banryynan axunnax 6anHa.

(J
3( _& WeQQ -being §;”>

7 KI
XOMIKSIMAH KNYB TOB HIKING CLUB

Personal Development club
Good readers club
English speaking club
E-Sport club
Gender networking club
Hiking club
Well-being club
Football club
Well-being club

Podcast club

&
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HANTMUMH BOJTOH 3P BYIMMH CAMH CAMXAH BANOAT

SANTTAMMXK XANTAAHDI
BOONOTO

Xynanoaa,  XemiH  BaHKHBI
cTpaTery, ypT XyrauadHbl 30punro,
30PWNTOA  HUALICIH  MYALSTraAMIAr
Buit Bonroxon Heneenex TynXyyp
OXbIH - Baitpyynon  axkunnax
M3PraLICaH, Typwnararai
QXWUNTHBIF  BanTrax  npa3ayia
yycax  bonox  spcpsnyyauir
Byypyymx,  OMXUATBIH - XypAbIr
xagranax — sopunroop  “XXB-Hel
Sanramx  xanaaHsl  6ognoro”
Honoscpyynaranaa.

BaHKHbI X3MXKIIHT TYXYYP
QXbIH BAVPBIF TOAOPXOWMK, TyC CXKbIH BANPAH M3PraLWCIH, SHASP YP YanBapTai
QXKWATHBIM TACPAnTryi 6antrax 6oanorbiH xypasHa anbax Tywaan BypuitH 6antrax
xeTenbepyyauir TOrTMON X3P3NKYYNSH AXUANAnaal.

KAPBEP MEHEXXMEHTUIH 5OO/10MO

“XXB-Hbl  Kapbep MEHEXMEHTUH —MeHeXMeHTUItH  Hoanoro”  baTtnaracaxTai
xonborayynaH yr 6omnoreir axunTHyyaan Xyprax QxibiH XypasHa gotoopnoo ERP
CUCTEMUIH A34 CUCTeM BONOX LOO LUMH3, CYYNWUAH YeUitH A3BLUMATST MPOrPaMMbIH
XOPKYYNINTYYAUAT XUIAH HIBTPYYNISI.

TyC NPOrPAMM Hb CXKUNTHYYbIH ©8PUIH 3AH TeNeB, yp YaABAPT YHASCN3H AAPAAriiiH
Kapbep TeNeBnenTuisr 3yparnax, TyC KAPbepT LIAAPAIAratain yp uamsapyydsi
TOAOPXOMMK Oy XAMTPAH Cxkmnnax baitHa.

TACPATIYIN CYPANLIATY COEN

2024 oHa HWiAT 499 ynaarwiiH cyprantad AABXAPACAH Tooroop 19,944 axunTHeIr
cyprantag xampyynas. 2024 oHA HAr aXWITAH xaMmruiH Baragaa 1 cyprantag
XaMpargax, Aaexapaaaryi tooroop T axuntar 8-9 yaaaruitH cyprantoa XaMparacaH
BaitHa.

ae € (¢ N

AXUNTHBI TACPANTIYI  CypanuUax COENkIr BYPAYYIaX 30pUAroop GXWITAH Byp XyccaH
raspaacaa eepuitH M3IaN, yp YaABAPLIT HIM3rAYYNax Gonomxuitr bypayynas OnoH yncsiH
Udemy nnatcopmroit 3 Aaxb xunass xamtpax axunnax 115 Tepnuith 918 uaruitn 760 rapyi
CypranTyyaan Xampyymx, CepTndmkaTtai 6onrocoH. MeH AoToof cymkasHA A0Tooa Cyprary
6arw Hapaap AAMXYYIaH BUAEO XMU3/1 BINTISH OKUITHYYAAA HI3MTTM Y33X BONOMXKMIAT
BypayyncaH.

2024 OHA LMH33P X3P3MKYY/ICIH TOMOOXOH OHLYIOX XeTenbepyya:

™
X

QXKMNTAH TOPNIH CyprantbiH xyrataa

/1 axuntan/

. Future leaders yaupaax axuntan 63nTrax, MapraLuyynsx xetenbep

. Lady" s leadership” HApaitH YeneeHeec 3praH axXWUIAAA TOMUNOTAOH CKUINIAXK
Byt SM3rTaNUyyAMIAH MAHNAWBIH XeTenbep

. XeHpepuitH cyprary barw 63nTrax xetenbep

. HorooH canxyykunt, TOrtBopToi XerxnuitH cyprary bari 63n1rax xetenbep

. [uxuntan yp yaasap xerxyynax xetenbep

. MeHntop - 2024 xetenbep

. Coaching - 2024 xetenbep

. TDB Knowledge sharing TamMuaaH
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HANTMUMH BOJTOH 3P BYIMMH CAMH CAMXAH BANOAT

TOITOOH BAPMX BOOTIOTO

Xynanoaa, XemIMiH  DaHKHBI - CXKUATHYYABIN  MASBXXKYYISX, CQXKWATHBI  OPONLOOr
HIM3IAYYK, BYTIIMXKMIAT A33LLYYIIX, O3 XAPFANTAN QKUNTHBIM Burin Bonrox 3opunroop
QOKUATHYYABIH 3P3NT X3P3rL33r TOLOPXOWTXK, TYYH [330 CYypWIAH CXKWUATHBI CAlH
CANXaH BARANbIr A3MKX XOTENnbepuir Xaparkyynaxas axunnax bainHa. Tapryynax 5
UMFABAUIAT TOAOPXOWX, TYYHA TyNryypAaH CKWUATHYYAOA YMIISCIH TOMOOXOH Bognoro,
TOMNeBNeNT, CKITYYAbIT XU MyALSTraX BaiHa.

YAH XATAH LATVIAH 30XUOH BANTYYNANTbIH CUCTEM

XXBaHKHbI  “AXUNTOH TeBTS# XyHWiA HeeL’-WitH BOoANOrbiH XypPasHA rasap, X3ATCUIAH
QOKUNTHYYABIH CXKUANAX OPUMH, YENEeTII CITraX BONOMXKMIAT Bypayynax 30punroop Tyc yin
axunnaraar 2023 oHooC 3xX13H X3P3aNkyyK baiHa.

3AMHAAC AXMNIAX CUCTEM

AXWATHYYOBIH BApLINAAC YN XAMAOPOH DyTIaMXUIATr  HIMIMAYYN3X, CXWUA AMbOPAbIH
TOHUBIPTIM BANANLIN XAHrAX 30PUAroop CXIbIH BANPHLI OHLIOFOOC XAMAApPY 3aiHAAC
axunnax bonomxuiir BypayynaH axunnax baitHa.

AXUNTHBI C3TT 27T XAHAMX

XYHUIA HEOOUWIAH OHOBUTOM LUMIABIP APrAT, CKUATAHA YMMMSCIH BOMIOrO TeneBnenTuiir
ragaon 6onoH gotoo[ OpUYHbI CyAQIradHa YHA3CA3H rapragar Bereen CXWMTHbI C3TraN
XAHAMXWIAT Cyaanraar xun byp a4 axxnnnax HaiHa. BaHKHbI xaMxa3Ha axunnax byit
QOKUNTHYYABIT CITFAN XAHAMXWIAH CYAANradHbl yp AyH B yHanrastait baitHa.

IIMXUNX XOTOIIboP

Xy[annaa, XerkimitH GaHKHbI ©0pUIree Xerkyyiaxasp OfIOH YNChiH M3Pr3LICIH 3PX ONroxX
CyPranT, WONranTas aMXUNTTAR XAMPArACaH QXWNTHYYAGA TenbepuitH Tooopxoi XyBuiir
BaHKHaAC ByLAaH ONMoX 3aMaap TIArIIPUIAN Cypy, XONKMXOA AIMXISN Y3YY3X 30PUroop
“[amxumx xeTenbep”-uitr xun byp XapankyynsH axuinax baiHa.

TDB FLEXIBLE MOM XOTOJIEEP

Hspaiith BonoH xyyxan acpax YeneeTsint CxXWATHYYObIH HUMArMWAH CaitH CaixaH baianbir
IPMXWK, TACPANTTYA XOMKYYNaX, HIM3NT Op/oroToil Bonox BONoMXUIAr onrox 30puUnroop
BaHKHbI “XApUNLArYuitH M3a3nuiAH XanTac”-T 3aiHaac axunayynnaa. Tyc xeTtenbepuitH
C3TraN XAHAMXWIAH VP AyH eHaep bairaa Tyn xun Byp X3parkyynaxasp TeneBneH axmax
6aiHa.

HACAH 30XMLUOX XoTelIboP

LLInHa3p TOMUNOrAOH axkmnnak Byt aXUATHYYAAA XANAMXKIAX, CYPraX XenKyY3X 30puUiroop
[ACOH 30XWLOX XeTenbepuidr TACPANTIyit xaparkyynaH axunnax baiHa. Tyc xeTtenbept
TYXQH CXUNTHBI yAWPAArbiH apra 6apun, XamT OfiHbl COEN, 3epar yyp OMbCran Lyyn
HeneeTsit berees TOrTMON CyAANTAA GBY CAMKPYYNAH CXXWUANANAA.

SPACMYC XOTOJIEEP

CaHxyy 3AniiH 3aCTUH MX CyPryynsTail XaMTapcaH “AxnbiH BANpPaHA cyypuncaH LanuHTa
nopnaraxux-Erasmus”  xetenbepuiir  xaparkyynsH BaHKHEI rasap  HIPKMA - Aoanard
XMANMOX, YIMOAP LAALIUE TOFCCOHMI AAPAa BAHKHEI Lyyd axdlbiH BANPaH 43P TOMUOX
30PUNTOOP LIGNMHTAM BOMOH LANMHIYI 4AMIArLIN XAMTPAH AMKWITTAR 30XMOH Balryyniaa.
Tyc xetenbept aMXUITTAN XAMPArACAH OKYTAH 3AnyyC iJibiH BAMPAH 43P TOMUIOTAOH
axunnak banHa.



HANTMIMH XAPUYLLTATA
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FORUM 2024

Ynamxnan 6oncoH xyaanaaas!
CAHXYYKUNTUIAH dopymaa
30xvoH baiiryynnaa. Xyaanaaa,
YVANUUNTrI3HNM brsHecwHiiH
OPUHbIT LUMHIZP XAPX, COPUNT
OapxWIz30,  AMXWUIT  ONonT,
LUMHD BonoMKuir XYHOST
xapunuary, BusHecHiiH
nTranT TYHLLIYYJ:[Ta;II'aS XaMT
X2M13/1L133.

MON CLIA
ECONOMIC FORUM

WELCOME TO MONGOLIA
YPUATAM  MOHronbiH  3auitH
3acruith cbopym 2024 apra
Xx3Mx33r XXb A3MXMH axkunnas.
DopyMbiH ~ yesp  eepcanitH

TorTBOPTON CAHXYYKUATUIAH
YAFNSNWIAH QXITyyAbIr
OHLOMNOO.

ST
\'\/"

MoHrong, aHx yaaa OfoH yncbiH
XaMruiiH - ToM  BonoscponbiH
apra xamxa3 bonox STEAMEX
2024 30xvOH bBalryynaracaH.
Tyc apra xamxasHuit yesp
6ara aHruitH bonox bairanuitt
YXQQHbI 6arw HapbIr
yagaexkyynax 100% npaktuk
TypwmnT, ByT3304  CyypuncaH
xetenbepr 21 ainmar bypaac
oponLoX 100 BarmiH
Tenbepuiir XXb Tennee.

MeH OaHKHbI yin
AXUNNAraaHs awmrnax
BOONOMXIYN  TEXHUKUIH  XOr
xasrgnyyn  Hyoy  xyyxawidn
My3ein XaHauenacaH. TyxaiH
My3ell Hb TyC XOr XQasranbir
LUMHXIIX YXAAHL COHUPXONTOM
bara  Hactal - XyyxayyauiH
flyHA 30xuoH baiiryynax Work-
shop-too awwrnax, awurnax
fyyccaHbl  aapaa  baitransa
33MTNrI3P XOr XAATAAN LAXWH
bonoscpyynaar yinaoespt
XAHAMBAX tOM.

TOFOD &=
T(')Xl:1Pny1'bF| Y Q

F2xk2 -

SpuMM  XYYHUIA  30XMCTOM
xaparnaar  gamxux  “TOM-oo
TOXVPYYba”  GAHO  HIMARX
ropan  LAXMATAaH  X3P3rcss
LOXWAraaH 3apuyynant bara
X3P3rCNasp  COMbX,  3PUnM
XYUHUA  ©HAep  X3P3rnaaTai
LAXMITAaH X3p3rcias auaanan
baratain  yea  Qxkunnyynx
baiiHa.

MONGOLIAN
H BUSINESSES VIP NET-
" WORKING EVENT

XXb  Mowron  yncan  vyin
AXUNNAraa 3pxamx Oyt onoH
ynceiH  Banryynnaryyn  6onoH
3NUMH  CAABIH - AAMHYyyATaN
epreH  Xyp3asHUit  Xxapunuaa,
XCAMTbIH axunnaraatan
aXWUNNaAar. DH3  Xypa3HAS3
6un  ®paHu-Morron  HonoH
Amepuk-MoHron xo&p OpHbl
XOOPOHA ~ BusHec — 3pxanasr
busHec ~ spx3ry  Hapraa
3opuyncaH VIP xynssH asant
30x1OH Baitryynnaa.

Bloomberg

TV MONGOLIA

Bloomberg TV Mongolia 2013
OHOOC 3X/13H N byp MoHron
YACbIH 3AWAH 3QCTUAH  ecenT,
XOPKUN  [9BLUNAL  TOMOOXOH
XyBb H3M3p 6OJ'ICOH XAMIMIH
wunasr  6ytesH  baitryynan,

XepeHre  opyynant,  Tecen
xetenbep, 6opanoro
WMAOIMAC “Bloomberg

Awards”-T  H3p  A3BLUYY/ISH
MaHaannaryabir TOAPYYX
MPC3H.  DH3  KUAWAH  XyBb[
TYC CAHQQUMATbIH AAPAArviH
XYYOCBIF  HI3X,  TOrTBOPTOM
XOMKWUA, HOFOOH 3AMWH 3acarT
xyprax “xypaacryyp”  6omx
by wunaryya Gyroy “Cat-
alyst”-yyasir Toapyynnaa.
Apra  XaMXasHWUl  epeHxuit
MB33H T3Traryssp Xyaangad
XerxnmitH bank axunnanaa.

CEKTOPbIH
XAMIMH
OHOSP LAIMH

BOHKHb\ O)l(MﬂTHyyﬂblH CaTran
XAHAMX, CanH CaNXaH
6aiaan, amMbapanbiH YOAABXbIF
[O93LUNYYNISX  30PUNTO0P  HUMT
COKMNTHYYObIH 6\(T33M>KM|?|H
uonuHr - gaxuH 25 xypranx
XyBUAP HIMMI3.

@I
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Kuxur oyma GusHec spxiary,
SM3MTaNYYYANIAT O3MXNX,
BusHecHitH Bonomxyyabir
TAHWLYYNOX,  ONOH  YNCbIH
BaiiryynnarsiH cyprant
3eBnereer XYBACNLIAX,
XAMTPAH axxunnax 6onomxroi
KOPMNOP3iT - Bairyynnaryyarait
TAHWALYYNax 30punroop
“Be Lady Forum” 30xuoH
batryynnaa.



XA3PAAPTYM
MopPoolen

TalnaHT oHA rypBaH yaad XA3raapryi
Mepeefen  TeCNee  X3P3rKyynnss.
WHraxaes  [anxuitH  AyTambiH - capbir
TOXWMONAYYNaH  QyTU3MTA  OHUrOW
XYYXAyyAsa 30pUyNaH Onuroi
Xyyxayyanitn Akanemun “xyyxayya aypa
OpPX TOTIOX CYPranTbiH epeer x bypaH
Toxuxyynx” ercen. [apaaruitn ynaan
Hb “Aymam  AHa TBB"-biH  O3pragax
“AHyynsH a3 xapran”  usUspnaruitH
CYPranTblH QHMM TOHXWMBIT Hb OypaH
TOXUXYYIX ©rnee.

MeH AanxuiH  XypUMTNOnBIH - eapwir
Toxuonayynan Hanaiix ayypruiis fonomt
Loruonbop  CypryynuitH  HOMbIH  COHT
TOXUXYYIX, HOMOOP Basyynx ernes.
WiHxyy Xasraapryit mepeepen Tecen
HUiiT 58 cypryyns  ususpnaruitn 200
MaHra  rapyin  xyyxag, 10000 rapyit
barw,  cypraH  XyMyyxyynaruauiH
6ONOBCPONA OIOYHBI XOPEHTe OpyynanT
xuirssg  bamHa.  bua  uaawmg  u
HUArMUIAH  XOPWYLIArbiH - XYP33HA  yr
Tecneep AAMXYYmX, MOHrobIH X0y
Mp33ayl  BONCOH  Xyyxaa,  3anyyceir
cypy BonoBcpox HONOMKOOP A3MXKMH
axunnax bonHo.

MAAMYY XYYXOUVH
XALTATTAMXK

AHY-bit “ABC” TeneBnsuitH ypaH bytaan
Bet on Baby woy HaeTpyynruir anbat
ECHbl 3pXTaNrasp MoHrona aHx yaaa
NTV tenesns xypracsaH. XXb MAAMYY
XYYXOUAH  XOAranamkadp  AaMXKyynaH
ONOH  HUIT3A, COHXYYruiH Bonoscpon
ONrOX UMMM XAMTPAH CKMANAA.

MeH Bara HacHbl XyyxOyYAuiH rarssH
Xycan Mepeeanuiir concox , Cantarai
yynsax — xycan  Guenyynax  Bonod
XYYXOYYA33P  OAMXKYYNQH  CaHXYYruitH
bonoscpon onrox 3opunrotoit Maamyy
XYYXOUAH KOHTEHTBIF B3NTraH  cowman
Meanaraap OnoH HUNTSA XyPraB.

|__¢%:_| BU3HECUIMH

288 OPuMH

TainaHT oHA EuroCham - Global Gate-
way project - opportunities for compa-
nies in Mongolia, AmCham Mongolia
- CSR AWARDS 2024, Logistic Forum
2024, SIBOS 2024, Japan festival in
Mongolia 2024, U.S. Embassy - WOM-
EN ENTREPRENEURS, MinigWeek &
MinePro 2024, TDB and Chiba Bank
networking 33par apra XaMxasHyyauir
30XMOH  Baiiryymx, [O3MXWUH axunnaal.
MHracHasp Xynanoaa, XemkminH BaHk
Motron Ync GonoH rypasaary xeptu
YNC XOOPOHObIH BU3HecwitH  Hexuen
bangan, 34MAH  3ACar, HUAMMUAH  Qu
XONBOrA/bIN CAMKPYYNAXag Yyxan yypar
ryAusTrans3.

) HAPAVH LLAPNAMbIH
YO AMMAPAT

XXB-Hbl yyran canbapyyasiH Har DpasHaT
canbapbliH  yycraH  BairyynaracaHs
TYYXT 25 XWAMIAH O TOWNQHL OHA
Toxuox baitHa. Oinn Bbaspaapaa XXb
39X YPCUMH 3pYYyNn  M3HOUAM  A3MXKMUX,
SMH3MTUIMH TYCNnam) yianunnraasr
camxpyynax 3opunroop “OpxoH aimar
naxe bycnith OHOLUIMATOO DMUMNTa3HMIA
TeB"-A HAPAMH LIAPAArbiH - annapar
63n3rn3n33.
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WORLD
ECONOMIC
FORUM
Lanxuiin - Dauitd 3acruiti
Dopym, OBNUIH BonoH

3yHbl  [asoc  dopyma  XXB-
bir Teneemx TY3-uiH gapra

PaHgond Konna, 30
H.Capranax Hap oponuioo.
XXb oanxuing XYN33H
36BLLI6OPerCceH, Motron

YACBIH  LUMAAST  ONOH  YNChbIH
BaHk bonoxbiHxoo xysbg 2010
oHooC xoWw [anxuitH anitH
Bacruith Popymrai xamTpaH
QAXWINACAH tOM.

Bloomberg

LED MEDIA SCREEN

Tep GONOH XyBUIAH X3BLLAMIAH
Banryynnaraac  xapankyynix
Byit HUiraMm, Bairans ANXWIAH
COMH  CaXHbl  Teneex yin
QKUNNArAAHYYAbIT LISMKMXK
QXWUANaB. JaMXnaruitt xypasHa
4 bairyynnareiH 13 TepnunitH
Buoeor TeB OaipHbl ragaa
Barpnax fanrauzspas Tyc byp
14 xoHorooc [33W XyraudaHz
YH3ryit Baiipliyynnaa.

9

F U.S. International
Development
Finance Corporation

TDB&DFC

XXB AHY-bIH 3acruiti  raspbiH
XerxamitH CaHXyyXUnTUitH
Kopnopaurait ypT XxyrauadHsl
CAHXYYXXUNTUAH rapaar
Y33rNana3s.  DHaXyy  rapasr
y33rnacHa3p MoHron Yncaac
BaHK caHxyyrvitH baiiryynnara
XCK-aac  wyya  CaHXyyxunT
BOCroCOH QHXHbI  TOXWMONAONA
Bomx barraaraapaa oHwior

oM. Tyc  caHxyyxunTviar
aBcHaap MoHron Ync
aaxe  Buumn Ba  okkkur,
ayHo  yingespnan  (BXAY),

3M3rTal BUsHec spxNaryanitH
CAHXYYXVUNTURH  XYPTI3IMXKNIAT
H3M3rAYYNaxad,  MeH  yyp
QAMbCranbiH ©epuNenTTai
T3MU3X3A  AAMXYYNaH 3331
ONrox — 3aMaap  TOrTBOPTOW
XOPKWUNA  A3MXNIAF  y3YYIaX
Bonomxuiir buit bonronoo.

D) KOY-hAr
Q ﬁ O2MXNY

XXb  Huicnanuitn  Kuskur,
LyHn Yngespnan, Yinuunrasr
Oamxunx Tes HOYI, 33anuitH
Batnan  Oaanteii  Cantanm
XAMTPAH Ynaarbaarap
xotbiH  KOYY spxnary  Hapt
CAHXYYTUAH  A3MXIST  Y3YYnax

xeTenbep X3PIMKYYNDXIDP
bonnoo. Tyc xetenbepeep
OOMXKYYNaH — KWKAT,  AyHA

BU3HEC SPXNBTUANIAr  OIMXKMX
30PUNTLIHXOO XYP33HL
60auT  x3paruss  Wwaapaiara
Byxuit XOYY spxnary  HapT

XOHreNnenTTan HeXLenTan
3930 onroHo.  VIHracHasp
BusHec  IpxNArYAMAH 30X
39314 epcengex  4aasap,
3OMMH  3QCTWMH  YOACBXbIM
HIM3rayynax, canbapbiH

XIMKIIHL, YNCAAC X3PIMKYYIK
byt Bomnoron XyBb HIM3P

OPYYNAH O3MXI3M Y3YY/oX TOM
anxam Bonox oM.

HUATMUNH
BOJIOH
HOIFOOH BOHA

Xynongaa  XerxnumitH — Bamk
MoHron Yncaac aHx yaad
OnoH  yncblH ~ M3PraXnnitH
XepeHre opyynaryaag
3opuyncaH  Huitrmuiti - 6ono
Horoon  Bowabir  xaanttan
xanbspasp  ABCTpu  YnchbiH
BenwitH XepeHruitn bupx gssp
rapranaa.  HuirmuitH - 6onoH
HorooHn 6oHg psnxuiiH TOMM-
10-1  spambansromsr  Accert
MeHexxmeHTiiH  KomnaHuac
XOPeHre opyyncaH He MoHron
YNCbiH  XyBbA TYYX3H QMXWNT
bainaa.




XOEPOYTAAP BYN3I
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BU3HECUMH YWIT AXKUINATAA

BANTYYNTATBIH 3AX 323/1 333/1, X YYCB3P, TO/IBOP TOOLOO
Xyoanoaa  XemkuiiH  BaHk  Hb - Xapuauary  TeBTaW
BairyynnareiH - 6aHk  BaiX, ONOH  YNCbIH  KALIUT
CTAHOOPTAL — HWALCOH  COHXYYrUitH  ByTaarasxyyH
YANUUAT3T HIBTPYYIX, HYTArLLYYNaX, OyTaarmaxyyHwWi
YP QLUMUAT HIM3AYYN9X, HOTOOH BUSHECHIAT 4aNrapYYNaX
33P3r TOMOOXOH 30PUNTYYABIN TABBX COKUANCXK BAHA.

BaHkHbI cekTopbiH ToM AAH-yya34 ONroCcoH 333MinH
OPYMM XYBWIAT, 3X YYCBIPUIH rapyv XyBuiAr Xyoonaaa
XONKMIAH  BaHkHbl  BaiiryynnarsiH - xapwnuaraua
Bypayymx baiHa.

OnoH yncbiH BusHec Mogernb Byroy
30aXManraT TenbepuitH cucTeMUir BaHKHbl Tenbep
TOOLIOOHbI BYTI3rASXYYH A33P CYYPUIAH QHXIGH
H3BTPYY/DK QKMo banHa.

22%

Xapwnuary TesTai BaHk Bonox ypT xyrauaaHsl ctpareru
30PWIMbIH  XYP33HA XAPWILArYAbIH 3P30T  X3P3rL33,
30H Tenes, BW3HECUIMH OHLYIONT HUMLICSH YANUMAraar

32

caHan Bonrox, XapuUNLArdaa Xanamxiiax, XapuaLardua
XYP3X YH3 LSHUIAM HIMITAYYASH, XAPWILGH QLUMITAN
YPT XyrauaaHbl XaMTbIH COKMNATAAHA 30PbX CXKMINCK
BaiHa.

2024 oHbl XyBbA 3OMAH 3ACTWIH  Xepenrery  xyd
BONCOH yyn yypxai, XyAannad yMnumaras, xedee ax
axyit, Bonoscpyynax yinasspnan, G6apunra rax Mt
canbapyyablH MaHnainary rapyi rpynn 6onox
TOMOOXOH CIK QXYWH H3MK BAlryynnaryyaran XxamrpaH
axunnaa. TagHnit CaHXyYrMidH X3paruss Laapaiaran
HWMLICOH 3331, AEN03UT, XyAANAAAHBI CAHXYYXMUAT BONoH
Tenbep ToouooHsl 60 rapyit ByTa3raXYYH, yiAnuMnrasr
caHan Bonrox, XAPWILAruWMitH BUSHECUIr  A3MXMH,
XAMTBIH ©CenTuitr 6uit bonronoo.

30%

MeH XapuUnuaryuiii XaHWWAH 3pCasn, TOCAWAH Lap
XYP33HA Hb TYNryypAaH ypT XyraLaaHbl XOHrenenTTan ax
YYCB3pUiAr caHan 6onrox, HorooH 6oNoH 3M3rTait BusHec
SPXIIMYANIAH CAHXYYXXUITUIAH XYPTIIMKUIAT HIMIMAYYNSX
CTPATErUAH XYPISHWI rafaal 3X YYCBIPYYAUAT TATaX,
XAPWILAMY HAPBIHXAA BU3HECWIH OHLNMOTT TyNryypnaH
caHan bonrox baHa.
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XYOATTOAAHbBI CAHXYYXKUNT

DAUNH 30CTUIH HexUen banaan camkmnpy, ragdaos XyaanAaaHbl SPrafT HIMIILIXUIH
X3P33P UMMOPT, SKCMOPTHIH AKKPEAUTUB DONOH MHKACCHIH YiANUMArasrssp GusHec
SPXI3ruMa 3pCcaaNs3d Byypyynax, yiin axunnaradHbl 3ap4Iad XaMHIX, uiyy xsanbap
CAHXYYTUIAH X3P3rcan awmryynax bananaap xaMmTbiH CXUNIaraa Tsncasp baHa.
2024 oHa XyOoannaaHbl CaHXYYKUITUIH BYTI3rO9XYYHWI 30X 39314 33/19X XYBUAT

- XYPrax, bairyynnarbiH cerMeHTUitH XapuUaLAryAas rapracaH HUAT aKkpeanTms,

6aTanraaHbl AyHr ©MHEX OHbl 3LC33C -aap HIM3rAYYN3H AXMANaa.
MeH noTooAbIH HUItNYYNaNT BONOH SKCMOPTLIN HIMITAYYSX 30PUIrO0P

reight forward financing

actoring
orfaiting

BYTo3rASXYYHYYAS3P  AAMXKYYNQH XAPUALArYAbiH - BUSHECUIMH  Spraumir  ASMKUH
AKUINAX BANHA.

TeColl XoTe/1EeP

MoHron ynceiH 3acruiii raspsiH ypT 6onoH BorvHo XyrauadHbl Teneeneree, Mera
Tecen xetenbep YYHUAr OAraH X3parkmk Oy TOCIMIAH 339AMIAH CAHXYYXWNT A93p
USBXTOI OPONLIOXK CEKTOP BYPUIT A3MXUMX XeTenbepyyasa Tynxyy oponuox baiHa.
Tyxannban eHrepceH oHg MY-biH EpeHxuineryniti caHaaunaH xapankyymx Oy
“XyHchuin xyBberan”, “LlaraaH ant” 3apar xetenbepyyanir 43MKUH Tapryynard BaHk
HonoH axunnax baiHa.

XXB Hb HUArMUIAH XaPUYLNArbiH XYP33HA ra30p TAPUANCH, SPUUMKCIH MAN QXX aXyW,
300pPb Aryynax, XYYXA34 YAMISCIH CYY, CyYH ByTa3rasxyYH, Tanx HapWitH 600B, rypumbIH
YANABIPNSN, MAXHBI YANABIPASA, AANQN XyynunanbiH canbap rax M3T Tecnyyauir

MAZBXTIN OaMKWK OaiHa. 2024 OHE TyC UMMaNG HWNAT TopbyM TerperuitH
SPraNTUINH XOPEHre BONOH XOPEHre OPYyNANTbIH CAHXYYXXWAT ONroNoo.

TeCeoJll, XoTelIbePYY/:

49. 8T3p6yM

Hoonyyp 63nrana sopuynan onrox
XeTenBepuii xyp3sHa

23.5T3p6yM

2025 OHbl HHCASAWITH MaN, MaX 6aATr3X,
MoxHs! HeL BYpAYYNSX 30pUynamTacp

— 5 .3T3p6YM

Asnan xyynunansin canbapsic
BOMKIIX XOTENBEPHIiH XYP33HA

68 9T3p6YM

XyrcHuit 6onon XAA yiinasapnanuiir
AMXIX SPrINTUIAH XOPOHTE BONOH
XBPEHTE OPYYNNTH 30pUyNaNTacp

2025 oHa “LlaraaH ant” xenbepuitt xypasHa xaparkyymx byt “Hooc, Hoonyyp, apsc
LUIMPHUI BONOBCPYYNAX YANABIPASNMIAT ASMXKUX SPTaNTUMH XOpeHre BONoH xepeHre
OPYYNanTbiH 3330 -UIAH CAHXYYXWUITUIAH epeHxuit rapaar XXAAXYA-tain Bairyynx,
XAPUNLATYABIH 3937UMH XYCIATUNT WNHABIPNSX33P CyAANTAAHA ABY 9X3/1N133.



XXWXKNT, OYHO BU3HECUMH 3AX 3321

Xynangaa, xerwiiH BaHk Hb “Xapunuary TeeTsit Bamk 6onox” ypT XyrauddHsbl
CTPATErt YNTNSNNIAH XYPISHA XWXUT, OyHO BUSHECUIH CErMEHTUIH 30X 333N14 331X
Baip cyypuir eprexyynsH T axXWNas.

XKnxur, ByHA BU3HEC 3pXary MPraf ok aXyi HIMKYYAUAT YOAABXXKYYNax, BusHecuitH
OHLNOMT  TYNryypnacaH TeneBfneree raprax, Yin CxXWinaradHel LAp  Xypasr
eprexyynax, yapanarbiH apra  6apunbir  camxpyynax, OaHKHbI  ByTI3raaXyyH
YANUMNTS3T OHOBUTOWMIOOP QLUMIAX, XAMA ©pTer Byxuil X yYCBIPUIr X3pXaH 36B
30XMCTON ALUMIIAX 3303 ONIOH TOPUIAH 36BNEree CypPranT, YWNUMIraarasp XAHraH
AKUINAXK BANHAL.

Kuxur gyHn BU3HeCUMH cerMeHT Hb MpraH BonoH barryynnarsir 6artaacaH oHLIor

cerMeHT beree[ CerMeHTUIH MABXTII KUXKHI, ByHA Br3Hec apxnary xapuiuary
HaPT BAHKHbI Cyypb BYT93rA3XYYH YINumMarasr canbap, TOOLOOHbI TeByyA BonoH Laxmnm
CYBIYyAaap AAMKYYIDK OOH YICkIH CTAHAAPTBIN Cyypb BOMrOX CaHXYYTUitH 3KO crcTem
YYCraX XaMTPAH axuinax baiHa.

TaMNQHT OHA XKWL, OyHA OW3HEC SPXI3rygsA ONrOCOH HUIMT 393MMiAH ynASrasn
T9pby™M Terper bomk, eepwitt BaHKHbI 39371iH BarubiH -UIAr BypayymK
6aitHa. TaTaH TOBNOPYYNCIH XOPOHTWIAH XyBbA TopbyM Terper Gonx,

©OPUIH BAHKHbI TATAH TOBNOPYYICIH XOPOHTUIAH “UIAr 9331 BarHa.

34

12%
Small
SME XAPUTUATY ﬂ‘
80% :
Micro 8%

Medium

XKuxur, AyHID BUHECUIH CErMEHT Hb TAMNAHT OHA YOHAPIYH 332MWIAM TENYYNIX QKUANAraar
LLIAT AGPAATAR X3P3MKYYNCHWN YHOCSH 493D ©MHOX OHbl MOH YET3I XAPbLYYNaXad YaHapryi

333/UMH X3IMX33 -aap ByypcaH y3yynantrait bainaa.

KK, OYHA CETMEHTUH BM3HEC SPX12MY BANTYYIATA

11% Yitnumnras
13% Bapwnra

P e

37% Bycon

34% Xynanaaa 6% Tse3p, aryynax

3% Yyn yypxain
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LLUMH3 BYT33MA3IXYYH, YUIUMITD3

“"HUNCNNNAH XUXAT OYHA YWIABSPAN
YMNUUNrI3T ASMXKUX TEB HEYT, 32/MNH
BAT/IAH JAANTHIH CAH-TA XAMTAPCAH
XEHreNenTTan Hexuen YXimm 33311nH
BYT23rA2XYYH

“MOC MEPYAHT - MPFOH" “DFC 32X YYCB3PT2M 323/1"

BATL BYT23IA2XYYH

"YnaaHbaatap XOTbIH XKAT, AyHZ YANABIP, YANUMArss
3PXN3rYAMNH epcenaex YaABAPLIr HIM3rAyynax apra
X3MXK33HWI Tenesneree”-Huin xypasHg xyy bararai,
XOHFeNeNnTTan  HeXUeNTsn  3337MNAT  XMKUr  OyH[
YWANOBIPNSN  YANUMAMD3 3PXI3MY  HAPT ONroX 3SAWAH
3acruitH 6oauT xyBb HIM3P OpYymk BaiHa.

XXb-tbl MOC  Texeepemxuitr awmrnagar 6uskec  “U.S. International Development Finance Corporation”-c
3PXI3MY MPr3auidH QMIMAAAr BAHKHBI BYT33MASXYYH  CaHXYYXUIT ABCAHTAN XoNBOOTOMrO0p TYC 3X YYCBIPI3P
yAnuMnrasr - BarunaH,  XeHrenenTTai  HeXUeNneep  onroraox “OMarTail BUIHEC IPXAIruMiir A3MKMX 3331”7,
caHan  Bonrox  XapWNUArYMiH - UQrWAr  X3MH3X,  “BuaHecuiiH xuxur 333n”, “HorooH 333n”-uitr Tyc Tyc
BYT33rA3XYYH, YANUANTI3HMIA QLIMINANTBIN HIMSTAYYN3X, 30X 33374 HIBTPYYACH.

XAMTBIH - COKMANAraar Cakpyynax 30PWAroTOR  LUMHS

BYTI3rA3XYYHWIAM 30X 333714 HIBTPYY/ICIH.

MPI3AMNH 3AX 323/1

TanaHt xyrauaang XXB-Hel MPraguitH cerMeHTuiti 3ax 3334 33n13x 6aip cyypua 1[095,421
HOMIMAYY/K,  XAPWILAMY  HAPT  BOHKHbI  BYT33rAsxyyH  YIIUMArasr  3aiHaac xapuuary
XYPraX, YYHUIA Ty XOPWILArUMitH X3paryss Waopaiaras HUMLCSH ByTaarasxyyH 934[390

YANUANTI3HADS MHHOBALL LUMHM3CIH XANBAp WMAA3N caHan BONrox Ynmsna Tyaxyy xapunuary

QXXMNNACAH.

MpraguitH 30X 3330MiAr  Tanax  BAHKHBI  AyHA XyraUQQHbl 3OPWATBIH - XYP33HL

XAPUNLArYabiH  TOOrOO  ©MHeX XWIWMAH MeH Yyeac D ecrex
xapwunuarytain 6onnoo. 2023 2024
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33221

Bua xypaaurain xemkwk By 3ax 32914

XQPUILQIYWAH  3P3M1T,  X3P3ru33Ha
HUMLCOH ByX TOPMWIAH  CaHXyyruitH
X3P3rL33  LIAAPANArkbir  XQHraxyiL
OyTo3rAsaXYYH  YANUMArISr  LAXUM
cysraap 6orvHo XyrauaaHg
XYPraxuir 30puH axxunnnax banHa.

YyHUI Xypa3HL Oud XoparnasHuit
3337MIH XYC3NTUIAr 3aiHaac
TYpPraH LyypXai LUMNOBIPNSH
XAPUALAYNAH  C3TF31  XAHAMXKUIAH
MHOEKCUAT XOMIUAH ©HASP TYBLUMHA
Banrax YHACSH 30punroo buenyynsH

axunnax baHa. YyHuit yp ayHa 6ug
16 MAHrOH XAPWUILATYUIAH  X3P3MM33HNIA
COHXYYTWIAH  OCYyA/IbIr  LWMiAaax, baruaa

303%-aap HaM3rayyncaH barHa.

TATAH TOBJIOPYYJICoH XOPOHI©

xypl?\ﬂthnAﬁTAﬁ
_\\'-"\_/

Bun xapunuary Haptaa 6ycan 6aHkHyyaaac unyy
YAIH XATAH HEXLONTM XaAranaMKuitH ByTa3rasxyyHUAr uaxum
CyBraap Wnyy ereexranrasp caHan 6onrox, MoHron yncsiH MpraH Gypuir
XyPUMTIANTAR BONrOX XyPUMTAQbIH QY TYChIF TAHUYNAH M3AYYN3X, TYYHUIAT
Hb YPAMLLYYNax 30punrotoin Xypuminantain MoHron asHbIr 5 aaxb xunass
X3PINKYYNN. MHrXA3 XapUnuary CaHxyyruinH 4apamTryirasp
XyPUMTAYYNax GONOMXKWIAT BypayyncaH XAnbap XypuUMTIan yn4muarastsi
yAnayynaH axxvunnad. YyHui yp AyHA Xyrauaatain Xaaranamkuiii X YYCeap

©MHOX OHbl MOH Ye3C 18 /O'I/II7IH ©COnNT y3yyNncaH baiiHa.

XANBAP

XYPUMF

v
OAATTATI

bua naatran syyunaneiH yianuunrasHoss

XAPWNLArYMAH — 3px  awur  BypaH

XAMraQnarack, — ropasHuin  aaryy
[OATranblH XAMraanantad aey baiix
3APUMBIF H3H TYPYYHA BapumTanx
axunnagar  6a 3H3  XypP3I3HOD
xapunuard,  AaaTryynard - Haprad
ONrYYNCaH HOXEH TONBOPUIH XaMXK33
eHrepceH oHooc 5.8%-aap ecceH
6aitHa.

TYYHUN3H  3yyunanbiH  YANUMArasHNIA
rON 30PUNTO Hb TANYYAbIH 3PX ALUMMAT
XapunuaH — 3px  Tarw  bainraxan

oplgor 6a 6w XamTpaH axunary
[AATrAsbIH KOMMNAHWYAAAA TOBNOPYYNCIH
XYPAAMXKUIAH OPIOrO MEH eHrepery OHOoC
42%-aap ecceH baitHa.




TAVMNAHT OH OHLI1OX

XXB-Hbl  canbap  banpwpaarryin  Bycyyasa  BAHKHbI
OYT23rAdXYYH YANUMArISr XYPraxX 30pUAroop AreHT BAHKHbI
YANUMAra3r 30X 3331/ QHXIOH HIBTPYYNC3H. YYHUIA YP AyHA
1 aimar, ayypruiiH xapunuarygon xypd XXBb-Hel Byxuit n
TOPNWIAH  BYTIIMAdXYYH YANUMATSr OHNAMHACGP  ALUMFIAX
OonoMXUir BypayyncaH.

Bua xapunuaryaad ynam ompTox, MOHron YAChiH MPraH ANXWIAH
xaaraac 4 JAH cuctemasp eepuiiree batanraakyynaH XXb-
Hbl Xapuiuary 6onox bonomxuitr BypayyncaH. VHracHasp
bretasp canbapT MPaX MPOLECCHIr XAMK, XAPWALATYUIAH
Lar Xyrauaar XaMH3X, CcanbapbiH - auaanabir - Byypyymx
XAPWALAMYUIAH CITM3 XAHAMXUIAH MHOEKCUIT XAMIUAH eHOep
TYBWUMHA OQWNrax YHOCOH 30pUNroo BUenyynaH axkuinax
BaiHa.

J2nXuiiH XUWWIT HUALCSH TeNnBepuitH Xap3arcanitH CyBruir
TIN3X 30PUArOOP, ONOH YNcbiH MacTep BUPTYan KAPTHIF 3ax
3393/1/] HIBTPYY/C3H.

Briet xynannaa spxangsr xyBb xyH BonoH bairyynaaryyabiH
LOXMM  XyyACcadp AOMXYYNOH —Xapwauary — Laxumaap 5
MUHYTQZ 3937MIAH XYCINT LUMAABIPAYYNSH XYCcaH Bapaa,
OyT93rAaXYYH33 aBAX HONOMXKTOW BONCOH.
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LAXUM BAHKHbI YUY

KAPT, TOJTBGP TOOL OO

2024 oHp Bug xapwnuarydblH X3P3rUadHA TYAryyprax MHHOBAL, LUMHIICOH, XYN931T93C ACBCAH OyTasrmsxyyH
YANUMAr33r CaHan BONrox, YANUMAraSHWIA YaHAPBIM CAMKPYYNOXAL OHLIFOMIOH OHXAAPY QXUANANAa.

TalNaHT oHA TEeNnbepuitH KAPT X3P3M3ryauitH
T00 24%-aap HaMaraax, MoHron ynceiH Busa
KapTaap rofacaan Xwirgsx Oy ryidnrasHuin
33%-aac assw xysuir XXB-Hbl Busa kapt
Oypayymk baiHa.

.

lapaanon xuiracsH
FYWNrasHWiA 30X 33314
333X XyBb

Kapt a3amwmrung

VISA .......
ele’s

TenbepuitH kapTteiH ONOH yNCbIH TaPryynary
baiiryynnara 6onox VISA IncTait cTpatervitn
TYHLLU3M, XAMTBIH QXKWANAradHsl XypasHa Par-
is Olympics 2024 u1a3BXKYYN3NTUIAH  QAHBIF
30xvoH barryynx, Paris 2024 Summer Olym-
pic Games Hospitality package sanaruuiir
ToApYYyNaa.

UnionPay KapTbiH TYiAnrss  ©MHex OHOOC
WiH ecent yayynnas. Yuup Hb BHXAY-4  xuitcaH

TYAr33HWA  YHUAH  [YHMMIAH ByuaaH onront,
ONOH YNCOA XUACIH FYANMI3HUA YHUAH AYHIMUIAH
ByLaaH OnronTHIr TyC TyC XAPWILArYAAAad Onronoo.
Xapunuaryaan onrocoH 6a yyHuii xypasHa

BHXAY-n kapTtaapaa xyaanaaH aBONT XUACIH YHUIAH
ayHrnian 1%  BaitHrbiH - ByLaaH  ONronTTON  LKMHD
TepnuitH SplendorPlus kapTeir 3ax 333014 HIBTPYYNI3.

J

VIRTUAL CARD

2024 oHa GBua  xapunuarygpiH - X3P3ruddHG
TYNryypnax WHHOBAL,  LUMHISCOH,  XY/I93N1T33C
NGBCOH  OYTo3rasxyyH — yWIuwnrasr  caHan
0ONrox, YWNUMArasHWA UYAHAPBIF CAMKPYYNaxas
OHLIFOMIOH QHXAAPY aXWAnanaa.

Your iPhone is
your TDB card.

XXB Hb xapwnuary Haptaa 3opuynaH Tenbep
Tenex uiyy aroynryi, HaMABAPTAW, HyyLIANTA
Apple Pay yinunnrasr 3ax 39374 HIBTPYYIS3.
MHracHasp xapunuary kaptaa Apple Pay-tai
xonboH eepuiiH iPhone, Apple Watch, iPad,
Mac-aa awmriaH Tenbep TOoLOOroo XMMasr
6onnoo.
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XXB-Hel Qpay yinumunrasHg MoHronbaHkHaac 6aTancaH  WWHS  CTaHAAPT
pYyy LWWDKWXK, XyAQNAGH QBONTbIH TYWNMI3HA X3P3MM3r433C HIMINT WMMTIaN
asgarryit 6onnoo. Tulnbu OHNANRH BAHKHBI X3P3MN3rYANIH TOO BMHEX OHTOM
xapsuyynaxag 23.5%-aap ecceH y3yynanttait baican 6on BAaHKHbI LIAXM
CyBraap XMUrACIH ryMnrasHui 1oo 48%-aap Tyc TyC HIM3rANs3.

X3parnaryaunitH Too

OND®

[YMNrasHuin oyH

oToe | pay
ANMAVKINLWH

APXUTEKTYPBIF
auaanan  Acax
ANNNKEALLHBIH

Tudunbu  OnnaiH
XyBUNOAPBIH CUCTEMUIIH
LUMH3YMNCHI3P  CUCTEMUIH
yagsap  HIMIrAdX, Mobain
CKUANAX XYPLA HIMITD3.

YUNYUNrasHUN Your iPhone is your TDB card.

wowem
premied

Baitryynnaran  sopuyncan  Corporate  gate-
way YANUWAM3HWIA  Cyypb  CUCTEM[,  LUMH3YN3N
xuitH, xonbonteir Open  APl-g wumkyyncaH 6a
XAPUALAryablH - XYCINTUAr  3aMHAAC  LUMIABIPNIX
HonomxToit 6oNCcoH.

YypaH tenedoHsl Ondo-wiH Ayraapt BAHKHBI Meccex
M343rA3n ounx BonomxTon BoncHoop MoHron ynceiH anb
4 YYP3H TenedoHbl AyradpT OAHKHLI M3A3MASN, M3AINNYYA
unraaransr bonnoo.



KITVPUHTUNH YT AXKUNNATAA

XyOanaaa, Xerkinitd 6aHK AyHa XyraLuadHbl CTPATETM 30PUMTLIHXOO XYP3a2HA “HaanTTai
BaHK” Bonoxoop axunNax BanHa. DH3 XyP33HAD MOHIroN YNChIH KAPTHIH 3AX 3937UIr
XODKYYIdX CUIbIF AHXAH 3XTYYICoH. OHeeapuitH Baianaap eepuitd KapTbiH A34
BYTU, CUCTEMUIH YIANUMNTIST APWIKAAHB! JepBeH /4/ BaHKAHA y3yymk BaiHa.
Bua MoHron YnceiH xaMxaaH, BAHKHbI CUCTEMUITH KapT, 63n3H Byc Tenbep TooLOOHS
HaMgBAPTAN, atoynryi Banmibir xaHraxag boaut xyBb HIMP33 OPYyX MPCaH. Mer
OPUIKAAHb! BAHKHYYIbIH 3APAMLIN XIMHIH, YP QLUMITARA COKWIGIOAr HIMIMOYYISH,
XAMTAAA XOMKNX KL MaHNangar buias.

DHaXYy MOHNQWIbIH Xypa3HL Tenbep TOOLOO Teneeneruwiii yypar ryiustrax
36BLIeOPMIT MOHroNbaHKHAAC XyNna3H aBcaH Ba duHTeK, BaHk Byc caHxyyruiH
BariryynnareiH  Tenbep Toouoor MoHronbaHkaH Oaxb  AAHCAAPAA  AAMXKYYNaH
TONBOPUtH CUCTEMZ, OPONLIOX FAPLBIT HIIXK Orex, Heree TanLaa Xaparary HonoH
XOPWILATYACH, O3BLUMATST TEXHONOTUA CYyPWICAH COHXYYTWMH ONOH  TOPmWitH
YANUUAraar XAnbap, TYPraH LLyypXai Xypraxasp 30pbx 6aiHa.

(/\ KAMUTPOH
N BAHK

4% APUT BAHK

A

BOra BAHK

T
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FTAOAAL XAPUILAA, ONTOH YNICbIH BAHKHbBI YT AXUIIATAA

Bun BusHecwiiH yitn axkMAnaraaHgaa TOrTBOPTON, XAPUYLIAraTain Baigibir YyxanunaH
Baiiranb OpuUMHA 33NT3N BU3HECWIr A3MXKMH CAHXYYXXYYIdX 3aMadp ypT XyrauddHb!
TOITBOPTOM XONKIUIAT BUit BONroX 36B XULLMIAT HUMraMa3 ByT33X33p axunnaaar.

Hunepnarasit Xerxmitd Bank (FMO), Onon ynceiH canxyyruiti kopropat (OYCK)-tait
xamtpaH 2012 oHg “Baiiranb 0punH, HUAMMWIAH XAPUYLNArbIH SPCASMMIAH MEHEXMEHTUIMH
cuctem” (BOHXMC) xama3x MoHron YncbiH XyBbd LOO LUMHD OMArOATHIN LOMIOOP Hb
X3PAMKYYMK 3XNCIH MOHronbiH AHXHbI APUKAAHBI 6aHk HoncoH tom. 2013 owbl 11-p capa
MOHronbIH HUAT ApUKaaHBI BaHKHYyz “Mowron ynceiH Torteoptoit Canxyyxunt (ToC) - nitH
XOTONbeP”-UIMr X3P3MKYYNIX XAMTAPCAH TYHXAr BUUMIT HIFACIH Hb MAHQI YNChIH MP33AYIH
XOrKWNA X3P3rTai TOMOOXOH [9BLWNA BONCHBIF OHLIOH TaMAarNax BaiiHa. Apumkadrsl
BaHKyya HIMASH CKUANACHAAP aMbAPAX OPYMH BoMox yc, Xepc, araapbiH boxvpaon, uar
YYPbIH ©©PUNenT, XYHWUIA SPXUIAr 3epUCeH acyyanyyabiH 3cpar 6ar 3orcox, bairans opunH,
HUArMWIAH 3pcaanuiir Byypyynax 3amMaap TOrTBOPTOM XerIMiAr Buit Bonrox xaTuitH 3opunro
oo/ TaMyy baitHa.

Entrepreneurial International
Development IFc Finance Corporation
Bank 'WORLD BANKGROUP

BaHk 2020 oHA wWwwWH3 ByTaL 30XWMOH BAryyNANTTANraap Yn QXWINAraaraa SpXamk
Horoon canxyyxuntvith anbeir (HCA) OnoH yncsiH 6aHKHbI raspbiH [aAaod ax yyCespuitH
YAMPANQd, XAHAMTEIH X3NTCUIAH XapbAaHL, LWnH3p BaiiryyncaH. HCA Hb 0NoH ynchbiH caitH
TypLWNarelr BAHKAHA HIBTPYY/SX, TOCOn XeTenbepT XaMTbiH CAHXYYXKWIT TATAX YWMM3NS3p
WO3BXT3M QKUK banHa.

Monron Ync gaxb Xuwxur, ayHa 6usHec (“)KIB") spxisruauiir YOAABXXKyynax, TOFTBOPTOM
CAHXYYXUNTUIAH - XYPTIIMXUAr  caikpyynax “SFME”  Tecnuiir  xaMmTpaH  X3parkyynaxssp
XXb 6onoH TepMmaHbl OnoH YnckiH XamteiH Axunnaraarsl Huiramnar (“GIZ”) Hap Tecen
X3P3MKYYNX MPIBHA rapbiH yCar 3ypcaH 6a yr Tecen Hb 2024 oHbl 3-p capaac 2026 oHbl
6-p cap XypTan XyrauaaHa xapankux Gereen MoHron ynceiH TOrTBOPTON Xerkun GonoH
HOrOOH Mp33ayia unrnacaH XOB-wir pamxux, XIOB spxnarynsa caHxyyrmiiH XypTasMxuiir
HIM3IAYYN3X 30PUIrOTON tOM.

XaMTbIH awunnaraa

oew:

a
Deutsche Gesellschaft
fir Internationale
Zusammenarbeit (GIZ) GmbH

Partners in
Transformation
7 develcPPP

EnARGET
TyyHunaH XXB Hb [asH O21xuiH HOrooH xerwwmiH uHcTtutyT (LOHXW)-tait ctpateruit
TYHLLNSAUIAT Buid BONrox, ync opHLIXOO TOrTBOPTON Berees HyypcTeperuniiH xuit bararai
SANMH 3ACTWIAH ©CONTUIr XYPAACTAXbIH Ty XAMTbIH COKWUANArAAr X3P3ankyymk baiHa.
Tyc xaMmTbiH axunaaraaHel xypasHa XXb Gonon JAHXM xamtpaH Har Tanaac XAY-uitH
XapuaLarygan GUsHECHIH Yiin CxXUNNaraar Hb HOroopyynax BoNoMXyyabiH TANAAP MM
CONWALOX Yyn3anT, Heree Tanaac GAHKHBI CKUNTHYyyAad BONOMXKUT HOTOOH Tecnyyauir
TAHWH M3A3X, TOAMI3PT XAHAMT TABWX, TannarHax, baranraaxyynax (MRV) 3spar uagasxeir
B3xKYYNaX CypranTyyasir MOIBXTOM 30XMOH BaiiryyncaH baiHa.

rﬁ XXB Hb xapunuarygoaaa BUSHECHIAH YN CXKUINAraar HOroopPyynax
I d

LWUMAANWIAT TAHWYNOX, SPYUM XYUYHUI X3MH3NTTaN Bapunra Baiiryynamk

Bapux 3arBapT WWIKMX3A Hb OIMXISM y3yynax 3opunroop 2024 OHbl
GGG' 6-p capa “HorooH Gapunra” BOPKLIOM Qpra XaMxasr amKunTTan
T X3P3KYYNs3.

@TOB
HOrOOH BAPUNTbIH




O3NXUIAH FP33HUIA

BAUTANTb OPYNH, HUATMNINH
XAPUYLATbIH BOONOIO

XXB-Hbl Baiiranb OpUMH, HUArMUIAH XapWyLIarbiH 6oanorbiH XypasHa bug MY-biH 30x1x Xyynb
TOrTOOMX BOMOH AYPIM 3AABPbLIN BAPUMTAMK CXXMANAXAAC raaHA Bua 4apaax 3apuMyyabir
X3P3MKYYK, AAraXK MOPASXWIAT 30pbx BaitHa:

MY-biH TorTBOpTOM
caHxyyruitH xon6oo (ToC
x0n60o)-Hbl TortBopTONM
CAHXYYXXUNTUIAH HAMMAH
3apunm;

OnoH yncbiH CaHXyyruiH
kopnopad (OYCK)-uitH
[YAUSTraAMIAH HaMMAH

CTOHAOPT;

OFNORX

Byc 6a 3am
CaHaQUMATbIH
HorooH xepeHre
OpYyNanTiH
DONOOH 3apUMnM;

HYB-biH JasH HYB-biH baiirans opuHbl xeTenbepuitH
CAHXYYrUitH caHaaumnra: bairans opyHs
BO/OH TOrTBOPTOM XOMKIUIH TANAAPX
CaHXYYrUitH BaiiryynnaryyasiH TyHxarnan;
YHASCTSH AAMHACAH Kopriopal, 6onoH
HAArMUIAH BoanorbiH Tanaapx OnoH yncklH
XenenMepuitH baiiryynnareiH 3apuMbiH
TYPBAH TaNT TyHXArNan;

APBAH 3apYMM;

XEHQEPMV]H SPX Tl
BAWAJIbIH BOONOTO

XXb Hb 2019 oHa BypsH wwHaunaracaH “XKenaepwitH apx Tarw H6ananbiH bognoro”-r
OMNOH YNCbIH CTAHACPTAA HUMLYYNSH BaTamk, BAHKHbI XeHOepwitH 3px Tarw bananbiH
yin axwvnnaraar xaHrax Kenaepwiih Xopoor baiiryyncan 6aiina. Yr 6oanoroop apx
Torw BaRanbIr XAHraxad LUIGAPMIAraTai apra XaMK33r X3P3MKYYIdX, SMIITIiAuyyanir
YOAABXXKYYNOAXAA YMINISCIH TOCOS, XOTenbepT O3MNIISr Y3Yynax, M3Aaruir buin Gonrox,
KEHAEPUMH XAPLLAAr T3HLUB3PXYYN3X, SAFGH FaoyypXantadc C3pruinsxsg  OpLUMHO.
TyyHUN3H BOANOrbIH X3P3aKUNTUIAH XypaaHA XXB Hb 3M3rTait uxur ayHa 6GusHec
SPXNSTYANAT  OSMXKMX  333MMIAH  OYTIIrAdXYYHWAr 30X 333714 AMXKUNTTAN  HIBTPYYNISH,
XAPWULArYaaaaa ONroH axunnax baiHa. TyyHunaH, 6ug 2019 ona XeHpepwith Xopoor
6ariryynaH, baiiryynnarsiH 6yxuit n TyBwWHA XXeHaepuidd spx Tarw 6aianbiH GoanorbiH
X3PIRKUATUIAT XAHFAH CXXMANaK BaiHa.

SHaxyy 6bopnoro, yitn axwnnaraaHsl Teneenereer MY-biH JKeHpepwitH 3px  Tarw
6ananbir XaHrax Tyxam xyynb TOFTOOMX, YHASCHUI xeTenbep GonoH Bycan onoH ynchbiH
BariryynnaryyapiH TopryyH Typunareir xaprandcaH 6a HYB-biH TortBoproit xerwnnitH
30punrbiH  JKeHOepuitH 3px  Tarlw Baimibir XAHraX 30PWAro, 3OPWATYYAbIr A3MXWH
QXUNNAXadp  30xuUyynaracaH 6onHo. TyyHunaH MY-biH TOrTBOPTON XOMWIMIAH Y331
6apumman 2030, XeHaepwitH 3px Tarw BARANLIF XAHrAX Tyxai Xyynb, XXeHAePUH 3px
Torw BarmIbir XaHrax yHaScHUin xetenbep (2017-2021 ow), CaHruiH caiabiH 3PXIaX
QACYYANbIH XYP33HA XAMPArdax Bairyynnara, areHmarvitH xedgepuiti 6oanoro (2016~
2024)- HniucaH 6onHo.

Xun Byp MoHronbaHk, CanxyyruitH 3oxuLlyynax xopoo, ToC Xonboo xamTpaH TortBoptoin
CAHXYYXWUNTUIAH BOANOTbIF X3P3MKYYNX, XOMKYYNSX3A YHITOW XyBb HIM3IP OPYYICAH,
canbapraa MaHnainary bairyynnaryyabir ToApYyynaar ynamiantai. Tyc xonbooHooc
2024 oHA KEHOEPUIH UNITISNSIP XMIK MYMLSTISCIH Oyyabir YHIN3H, XXB-bir “XXeHaepuitH
Matnait Bariryynnara”-aap wanrapyyncad 6aiHa.




TOT'TBOPTOW XOI XN
XAMTOAA

XXB Hb MoHron Yncan TOrTBOPTOW CAHXYYXWUATWIAM A3Nr3pyynsx sopunroop busHecwith
HOFOOH 3337MINH ByT3rAsXYYH OONOH DM3rTai BU3HEC SPXNBrYANIAr O3MXKMX 333MNH
OyTI3rAaXYYHUIA 3ax 39314 amxunTTan HaeTpyynas. 2020 oHooc xoiw XXB He TorteopToi
XOrKUitH 17 3opuarsir xapankyymx bairaa 6a aaraspasc aepesT Hb (YaHaprait
Bonoscponbir AaMkuX, XKeHaepuitH spx Tarw Banansir xaHrax, 30XWUCTON xeaenvep
SpxN3NT 6a 3AMIAH 30CTUIRH BCONTUIT A3MXKUX, YyP AMBCranbiH ©8pUNenTuiti yp Heneer
Baracrax) OHUIOH XyBb HIMP33 OPYYNAXAAP TOLOPXOWICOH Braa.

INONbIC XAHTC

NONTUIH

JA5MXNX

2024 oHp XXB aHxHbl TortBopTOit XerknuitH TainaHraa Sustainability Accounting Stan-
dards Board (SASB), Global Reporting Initiative (GRI) 6onox MoHronsiH koMnaHWyAoA
3opuyncar BOH3, TorteopToi HananbiH TaiNarHanbiH yaMpaamk 33par 4OTooabH BonoH
ONOH YNCbIH TAWNATHAMBIH TOFTONLOO, CTAHAAPTYYAOH yangyynaH rapranad. XXB Hb
TOFTBOPTON XOMKIMINH 30pUArbIH XYPa3HA 2024 oHbl baanaap HWIAT 1.8 nx Hasg TerperuitH
CAHXYYXWUATUT ONFrOCOH BaiHa.

BAHKHBI HUAMMUIAH LUMHX YaHapPTA 333nuitH ynaaraan 2024 oHel sucuitH baingnaap

XYPC3H BA UHMIXA33 TYC HUArMUIAH LLIMHX YAHAPTAM 333miiH baruan opnoroa
HWWLICSH OPOH CyyL, HWUIAM3M, 3AWMAH 3QCTUIAr A33LUNYYAINT, YGAABXKYYNQNT, CAHXYYMMH
YANuunras, A4 6yTsu BONOH XYHCHWI Qroynryit BAWIbiH UMIMBN33p yitn axunnaraa
AByynAar banryynnaryya XamruiiH eHaep XyBuiar 33amx bairaa oM.

BaHKHbI HOFOOH 3337MIH ynASrAaN

XYPC3H A TyC HOrOOH 3331WiH BAruaa 3pUMM XYUHUI XIMH3NT, LSB3P T33B3P BonoH
TOrTBOPTON yC B XOr XAArAAN AHFUANLIH 333/YYA XAMIWAH eHAeP XyBUIr 3331 barraa
foM.

TorTBOPTOM XOMKIMINH 30PUNTYYAAAC Aapaax aepeeH 3opunrsir XXb yitn axunnaraaxgaa
OHLITOH TYCraX X3P3rKyymK baiHa.
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YAHAPTAM BOTOBCPOJIbII A3MXMNX

Bua camxyyruitt Gonoscponbir Tyrasx, Xypumtiansir aagan 6onrox sopunroop 2021 oHg
“Xypumtnantait MoHron” xetenbepee caHaauuncaH bunaa. Tyc xetenbept 2024 oHA HUIAT
653,946 xapunuary xaMpargak, CaHxyyrminH Maanar 6onoBCpoOnoo HaMarayynass baiHa.
Tyc xeTenbep xapamkcaH 2021-2024 oHbl xyrauadHa HWAT 1,512 rapyit xapunuaryuit
XYPUMTAYYNax AOAMLIN yPAMLLYYNCaH BaiHa.

ARR ARR

Xapunuary xamparacaH Xapunuaryuir ypamLLyyncaH

xﬂB FAAPPYM Bua 2018 oHoOC 3XM3H XYyX34, 3QyyCT OROYHbl XOPEHre
OPYYNQNT XuiAX 30pUNroToi XAsraapryit Mepeeaen Tecnee
M@‘P@Oﬂ@n aXYYNC3aH. Tyc Tecen xapankcaHasp 2024 oHbl baranaap
58 cypryynuitH HOMbIH COHI TOXWXYY/X, HOMbIH (hOHABIM Hb

Basixyynx ereef baiHa. DHaxyy Tecneepee AAMXKYYNaH

HniAT 200 MaHra opunm xyyxag 3anyyc, 10,000 rapyit 6arw, cypraH xyMyyxyynaryauiiH
BONOBCPONA OLOYHBI XOPEHre OPYYNANT XMik33. “Xasraapryi Mepeenen” tecnee [anxuitH
QYTU3MbIH CApPbIT TOXMONAYYNOH QyTU3MTAN OHLIFOM XYYXAYYA34 30PUYNIAH X3P3MKYYIS3.

Bua uaawma 4 MoHron YncsiH xyyxaa Byp Tarw BonoMkoop XAHraraax, Tar OpUnHL Cypu
60N10BCPOX BONOMXKMIAT BYPAYYNIX34 ASMXKMH axunnax BonHo.

XXB Hb 2024 oHp wWuHD axwunTHyyabiH 14 ynaaruidn cyprantaa HWAT 230 axunTaH,
canbapyyaan opox bueunncaH cyprantag 16 canbapbiH HUAT 172 axkunTHyyAbir XaMpyymx
TOTTBOPTOM CAHXYYXKWNT, Yyp OMbCrambiH eepunent 6onoH XXB-Hbl TOrTBOPTOM XEMKIIMIAH
UYMII3N33PX CTPATEMNIAH TANAAP Cyypb M3A3NIMIAN XYPranas.

AHY-biH “ABC" TenesnauitH ypar 6yTaan “Bet on Baby”
LLIOY H3BTPYYAMMIAr anbaH ECHbl 2pxTairasp MoHron Yncaa
arx yaaa NTV Tenesusasp 4amxyynaH XypracaH 6a

XXB Hb “ M3a23MUINr
XYPrYY/I9HM33 ONIOH HUIAT3A COHXYYTMIAH BONMOBCPON Onrox
UMMBMA XAMTPAH CKUANANaal.

MoHron Yncaa aHX yAad ONOH YNCbIH XOMIWAH  TOM
60onoBcponbIH apra xamxa3 bonox

“STEAMEX 2024" 3oxuoH baitryynaraae. Tyc apra
X3MX3I3HUI yesp Bara aHruith 6onoH BaRranuitH yxaaHs!
6arw  Hapeir yagasxkyynax 100% npaktvk  TypLumn,
6yTa3nn cyypuncar xetenbept 21 aitmar Bypasc oponuox
100 Barwmitr caHxyykyynsH oponLioo.

s ry Scene:

A,
(S |T|E|A]
\—\/_J

XXB Hb “VolgaCTF” panxuiin Hap XyHATSH, €c 3yiT xakepbliH onoH yncbiH CTF TamMuasHA
MoHron Yncaac Masaanait baraac wanrapaH UHANbIH LIATAHA ©PCenaceH OaHKHbI
QKUITHAG J9MKUH OPOLIO0. DHIXYY TIMLDIHIIC OMK ABCAH TYPLUMATA Hb MPI3AYAL yumpy
Bonsowryit Xanmiara, aioyn 3aHANAAC YPLAYMIGH CIPTWIANDX, XCNANArag xapuy apra
X3MX33 QBAX, SM33T BANALIF UNPYYNSX, 3ACBAPAX, MOH [lyH LWMHXMIMS XUIAX Y YanBapbIr
TYH3TUAPYYNSH XONKYYN3X BONOMXKMIAT ONroX oM.

< XXB Hb [asH A31XMIAH HOTOOH XOrKWMAH WUHCTUTYTTSM
I ﬂ (GGGI) XxaMTpaH TOTTBOPTON  CAHXYYXWITUIAH  XYPI3HA
” XOAMTbIH - QOKUNArQQHBI  YAMIBNA  XAPUALGH  OMNrONLyIbIH
GGG' caHamx Buunr (MOU)-r 2024 ombl 3-p capa bairyynx,
|__Mongoia__|

XAMThIH axkunnaraaHel xypasHg 10-12 capyynan nopaax
CypranTyyasir 30x1oH baiiryyncan 6aiiHa.

TeBuiH rasap Hamk GonoH BycuitH Tes, canbapbiH Huit 100 rapyit
COKUNTHYYAQL TOTTBOPTOW, HOFOOH COHXYYKWUATWAH HUIT 4 yaaaruiiH
cypranteir XHI-Tait XaMTPAH aMXUATTAM 30XMOH Bairyynas.

XKOY spxnaryasa 30puynaH GUsHeCss HOroopyynax, M3JI3N ONIFOX 30PUITO
BYXMi CYpranTbir TOMOOXOH XAPWUALArY BanryynnaryyasiH MapraxunTHyya
60 3KCMEePTYYATIN XAMTPAH 2 LIaxM 6onoH 3 yAaariitH TaHXMMAAP 30XMOH
6ariryymx, BBl XXOBBI GonoH canbap, TOOUOOHbI TEBYYASA CypranTbiH
YPUATbIH XYPryYK, HUAT 80 rapyit xapuaLaryablr XaMpyymK akuinae.

AHAPTAR
5onoBCPONLIF
RoMRUK

L]
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XXB BonoH lepMaHbl 0IOH yNChIH XAMTbIH axkunnaraarsl Huiramnar (GIZ)-H xamrapcaH MoHronbiH YN xeanex XepeHre YAMPANArblH aKaAeMUiH
MoHron ync Aax XKur JyHA BUSHeC 3pxNaryanir 4aaaBxXKyynax, TOrTBOPTON CAHXYYXUATUNRH ® -WiH aaryy XXb-c “HorooH camxyyxunt” 6onoH “HorooH
XYPTIIMKUAT CAMKPYYNAX TOCAUMH XYPIIHL: 333/MIAH LIAATYYP Y3YYN3AT -UiH TANAAPX CypraTyyabir Opnoo.

MeH 3H3 oHa XXb Hb cap Bypuitt ToC MapraxuiitH 3eBnenyyaniH yynaant 6onoH
XKOBBI-Tain GIZ BairyynnarsiH rapasT 3eBNex YANUUArasHui bairyynnaryyasi ® L, 61BOOHOOC 3OXMOH Balryynaar MmN TYrI3X  XNINLYYIS, CEMUHAPYYAon
xaMmTaap AasTaracad tooroop HWAT 80 rapyit XIBBI cerment 6onoH dapxaH, xamparanaa.
SpAsHaT canbapbiH XAPUALATY HAPT 3XHUIA Bary Cyprantbir  AMXUNTTAM
30x110H Gaiiryynas. HYB-bIH ax yiingssp xerkiuiiH Baiiryynnaradc CaHaaUUNCaH 3M33r BynruiiH epx
TONTOWNCOH 3M3ITaMUYYA34 30PUYNCAH CAHXYYTUitH Bonoscpon onrox cypranteir XXb-
Qaac aMXUNTTAR 30XMOH Bairyynas. Tyc CypranTbiH XYP33HA SMIrTaMUYyaA3a CaHan

GIZ 6aitryynnarsir rapast sesnex Coaypa koxcanturr XXK xamrpan Huit 20 * 6onrox By 3337UiH BYTI3rASXYYHUI TANCAP M3A33M1371 ONFOCHOOC FOAHA ©PXUIH
Bycuith 6onoH canbapeiH 3axvpnyyaag, XOBBI cermentuiti 18 xapunuaaHs OpAIOro0  HAMArAYYI3X BOMOMXYYS, CAHXYYTUIH 30XULYYNanT XWX yp 4YaLsapyya,
MeHeXepT HapT CypPrant 30X oH bairyynas. CAHXYYMUIAH XypUMTNQN YyCrax apra 3am OonoH 33annilH 36B 30XMCTON X3P3rNad

33pra3p CypPrant opcoH baiHa.

Mowron YnceiH Caprasrasx 3punM Xyud YiAnABIPASruanitH XONbOOHsI XYCINTUIAH Aaryy

XXB Hb “Tacpantryit cypanuard” YHOC3H 30PWATbIH
® "OnoH ynchiH WKH3 3punM xyuHuin uyynran 2024” apra xamxasHuit naen XXb-c -
he.

. xypasHa 2024 oHA BAHKHbI HAIAT axkunTHyyaaaa 1,955.9
TACPANTIYU . o -~
CYPANUAMY  UArMitH 499 ynaarith Cyprantbir 30XMoH BaiiryyncaH.

Cyprantag HUAT AABXAPAAAryi TOoroop 2,449 axuntaH

xamparacan Berees Har  GXWATOH  AyHoxaap  8-9
YAQQrWitH CypraiTaa XaMPArAacaH 6a UHMXA93 HIM QKUATAHA HOTAOX CYPraThiH Lar
0.8 uar baitHa.

HorooH 6aHk 600X ypT XyraladHsl 30PUTEIH TANAAPX M3A3MIUIAT XYPIaH, OPOLIIOO.
Kapurac Yex Penabnuk TBb-c upyyncaH xycantuiti garyy XY spxisrd HapT 3opuymk

® 30xvoH baiiryyncaH cyprantbiH XxeTenbepuitH xypasHa “HorooH 333nuiiH ianryyp
Y3YYNanT”-uitH TaNaap Cyprant opos.

AHAPTAR
EONOBCPOLIT
RoMRUK

1]
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Yaupaax axuntHyyaaa uMrnacaH aapaax 2 xerenbepuitr 2024 oHpa xapankyyncaH. YyHa:

XXB-Hbl 30nramx  xanaa 6an7rax  3opwnrbiH XypasHa “Future Leaders”  xetenBepwir
caHaaunaH canbapbiH 3axvpan 63anTrax 4 ye LWATTan 30XWMOoH banryyncaH. Haantmain 2
YAAQTMAH COHMOH LUANTAPYyNanTag TSHUCIH 16 axuntang MannainisiH 10 Mogynb cyprantsir
QAMXUATTAN 30XMOH BANryynx, Cyprant Byp BOrMHO X3IMX33HUIA AACNTABAP ©rY AXUNYYNCAH.
CypranTblH AAPAA CYYIMIAH LLIATHBI COHMOH LUANTAPYYNGT XUIAK, COKUNTHBI KAPbEP XOmKIMIAr
A2MXKUH QXXWUInanaa.

L 80,000+

udemy

Cyprant

XXB Hb 2024 onp 2 yaaaruiih MeHTop xetenbepuiir xapankyyncaH 6aiHa. Yyna:

XXB-Hbl “Lady’s leadership” xetenbepuitH XypasHA 3M3rTai CKUNTHYYAbIH KAPbEP XOrKMIr
O3MXUX, TAHUA MAHNGWNIBIH YOABAPLIN HIMIMAYYN3X 30pwnroop 3 yAAAruiiH Momynb
cyprant 6onoH MEeHTOPbIH 3 CAPbIH XeTenbep X3P3rkyyNsH KUNACAH.

BaHKHbI X3MXK3I3HA MEHTOP XOTeNnbep XaP3rKyYN3H HISMTTSN COHIOH LUANTAPYYNANT 30XUOH
6arryynan, 10 meHTin BonoH 10 MeHTOp Byxuit xeTenbep aMXUATTAN X3P3rKUXK BaiHa.

Lhdyd leadoratip  KOYUMHT 2024

XXB-Hbl 2024 OHbI LIMHI3P TOMUNOFAOH QXMANAX Byl rasap, XanTac, canbapbiH 3aXMPnyyaas
30puyncaH  “MaHnainan, yavpaox apra 6apwibiH - Cyprant’-bir  30XWoH  Banryynx,
MOHAQWNBIH YP YGABAPBIT HIMIIAYYX, XOMKYYN3X 30punroop 3 YAAArWidH M3PraxJviH
BaiiryynnarsiH cyprant 30xvoH bairyyncaH. XXb Hb GxkunTHyyAblH TACPANTryit Cypanuard
Baiix cTpateruiti sopunreir aamxux 3opunroop UDEMY onoH ynceid nnatcopmrton 4 gsx
XWUNA33 XAMTPAH CXXMANCXK BAMHA. AXWUITHYYS ©6PUIH P UYOABAPLIT XErKYYISX 30pUaroop
Huit 80,000+ rapyi cypranteir HI3ATTOM y33X BOnoMXuir Bypayymx erceH. Yavpaax
QXUNTHYYA ynupan Byp cTpaterniti 3opunt Byxuit Cyprantan XaMparaax 6anHa.

XXB-Hbl 39301 XOPHYLICOH QKUNTHYYAbIT YGAABXKYYNaX xeTenbepuiit xypasHa “KeyuuHr 2024”
xeTenbep X3parkyynsH axunnacaH. LLUuHasp tomunoraoH axvnnax bairaa axuntHyydsir
TYPLUNAraTai Keyunin HapTain XaMTPAH CypranT, AA4IAraxyynaH CKUINAx 33par HIrAC3H
xeTenbep BONOBCPYYNaH AMXKUATTAR X3P3NKyYNCcaH. KeyuuHr xetenbept HuiiT 8 keyu, 16
Keyunit aMxmnTTan xamparaak 6aiHa. XXBb-Hbel 3anramk xanaar 63nTrax 6oANOrbIH XYP33HA
XAPUNLOAHBI MEHEXeP OXJIbIH BaipaHs 63NTrax, BAHKHBI 333KiAH yin axunnaraa bonox
393/UIH BYTISMASXYYH YINUMArI3r TAHWYNAH Cyprax 30punroop 2 yAdd Xaparkyynss. YyHA
HUAT 2 yaaarwiii cyprantag 31 axunTaH Xamparacad baiHa.

AHAPTAR
EONOBCPOLIT
S
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XEHOEPUMH DPX T BAMAOBIM XAHTAX

XXB Hb 2019 oHa BypaH LmHaUNaracaH “XKeHaepwitn spx Tarw GangnsiH Goanoro”-r
ONIOH Y/CbIH CTAHACPTOA HWALYYNSH BATANX, OAHKHBI XEHOEPUAH SpX Tar banmibiH
YN axunnaraar xaHrax YXeHaepuitH Xopoor 6airyynx, 6airyynnareiH Byxuit 1 TyBLIMHA
XKeHaepuitH apx Tarw 6AANbIH BOANOTEIH X3PINKUATUNAN XAHTOH axunnaxk baitHa. XXb He
YN aXUNNarad, GyTasrasxyyH, YANUNATrI3HUA XYPI3HA KEHAEPUIH 3pX TarL BAAbIN XaHrax
3aMaap 3M3rTaidyya, 3P3rTaNUYYANIAH YP AYHT3M OPONLOOT XeHAEPUNH  M3OP3MXKTINrasp
LISMXNX3[, XyBb HIM3P opyyncaap baiiraa bunas.

KeHaepuitH Tarw BARAILIN XAHTaX BOANOTbIH XYPI3HA CXUIbIH BANPHBI QLOYANYi OPUHBIF
BypayynaxuitH Tyna XXBb Hb eepuitH Aotooanoo “XXb-Hel axiibiH 6aiipHbl 6anrnitH aapamTaac
YPbAUYMNCH CIPrUIMNaX, XaMraanax xypam”-aa bamax rapracaH 6a 2024 oHOOC 3X13H yiin
CXMNNIArAaHAAA Mepier BOMrOH QXKUIAK COxXIIbiH BalpaH A33px 63AruitH aapamTaac
YPbAUNNAH COPrUiNaxX, BINMUIH AAPAMT YINASMACOH TOXMONAILIM LUMAABIPASX, XapyyLnara
XYN33MF9X MEXAHU3MbIF Brit BONroH MepaeH axUnNax 6aitHa.

XXB Hb 2024 oHOOC QXUNTHYyAAdQ AKUNNAX BONOMKOOP XaHracHaap
HAapaith ueneeTsit QXUNTHYYAAAQ 30PUYNCaH yAH XATGH Laraap,

QX/IbIH BAMPbIr COHAN BOMroX 3M3rTai KUATHYYABIH TACPANTIYA Xerkun,
KapbepbIH TOrTBOPTON BaiMIbIr XaHrax 3opunroTtoit Tyc xetenbepuitr 2023 owel 11 capaac
3apnad 2024 0HOOC AMKUNTTAM X3PINKYYMK BARHA.

TN N Kukr oyHa BrisHec spxnary SMarTsii xapuiLary HapT 30PUyaH
( % - BE LADY dropym, HeTBOpKMHT apra xamxaar 2024 oHbl 5-p capa
\ @ ) xananuyynar Byxuit hopyM apra Xamxasr 30xMoH BalryyncaH

o 6a Tyc apra xamxasHuit Hb XKIY 3pxnsry sMarTaiuyyaniH

IJ (“!l \ BU3HECUIH YN QxkWANaraar  ASMKKX  30pUArOOp  CaHAn
AL Bonrox Byit TOrTBOPTON CAHXYYXKUATUIH UNMMSANIAH COHXYYTMRH
BYTI3rA9XYYH, YANUMArS3r TAHWILYYNOX, YHASCHWA CAMH XMULIS3M TAHWYIAX, ONOH YNChIH
COH TypLUNAraac Cypanuax, XaMThiH axunnaraar 6axxyynsx au xonborgon Gyxuit yin
axunaraa oncoH oM.

Xynanaaa, XerkmuintH OaHK Hb AMEPUKUIMH 3N4YMH CAMAbIH AAMTAM XAMTPAH 3M3rTai
Bu3HEeC 3PXI3MY HAPT 30PWYNICOH CAHXYYTUH M3/ISM ONIFOX CPra X3MXK33M AMXWUATTAM
30xuoH baiiryynnaa. Tyc apra xamxasHUin yesp “IMarTail sHTepnpeHepyyaMiH akaaemu”
XOTONOOPUINH  TAHWALYYNra, SM3rTAN  SHTEPNPEeHepPYYAUH —aMXWUNTBIH - TyyX, XXB-Hbl
CaHXYYrUitH xeTenbepyys GONOH BuU3HeCUiH CTpaTeru, TyyHWiA a4 XOnBOrAIbIr TaHUYNaxX
MPAKTUK cyprant bonnoo.

XXB-Hbl yyraH canbapyyablH Har 60onox DpAsHIT canbapbiH yyCraH BairyynaracaHsbl
TYYXT 25 xunuitH ot 2024 oHpa ToxmocoH baitHa. OiH Baspaapaa Tyc BaHkHbl canbap ax
YPCUIH 3PYYN MIHAWAM A3MXKMUX, SMHINMAH TYCIAMXK YANUMArIDr CAMKPYYNax 30punroop
"OpxoH aimar faxb byCuitH OHOLUIMAMOO SMUMNrS3HWI TEB"-A HAPAIH LUAPAArbIH annapaT
63n3rnan3s.

XXB-Hbl HAAT axkinTHYyA 2024 OHBI SLCHIH 6aianaap 64 xyBb Hb 3M3rTal, 36 XyBb Hb 3P3rTaM
BaiHa. TyyHUNaH BaHKHbI AyHA TYBLUHWIA QKUNTHYYAbIH 49 XyBb Hb 9M3rTai, 51 XyBb Hb 3P3rTait
6aiHa.

XXB Hb 2024 oHbl 3ucUitH BAMANAAP TOMOOXOH XAPWALArY BanryynnaryydbiH rymusTrax
3aXMpnyyabiH 34 XyBb Hb 3M3rTal, 66 XyBb Hb 3P3rTai BANXAD XWKNT, OyHA BU3HECHitH
CErMeHTUMH XAPUALArYAbIH MYALSTIOX 3axMpyyabiH 51 XyBb Hb 3M3rTai, 49 XyBb Hb 3P3rTait
6aiHa. TyyHunaH, XXb-aac GusHecuiiH 3331mitH ByT33rAaXYYH ONrOCOH MpPraauitH 55 XyBb
Hb 3M3rTat, 45 XyBb Hb 3p3rTait barraa 6on BAHKHAAC MPraAWIAH 333NUIAH BYTI3rAaXYYH
ONFOCOH UPr3ANIAH 56 XyBb Hb 3M3ITaM, 44 XyBb Hb 3P3rTal baitHa.

64% 49%

y /
Huir Llyna TysLwHmii TyiusTrax Svarraii
QXANTHY YA KUNTHYYAL 3axvpnyya
® DSparmn
51% 55% 56%
Xapunuaruasis Buanecuitn 33an Upraaniin 3330
ryAUsTraX 30XMpnyya ONFOCOH UPT3A ONroCoH Mpraf
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3OXNCTOW X&O6/IMEP IPX1/T BA
S0MMH 3ACTUNH ©CONTUNT ODMXKINX

XXB-Hbl QNCbIH XAPAQ Hb XyBbLAG 333MLUMMYASASS YHD
LSHWIAT Burit BONroX, ONOH YNCbiH CTAHAAPT HUALC3H BAHKHBI
YiAnumMnras, ByTaarasxyyH xapunuaryaanaa caHan bonrogor
MY-biH T3pryynary apunxaaHsl 6aHk 6aiix toM. BaHkHbI
3pPX3M 30pUNro 6o ynamxnant BonoH awkutan xanbspasp
XAPWILArUMATAN ONP BAMK X3P3aruss LAAPLIArIr OMAroX,
TSArIPUIT XaHraxad Tycnax tom. TyyHunsH, XXB He 2050 oH
rax3 HorooH 6aHK 600X ypT XyraLaaHs 30PUATbIH XYP33HA
2030 oH raxaf 2 TpbyM aM. AOMNAPBIH COHXYYXUNTUIAN
XQAPWUNLArYAaaaa Onrox, MeH busHecuiti 6onoH AoToos yin
QKUANArAQar HOFOOH 3AWMIAH 3ACTUIAH 3ArBAPT  HUIALYYN3X
33P0 X3TUIMH 30PUATYYABIT X3P3NKYYNSX3A WAAPAIAraTai
apra xamxaar a4 axunnax baiHa.

Tyxainban, 2024 oHbl 6ananaap XXb He Bycan apumkaaHs
OaHKHYYATA XAPbLYYNAXan ©epUiH XOPeHIUAH X3MX33,
HWWT 333/MIAH OPWIAH YNASTANMIAH X3MX33 33prasp rypas
LlyradpT, HWAT XQOArGNAMXWAH X3MX33ra3p rypas Ayraapt
5pamMbanargax baitha. MeH, XXB Hb MY-biH Bapar byx
TOMOOXOH canbap Aaxb 7,600 opunuM ax axyit HImKug
YANUMNres y3yynasr 6a TAMNaHT XyraudaHa AMoH yncbiH
Tokno Acxb TeneenerunitH raspeir opyynaag Huit 90
canbap, TOoUOOHb! TeB, 264 63n3H MeHreHuint ATM 6onoH
15,290 MOC TepmuHanaap AAMXYYNaH Yin axunnarad
ABYYyK BanHa.

Canbap TooUOOHbI BansH MeHreHuit

TeB ATM

NOC tepMuHan

TyyHunsH, 2024 orbl batanaap XXb-Hel HUitT 840 TOMOOXOH
XapunLary 6airyynnarbii 333AuiH yNasr4sN oMponLooroop

HUNAT XypcaH 6aiHa. XXB-Hbl HAAT
1,991 xuxur BonoH AyHa BusHec cerMeHTUH Xxapuauary

BaliryynnarsiH 3330uiH YNASTAN HAMT OMPONLOOroop
XYPCaH 6a ©MHeX OHbl TyC CerMeHTUiH

393/MIMH BaruTan MeH Xxapblyynaxag
Men XXB-Hbl HUIT 119,399 MpraH XapuaLarduiti 3331uitH

YNA3rA3N OMPONLIOOTroop XypcaH ba
VIPraANiiH 3337MiAH Bart, ©MHex OHTOM MeH XapbLyynaxad
35.9 xysuap ecceH baitHa.

XXB Hb 2020 0HOOC XOWLL UPr3434 30PUYICAH X3P3M33HUNA
HOTOOH 333/IMIH BYTI3rASXYYHUIAT ©6PCANIAH 3X YYCBIPIP
raprox 3xancaH 6a 2024 orbl bangnaap XXB-Hel HOrooH

392N1iAH Bary HUiAT 6aiican. MeH 2024
oHbl baranaap XXBb-Hbl HUAMMUIAH LUMHX YAHAPTAA 333NWIAH

X3MXK33 BaiicaH 6a 3H3 Hb HUIAT BAHKHBI
393/MIMH Baruaac 27.1 XyBuir 333133.

XXB Hb 2023 oHbl 5 ayraap capg IPO Bytoy 5% xypranx
XyBbLOGr QHXAArY 30X 33974 GPWIKAGNX, YYHWR Yp

OyHO HUAT 2,528 XepeHre opyynarypaac
WIAH YHUAH OyH Byxuit 30XWManra XynasH asd, TATAH

TOBNOPYYNSX 30PUNTOT AyH Bonox WK
3axuanra 126.4% ryiusTranTainrasp AMXWATTAN XAArACaH
6aiHa. Tyc ax yyceapuitH 3apuyynant 2024 oHa amxunTTai
30pUyynargoxX  AyyccaH 6ad Tyc TATOH  TeBNePYYNCaH
XOPOHTMir eepuitH “HorooH BaHK” Bonox ypT xyrauadHs
30puarbiH - xypaaHa XXB-Hbl “TOrTBOPTONM  CAHXYYXWATHIAH
Xyp33” BAPUMT BUUMIT TYCraracaH HOrOOH BONOH HUIrMUItH
393/MIAH  QHIUANYYOAA  YSAOYYNOH  COHXYY>KUIT  ONrOCOH
BaitHa.
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®TDB

VE Rl
o XYRANIAN XOTHMRH B XAMTAAA
Ynamxnan BoncoH XyAaanaaaHsl CaHXYYXUNTUAH hopyMbIr
30XxMoH baliryyncaH 6a Xyaanaaa, yinuunrasHuin GraHecuitH
OPUHBIT LUIMH3P XAPX, COPUNT B3PXLLUS3M, ONONT AMXKMAT,
LWMHD BONOMXMIAr xapunuaruua 6onoH  BrusHecuintH uTrsnT
TYHLLYYAT3r33 XAMT X31371LUN33.
MoHron Ync ©onoH EBpoMbiH ync OpHyyAblH XOOPOHA
[0Xb BU3HEC XAPUILAA, XOAMTbIH CXKMINIAraar eprexyynsx
xypasHa Espon - MoHronsiH
DA xamtapcaH  Xygangaa  Ax
Global YiAnaespuitH TaHxumaac
30xvoH  bairyyncan  “Global
Gateway project - Opportuni-
ties for companies in Mongolia” apra xamxasHa Platinum
Sponsor-p oponu1oo.
XXB Hb MoHron Yncag yin axunnaraa spxamk Oyt onoH
YACbIH Baiiryynnaryyn OOMoH anuMH CaiabiH  AAMyyaTai
OPreH  XYP33HWA  XAPWILAQ,  XAMTbIH  GXWANAraaTtain
axunnaaar 6a yyHui xypsaHa bug PpaHy - MoHron xoép
OpHbI XOOPOHA BU3HeC apxanasr BusHec spxIary HApTAa
3opwuyncan VIP xynasH asantaa 3oxvoH bairyynnaa.
“Welcome to Mongolia” ypuatait  “MoHronsiH  3AniH
3acruiti dopym 2024”7 apra xamxasr OIMKUH CXXUNIAB.

*+Gateway

DopyMbliH - yesp  TOrTBOpTOM
) CAHXYYXUATUAH YMMNNNIAH

MON  LIA OXXNyyAbir OHLJIOH AypaadB.
ECOMOMIC FORUM  XXE. xamr onoH L3NXUAH

BaHK, CAHXYYTUIH apra
X3aMx33 bonox “Sibos-2024" 6ar XaMT 0THOOPOO AMXKMATTAN
OpOoNuUoX Monron YncbiH 6aHK COHX\{\(I’MIZH TYYX, onont

amxunT,  yin
TAHWYNaH
TyyHUnN3H,
caHaaunara,
30PUATYYAbIH

axunnaraar
cypTanuuanaa.
WMHAN3T  caHan
cTpateru
Tanaap

sliblols

TYPLUMArG CONMALIOO.
XXB Hb HuCAsnWiAH Xuxur, OyHA YANABIPNSA, YANUMArasr
oemxmx TeB HOYI, 333nuilH BATNOH AQQNTBIH - CAHTAM
XaMTpaH  YnaaHbaatap  xoteiH - XKOY  apxnary  HopT
CAHXYYTUIH ASMXIISM Y3YYNax xeTenbep Xaparkyynaxasp
6onnoo. XXb Hb Tyc xetenbepeep AAMXKYYNQH XUXWT,
LyHO BU3HEC 2pXISryaniir A3MXUX 30PUITEIHXOO XYPI3HA,
6oaut xaparuss waapgnara Gyxuit XKOY spxnsry Hapt
XOHFONenTToi HOXLeNTS! 3331 ONroHo. MHracHssp GusHec
SPXIAMYANIAH 30X 3931 6PCONAex YaaBap, SANNAH 30CTUitH
UQOaBXbIr  HIMBIAYYNMSX, CANBAPbIH  X3MXK3I3HA — YNCaac
X3P3NKYY/K Oyt Bognoros xyBb HIM3P OPYYNOH A3MXIISN
Y3YY/19X TOM Qixam Bonox oM.

Bloomberg TV Mongolia 2013 oHooc 3xn3H xwun byp MoHron
YNCbIH SANAH 3QACTUAH ©CONT, XOrKuN A3BLUML TOMOOXOH
XyBb H3M3p BOMCOH XAMIUAH WUnAsr ByTsaH baiiryynanT,
XOpOeHre opyynant, Tecen xetenbep, 6OMIOrO WMAANMIAT
“Bloomberg Awards”-T H3p A3BLUYYI3H MAHAQAArYabIF
TOAPYYIK MPCIH BUM33. DH3 KUAMIAH XyBbA TYC CAHAAUNITBIH
[OAPAArUiAH  XyyAChIr H33X, TOTTBOPTOM XOMKMS, HOFOOH
SAMH 3acruitH “xypaacryyp” 6omx By wunaryya byroy
“Catalyst”-yyasir Toapyynnaa. Apra XaMxasHWUN epeHxuit
MB33H TaTrarussp XXb axwnnanaa.

HYB-biH cyypb koHBeHUbIH TanyyabiH 29 ayrasp 6ara xypang
(COP29) -n XXB-Hbl TY3-witH gapra P.Konna oponucoH 6a
Tyc Xypan Hb JanxuiH xynamxuith xuiti anrapnsir 2050 ox
X3 TMN3X, OANXWAH Jynaapnbir 1.5 xaMp TortooH bapux
YIC OPHYYAbIH TTApPUCBIH X2N3MLS3PUIH YYP3T XAPUYLIArbIH

OVenanTuilr - XaHryynax, yyp GMbCramblH - ©6pUnentuir
caapyynax, AACAH 30XMLOXOL YWMISC3H YN axunnaraar
O3MXKUX, CAHXYYKUNT TATAH, XOrKUX Dyt OpHYYAbIH X3P3rus3
LIOAPAIArbIr XAHIOX, HOFOOH CAHXYYXWUNTUIAT HIM3IAYYNax
30PWNrOTON tOM.

MoHron Ync naxe AMEPWKWIAH XyAQnAQdHb! TAHXUM Am-
Cham Mongolia-c 3oxvoH baiiryynaar xamruith Tom apra
xaMx33 Bonox “CSR AWARDS 2024"-H uopbiH raHy “Di-
amond” cnoHcopoop XXb axunnaa.  Apra xaMmxasHui
YHAC3H 30PWNrO Hb OHbl OMOAT AMXUATYyAad bGaTaTraH
LOYrH3X, XO8p YNCbIH XOOPOHAbIH OW3HECHMIH  OpUHbIF
CAMKPYYNX, HUMTMUIAH a4 XONBOTA/bIN CYPTANnUMNX, eHAep
TYBLUHWUIA  XAPWILAH  XaMTbIH — axkunnaraar — 63xxyynax
30puUnrotoin brnaa.

XXb Hb 2030 OH raxsg xoép T3pbyM aM. AONNAPbIH
TOrTBOPTON  CAHXYYXUATUIM XAPUNLArygoaad Xyprax ypr
XyrauaaHbl  30PUAT  A3BLUYYACIH Oa  3HIXYY 30PUNTBIH
xypa3Ha 2024 oHbl 10-p capa AHY-biH 3acruiiH raspeiH
areqtnaruid - XerxmiH - Camxyyruini - Koprnopay — (DF-
C)-c aHXHbl COHXYYXWIT33 AMXWATTAR TATCaH 6a  Tyc
CAHXYYXUNT Hb MoHronsiH XY 6GonoH 3MartaiuyyanitH
OV3HEC SPXNINTUNM O3MXKCIH KKUM AyHA YWANABIPASrUMA
MOH HOTOOH, TOITBOPTOM BU3HECWIAr O3MXUX 30PWIroTON
toM. Tapryynary OAHKHbI XyBbA YNC OPHbI 3AUAH 3ACTUIAr
CONOHropyynax, oxibliH baip 6uin Bonrox 3opunroop
KOY-UIH 30X 33937MAM 33N13X XYBUAM HIMITAYYIH COKUINAX
6aiHa. Men XXb Hb 10-p capa MoHron Yncaa aHx yaaa onoH
YNCbIH 30X 33314 HWIAT 50 cas am.[onnapbiH HOrOoH 6oNoH
HUArMUIAH BoHg rapracaH. Tyc Borasir XXB-Hel TorteopToi
BanabIH XYP33HUI Aryy HOFOOH BONOH HUIAMMUIAH 333MUIH
LIONTYYPT HUALIC3H 3337MIAT CaHXYYXKYY1IX34 3aPLYYHA.

300TON xonoMoP
ER ot ACTH

o
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YYP AMbCTAJIbIH ©SPUNISNTUNH YP HONOOT BAFACTAX

XXB Hb MoHronbiH TOrTBOPTOW CAHXYYrUiiH XxonbooTon
XaMTPAH  Yyp  aMbCrasbiH - HOrooH caH  (YAHC)-ruin
Byuantryit Tycnamxaap xaparkyymk byt “Mowron Yncan
TOITBOPTOM BONOH HOFOOH  COAHXYYXUITUIAH  X3P3NKUNTUIAN
HaMarayynax bansH BaignsiH xetenbep”-wuiir amxunTTai
X3P3NKYYK Ayycnaa.

XXB Hb OpPOH HyTrUIAH HOTOOH XOMKUIAT A3MXUX, XyBUIH
X3BLUINIAH  XOPOHIe  OPYYNANTbIN  HIM3MAYYM3X  30PUIro
Byxuit “MoHron Ync aaxb Byc HyTrWitH HOrOOH A34 ByTuMiAr
XONKyynax” 63n3H 6AANbIH TOCAWIT Yyp AMbCrambIH HOOOH
CaHraap amxunTrain batnyynaH, xaparkyymk gyycras. Tyc
63n3H 6aAANBIH TOCINIAH YP AYHT ONOH TANT OPOALOrYAoH
TaHWnLyynax 3opunroop 12-p capsit 10-Hbl eaep “Oponuory
TaNyyablH X3N3NLYYNar’- uidr 3o0xnoH bairyynca baiHa.
XX Hb 2050 oH raxsg HorooHn 6aHk bonox ypt
XYraLaQHbI 30PUArbIH XYP33HA BUsHecuitH 6onoH gotoon
YN axunnaraaHadc  ynbaadtai  HyypCTOPerumiH - XuitH
UB3D  AATQPMBIr  TIMI3X  30PUATYYABIr  X3P3NKYYNaXa4
LIGOPAIAraTail apra Xamkasr aB4Y axunnax b6aiHa. YyHa
[APACX apra Xamka3 OpPHO.

Green Hour - egep byp 1 uar rapnas yHTpaak
3PUMM  XYUID XIMHIX QAHBIM  YPra/KIYYNSH
X3P3ANKYYMK BarHa.

Green Office -XXB-Hbl Byx canbap, Harx, rasap
X3MTSCT ©Aep TYTMbIH Yin  Qxkuanaraaraa

baiirans  opuuHa  93nTa  Bonrox,  yin
axunnaraaHaac  yydasH  6ui  Gomk - Byt
ceper Heneennuiir Byypyynaxan  3eBnemx

erex, rapbiH GBAArAAP XAHrAx 3opuirotoiroop Horoow
OdbcpuchiH 3eBneMxmir BonoscpyynaH rapracaH 6a 2025
OHOOC 36BNIOMXWIT AAraX MOPASH CXUNIAX IX/IIX FOM.

OnoH yncan batnaracaH Torteopton baraan GonoH yyp
QAMBCTQbIH - ©@OPUNENTUIAH  TAMNArHALIH - CTAHAAPTYYAAA
CYYPWICOH  CaHXYYTUIAH  TQMNGHTA  XAMTATIGH  TOFTMON
TANNArHAX HOXLIONMIAT BYPAYYNIX3 UMINIH xkmnanaxk baiHa.
OpunM  XyuHWit  3oxucToit  xaparaar  aamxumx  “TOl-oo
TOXVPYynbA”  QAHA  HIMOK OAHKHBI - CXKWUNTHYYA OonoH
XAPUNLAry HapPaa TOroo TOXMPYYNAH HIFASXMAT ypUaniad.
bua 3punM XyuHUIt 30XMCTON X3P3MN33HMIN COENBIF TYrasH
[PNraPYYNaXMIAH 33P3rL33 X3P3MNI33ra3 baracraxeiH Tyng,

Baiiryynnara [39px UGXUATAAH X3P3rcnss 3punM Xy4HUit
XSMHBJ'ITTSIZ xaparcnaap CONMbX, eH,uep ><3p3|'}'|33T312
uaxunradaH xaparcnaa ayaanan 60I’GTOIZ ye,u OXM}'IJ‘Iny‘DK
BaitHa.
TOFODE&ED o
TOXUPYYIBA N =
e R

% 7591 % 64kr
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‘.’ XyBaHUAP ‘.’ Awwurnacar
batrepeit

XXB Hb Xor XaArgnbir QHrUNGX, AWUIACaH  batapeit
BONOH XyBAHLAP QHIUNAX XOMUIH CaByyAbir BalpLyynaH
uyrnyynaar bereen naxuH Gonoscpyynax yiAnaBapyyada
HUANYymk anHa.

2024 omg HWAT  759,1Kr  XyBAHUPBLIF  GHIUMK  OCAXUH
BonoBCpyynax yitnasapT HUANYYAC3H BaitHa.

2024 oHA HWAT 6,4KT awmrnacaH batapenr uyrnyymk xor
XQArANIr AAXMH BONOBCPYYNAX YINABIPT TyLIAACAH BaitHa.

YYP AMBCTATEH
‘SopuneTHIN YP
HoNoor BATACTAX

O
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LotnaHa yncbiH DAUHBYPIUiiH UX CypryynnilH MarucTpbiH otoyTHyyatan 2024-2025 oHbl
XWMU33MUIAH Xuna “MOHIon ync yyp ambCranbliH eepunentes AACaH 30XMLOXOZ, ALUMINArAaX
HOTOOH  COHXYYXWNTWIAH  3arBapyyd” CABUIAH  XYP33HA CyAQNrad  XWiH, yOWPAAMXK
6ONOBCPYYNAX UNITIBNI3P XAMTPAH CKUANAK BaiHa.

YnaaHbaaTap XoTbiH 3QNyYCbiH LATMIAT 368 BONMOBCOH COENTON, YP ©reexTait eHrepyynaxas
LSMXIIST Y3YY/aX 30PUAroop YHASCHUIA ONOH HUATUIAH COEN aMpanTbiH xypaanaHg “Hap-
py Park” Tecnmiir 1 capbiH XyrauaaHa X3PanKyyiX, erneeHuin uora, spyyn MsHa 6onow

BonoscponToit  xonbooToN  eAePNeryYAUIr  MIPraXJMH  Banryynnaratain  XamTpaH
AMXKUNTTAI X3P3NKYYN3B. MeH 3a1yyCT 30pUyNICaH yPAAruiAH TOrONTYyAbIr A0N00 XOHOT Byp
30x1oH baiiryynnaa. TyxailH TecnnitH 6apuarbiH XIbIH TOXKUNT Hb AAXWH BonoscpyyncaH
XyBAHLPAAP XWUIAFACIH r3Ara3p33 OHLIOr BONCOH toM.

XXB-Hbl BU3HeCHitH HOrOOH 333MiH BYTI3raaXYYHI3P CAHXYYXYYICIH Tecen, xetenbepyya

Hb H3F Xung tOM.
XXB Hb aHXHbl “TOrTBOPTOM XOMKNMIH TAMNAH"-Taa BONOBCPYYNAH HUNTINCIH Ba TAMNAH Hb
Sustainability Accounting Standards Board (SASB), BOH3, Torteoproit 6aiansiH TannarHansiH

yavpaamx  GonoH Global Reporting  Initiative  (GRI) 33par tainarHamsiH - TortonLoo,
CTOHAGPTYYAOA YANayynaH GonoBcpyynaraox, GaHkHbl Bairans opunHa Teauinryit sauitH
30car BONOH HAAM3MA Y3YYIK Byt HONeeNNYYAUMT LWMHXISH, HIMTIIX JYTHICIH tOM.

Bua MoHron YncelH BaHK, canxyyruitH canbapt anx yaaa TY3-uitH Asprag 6aHKHbl yin
CKMNNArad, TOTTBOPTOM CAHXYYKWIT, BANranb OPUMH, HUIMMSM, 3ACAMNONbIH  UMFISN93P
LISMXJIST, 36BNIOMXK ©rex umr yypar Byxuit TormBopTOi XerknuitH xopoor baiiryynax 6yTau,
30XMOH BAryyNIANTAAA ©epuUnenT opyyscaH baiHa.

‘/V( \ HYB-biH XerxuitH XeTenbepeec xaparkyymk bairaa YnaaHbaatap
\\I(u‘ / )\// XOT [CXb AraapbiH BOXUPAbIH ACYYANbIN COPrI3MASX SPUUM XYUMHA,
N L/k CYYPWICaH LMION33p Baracrax, ONnoH HUMTUIH 3PYYa M3HA, axX

7N OMBbAPAA 3ePar HEMee Y3YY/IsX 30PUIrooP P XOPOONon AdXb

OPXYYANAH HYYPCHUI X3P3MM33M XAMXK, HAPHbI XANAQNTHIH CUCTEMA LLNMMKUXDA AIMKNIM
y3yynax “If Only | Could Go Solar” xamTbliH CaHXyyXunT BOCrOX GsHA HIMASH XAMTPAH
axunnaxaap 6onos.

BaHKHBI YiN QKUANAraaHA AWMIax BOMOMXKIYI TEXHUKMIAH

XOr XQATANLIr BAHKTAM xaMTpaH axunnaaar Lyay XyyxauiH
Mmuseurr  My3eiin xaHauenacaH. TyxaiiH Mysell Hb TyC XOr XQAraibir

LUMHXIT3X YXAOHZ, COHMPXONTOM BAra HACHb! XyyxayyauiH OyHa
30XMOH Baiiryynax BopKwong awmriax, awmrmax OyycCaHbl 4apad Bairanss 3anTsnrasp
XOr XQArAan AAxXMH BONoBCPYYNAAr YNABIPT XAHAMBIAXAAP TOXUPOLCOH. MHracH33p 6ug
HorooH BaHk 600X 30PHATbIH XYP33HA LUMHXIISX YXAAHL, COHUPXONTON XyyX34 baradyyasir
60MTOOP AIMXKMH CXKMANANAA.

‘SopuneTHIN YP

1 YYP AMBCTATEH
'HONOOT BATACTAX.

O
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XyCanT, rOMA/IbIT LWyypXai TOHLXYMLL X3MXIIHUN
LUNABIPN3CIH CAHXYYrMIAH 3pCA3M133C
Xapwnuaryaa xamraannaa.

2024 oHbl Xapunuaryuiti C3Tran XaHAMXKWUMH YHI1raa

® 9%6% @

CSAT-(customer satisfaction score)—93.860

NPS-(net promoter score)- 21 .30

XAPUALATYAMH YUY DD

2024 oHa xapunuarygbiH npyyncaH 19,900 rapyit MapraaHtail ryinrasHuin xycant
60onoH 5,500 rapyit caHan xycanT, FoMANbIr LWyypXait LWNAOBIPAX axunnaa. 8.5 1apbym
TOrPOrTSN TIHLDXYLL XIMXKIDHNI CAHXYYTUIH 3PCA3M33C XAPUNLArYad XaMraasiaa.

BaHKHBI X3MX33HA HUIT XAPWALIAMYWIAH LIAACAH XyBUIAH X3PTUIMH LIAXUM COHI YYCraH
TEBNePYY/ICIH Bereen LAACAAP X3BNIrAASN OYTIIrAIXYYH, YIANUMIrI3HUIA MASATT, FIP33r
WAT AAPAATAAraap LAxuM X3nb3pT WWmkyyasH Baitrans opumHa 331731, LAACTyid,
LAXMM LUMIALIZ3P XAPUILIAMIML XYPIIX 3X31133.

Xapwnuary testsi, Jukintan 6aHK 6oNox 30punrbiH XYP3a3HA XAPUNLArYMIAH M343310MIAr
30aMHAAC LWMHIUNZH LAXMM CYBraap AAMXKYYNaH TaHUH, BATanrackyymx GyTasrmaxyyH,
YANUMAra3r Lar anaanryil Xypraxuir 3opbx baiHa.

2023 oHp HaBTPYYNCaH Yitnuunrasnuin TerengepLunuiti 1ISO 23592:2021 6onoH yaHapbiH
MeHexmeHTuitH 1ISO 9001:2015 cTaHaapTyyabiH MAraanax ayauTeir Xoép AaXb XUnass
AMXUATTAN XUIANTaN33.

HWIAT BaHKHbI HINKYYASA Oyradp AyyAArdnitH yXaanar AVKUTAN CUCTEMUIAT HIBTPYYIX
XAPWILArY 3aiMHAAC YANUYAArSoHUA Tacanbap aBax, BAHKHbI CanBApbiH auaabIr
3aiHaac xapax 6onomxToit GoncoH.

YANUMNrasHUii yaHap GONOH XAPWLIAUYMIAH CITMAN XAHAMXUIAH TYBLUMHE  TOrTMON
XIMKUX, Y3YYNINTANAN HIMIAYYN3X3 AHXAAPY, XAPWILAMUMAH YiANuMnrss asu Oyit
cyBar Bypaspx xapunuaruuitH catran xanamxuir CSAT 6onon NPS y3yynantuir
ONOH YNCbIH APraYNabiH AAryy TOAOPXOWIOX CYAQNrAQHb XOKYYMINTYYAUAr XUAXK
HIBTPYYNCH. BaHKHLI canbap BONoH AyyanarkiH TeBeep YUNunyyncaH xapunuarygaac
TOTTMON  YANUMArS3HUIA  YAHAPT  QHXAQPCOH  XAPWALAMUMAH  C3TIAN  XAHAMXKMIAH
CyAQNraar Meccexasp aBY, TOITMON XAHAX BalHa.

2024 oHbl XapunuaryuitH catran xaHamxuitH yHanras CSAT 93.86%, NPS 21.3%
Y3YYNaNTTaM rapcaH baiHa.
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XOPOHI© 3OXUUYYNANTbIH YAWPOATA

Bantot apunxaa
TanaHT OHA MoHron YNCblH TSﬂ66pMﬂH T3HLU3M, 3KCNOPTbIH ©CONTe8C XaMaapy rafgaaq BaNKOTbiH HESL, OHbl

3x3H yeTai xapsuyynaxag 11.8 XyBUap eccen 6aitHa. MeH 3H3 oHa HyYpCHMIA SKCMopT BOMOH Yy yypXaiiH
canbapblH YiNABIPNSN ©MHEX OHOOC HIM3IACIH Hb BAMKOTBIH XAHLU TOrTBOPTOM Baiixan Heneennes. XXb He

[0TOOAbIH BANKOT QPUAXAGHBI 3ax 33304 25.5 0puUnM XyBUiAr Bypayymx baitraa 6erees TaMNGHT OHbl
HUIT XyrauaaHa XapuilaryasiHxaa roaaan 6onoH gotoor tenbep TooLoor Tacanmyynaxryi, TortBopTon
YALSTrOX, BAMKOTBIH SP3NT X3P3rL93r XAHTAH CKUANAA.

KactoamaH ynnumnras

Tainant oHg XXB Hb KacToguaHbl ByTS3rgsxyyH, YWAUWArSSHUA LAp
XYP33r Ta13X, CAMKPYynax, raaaan Xapualaar eprexyyasxuir 30puH
QXKMAOXbIH 33P3ML33 X6PEeHre OpyyNa/ThiH CAHYyA, raaaad AOTOOAbIH
M3PraX/NiiH XePeHre opyynaryaan AoTooabiH BonoH onoH ynceiH 3ax
353714 XOPeHre Opyynaxad Hb HaABapTai ryyp 6onox, ctaHaaptan
HWALIC3H X3P3MN3ryasa YAMICaH YANUMAra3 yayynaxaa axxaapnaa. 2024
oHA XXB-Hbl KACTOAMAHA XAAramK Byl XOPEHIMMIAH X3MXK33 BMHEX OHbl MEH

MeHreHui 3ax 3330

yeac 28 XyBUAP ecceH y3yynanTTsit rapcaH.

YH3T MeTannbIH apunmkaa
2024 oHn MOoHronbaHKHbl  XyOANAGH GBCAH  CUITHBI  X3MX33
©MHexX OHTOI Xxapslyynaxag byypanttai baiican bereen HWiAT

ant xyaangaH aecaH baiHa. XXB Hb xapunuary
Bairyynnaryynaacaa XyAanfdH GBCAH GTHBI xaMxa3rasp 2024

OH] 30X 333UNH 3331k, 2023 OHbl 30X 333714 33/13X
XyBUAC TONCIH Y3YYNNTTIN rapnaa.

TaitnaHT oHa XXBb Hb motoompiH MeHrewmin sax 3aanmitd 16.0 XyBUIAM Bypayymx axunnaxsiH
33p3ru33 MoHronbaHkHaac TorroocoH 3aaean barnrax Heel, Tenbep TypPraH ryuaTrax YoaBAPbIH
LIAAPANArkir TACPANTIY XAHrax axuinacad baina. TyyHunasH, rapaan 6onoH aotooabiH BaHk
CaHXyyrnitH Baiiryynnaryyaan MeHreHwit 3axbiH BornHo xyrauaarait xagranamx banpliyynax,
30CruiiH raspbiH raaaa YHIT LAACHL GPUHKAGHA OPOLIOX 3AMAAP XOPBEX XOPEHIItH ereexuir
H3M3raYy/K  axmnnacaH. Llaawma onoH ynceiH BonoH [otoomblH 30X 33301 A33PX XOpPeHre
OPYYNaNTYyabH LUAP XyP33r H3M3MAYYN3X 30PUAT TABMH axkminax BaiiHa.

AKTUB, NaccuBbIH yaMpanara

MaHa yncbiH MHAAL HIM OPOHTON TOOHA XAAranaraax barcaHTtai xonbootonroop TeBBAHKHbI 3yrasc 6oanorsiH xyyr 13 XyBuac 3 Hark xyBrUap ByypyyncaH.
XapuH OHbl XOEP [AXb XArACT MHAAALM AAXUH SPUMMKIXK, YYHUI HONeereep AyHa XyrauaaH BaHKHbI CEKTOPbIH 3X YYCBIPHItH OpTer HAMBMASX XAHANAr aTai

BoncoH.

XXB Hb 2024 oHa uHbNAL, 6OANOrbIH XyYHWUI OyHA BONOH yPT XyraudadHbl XYN33ATSA YHASCASH L3B3P XYYrUiiH Opnorbir TOrTBOPTOW TyBLUMH XAArQnaxX

YUN3N4 AKTUB, MACCUMBbBIH yANPANArbIr X3P3MKYYN133.

MoHron yncbiH raaaca XyAanaadHel HexUen 6annan camkmpy, MeHreHUin HUINYYNaNTUitH eCenT eHaep bancaHTait xonbooTo ax YyYCB3IP, 333UIAH OHOBYTOM
XyBAGPUNATAL] QHXAAPY, XOPBEX YQABAPLIH YAMPANATbIr X3P3NKYYIIK CXXWUANACAH. TyyHUN3H, 3X YYCB3PUItH BONOH 3337MIH MEHIEH YPCrablH XAHAATHIH

XWX, TIAr33PUIAH 3aH TONEBUIH 3arBapUIan CyAANTaar CAMKPYYmK axXMIIACaH.
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SPCO/IMNH YOUPONATBIH TOTTOALOO

BaHKHbI 3pcosnuitH yaMpanarsiH - HIPKYYA
Hb TOWNGHT oHA bBaHkHbl 3331,  3ax
393N, XepBeX YadBap, YN axunaraa
BONOH  XYYrUiH 3PCASMMIAT  TOROPXOMNOX,
SPCOSNMAH  TYBLUHWAM  YHIM13X,  TYYHUIr
Oyypyynax, ypbouMNaH CIPrUMNBX, XaHax
UMMNM33P ONOH YNCbIH CAMH TypLUNAryyasir
HIBTPYY/K, OQHKHBI YN QXMANAradHs
TOrTBOPTON BANA/IBIIT XAHIAH  CXKMANOXAAC
ragHa  QOKWITHYYAbIH — 3PCOMMIAH - Tyxai
M3I/137 OMArOATHIN HIM3MAYYN3X, SPCAIMIAH
COENbIF BAHKHbI XIMXIIHL, TYr33X YNIIBND3P
QAHXAapY aXunnaa.

SPCONNVH AMMETAT

BaHk Hb yitn axxunnaraanaaa Bapumtiax
SPCONMAH  ANNeTUTHIN  TOAOPXOMNOXA00
Mowron YncelH Xyynb TOrTOOMX,
MoHronbaHkHaac — BaTtancaH  30xucToi
XAPbLAGHbLI  WAArYYp  Y3YYNanT,  TyyHA
XAHANT TaBKX Xypam, basenuith xopooHooc
rapracaH 3pCAdMMiH YaMPAAra, XAHANTLIF
X3P3MKYYN3X ONOH YNCbIH MPAKTYK 30BNOMX,
BaHkHbI apcasnuiin yanpanarsi 6oanorsir
yavpanara 6onroH axunnanar.

Spcasnnitt anneturaap BaHk  Hb
CTPATErWiAH  30pWAro,  AyHA  XYrauddHbl
30PUNTYYAAAA XYPIXUIAH TyNg TyXAiH >Xuia
XYN193H 36BLUESPEX 3PCOIMNAH TYBLUHUAM
Topopxonngor bereea BaHkHbl cTpaTtern
30PUATHIF AMXKUATTAR X3P3MKYYNIX3 YUnpY
Gonsowryit ron spcasnyyaMIr SpCASANIAH

annetuTaaa aedy y3gsr. bawk xun Byp
TY3-eep batnaracaH BaHkHbl BapumTnax
SPCOMUIAH  anNneTUTbiH  BapuMT  BudrnitH
XYP33HL ~ rOn  3PCAYYAUAr  yaoMpACH
axunnax baiHa.

SepuiiH
porooanoo yHanax apraynan (ICAAP),
XepBex uaaBapbIr AOTOOAOO YHIMIX
apraunan (ILAAP)

XOPOHIMIAH — Xyp3/u33r

BaHk Hb MOHrONBAHKHAAC X3P3rKyyx Byt
MOHIOHUI BOANOrbIH YHACIH UMrNaN BONOH
BOaHKHbI CONBAPbLIH WMHSTIANIAH  XYPI3HL,
"OepnitH XOPOHTUINH XYP3NL33r AOTOOANOO
yHanax apraunan (ICAAP) GonoH Xepsex
4aABAPLIM  AOTOOAOO  YHIN3IX  apraunan
(ILAAP)"-bIr H3BTPYYNI2X 30PUITBIH XYP33HA
2023 oHooc 3x13H BaHkHbl - cTpateru

Teneeneree, [OyHA  XyraudaHel BusHec
TeNeBneree, a3PCONAH AnNneTuT, YaHAPryn
aKTuBbIF Byypyynax cTpatern Teneeneree,
cTpecc TeCTUH yp  OyH, 3pCOdAWiH
Gopnoroton ysnoyynaH BaHkHbl  BoruHo
BonoH AyHA XyrauaaHbl TACPONTrYN yitn
COKWIAraar XAHraX 30PWIroop  3337MIAH
3pcOan, YN QKWAAradHsl - 3pcaan,
30X 333/MIAH  3pCOaN, XYYTMAH  3pcaan,
TOBNOPANIH 3PCA3N 33P3r roN SPCANYYASL
OfIOH Y/NCbIH APraynanbiH AAryy eepwitH
XOPOHIMIAT  TOOLOX XyBAAPWNAX, BaHKHbI
©OPUINH XOPOHIUIH XYP3NL33 6ONOH BaHKHbI
XOPBOX YOABAPLIH 3PCA3M, CAHXYYXXUNTUAH
spcasnuiir basen Il ctanaapteiH baraxa
[I-bIH [Aryy LOrLOOP Hb YHIMX Cxkunnanaa.

333NNH
YOUPONATA

SPCOSNMMNNH

BaHk Hb  3337uitH BarubliH - Teenepen,
SOMMH  30CTUAH  canbapbliH  Teenepen,
YAHAPIYY 333AWUAH TYBLUWMH, 333743r4aniiH
3931 3pryynsH Tenex uagsap, bapbuaa
XOPOHINIAH XAHraNT 33P3r Y3yynanTyyasa
3PCONNIAH XA3rAAPAANT TOFTOOX 3aMaap
333/MIAH SPCASMIT ByypyynxX, XAHANT TABUH
CKUNNCAAT.

Tainant  oHA  BaHk  Hb  BanryynnarsiH
392nMiiH - Boanoroo  WMH3UMNCIH  Ba
BairyynnarelH - CErMeHTUMH  Xapunuardug
3991 OAroX YHAC3H 30PYWM,  LWANTYyp,

393MWAH YAMPANArd, XAHANTbIH TOrTOALOON
TOOOPXOMNCOH — YHACSH  Bapumt  Buunr
6oncoH.

BaHK Hb  ONrOCOH  3237NMIAH  XAHAATAA
OapUMTIaX  CTAHAAPTBIH  AAryy  TyXQWH
3297MIAr  ONFOCHOOC — 3XN1334  Teneraex
Ayycax XypTa/x XyrauaaHa eaep TyTMbiH,
393/UiMH TenbepwitH 3epunuiir baparayynax
apra  aXwnnaraa, 3331 3PCANA OPX
bonsoLuryi Hexuenmmr ypbAuMnaH
WNPYYN3X,  3PCO314  CYyPWNCaH — 3praH
XAHQNTBIH YN QOKWNIAraar TOAOPXOWIOH
392MUIH  Spcasnuiir - Byypyynax,  TyyHA
XSHONT TABUH QXWNNAX DAnHa.

BaHK Hb 33371 YaHAPryWTX33C ypbAUWUIAH
copruinax  BonoH  YaHapryi - 333numir
Oyypyynax, Tenyynsx rscaH YHACOH 2
YMMANL YN CKWINAraar Xapankyynaar.

® baHK Hb 3PCaAaN1A CyypUncaH XaHant byroy
)/pb,ﬂUMﬂCUH M34331314 VH/J.')C/T’)H Clpf()
XZYM)KI)JHVV,QMI;VF Te/NeB/1exX, X’?pJ/’)K\/\/ﬂ}K
QXunnnax ﬂpOuCCCb!F 6\/,0,&\/‘//7:)}-{ QKNI
bariHa

e YaHapryid 33sanmiH xysba xyrauaa /
3X3H, AyHA, YPT/, XAPUILIArymiiH 3
2pM3a13371, ConyerH Hexuen baigan,
bapsLaa xepeHre, waapanararaii bapumt

3/1 Tenex

marepuan 33partT TyaryypnaH asax apra
X3MX33r  TYCraiinaH Tomopxoinx, 3 ye
LUOTTU%TOCIp (Jpra X3MXK33 ABAH QXXWINIAX
bariHa



Kunuitn Tatnax

3AX 322/IMNH SPCOMUNH YOUPANAT

2024 oHp reononnTukniiH Hexuen baiaan BonoH Bycan xyunH 3yiAnuitH Heneereep
OMOH YNCbIH 30X 33314 ANT, AM.AOIAPbIH XAHLLWIAH ©CONTT3MN XN TOXMONoo. baHkHe
XyBb, TyC Hexuen baianan GonoH Bycan 3ax 3337UIH XyBbCArYgblH ©OpPUNenTeec
YYO3NT31 BAHKHbBI APUMKAAHbI COHXYYMUItH X3parcang yycy bonsoLuryit 3ax 333nuiiH
3pCOaNMAr JAPACX Apra, apraynanaap efep TyTAMAAA XAHANT TABbX, YAWPAGH
axunnaa. YyHa:
MoHron BaHKHaAC TOrTOOCOH raAAGA BAMKOTHIH HI3NTTOM Nosuy, HonoH
©OPWIIH XOPOHMUIH 30XMCTON XAPbLAGHBI LIAATYYP Y3YYAATUAr H3MK
Ba/tOT BONOH HUIAT BantoTaap eaep byp TooLoX TainarHanaa.
Basens Il cTaHAapTbIH Aaryy M3ApsMXuh CYypUNcaH apraunanaap
(MRCC) yunpy 6Gonsowryin anaarmjibic Xaoxah XyPaiudxyhl eepuitH
XOPOHIMIAH X3MXI3I TOAOPXOMMXK, TYYHA XA3rAQPAQNT TOrTOOX XAHAX
axwunnanaa.
HWiAT  H23nTT3l  NO3WMLOOC ACPAArviiH  QxIbiH - ©aepT  anaak BHonox
QNAGTANIBIH XIMX3I XAMIWIAH MX 3pcasnuiiH apraap (VaR) togopxoimx
axunnanaa.

XYYTUMH DPCOSNNWH YOAWPONATD

TaitnaHt oHA MoHronbaHkHel BoanorsiH xyy 13%-nac 10%-a xypuy ByypcaH bon
ONOH YNCbIH TYBLUMHL, Y KOBWIbIH ACAPAAX 34WAH 3ACTUIAT SPUMMXKYYISX 30PUIrO0P
XYYFUiAH TYBLUMHE ye waTTainraap Byypyymx baitHa. BaHk Hb XyyruitH spcasnuir
30XMCTON TYBLUMHA BAPKX, 30X 333/UIAH XYYTViH ©6pUNenTeec XaMadpPaH BaHKHI
BYTI3rAIXYYHUIA XYY OHOBUTOI TOFTOOX, 30X 333MMIH XYYTUIH TYBLUHWIA @epUNenTeec
YYA3H yunpu BOnox XyyruitH 3pCA3NMiAH TYBLUMH, QNAQRIbIH X3MX33T YPbAUYNIGH
TOOOPXOMNOX, XYHAPIMMIT LUNALIX 3AMAAP SPCONMMIAT yAMPAAAL. TYYHUASH XYYruidH
3PCOSM33C COPIUIANDX AOXMO Y3YYNINTYYAUAT ypbaUMNaH Topopxoinx, TY3-eec
6aTANCAH 3PCANMMIAH ANNETUTbIH XYPIIHA ©OPUIMH XOPOHIMIAH 3AMH 3ACTUIH YHD
USHUIH MaapamTrvin Baiinan Bytoy EVE, ussap xyyruith opnoreiH eepunent (Nll)-eec
YYA3H BAHKAHA yurpy BON30LWNyi 3PCA3NIAT XA3raaPACXK AXUANAd.

XEPBOX YALBAPbIH SPCASMMNH YOANPANATA

TainaHg oHA BaHk Hb MOHrONBAHKHEI XOpPBOX YOABAPbLIH 30XWUCTOM
XAPbLAGHB! WAArYYp Y3YYANTUAT XAHFANTTan HeeuTsireep buenyynsH
CXKWINAXK, YPbAUMIGH COPTUMIANEX  [OXMO  Y3YynanTyya OGonoH xepsex
YOOBAPLIH SPCAMMAT YHAMSX ONOH YAChIH SKULUM  Yy3yynantyyd 6Gonox
BOrvHO XyrauaaHsl Tenbep TypraH ryiuatrax yoasapsiH xapsuaa (LCR),
TOTTBOPTON  COHXYYXUATWIAH  xapbuaa  (NSFR),  xypumtnaracaH MeHreH
ypcransit Heeu xyrauaa (Time to Wall), 3330 xaaranamxuit xapsuaa (LDR)
33P3r Y3YYNIATYYASL XA3raapnanT TOrTOOX, TOFTMON XAHANT TaBunad. MeH
MoHronbaHKHbI XOPBEX YAABAPbIH XYP3IL33r 4OTOOAA00 YHIMIX APraunan
(ILAAP) >ypMbIH TOCAUIMH XYPI2HA X3BUIMH BONOH xyHAPanA Hexuend baHk
XAPUNLArYMAH  QHXHBI LWAAPANAradp MIP33HWIA AAryy XYl33C3H Yypras
LAr Tyxaid Hb Buenyynax, XepBeX XOPeHTWAH XAHraNTTalW Heeuuir aMart
xagranax, baHKHbI TACPANTryi YN CxWNAraar XaHrax 30punroop GormHo
6ONMOH AyHA XyraLuadHbl XOpBeX YaABAPbIH 3PCA3N, TONBEP TYPraH rymMU3Trax
4oaBapbir BaHKHbI YN axunnaraa, GusHec opuuH, CTPATEr Teneeneres,
SPCOMIAH anneTUTTan yanayynaH basensiH ctanaapteii barawa ll-biH aaryy
LIOTLOOP Hb YH3/X QXMINANAal.

XAPUILIATY TAN, YIC OPHbI SPCASNMMH
YOWNPONATA

Xapunuary TanbiH 3PCANMIAH YaMPANArbH XyP33HA BaHK AoTooAbIH 6ONoH
rafacabiH XapUILAry TanyyabiH ONIOH YICkIH YHINM33HWA BairyynnaryyasiH
393/KMX  33P3MMAT  TOFTMOM  XAHAXAAC FQAHA  XArac xun  BypuitH
AOBTAMXTAWrAap [4OTOOA CPraunanaap XApUaLary TanyyablH 3pCasnuir
YH2MX, BAHKAHA YYC Bonsowryit anaaraana xA3radpaant TOrfooH MepaeH
aXMNNAa.
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YUN AXKUNNATAAHBI DPCOSNNVH YOUPLAIATA

BaHk Hb “XaMraananTbiH rypBaH Wyram’-biH 3Areapadp YN aXunIaraaHbl SPCANNnH
YAMPANArbIr Xap3rkyynasr. baHkHel BusHecnidH yitn axuinaraa, GyTasrmsxyyH yiunumnras,
WMH33P  HIBTPYY/K Oyt ByTaardaxyyH, yinuunras OonoH Tecen xetenbepuitH yiin
QXMNIAraaHa yunpy BON30LWryid 3PCAMNIAT TOAOPXOWNOX, YHINIX, XAHANTLIF YP [yHTN
X3P3NKYYNI3X3 ONIOH YNCa XYN93H 36BLIeePEeraceH apra apraunan, 6omanoro, XypMbiH
[Aryy 3PCOSMIAT XYN93H 36BLISSPEX TyBLUMHA YAMPAAXAA AHXAAPY QXUANaAAr.

"Spcpan 6a xaHANTbIH eepuitH yHanr3 (Risk Control Self Assessment)”-Huit apraunanaap
XQrac XWna H3r yaaa GxunTaH Byp Spcasnas TOAoPXOMX, apcasnuitr Byypyynax apra
X3IMX33 OBY CKMINCAQT.

BaHk Hb 2024 OHA YN CXKMNNIAraaHb! 3PCAMMH TON SPCAYYASS AHXAAPAAA XAHOYYIX,
30XULYYNIONTbIH BOANOrO, XXYPMbIF WMHI3P BATIYYNaH, X3P3INKUATUNAN XAHIOXK  CXKMIIOXK
6aiHa. YyHa:

SaNMNGHMAH  3PCASM33C  YPBOYWNGH — CIPMUMINDX,  WIAPYYIDX,  M3LI3M3X,
3AMMNAHTUIMH Ye[ aBY XIP3MKYYSX Aprd X3MXKI3r TOAOPXOM BOArox, XsHanTbIr
camkpyynax 30punroop “3anunaHruitH scpar boanoro” bonoscpyynan, Gatnyymk
VAN QXUANAraaHAAa MOPASH CKUINAXK BAnHA.

BaHKHbI YN QXMNAraaHbl TACPANTTYIA, XIBUIH CXKMNIANAAr XOHIAX 30PUroop
1SO22301 onoH yncbiH CTAHOAPTOA  HWALYYNSH  “BusHecuitn  TacpanTryit
axunnaraaHsl 6o410ro”-bir 6oNoBCPYyNaH, BATAYYNX, X3PINKYYNSH CXKUANAK
6aitHa.

Yiin axkMnnaraaHbl 3PCA3M33C Xy33X OON30LWrYi AnAarAibiH MMATAAT X BYP LWMHIUNSH
Tortoox, TY3-eep batnyynaH, spcasnuiti anneTuTuiar cap Byp XAHAH axunnax 6aiHa.

LIAXUM SPCOSMMNH YOAUPOANATA

BaHKHbI BYT3rmsXyyH, YANUMAras OMKUTAN XanbapT xypaautahradp Lummkmk bairaarai
x0nb0ooToNroop HAHK BONOH XAPUALArYAA ANMBAC 3PCA3N 6PTEXE6C CIPMUANIX 30PUNTO0P
LIAXMM 3PCOSMNIAT Y JYHTINr33P YAMPAAX ONOH YNChIH APra APrauian, CaiH TypLnaryyasir
BAHKHBIXAA YN AXUANAraAHA HIBTPYY/ISH YA KMANAraar CamKpyynaH axmuinanaa.

Tenbepuint kaptsiH atoynryit 6anansiH PCl DSS (Payment Card Industry Data Securi-
ty Standard) onoH ynceiH cTaHAapTsIr 8 AaXb XWnass BypsH XaHrax, yr cTaHaapTeiH 4.0
LUIMH3YIBMACH XyBUNOApPLIH BATNAMXAA ABAB. Y CTAHAAPTHIH WWHIUN3TACIH XyBUIDAPSIF
XQHFACHAAP 36BXeH TenbepwuiiH KApTAap XA3raapnaxryirasp 6omioro xypam, cucteM,
MPOrPAMM  XAHFAMX, CY/K33, KAPT X3BN3AT, XYPraAT, MEPUAHTHIH YIANuMAras  33par
BaiiryynnarbiH Oyxuit N1 TYBLUMHA M3A33MMWIAH Qtoynryit Baiaan, AOTOOA XAHANTHIN ONOH
YNChIH XMULLUIT HUALYYNCHAT AaXH BaTanraaxyyncaH yin sasaan bonnoo.

» Security 3
Standards Counci

Con
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KOMIMIAMHCBIH SPCOANMNH YOUPONATA

baHk Hb MeHre yraax, Teppopnambir caHxyyxyynax (MYTC) GonoH Yit onHoop xeHeex,
33BCOr  ganrapyynaxuir - camxyyxyynax  (YOX3AC) spcasnssc  copruinsx  XaHanTbiH
Tortonuoor MoHron YAckiH Xyynb TOFTOOMX, AOTOOAbIH 60nMoH OnoH ynckiH 3eBnemx,
CTAHACPTOA HUALYYASH, X3P3NKYYIIX axunnax baitHa. HereeTssryyp Xyaanaaa, XerauinH
6aHK Hb MoHron YnceiH Henee Byxuit GaHkHb! XyBba MoHron Ync 6onoH 6aHkHbI canbapbiH
KOMMNAMHCBIH XOrKWL, XyBb H3MP33 OPYy/X, OPOALOrY TANyyATA WASBXTSW XAMTPAOH
QXXWINCAAT.

KomnnaitHesit  Goanoro, MYTC/YOX3OC-tait 1aMuzx [lotood XAHANTHIH - xeTenbepwiir
OnoH yncbiH KOMNNAMHCBIH yanpanarsiH cuctemuitH 1SO 37301:2021 cTaHAApTaA HARLYYNSH
6onoscpyynx, TeneeneH yaupaax 3esneneep xananuyynaH batnyynx, 6aHkHsl byx canbap,
HIPKYYA YN axunnaraangaa mepaner bonrow axwnnopar bereeq MYTC/YOX3OC-1ai
TIMUSX CXKMNNIArAGHA AMAP HIMSH Xyyslb TOFTOOMXKUIAH 30PUMNTYI QKUK BAlHA.

Monron Ync QATD-biH “caapan” xarcaantag 2019 oHA AAXMH OPCOHTON XONBOOTONrOOP
Tacangaan balicaH ragacabiH BaHK caHxyyruiiH Baitryynnaryyartain, Tap AyHaaa AHY-
biH OAHK CaHXyyruinH BairyynnaryyaTain xamTbiH CXUANIArAdr OOXMH C3PIadX XU
Tyyuaanx, Tyc yncoiH MYTC/YOX3AC T3l TaMUX Xyynb TOrTOOMXK BONOH BAHK CAHXYYrUitH
6airyynnareiH KOMMAGMHCBIH LUGATYYP Y3Yynantuidr BypsH XxaHrax, MoHron Yncaac aHx
yaaa The Bank of New York Mellon (BNY Mellon) 6aHkaHa am.gonnapsii gaHcaa 2023
OHbl CYyna3p H33C3H. WitHxyy AHY-n AOXWH H33C3H TenbepwiiH cucCTeMWiiH rapuaap
OAMXYYNQH YNCIHXQA QX OXYWH H3MK, MPr3AMAH MYMArasr TYPraH Wyypxan, HanasapTtai
ryMLUSTraCa3p 6aiHa. DH3 Hb MAHAN BAHKHbEI KOMMNAMHCHIH YN QXWNAFAA Hb ONIOH YChIH
CTAHAAPT, WAATYYpPLIr XAHrax Byir BATAaH xapyyncaH y3yynant GoncoH Teauiryin AHY-
bIH BAHK caHxyyruitH baiiryynnaryyasiH MoHron YnceiH Bycan BaHKHYyAda WTraX WUTraauiir
H3M3IAYYIC3H Yitn ABAAN BONCOH.

XXB Hb onoH yncbiH Baliryynnaryyaaac ax yycBap TATAX, raaHbiH 30X 33314 BoHA raprax
39P3 QKWL KOMMIAMHChIH LIANTYYP Y3YYA3NTANAN BYPSH XAHraX, TSAMSP yNCyyabiH Xyysb
TOFTOOMX, XAMTPAH QXXWUNNArd BairyynnareiH Aypam kypamg BaHkHbel yin axuanaraar
BYP3H HUIALYYN3H axknnak BaiHa.

BNY MELLON

TyyHUnaH, OQHK COHXYYrMiAH CcanbapT A3BLUMATST TEXHOMOMUH Heneereep Xyparain
OvxMTanunaraax Byt aH3 yen xonbornox Xyynb TOrTOOMKYYAA OPCOH HIM3NT, ©6PUNeNnTTai
X0nBOOTONroop BAHKHAAC HIBTPYYMXK Oyil LWIMHD TEXHONOrMA CYypWUncaH OyTaarmsxyyH,
YANUMNrI3HNA KOMMNQHCBIH 3PCAMIT TOOOPXOMIX, 3PCASNIIC CIPIUMNIX 3OBNOMX, XyYrb
TOrTOOMXKWIAH HUALYIMIAT XQHIFaH Qxknnnaa.

BarkHbl xamxaaHa MYTC/YOX3AC apcasnasc ypbauunaH COPruinsx, Spcasnmir yaupaax
BONOH XAHANTBIH TOFTONLOOr YNAM B3XKYYN3H, CAKPYynax, 30PUNTbIH XYP33HA MP3aX
XUNYYASA XWIAMAN OFOYH YXQQH, MALWMH Cyprantaf CyypuncaH AWKWATAN WWAAaNL Wuiyy
QAHXAAPAN XAHAYYX AXUINaxAap Tenesneen baiHa.
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veneennizs
TEXHOTOMM

2024 oHa 6aHK Hb [Oduxutan OaHKHbI TecnyyA
6onoHn Cyypb BYpPTranuiH  CUCTEMUIMH  LUMH3YASN,
TSAr93PUMH A34 ByTUMIr 30XMOH Balryynax, YHACSH
CEepBepYYANNT LMHIUAZX CXKNYYAaA OHLIFOW aHXAapy
axunnaa.

MeH xapunuarymiti caTran xaHamx 6onoH MpraguitH
CErMEHTUINM A3MXUX CXIbIH XYP33HA XAPUALAMUNIAH
LArMAr X3MH3C3H, ©fep TyTMbIH Yl axuanaraar
XANOAPLUYYNIOH — GBTOMODKYYNICOH X34 X3[3H
TEXHONOrMIH WNAOAVNIAT HIBTPYY/IS3.

TYYHUNSH TOWNAHT OHA OAHKHBI LIOXMM CUCTEM3I3P
XUATAC3H MYMNr33HUA TOO X3MX33 ©MHOX OHTOM

XapbLyynaxag 400 1P ©CCeH Y3yynanTTain Bytoy
CYY/MIAH SKUNYYAUAT GBY Y3B3M XWn Byp AyHAXaap
30-40 xysb ecox 6aitHa. MitMa LOXMM CUCTEMMITH
aroynryin  Bananbir  XaHrax  CTAHAAPTHIF  TOrTMON
Batanraaxyynax, NPOTOKONYYAbIN H3BTPYY/3X,
XyBUNDAPBIr AXMYNAXAA TOFTMOM GHXAAPY QKM
6aiiHa.

CUCTEMUH CAMXPYYNANT

TMANBM OHNAMH YWNYUATSDHUIN CEPBEPUMH KOOUMN/IbIH
TEXHOMOTUWH LUMHYNSNT

Tuunby OHnaiH yiANUMArasHWil NPOrPAMMBIH erermIMiAr Xaaranday, YaMpaax CEePBEPUIH KOAUMbIH TEXHONOMMr
LUMHIUNBX XOMKYYNINTURH CxIIbIH XYP33HL 3XHUI wataHa [OS yAnAMMAH CUCTEMUIAH XyBUNBAPbIH XOMKYYNaNTUIAT
XWX, HIBTPYYNICHI3P LIAALLMA CAMKPYyNanTeir Unyy XypaaH berees yp AyHTaM xuitx HONOMXTOR BONCoH.

MeH Tu[lnbn OHnaitH yitnuunrasr 10S yiananuith cuctemasp Bytoy iPhone rap ytcaap awmrnaaar xapuauarygsiH
XyBbfl TACANAQN YYC3X, YAAaH Baiix acyyanyyn WmMiinespnaracaH 6a xapunuarumniii epreq awmmanar Yanmiyya
BOnox HIBTP3X, MYINrad XWX, Xyynra xapax rax MaT yiungamiti xypa 50-90 xyBuap xypAaccaH. YT XerkyynsntuiiH
axun He Android yinanuitH cuctem aasp xuirgax baitraa berees MPaX OHA HIBTPYYNIX33P TONEBNEH CXMIIAXK
6aitHa.

SWIFT TAZAAL LLUMIDKYYNTAMH
YUIYUATISHUM CAMXKPY YNANT

Tuunbn Ownnaiti cuctem gssp SWIFT ragaan WWmKyynrvidH ryinrssHuin el BONOH TeNesuir Lanrax, acyyaan
rapCaH TOXMONMAOMA XAPWILAMIMA M3ASMAN XYPraX, TYYHWISH XAPUILArUMA OMArOMXKTON BAanbIr caimkpyynax
LIN3QIHbI XONKYYISNTYYANAT XuitB. MeH CBUMT KoabIr MPOrPAMMAAC ABAX XOMKYYSNT XMArACSH Ba MHFICHI3P koA

Bypyy LIMBIX QCYY/IbIF APUATCX, TYANTS3 WMBX OPYYNaX YA SBL, XYPAACCAH.

YUAYUATDIHN JAPAANIAN 3OXMLY YNIAX
CUCTEMUINH CAMXPYYNANT

BaHKHbI  YANUMArS3HUIA  JOPAGNAN 30XMLYYNAX CUCTEMWUIAH LUMHUNSMS3P XAPUALArYAGL WAyy OMNroMXKTON
AM3ANHTAR BOMX, MEH Xynasx Xyrauaar Taamarnck xapyynaar BoncHoop xapunuard OHAAUHAAP YANUyynax
canbapbiH AYAANBIF LLAATAX, ©6pT O1p, ayaanan baratai canbapT, uar 3axuanax 6onomxron 6oncoH.

BaHKHbI XyBbA YANUMArI3HWUA TOPON, XAHANTIH YsiH XATAH TOXMPrOOHbI BONOMXKYYL HIM3MACIHIIP YINUMUNrIIHNA
YAHAPBIF CAMKPYYNaX, LAACHLI XAArAANTYN yinuunrss yayynax bonnoo.
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392/IMNH BYTIITADXYYHUM

CAMXKPYYNANT

OPOH CYYLHbl 333/IMMH BONOMXMT
AYHT YPbOYMNAH TOOLIOONOX
MPOrPAMM

MpraoniiH CermMeHTUiiH XAPUNLIArYMiAH 393NWMIAH  XYCINTUIAT
www.cardcentre.mn Beb CANTAAP XYN33H QBY, OPOH CYYLIHbI
333/IMH BONOMXUT X3MXK33 YPbAUMIAH TOOLOOA0T BONCoH.

HIXaMXN2a14 CYYPUNCAH
X3PIMNIIHUM LAXMM 3331

XaparnasHuii  339nmiiH ByTaarasxyyHa  Haxamxnang
CYYPUNCaH LOXUM 333/MIAH BYTI3rASXYYHWIA XOrKYYNaNTUiAr
H3BTPYYNC3H.  Yr  yinumnrss  Hbe  Tuubu  Onnaithaap
H3X3MIUTIXWIAH Ayraapaap WIrs3CaH XAPWALIANYMAH 333MAH
XYCINTUIT BYP3H ABTOMATAAP WUIMABSPNSAST.

BYMN BU3HEC 2PXN1aryasn
30OPUYICAH 322/IMNH BYTS3MADXYYH
NS HIBTPYYISX TECON
XoparnasHuit  393nmidH ByTaargsxyyHa  Haxamxnang
CYYPWNCOH LIAXMM 333MWIAH BYT33raaxyyHUin XerKyynantuir
HIBTPYYNC3H.  Yr  yinumnras  Hb  Tuunbn  OwnnaitHaap
HIX3IMXJIIXMIH [lyraapaap UIrsaCcaH XAPUILIArIMAH 333MMiH
XYCINTWIAr BYP3H QBTOMATAAP WNAABIPASAST.

YANYUNTIIHUN
CAMKPYYNANT

LUAXM MAATTbIH
XOKYYNIT

Canbapt xapuauaryaac Xycant XynssH aBaX Yin BLbiC
OHOBUTOW, WYY AVXKXUTQNAQT, LAACTY  BOAroX, XyHni XyuuH
3yNCe3C  WwanTraancad  angaar  baracrax  30punroToit
rapaap berneger 16 TepnuiiH MOATT, YANUMArISr LAXUM
6onros.

XAPUNLATY XYBUMH M3A22/1122
SANHAAC LMH3YNDX XErXKYYNIT

Xapunuary  canbapT  OuMXIyirasp  XyBWAH  M3[93M1/193
www.cardcentre.mn Beb caitaap xawaaH, JAH TaHuH
HIBTPANTUIH cucTem BonoH Amazon Recognition Face
Liveness TaHMH BATANraQKyynanTbir QLIMIIGH  LUMHIYNSX
60noMXTON BONCOH. YT TAHUH BATANrACXKYYNANT Hb XWUIAM3N
OIOYH YXQQH ALUMMAH rap yTac 6onoH Bycas Toxeepemx)mitH
YPA KAMEPbIH TYCIAMXKTAArAAp KUHXIHD XYH MEH SCOXWIAT
TonopxoinoH [JAH cuctem gsx BypTrantsit TynraH TyxaiiH
XAPWILArd  MeH  3COXWAT  TaHWH  BaTanraaxyyncHaap
XAPWNLIArYUH M3AS3MINIAH BYPTr3CaH @0pUNenTUiir BaHKH.I
YHACOH BYPTranuiiH CUCTEMT LLIMHIUISX IOM.

TONEOPUNH KAPTbIH CUCTEMUMH
CAMKPYYNANT

CDMPm TRANZAXIS PAYMENT GATEWAY

TranzAxis  TOPMUIMH  CUCTEMYYAWAH  OHAAWH  XyAQN4daH
asanT, Tenbep ToouoOHb! Wuitgan bonox Payment Gate-
Way cuctemMuitir HIBTPYYNCIH. VIHFSCHI3pP CyyauitH yeuiH
TEXHONOTMYAAAP AAMXKYYNOH LAXUM Tenbep TOOLOOHS
apryyaaa Hamarayynax bonnoo.

VISA

Ownaitt Tonbep ~ TOOLOOHbI  atoynryid  BaimibiH
baranraakyynanteiH - npotokon 6onox VISA 3D Secure
npotokonbiH 3DS 2.2 xyBunbapeir HIBTPYYNsB. Yp OyHA Hb
rap yrac GofoH TexeepemxXyyauiH BaTanracxyynanTsiH
yin L unyy xanbap, yaH xataH bomk caimxupnaa.

w CTAHOAPT BATAITAAXYYNANT
DSS

TenbepuitH KAPTLIH M3AR3MNMIAH aroynryit BbaraneiH PCl DSS
OnoH yncbiH CTaHAAPTBIH 4.0 WWH3UN3MACIH XyBUNOAPbLIF
XQHFACHAOP, Yr CTAHAAPTHIr 8 AaXb Xunass  OypaH
Batanraakyynnaa.

q KAPTbIH CUCTEMUMH
COMPESS CAMXPYYNANT

OnoH ynceiH KApTeIH MYIArasHNiA CTAHAAPTBIH AAryY TOrTMON
XWUAAST KAPTHIH CUCTEMYYANiAH LunHaunanTuirr Komnac Mitoc
KOMMQHUTAI XAMTPAH XWUIAX MYALSTI2B.

VISA 3DS 2.2 XYBUIBAP AXUYNANT




LUMH3 YUNYUNTD3 H3BTPYYIS/T

& Pay

APPLE PAY
H3BTPYY/12B

Apple KOMNAHUIAH LAXUM TYPYYBUMIH yiAnuunrss Bonox

Apple Pay yinuunrssr HaeTpyynnss. Xapwnuary 1O0S
YANQMAH  CUCTEMT3 rap yTac, yxaanar uar [33pa3
BupTyan Mactep kapraa  xonbox  WMOIBXXKYYNCHISP
XyPYYHbl X33, AP TAHUX TEXHONOrMOP A3MXMIAH eHLer
BynaHa XopMblH AOTOP Tenbep TooLooroo xmmnasr 6onnoo.

BMPTYAT MACTEP
KAPT HSBTPYY/12B

OnoH yncbiH TenbepuiiH KAPTLIH CYIKISHWI TOPNSS HIMX,
BupTyan Mactep kapt bytoy Mactep kapTbiH buet byc
TenbepUitH KapTbIr HIBTPYYNCIH. NIAHXYY LIOXUM XyAanaaH
asant 6onoH Apple Pay yinumnrasHg xonboH awmrnax
9X3M1N393.

/A CUCTEMUINH XONBONT,
XOMXKYYNNTUAT XUMX HIBTPYY/1SB

Tes BaHKHbI TenbepWitH CUCTEMUIH LUMHUNSN TOCIUIH
XYP33HL, TOKEH YANUUATIIHUIA CUCTEMTSM LYy XONnbonTsIr
xuins3s. Uithxyy TenbepuitH kapt Byptrax, TenbepwiiH
KapTeiH -~ M3g3namir  16-19  opoH  Byxwit - ayraapaap
TOKEHXYY/X, LAXUM Xxan63p3sp awmrnax Bytoy uLaxum
X3T3BUIIPID AAMXKYYNaH Tenbep TOOUOO ryWUSTraAST
601100. MeH BAHK EepPUIH LIAXUM X3TIBUNIAH YANUMATS3T
xerkyymk bairaa 6a 2025 OHbl 3X33p HIBTPYYNIXI3P
axunnax baitHa.
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TRADE AND DEVELOPMENT BANK OF MONGOLIA JSC

Statement by chairman and executives

We, Randolph Koppa, being the Chairman of the Board of Directors of Trade and Development Bank of Mongolia JSC (the
"Bank"), Otkhon Onon, being the Chief Executive Officer, and Enkhtuya Dulamjav, being the Chief Financial Officer,
primarily responsible for the financial statements of the Bank, do hereby state that, in our opinion, the accompanying financial
statements set out on pages 8 to 89 present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Bank as at 31 December
2024, and its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance International Financial Reporting

Standards (“IFRSs”) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB™).

D

Randolph Koppa / . 7~ ic Orkhon Onon
Chairman‘of thé'.Bc!‘:fﬁfd of Directors Chief Executive Officer
Ry S 8 Gl

I — e i (1
| e e

vt

[ S WY p——

Ulaanbaatar, Mongolia
Date: 26 March 2025

Enkhtuya Dulamjav
Chief Financial Officer
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Ernst & Young Mongolia Audit LLC ~ Tel: +976 11 314032 / +976 11 312005
15/F, Altan Joloo Tower ey.com

Seoul Street 13/A

Ulaanbaatar 14252

Mongolia

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the shareholders of Trade and Development Bank of Mongolia JSC

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Trade and Development Bank of Mongolia JSC (the “Bank”), which comprise the
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2024, and the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements,
including material accounting policy information.

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Bank as at 31
December 2024, and its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (“ISAs”). Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Bank in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “IESBA Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Key audit matter

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in the audit of the financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For the matter below, our
description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
section of our report, including in relation to the matter. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures
designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements. The results of our audit
procedures, including the procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the
accompanying financial statements.

Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Allowance for loan losses

67

N

The impairment of loans and advances to customers at
amortised cost is estimated by the Bank’s management
through the application of judgement and use of highly
subjective assumptions.

Due to the significance of loans and advances to customers
at amortised cost, representing around 38% of the Bank's
total assets as at 31 December 2024, and the related
estimation uncertainty we considered impairment of loans
and advances to customers as a key audit matter.

The impairment method is based on a forward-looking
Expected Credit Loss (“ECL”) approach. Elements of the
ECL model requires the use of significant estimates and
assumptions, including:

For assessment of the allowance for impairment losses of
loans and advances to customers as of 31 December 2024,
our audit procedures included the assessment of the design
and operating effectiveness of controls over the approval,
recording and monitoring of ECL, and evaluating the
methodologies, inputs and assumptions used by the Bank in
its ECL model in calculation of the impairment of loans and
advances to customers.

In evaluating the methodologies, we obtained an
understanding of the Bank's ECL model and management’s
basis for the methodologies and assumptions applied and
assessed the reasonableness of the model and compared to
industry practices. We also considered the reasonableness of
the assumptions applied, including the basis for staging
classification, and the appropriateness of determination of
PD, LGD and EAD, and the forward-looking
macroeconomic variables incorporated in the model.

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONT"D)

To the shareholders of Trade and Development Bank of Mongolia JSC

Key Audit Matters (Cont'd.)

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Allowance for loan losses (cont'd)

Staging of financial assets;

Development of ECL models and the choice of inputs,
including probability of default (“PD”) and loss given
default (“LGD");

e Determination of the Exposure at Default (“EAD”),
including the credit conversion factor for the undrawn
loan commitments,

e  Selection of forward-looking macroeconomic scenarios
and their probability weightings, to derive the economic
inputs into the ECL model, and

e Calculation of allowance for impairment losses of
individually assessed loans which are based on various
assumptions and factors in determining the expected
future cash flows.

Relevant disclosures of the accounting policy and critical
accounting estimates and judgements are included in Notes
2.5 and 3 to the financial statements.

Other relevant disclosures of loans and advances to the
customers and related credit risk management are included
in Notes 2, 8, 17 and 33.2 to the financial statements,
respectively.

In testing the appropriateness of the stage classifications, we

have tested loan overdue information, credit ratings assigned

to the counterparties where applicable, at initial recognition
and as at the reporting date.

We have also tested the completeness of the ageing report by

agreeing the amounts in the ageing report to the financial

records and tested the adequacy of the ageing information
based on a random sampling selection basis by verifying the
information against other supporting documents.

We compared the key inputs to the ECL model to the Bank’s

internal available historical data, externally available

industry, financial and economic data. Our testing included
the followings:

« Tested the accuracy of internal and external data applied
for the calculation of historical PD and LGD on a random
selection basis;

o Checked the macroeconomic parameters to external data
sources where available;

 Checked the appropriateness of the EAD applied,
including the assumptions of the credit conversion factors;
and

« For a sample of individually assessed loans subject to
individual impairment assessment, we reviewed the
Bank’s assumptions of the expected future cash flows,
including assumptions in respect of the realizable value of
collateral.

We also considered the consistency of judgement applied in
the key inputs to the ECL model.
We assessed the adequacy of the related disclosures in the
notes to the financial statements.

Other Information included in the Annual Report

The Directors and executives are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the other sections of
the Annual Report but not including the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon (“the Other Sections”), which are

expected to be made available after the date of this auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information identified above
when it becomes available and, in doing so, to consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
financial statements, or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the Other Sections of the Annual Report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are
required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance.

68 A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONT’D.)
To the shareholders of Trade and Development Bank of Mongolia JSC

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with IFRSs, and
for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Bank's ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management
either intends to liquidate the Bank or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Bank’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.

‘Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will
.always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on

the basis of these financial statements.
As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal

control.
Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in

the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Bank’s internal control.
Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Bank’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Bank to cease o continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether
the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

n
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONT’D.)
To the shareholders of Trade and Development Bank of Mongolia JSC

Other Matter

This report is made solely to the shareholders of the Bank, as a body, in accordance with the audit requested by the shareholders
in accordance with Article 94 of the Company Law of Mongolia and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

)

ERNST:& YOUNG MONGOLIA AUDIT LLC

Certified Bublic Accountiits /$

Signed by\' X ”\_/1 Approved by
MANDAKHBAYAR DORJBAT ADRIAN CHU \A
Partner Partner
\
Ulaanbaatar, Mongolia
Date: 26 March 2025
70 A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited 6
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GLOSSARY OF ABBREVIATION

AC

ABS

BoM

ECL

EIR

FVTOCI

FVTPL

GoM

GDP

IFRS

IFRS 7

IFRS 9

IFRS 13

IASB

IFRIC

LGD

SOFR

OClI

PD

RMBS

SPPI

VaR

MIK

MIK HFC

SME

VAT

Amortised cost

Asset Backed Securities

Bank of Mongolia

Expected credit loss

Effective interest rate

Fair value through other comprehensive income
Fair value through profit or loss

Government of Mongolia

Gross domestic product

International Financial Reporting Standards
IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

International Accounting Standards Board
International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee
Loss given default

Secured Overnight Financing Rate

Other comprehensive income

Probability of default

Residential Mortgage-Backed Securities

Solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding
Value at Risk

MIK Holding JSC

Mongolian Mortgage Corporation HFC LLC
Small-to—medium enterprise

Value—-Added Tax
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TRADE AND DEVELOPMENT BANK OF MONGOLIA JSC
Statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income

For the year ended 31 December 2024

Notes
Interest income calculated using the effective interest method 4
Other interest and similar income 4
Interest and similar expense 5
Net interest income
Fee and commission income 6

Fee and commission expense 6
Net fee and commission income

Trading and other operating income 7
Total operating income

Credit loss expense 8
Net operating income

Operating expenses 9
Share of profit/(loss) of an associate 15
Profit before tax

Income tax expense 10.1
Profit for the year

Earnings per share (MNT)
Basic and diluted earnings per share 11

Other comprehensive income/(loss) (net of tax):
Other comprehensive income to be reclassified to profit or loss in
subsequent periods (net of tax):
Net change in fair value of debt instruments at fair value through other 30
comprehensive income
Other comprehensive income not to be reclassified to profit or loss in 30
subsequent periods (net of tax):
Revaluation gain on equity instruments at fair value through other 30
comprehensive income
Gain on disposal of equity instrument at fair value through other 14
comprehensive income
Other comprehensive income/(loss) (net of tax):

Total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

8
72

2024 2023
MNT’000 MNT’000
1,032,641,544 721,933,116
53,355,130 42,779,283
(602,479,107) (469,048,440)
483,517,567 295,663,959
116,984,755 94,518,640
(40,361,041) (33,159,051)
76,623,714 61,359,589
87,938,664 54,690,488
648,079,945 411,714,036
(22,633,058) (35.419,047)
625,446,887 376,294,989
(232,209,045) (183,760,346)
(5,031,979) 4,271,538
388,205,863 196,806,181
(89,570,244) (45,587,714)
298,635,619 151,218,467
5,902 3,043
3,233,739 17,862,582
6,217,390 14,547,040
- 25,620,309
9,451,129 58,029,931
308,086,748 209,248,398
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TRADE AND DEVELOPMENT BANK OF MONGOLIA JSC
Statement of financial position

At 31 December 2024

ASSETS

Cash and balances with Bank of Mongolia

Due from other banks and financial institutions

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income
Equity instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income
Equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss

Debt instruments at amortised cost

Investment in associate

Derivative financial instruments

Loans and advances to customers

Other assets

Investment property

Assets held for sale

Property and equipment

Right-of-use assets

Intangible assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES

Due to banks and other financial institutions
Repurchase agreements

Due to customers

Derivative financial instruments
Borrowed funds

Debt securities issued

Other liabilities

Lease liabilities

Income tax liabilities

Deferred tax liabilities

TOTAL LIABILITIES

EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
BANK

Share capital

Share premium
Other reserves
Retained earnings
TOTAL EQUITY

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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Notes

12
13
14
14
14
14
14
15
16
17
18

20
21
22
23

24
25
26
16
27
28
29
22

10.2

30
30
30

2024
MNT’000

3,094,565,161
1,396,738,984

2023
MNT’000

2,308,730,146
1,651,798,375

362,849,232 362,410,004
2,490,497,226 1,510,534,627
50,632,562 41,972,381

- 1,700,000

- 1,311,976

164,244 5,196,223
88,784,131 172,188,577
6,179,569,553 4,933,457,222
555,310,649 509,238,462
80,749,541 53,256,860
95,381,015 8,259,130
548,521,958 567,974,583
8,985,640 13,239,874
47,618,788 25,308,105
15,000,368,684 12,166,576,545
378,861,006 318,412,011
25,675,412 51,285,052
10,337,810,771 9,086,817,412
70,630,118 159,109,749
1,664,137,365 872,667,777
670,569,956 -
137,253,343 172,734,896
9,544,683 13,870,478
77,219,441 76,907,413
12,681,002 6,392,862
13,384,383,097 10,758,197,650
340,852,905 340,852,905
64,069,779 64,069,779
317,629,530 313,673,176
893,433,373 689,783,035
1,615,985,587 1,408,378,895
15,000,368,684 12,166,576,545
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TRADE AND DEVELOPMENT BANK OF MONGOLIA JSC

Statement of changes in equity

For the year ended 31 December 2024

Share capital Share Other Retained Total equity
premium reserves earnings
MNT’000 MNT’000 MNT’000 MNT’000 MNT’000
(Note 30) (Note 30) (Note 30)
At 1 January 2023 323,810,329 664 258,908,980 595,291,291 1,178,011,264
Profit for the year - - - 151,218,467 151,218,467
Other comprehensive income — — 32,409,622 25,620,309 58,029,931
Total comprehensive income - - 32,409,622 176,838,776 209,248,398
Realised revaluation reserve - - (2,172,039) 2,172,039 -
Dividend (Note 30) - - - (59,992,458) (59,992,458)
Movement on regulatory reserve* - - 24,526,613 (24,526,613) -
Share issue 17,042,650 66,448,901 - - 83,491,551
Transaction costs related to
issuance of new shares - (2,379,860) - - (2,379,860)
Transfer (74) 74 — - —
At 31 December 2023 and 1
January 2024 340,852,905 64,069,779 313,673,176 689,783,035 1,408,378,895
Profit for the year - - - 298,635,619 298,635,619
Other comprehensive income - - 9,451,129 - 9,451,129
Total comprehensive income - — 9,451,129 298,635,619 308,086,748
Realised revaluation reserve - - (4,176,217) 4,176,217 -
Revaluation of asset transfered to
investment properties (Note 29) - — 4,061,458 - 4,061,458
Dividend (Note 30) - - - (104,541,514) (104,541,514)
Movement on regulatory reserve* — — (5,380,016) 5,380,016 -
At 31 December 2024 340,852,905 64,069,779 317,629,530 893,433,373 1,615,985,587

*Reserves include the regulatory reserve that is set up in compliance with Bank of Mongolia (“BoM”) requirements and is
distributable to Shareholders of the Bank subject to BoM’s approval.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

10
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TRADE AND DEVELOPMENT BANK OF MONGOLIA JSC

Statement of cash flows

For the year ended 31 December 2024

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax

Adjustments for:

Changes in fair value of financial derivatives
Loss/(gain) on disposal of property and equipment
(Gain)/Loss on disposal of assets-held-for sale, net
Valuation gain on investment property

(Gain)/Loss on disposal of foreclosed properties, net
Gain on disposal of investment properties
(Gain)/Loss on disposal of debt instrument measured at FVOCI
Fair value (gain)/loss on other loans receivables
Amortisation of deferred grant

Share of profit in associate

Credit loss expense

Depreciation of property and equipment
Amortisation of intangible assets

Depreciation of rights-of-use assets

Property and equipment written off

Intangible assets written off

Interest expense of borrowed funds

Interest expense of debt securities issued

Accretion of interest on lease liabilities

Unrealised foreign exchange difference

Operating profit before working capital changes
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

Statutory deposits with BoM

Due from other banks and financial institutions
Loans and advances to customers

Assets-held-for sale

Other assets

Due to banks

Repurchase agreements

Due to customers

Other liabilities

Cash generated from operations

Interest portion of the lease liabilities paid

Interest paid on borrowed funds

Interest paid on debt securities issued

Income tax paid

Net cash flows generated from operating activities

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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2024 2023
MNT’000 MNT’000
388,205,863 196,806,181
(13,881,202) 2,719,591
5,306,473 (21,290)
(158,782) 8,831
(3,053,461) (2,873,791)
(1,061,392) (2,097,115)
- (385,314)
(620,874) 69,385
(7,630,492) 8,311,181
(748,866) (203,242)
5,031,979 (4,271,538)
22,633,058 35,419,047
17,364,478 14,180,303
1,092,379 920,110
7,386,391 6,782,507
1,403,605 110,214
967 1,809
61,057,810 78,350,667
4,200,696 -
1,802,903 2,050,311
(81,232,686) 34,187,679
407,098,847 370,065,526
(129,587,811) (201,639,684)
(100,728,870) 185,324,854
(1,262,677,013) (808,036,358)
(95,580,872) (6,592,824)
(52,433,613) (78,573,913)
60,448,995 285,291,777
(25,609,640) (265,519,739)
1,336,250,669 2,909,901,740
(100,407,322) (102,875,012)
36,773,370 2,287,346,367
(1,802,903) (2,050,311)

(91,648,527)

(85,257.310)

(48,603,736)

(30,393,733)

(141,935,370)

2,206,298,587
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TRADE AND DEVELOPMENT BANK OF MONGOLIA JSC
Statement of cash flows (cont’d.)

For the year ended 31 December 2024

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of financial investments

Proceeds from disposal of financial investments

Proceeds from financial derivatives

Proceeds from disposal of property and equipment

Proceeds from dividend received

Purchase of property and equipment

Purchase of intangible assets

Net cash flows (used in)/generated from investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from drawdown of borrowed funds
Repayment of borrowed funds

Proceeds from issuance of debt securities

Repurchase of debt securities

Payment of deferred upfront fees

Dividend paid

Proceeds from grant received

Proceeds from issuance of shares

Payment of principal portion of lease liabilities

Net cash flows generated from/(used in) financing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents brought forward
Cash and cash equivalents carried forward

OPERATIONAL CASH FLOWS FROM INTEREST
Interest paid
Interest received

NON-CASH ACTIVITIES

Additions to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
Modification of leases

Foreclosure of collaterals

Additions to property and equipment
Consideration for disposal of investment property

Reconciliation of changes in liabilities arising from financing activities:

Lease liabilities

At 1 January

Non-cash additions

Lease modification

Termination of lease

Interest expense during the year

Interest portion of the lease liabilities paid
Principal portion of lease liabilities paid
At 31 December

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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2024 2023
Notes MNT’000 MNT’000
(838,105,697) (380,367,125)
361,715,278 844,281,732
5,908,554 81,431,276
5,916,741 3,943,285
14 221,276 194,694
21 (28,574,973) (74,749,691)
23 (23,404,029) (1,968,076)
(516,322,850) 472,766,095
3,758,252,939 342,417,862
(2,849,988,893) (952,421,711)
843,472,451 -
28 (168,706,103) -
(13,368,143) (94,179)
30 (104,129,269) (47,198,750)
29 307,720 613,771
30 - 81,111,691
(7,084,674) (6,180,280)
1,458,756,028 (581,751,596)
800,497,808 2,097,313,086
12 4,212,696,578 2,115,383,492
12 5,013,194,386 4,212,696,578
(585,204,954) (419,723,524)
1,069,500,834 738,867,664
22 282,280 2,562,951
22 2,581,034 2,020,078
106,732,257 8,697,682
21 - 63,652,848
- (29,614,685)
2024 2023
MNT'000 MNT'000
13,870,478 15,869,783
282,280 2,562,951
2,581,034 2,020,078
(104,435) (402,054)
1,802,903 2,050,311
(1,802,903) (2,050,311)
(7,084,674) (6,180,280)
9,544,683 13,870,478
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Statement of cash flows (cont’d.)

For the year ended 31 December 2024

Reconciliation of changes in liabilities arising from financing activities (cont’d.):

At 1 January 2023

New disbursement
Repayment

Interest repayment
Deferred upfront fee
Net repayment

Foreign exchange movement
Non-cash items arising from financing activities

Interest expense accrued and deferral amortisation
At 31 December 2023 and 1 January 2024

New disbursement
Repayment

Repurchase of debt securities
Interest repayment

Deferred upfront fee

Net repayment

Foreign exchange movement
Non-cash items arising from financing activities

Interest expense accrued and deferral amortisation
At 31 December 2024

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

13

Borrowed funds
MNT'000

1,418,831,195

342,417,862
(952,421,711)
(48,603,736)
(94,179)

Debt securities
issued
MNT'000

(658,701,764)

34,187,679

34,187,679

78,350,667

872,667,777

3,758,252,939
(2,849,988,893)

(91,648,527)

843,472,451
(168,706,103)

(7,885,487)

(5,482,656)
811,132,863 666,880,861
(80,721,085) (511,601)
(80,721,085) (511,601)

61,057,810 4,200,696

1,664,137,365 670,569,956
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1. Corporate information

Trade and Development Bank of Mongolia JSC (the “Bank’) was incorporated under Mongolian law on 19 October 1990 and
is engaged in the business of providing banking and financial services pursuant to License No. 8 issued by the Bank of Mongolia
(“BoM”) under the first Banking sector supervision act in 1993.

The Bank is a joint stock company listed on the Mongolian Stock Exchange (“MSE”) and incorporated and domiciled in
Mongolia. Its registered office is at Trade and Development Bank of Mongolia building, Peace Avenue 19, Sukhbaatar district,
1st khoroo, Ulaanbaatar 14210, Mongolia.

The shareholders of the Bank with the percentage of ownership are disclosed in Note 30.

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024 were authorised for issue in accordance with the resolution of
the board of directors on 26 March 2024.

2. Material accounting policies
2.1 Basis of preparation and statement of compliance

The financial statements of the Bank have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(“IFRSs”) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”).

The financial statements of the Bank have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for debt and equity instruments at
fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”), financial assets at fair value through profit and loss (“FVTPL”),
derivative financial instruments, buildings and land that are measured at fair value subsequent to its acquisition, investment
property, precious metal that is measured at fair value and properties held for sale which are measured at the lower of its
carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell. The financial statements are presented in Mongolian Togrog, which is denoted
by the symbol MNT, and all values are rounded to the nearest thousands, except when otherwise indicated.

2.2  Presentation of financial statements

The Bank presents its statement of financial position broadly in order of liquidity based on the Bank’s intention and perceived
ability to recover/settle the majority of assets/liabilities of the corresponding financial statement line item. An analysis
regarding recovery or settlement within 12 months after the reporting date (current) and more than 12 months after the reporting
date (non-current) is presented in Note 36.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the statement of financial position only
when there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts without being contingent on a future event
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liability simultaneously. Income and
expense are not offset in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income (“OCI”) unless required or permitted
by any accounting standard or interpretation, and as specifically disclosed in the accounting policies of the Bank.

2.3  Standards issued but not yet effective

The new and amended standards and interpretations that are issued, but not yet effective, up to the date of issuance of the
Bank’s financial statements are disclosed below. The Bank intends to adopt these standards, if applicable, when they become
effective.

Amendments to IAS 21 Lack of Exchangeability’

Amendments to IFRS 9 and IFRS 7 Amendments to the Classification and Measurement of Financial
Instruments’

IFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in Financial Statement’

IFRS 19 Subsidiaries without Public Accountability: Disclosures®

!Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2025
’Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2026
3Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2027

These amendments are not expected to have a material impact on the Bank’s financial statements.

14



79

Kunnin tainan 2024

TRADE AND DEVELOPMENT BANK OF MONGOLIA JSC
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2.4  New and amended standards and interpretations

The Bank has not early adopted any new standards, interpretations or amendments that have been issued but are not yet effective
in these financial statements.

Other amendments and interpretations that were applied for the first time in 2024 are summarised below:

* Amendments to IAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current and Non-
current Liabilities with Covenants

* Amendments to IFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback

* Amendments to IAS 7 and IFRS 7 Disclosures: Supplier Finance Arrangements

These amendments had no material impact on the financial statements of the Bank during the period.
2.5 Summary of material accounting policies
Foreign currency translation

The financial statements are presented in Mongolian Togrog (“MNT”), which is also the Banks functional currency. Monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the functional currency rate of exchange at the
statement of financial position date. All differences arising from settlement or translation of monetary items are taken to the
profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates
as at the dates of the initial transactions. Non—monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined. The gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary
items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of gain or loss on change in fair value of the item.

Recognition of interest income
The effective interest rate method

Interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate (“EIR”’) method for all financial instruments measured at amortised
cost (“AC”) and financial instruments designated at FVTPL. Interest income on interest bearing financial assets measured at
FVOCIT are also recorded by using the EIR method. Interest expense is also calculated using the EIR method for all financial
liabilities held at amortised cost. The EIR is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected
life of the financial instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period, to the gross carrying amount or, amortised cost as
appropriate of the financial asset.

The EIR (and therefore, the amortised cost of the financial asset) is calculated by taking into account transaction costs and any
discount or premium on the acquisition of the financial asset, as well as fees and costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The
Bank recognises interest income using a rate of return that represents the best estimate of a constant rate of return over the
expected life of the loan. Hence, the EIR calculation also takes into account the effect of potentially different interest rates that
may be charged at various stages of the financial asset’s expected life, and other characteristics of the product life cycle
(including prepayments, penalty interest and charges).

If expectations of fixed rate financial assets’ or liabilities’ cash flows are revised for reasons other than credit risk, then changes
to future contractual cash flows are discounted at the original EIR with a consequential adjustment to the carrying amount. The
difference from the previous carrying amount is booked as a positive or negative adjustment to the carrying amount of the
financial asset or liability on the balance sheet with a corresponding increase or decrease in Interest revenue/expense calculated
using the effective interest method.

For floating-rate financial instruments, periodic re-estimation of cash flows to reflect the movements in the market rates of
interest also alters the effective interest rate, but when instruments were initially recognised at an amount equal to the principal,
re-estimating the future interest payments does not significantly affect the carrying amount of the asset or the liability.

Interest and similar income/expense

Net interest income comprises interest income and interest expense calculated using both the effective interest method and
other methods. These are disclosed separately on the face of the statement of profit or loss for both interest income and interest
expense to provide symmetrical and comparable information. In its interest income/expense calculated using the effective
interest method, the Bank only includes interest on those financial instruments that are set out above.

Other interest income/expense includes interest on derivatives in economic hedge relationships and all financial
assets/liabilities measured at FVTPL, other than those held for trading, using the contractual interest rate.

Interest income/expense on all trading financial assets/liabilities is recognised as a part of the fair value change in “Trading
and other operating income/expense”.
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2.5 Summary of material accounting policies (cont’d.)
Recognition of interest income (cont’d.)
Interest and similar income/expense (cont’d.)

The Bank calculates interest income on financial assets, other than those considered credit-impaired, by applying the EIR to
the gross carrying amount of the financial asset. When a financial asset becomes credit-impaired and is therefore regarded as
“Stage 3”, the Bank calculates interest income by applying the EIR to the net amortised cost of the financial asset. If the
financial asset cures and is no longer credit-impaired, the Bank reverts to calculating interest income on a gross basis.

For purchased or originated credit-impaired (POCI) financial assets, the Bank calculates interest income by calculating the
credit-adjusted EIR and applying that rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset. The credit-adjusted EIR is the interest
rate that, at initial recognition, discounts the estimated future cash flows (including credit losses) to the amortised cost of the
POCI financial asset.

Fees and commission income

The Bank earns fees and commission income from a diverse range of services it provides to its customers. Fees and commission
income are recognised at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Bank expects to be entitled in exchange for
providing the services. The performance obligations, as well as the timing of their satisfaction, are identified, and determined,
at the inception of the contract. The Bank’s revenue contracts do not typically include multiple performance obligations, as
explained further below.

When the Bank provides a service to its customers, consideration is invoiced and generally due immediately upon satisfaction
of a service provided at a point in time or at the end of the contract period for a service provided over time (unless otherwise
specified below). The Bank has generally concluded that it is the principal in its revenue arrangements because it typically
controls the services before transferring them to the customer.

Fee and commission income from services where performance obligations are satisfied over time

Fees earned for the provision of services over a period of time are accrued over that period. These fees include commission
income, custody fees and other services. where the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by
the Bank’s performance as the Bank performs.

Fee income from providing transaction services

Fees arising from negotiations or participating in the negotiation of a transaction for a third party are recognised on completion
of the underlying transaction. Fees or components of fees that are linked to a certain performance obligation are recognised
after fulfilling the corresponding criteria of the performance.

The Bank provides a wide range of financial services in exchange for fee or commission income. As to depict the pattern of
delivery of services, all of the commission income generated from provision of financial services, such as commission on
operations with payment cards fees and commission on mobile-service provided fees which are not an integral part of the
effective yield, are recognised on a point-in-time basis, i.e. when the performance obligation is completed. Bank has retained
no part of the loan package for itself or has retained a part at the same effective interest rate as applicable to the other
participants.

Fee income forming an integral part of the corresponding financial instrument

Fees that the Bank considers to be an integral part of the corresponding financial instruments include loan origination fees,
loan commitment fees for loans that are likely to be drawn down and other credit related fees. The recognition of these fees
(together with any incremental costs) forms an integral part of the corresponding financial instruments and are recognised as
interest income through an adjustment to the EIR. The exception is, when it is unlikely that a loan will be draw down, the loan
commitment fees are recognised as revenue on expiry.

Fees and commission expense

Fee expense represents administration and fixed fee commission paid to the commercial banks. Fee expense is recognized
when actual service has been provided.

Components of fees that are linked to a certain performance are recognised after fulfilling the corresponding criteria.
Net trading income

Net trading income includes all gains and losses from changes in fair value and the related interest income or expense and
dividends, for financial assets and financial liabilities held for trading.
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2.5 Summary of material accounting policies (cont’d.)
Net gain or loss on financial assets and liabilities designated at FVTPL

Net gain or loss on financial instruments at FVTPL represents financial assets and financial liabilities designated as at FVTPL
and also non-trading assets measured at FVTPL, as required by or elected under IFRS9. The line item includes fair value
changes, interest, dividends and foreign exchange differences.

Net gain or loss on derecognition of financial assets measured at amortised cost or FVOCI

Net gain or loss on derecognition of financial assets measured at amortised cost includes loss (or income) recognised on sale
or derecognition of financial assets measured at amortised costs or FVOCI calculated as the difference between the book value
(including impairment) and the proceeds received.

Financial instruments — initial recognition
Date of recognition

Financial assets and liabilities, with the exception of loans and advances to customers and balances due to customers, are
initially recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date on which the Bank becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. This includes regular way trades, i.e., purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the time frame generally established by regulation or convention in the marketplace. Loans and advances to customers are
recognised when funds are transferred to the customers’ accounts. The Bank recognises balances due to customers when funds
are transferred to the Bank.

Initial measurement of financial instruments

The classification of financial instruments at initial recognition depends on their contractual terms and the business model for
managing the instruments. Financial instruments, other than those measured at FVTPL, are initially measured at their fair value
including respective transaction costs. While financial instruments at FVTPL are recognised at its fair value and any transaction
costs are recognised in profit or loss. Trade receivables are measured at the transaction price. When the fair value of financial
instruments at initial recognition differs from the transaction price, the Bank accounts for the Day 1 profit or loss, as described
below.

‘Day 1’ profit or loss

When the transaction price of the instrument differs from the fair value at origination and the fair value is based on a valuation
technique using only inputs observable in market transactions, the Bank recognises the difference between the transaction price
and fair value in trading and other operating income/expenses. In those cases where fair value is based on models for which
some of the inputs are not observable, the difference between the transaction price and the fair value is deferred and is only
recognised in profit or loss when the inputs become observable, or when the instrument is derecognised.

Measurement categories of financial assets and liabilities

The Bank classifies all of its financial assets based on the business model for managing the assets and the asset’s contractual
terms, measured at either:

e Amortised cost
e FVOCI
e FVTPL

The Bank classifies and measures its derivative and trading portfolio at FVTPL. The Bank may designate financial instruments
at FVTPL, if so doing eliminates or significantly reduces measurement or recognition inconsistencies.

Financial liabilities, other than loan commitments and financial guarantees, are measured at amortised cost or at FVTPL when
they are held for trading and derivative instruments, or the fair value designation is applied.

Determination of fair value

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to
sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

o In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
¢ In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Bank.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the
asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.
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2.5 Summary of material accounting policies (cont’d.)
Determination of fair value (cont’d.)

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits
by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest
and best use.

The Bank uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

In order to show how fair values have been derived, financial instruments are classified based on a hierarchy of valuation
techniques, as summarised below:

e Level 1 financial instruments — Those where the inputs used in the valuation are unadjusted quoted prices from active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the Bank has access to at the measurement date. The Bank considers markets
as active only if there are sufficient trading activities with regards to the volume and liquidity of the identical assets or
liabilities and when there are binding and exercisable price quotes available on the balance sheet date.

e Level 2 financial instruments — Those where the inputs that are used for valuation and are significant, are derived from
directly or indirectly observable market data available over the entire period of the instrument’s life. Such inputs include
quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets, quoted prices for identical instruments in inactive markets
and observable inputs other than quoted prices such as interest rates and yield curves, implied volatilities, and credit
spreads. In addition, adjustments may be required for the condition or location of the asset or the extent to which it relates
to items that are comparable to the valued instrument. However, if such adjustments are based on unobservable inputs
which are significant to the entire measurement, the Bank will classify the instruments as Level 3.

e Level 3 financial instruments — Those that include one or more unobservable input that is significant to the measurement
as whole.

The Bank periodically reviews its valuation techniques including the adopted methodologies and model calibrations. However,
the base models may not fully capture all factors relevant to the valuation of the Bank’s financial instruments such as credit
risk (CVA), own credit (DVA) and/or funding costs (FVA). Therefore, the Bank applies various techniques to estimate the
credit risk associated with its financial instruments measured at fair value, which include a portfolio-based approach that
estimates the expected net exposure per counterparty over the full lifetime of the individual assets, in order to reflect the credit
risk of the individual counterparties for non-collateralised financial instruments. The Bank estimates the value of its own credit
from market observable data, such as secondary prices for its traded debt.

The Bank evaluates the levelling at each reporting period on an instrument-by-instrument basis and reclassifies instruments
when necessary, based on the facts at the end of the reporting period.

An analysis of fair values of financial instruments and further details as how they are measured are provided in Note 34.
Financial assets and liabilities per financial statement line
Due from banks, Loans and advances to customers, Financial investments at amortised cost

The Bank measures Due from banks, Loans and advances to customers and other financial investments at amortised cost only
if both of the following conditions are met:

e The financial asset is held within a business model with the objective to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual
cash flows

e The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

The details of these conditions are outlined below.

Business model assessment. The Bank determines its business model at the level that best reflects how it manages groups of
financial assets to achieve its business objective:

*  The risks that affect the performance of the business model and, in particular, the way those risks are managed,

»  Past experience with how the cash flows from these assets were obtained;

*  The metrics used to measure and report on portfolio performance and reported to the key management;

*  How managers of the business are compensated (for example, whether the compensation is based on the fair value of
the assets managed or on the contractual cash flows collected)

The expected frequency, value and timing of sales are also important aspects of the Bank’s assessment.
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2.5 Summary of material accounting policies (cont’d.)
Financial assets and liabilities per financial statement line (cont’d.)
Business model assessment. (cont’d.)

The business model assessment is based on reasonably expected scenarios without taking ‘worst case’ or ‘stress case’ scenarios
into account. If cash flows after initial recognition are realised in a way that is different from the Bank’s original expectations,
the Bank does not change the classification of the remaining financial assets held in that business model, but incorporates such
information when assessing newly originated or newly purchased financial assets going forward.

The SPPI test. As a second step of its classification process the Bank assesses the contractual terms of financial instruments to
identify whether they meet the SPPI test.

‘Principal’ for the purpose of this test is defined as the fair value of the financial asset at initial recognition and may change
over the life of the financial asset (for example, if there are repayments of principal or amortisation of the premium/discount).

The most significant elements of interest within a lending arrangement are typically the consideration for the time value of
money and credit risk. To make the SPPI assessment, the Bank applies judgement and considers relevant factors such as the
currency in which the financial asset is denominated, and the period for which the interest rate is set.

In contrast, contractual terms that introduce a more than de minimis exposure to risks or volatility in the contractual cash flows
that are unrelated to a basic lending arrangement do not give rise to contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the amount outstanding. In such cases, the financial asset is required to be measured at FVTPL.

Derivatives recorded at fair value through profit or loss
A derivative is a financial instrument or other contract with all three of the following characteristics:

e [ts value changes in response to the change in a specified interest rate, financial instrument price, commodity price, foreign
exchange rate, index of prices or rates, credit rating or credit index, or other variable, provided in the case of a non-financial
variable that the variable is not specific to a party to the contract.

e [t requires no initial net investment or an initial net investment that is smaller than would be required for other types of
contracts that would be expected to have a similar response to changes in market factors.

e Itis settled at a future date.

The Bank enters into derivative transactions with various counterparties. These include interest rate swaps, cross currency
swaps and forward foreign exchange contracts on interest rates and foreign currencies. Derivatives are recorded at fair value
and carried as assets when their fair value is positive and as liabilities when their fair value is negative.

Changes in the fair value of derivatives are included in other income unless hedge accounting is applied.
Financial assets or financial liabilities held for trading

The Bank classifies financial assets or financial liabilities as held for trading when they have been purchased or issued primarily
for short-term profit-making through trading activities or form part of a portfolio of financial instruments that are managed
together, for which there is evidence of a recent pattern of short-term profit taking. Held-for-trading assets and liabilities are
recorded and measured in the statement of financial position at fair value. Changes in fair value are recognised in net trading
income. Interest and dividend income or expense is recorded in net trading income according to the terms of the contract, or
when the right to payment has been established.

Debt instruments at FVOCI
The Bank classifies debt instruments at FVOCI when both of the following conditions are met:

*  The instrument is held within a business model, the objective of which is achieved by both collecting contractual cash
flows and selling financial assets
*  The contractual terms of the financial asset meet the SPPI test

FVOCI debt instruments are subsequently measured at fair value with gains and losses arising due to changes in fair value
recognised in OCI. Interest income and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss in the same manner
as for financial assets measured at amortised cost.

The expected credit loss (“ECL”) calculation for debt instruments at FVOCI is explained in Note 14. Where the Bank holds
more than one investment in the same security, they are deemed to be disposed of on a first—in first—out basis. On derecognition,
cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in OCI are reclassified from OCI to profit or loss.
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2.5 Summary of material accounting policies (cont’d.)
Financial assets and liabilities per financial statement line item (cont’d.)
Equity instruments at FVOCI

Upon initial recognition, the Bank occasionally elects to classify irrevocably some of its equity investments as equity
instruments at FVOCI when they meet the definition of equity under IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and are not
held for trading. Such classification is determined on an instrument-by-instrument basis.

Gains and losses on these equity instruments are never recycled to profit or loss even upon derecognition. Dividends are
recognised in profit or loss as other operating income when the right of the payment has been established, except when the
Bank benefits from such proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost of the instrument, in which case, such gains are recorded in
OCI. Equity instruments at FVOCI are not subject to an impairment assessment.

Borrowed funds and debt securities issued
Borrowed funds and debt securities issued are contractual obligations to local and foreign financial institutions.

After initial measurement, borrowed funds and debt securities issued are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
EIR. The amortised cost of borrowed funds and debt securities issued is calculated using EIR by taking into account any
transaction costs related to the transaction.

A compound financial instrument which contains both a liability and an equity component is separated at the issue date. When
establishing the accounting treatment of these non-derivative instruments the Bank first establishes whether the instrument is
a compound instrument and classifies such instruments or components separately as financial liabilities, financial assets, or
equity instruments in accordance with IAS 32. Classification of the liability and equity components of a convertible instrument
is not revised as a result of a change in the likelihood that a conversion option will be exercised, even when exercise of the
option may appear to have become economically advantageous to some holders. When allocating the initial carrying amount
of'a compound financial instrument to its equity and liability components, the equity component is assigned the residual amount
after deducting from the entire fair value of the instrument, the amount separately determined for the liability component. The
value of any derivative features (such as a call options) embedded in the compound financial instrument, other than the equity
component (such as an equity conversion options) is included in the liability component. Once the Bank has determined the
split between equity and liability, it further evaluates if the liability component has embedded derivatives which would require
separation.

Financial assets and liabilities at FVTPL

Financial assets in this category are those that are not held for trading and have been either designated by management upon
initial recognition or are mandatorily required to be measured at fair value under IFRS 9.

Financial assets at FVTPL are recorded in the statement of financial position at fair value. Changes in fair value are recorded
in profit and loss. Interest earned or incurred on instruments designated at FVTPL is accrued in interest income or interest
expense, respectively, using the EIR, taking into account any discount/ premium and qualifying transaction costs being an
integral part of instrument. Interest earned on assets mandatorily required to be measured at FVTPL is recorded using the
contractual interest rate. Dividend income from equity instruments measured at FVTPL is recorded in profit or loss as other
operating income when the right to the payment has been established.

Financial guarantee, letter of credit and undrawn loan commitments
The Bank issues financial guarantees, letters of credit and loan commitments.

Financial guarantees are initially recognised in the financial statements (within ‘other liabilities’) at fair value, being the
premium received. Subsequent to initial recognition, the Bank’s liability under each guarantee is measured at the higher of the
amount initially recognised less cumulative amortisation recognised in the income statement, and an ECL allowance as set out
in Note 32.

The premium received is recognised in the income statement in Net fees and commission income on a straight line basis over
the life of the guarantee.

Undrawn loan commitments and letters of credits are commitments under which, over the duration of the commitment, the
Bank is required to provide a loan with pre-specified terms to the customer. Similar to financial guarantee contracts, these
contracts are in the scope of the ECL requirements.

The nominal contractual value of financial guarantees, letters of credit and undrawn loan commitments, where the loan agreed
to be provided is on market terms, are not recorded on in the statement of financial position. The nominal values of these
instruments together with the corresponding ECL are disclosed in Note 32.
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Due to customers

This includes current, savings, time deposits and bank guarantee fund from customers. After initial measurement, due to
customers are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR.

Due to banks

This includes deposits from other banks and financial institutions in foreign currency and local currency accounts and time
deposits placed by local and foreign commercial banks and BoM. The Bank recognises due to customer balances when funds
reach the Bank. After initial measurement, due to banks are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR.

Reclassification of financial assets

The Bank does not reclassify its financial assets subsequent to their initial recognition, apart from the exceptional circumstances
in which the Bank acquires, disposes of, or terminates a business line. Financial liabilities are never reclassified.

Modification of financial assets and liabilities
Modification of financial assets

When the contractual cash flows of a financial asset are renegotiated or otherwise modified as a result of commercial
restructuring activity rather than due to credit risk and impairment considerations, the Bank performs an assessment to
determine whether the modifications result in the derecognition of that financial asset. For financial assets, this assessment is
based on qualitative factors.

When assessing whether or not to derecognise a loan to a customer, amongst others, the Bank considers the following factors:

*  Change in currency of the loan

* Introduction of an equity feature

*  Change in counterparty

*  Whether the modification is such that the instrument would no longer meet the SPPI criterion

If the modification does not result in cash flows that are substantially different, as set out below, then it does not result in
derecognition. Based on the change in cash flows discounted at the original EIR, the Bank records a modification gain or loss,
to the extent that an impairment loss has not already been recorded.

Modification of financial liabilities

When the modification of the terms of an existing financial liability is not judged to be substantial and, consequently, does not
result in derecognition, the amortised cost of the financial liability is recalculated by computing the present value of estimated
future contractual cash flows that are discounted at the financial liability’s original EIR. Any resulting difference is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

For financial liabilities, the Bank considers a modification to be substantial based on qualitative factors and if it results in a
difference between the adjusted discounted present value and the original carrying amount of the financial liability of, or greater
than, ten percent.

Derecognition of financial assets and liabilities
Derecognition due to substantial modification of terms and conditions

The Bank derecognises a financial asset, such as a loan to a customer, when the terms and conditions have been renegotiated
to the extent that, substantially, it becomes a new loan, with the difference recognised as a derecognition gain or loss, to the
extent that an impairment loss has not already been recorded. The newly recognised loans are classified as Stage 1 for ECL
measurement purposes, unless the new loan is deemed to be POCI.

Derecognition other than for substantial modification

Financial assets. A financial asset (or, where applicable a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets)
is derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired. The Bank also derecognises the financial
asset if it has both transferred the financial asset and the transfer qualifies for derecognition.

The Bank has transferred the financial asset if, and only if; either:

e The Bank has transferred its contractual rights to receive cash flows from the asset; or
e [t retains the right to the cash flows, but has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material
delay to a third party under a ‘pass—through’ arrangement.

21



86

Kunnin tainan 2024

TRADE AND DEVELOPMENT BANK OF MONGOLIA JSC

Notes to the financial statements — 31 December 2024

2.5 Summary of material accounting policies (cont’d.)
Derecognition of financial assets and liabilities (cont’d.)
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Pass-through arrangements are transactions whereby the Bank retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of a
financial asset (the original asset), but assumes a contractual obligation to pay those cash flows to one or more entities (the
eventual recipients), when all of the following three conditions are met:

e The Bank has no obligation to pay amounts to the eventual recipients unless it has collected equivalent amounts from the
original asset, excluding short-term advances with the right to full recovery of the amount lent plus accrued interest at
market rates

e The Bank cannot sell or pledge the original asset other than as security to the eventual recipients

e The Bank has to remit any cash flows it collects on behalf of the eventual recipients without material delay. In addition, the
Bank is not entitled to reinvest such cash flows, except for investments in cash or cash equivalents, including interest earned,
during the period between the collection date and the date of required remittance to the eventual recipients

A transfer only qualifies for derecognition if either:

e The Bank has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset; or
e  The Bank has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control
of the asset

The Bank considers control to be transferred if and only if, the transferee has the practical ability to sell the asset in its entirety
to an unrelated third party and is able to exercise that ability unilaterally and without imposing additional restrictions on the
transfer.

When the Bank has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards and has retained control of the asset,
the asset continues to be recognised only to the extent of the Bank’s continuing involvement, in which case, the Bank also
recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the
rights and obligations that the Bank has retained. Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred
asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration the Bank
could be required to pay.

If continuing involvement takes the form of a written or purchased option (or both) on the transferred asset, the continuing
involvement is measured at the value the Bank would be required to pay upon repurchase. In the case of a written put option
on an asset that is measured at fair value, the extent of the entity's continuing involvement is limited to the lower of the fair
value of the transferred asset and the option exercise price.

Financial liabilities. A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or
expires. Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or
the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of
the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference between the carrying value of the original financial
liability and the consideration paid is recognised in profit or loss.

Forborne modified loans

The Bank sometimes makes concessions or modifications to the original terms of loans as a response to the borrower’s financial
difficulties, rather than taking possession or to otherwise enforce collection of collateral. The Bank considers a loan forborne
when such concessions or modifications are provided as a result of the borrower’s present or expected financial difficulties and
the Bank would not have agreed to them if the borrower had been financially healthy. Indicators of financial difficulties include
defaults on covenants, or significant concerns raised by the Credit Risk Department.

Forbearance may involve extending the payment arrangements and the agreement of new loan conditions. It is the Bank’s
policy to monitor forborne loans to help ensure that future payments continue to be likely to occur.

If modifications are substantial, the loan is derecognised, as explained above. Once the terms have been renegotiated without
this resulting in the derecognition of the loan, any impairment is measured using the original EIR as calculated before the
modification of terms. It is the Bank’s policy to monitor forborne loans to help ensure that future payments continue to be
likely to occur.

When the loan has been renegotiated or modified but not derecognised, the Bank considers that there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition and thus classifies the loan as Stage 2. Once an asset has been classified as
forborne, it reclassified out of the forborne category, the customer has to meet all of the following criteria:

e All of its facilities have to be considered performing

22



Kunnin tainan 2024

TRADE AND DEVELOPMENT BANK OF MONGOLIA JSC

Notes to the financial statements — 31 December 2024

2.5 Summary of material accounting policies (cont’d.)
Forborne modified loans (cont’d.)

e Regular payments of more than an insignificant amount of principal or interest have been made during at least half of the
probation period
e The customer does not have any contracts that are more than 30 days past due

Details of forborne assets are disclosed in Note 32.
Impairment of financial assets
Overview of the ECL principles

The Bank records an allowance for ECL for all loans and other debt financial assets not held at FVTPL, together with loan
commitments and financial guarantee contracts, in this section all referred to as ‘financial instruments’. Equity instruments are
not subject to impairment under IFRS 9.

The ECL allowance is based on the credit losses expected to arise over the life of the asset (the lifetime expected credit loss or
“LTECL”), unless there has been no significant increase in credit risk (“SICR”) since origination, in which case, the allowance
is based on the 12 months expected credit loss (“12mECL”). The Bank’s policies for determining if there has been a SICR are
set out in Note 33.

The 12mECL is the portion of LTECL that represent the ECL that result from default events on a financial instrument that are
possible within the 12 months after the reporting date.

Both LTECL and 12mECL are calculated on either an individual basis or a collective basis, depending on the nature of the
underlying portfolio of financial instruments.

The Bank has established a policy to perform an assessment, at the end of each reporting period, of whether a financial
instrument’s credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition, by considering the change in the risk of default
occurring over the remaining life of the financial instrument.

Based on the above process, the Bank groups its loans into Stage 1, Stage 2, Stage 3 as described below:

Stage 1: When loans are first recognised, the Bank recognises an allowance based on 12mECL. Stage 1 loans also include
facilities where the credit risk has improved and the loan has been reclassified from Stage 2.

Stage 2: When a loan has shown a significant increase in credit risk since origination, the Bank records an allowance for the
LTECL. Stage 2 loans also include facilities, where the credit risk has improved and the loan has been reclassified
from Stage 3.

Stage 3: Loans considered credit-impaired. The Bank records an allowance for the LTECL.

POCI: POCI assets are financial assets that are credit impaired on initial recognition. POCI assets are recorded at fair value
at original recognition and interest income is subsequently recognised based on a credit-adjusted EIR. The ECL
allowance is only recognised or released to the extent that there is a subsequent change in the expected credit losses.

For financial assets for which the Bank has no reasonable expectations of recovering either the entire outstanding amount, or
a proportion thereof, the gross carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced. This is considered a (partial) derecognition of
the financial asset.

Calculation of ECL

The Bank calculates ECL based on three probability-weighted scenarios to measure the expected cash shortfalls, discounted at
an approximation to the EIR. A cash shortfall is the difference between the cash flows that are due to an entity in accordance
with the contract and the cash flows that the entity expects to receive.

The mechanics of the ECL calculations are outlined below and the key elements are, as follows:

PD:  The Probability of Default (“PD”) is an estimate of the likelihood of default over a given time horizon. A default may
only happen at a certain time over the assessed period, if the facility has not been previously derecognised and is still
in the portfolio.

EAD: The Exposure at Default (“EAD”) is an estimate of the exposure at a future default date, taking into account expected
changes in the exposure after the reporting date, including repayments of principal and interest, whether scheduled by
contract or otherwise, expected drawdowns on committed facilities, and accrued interest from missed payments.

LGD: The Loss Given Default (“LGD”) is an estimate of the loss arising in the case where a default occurs at a given time.
It is based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due and those that the lender would expect to receive,
including from the realisation of any collateral or credit enhancements that are integral to the loan and not required to
be recognised separately. It is usually expressed as a percentage of the EAD.
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Calculation of ECL

When estimating the ECL, the Bank considers three scenarios (a base case, an upside and a downside). Each of these is
associated with different PDs.

The ECL is determined by projecting the PD, LGD and EAD for each future month and for each individual exposure or
collective segment. These three components are multiplied together and adjusted for the likelihood of survival (i.e. the exposure
has not prepaid or defaulted in the earlier month). This effectively calculates an ECL for each future month, which is then
discounted back to the reporting date and summed. The discount rate used in the ECL calculation is the original effective
interest rate or an approximation thereof.

Impairment losses and releases are accounted for and disclosed separately from modification losses or gains that are accounted
for as an adjustment of the financial asset’s gross carrying value.

The mechanics of the ECL method are summarised below:

Stage 1: The 12mECL is calculated as the portion of LTECL that represent the ECL that result from default events on
a financial instrument that are possible within the 12 months after the reporting date. The Bank calculates the
12mECL allowance based on the expectation of a default occurring in the 12 months following the reporting
date. These expected 12-month default probabilities are applied to a forecast EAD and multiplied by the
expected LGD and discounted by an approximation to the original EIR.

Stage 2: When a loan has shown a significant increase in credit risk since origination, the Bank records an allowance
for the LTECL. The mechanics are similar to those explained above, including the use of multiple scenarios,
but PDs and LGDs are estimated over the lifetime of the instrument. The expected cash shortfalls are discounted
by an approximation to the original EIR.

Stage 3: For loans considered credit-impaired, the Bank recognises the lifetime expected credit losses for these loans.
The method is similar to that for Stage 2 assets, with the PD set at 100%.

POCI POCT assets are financial assets that are credit impaired on initial recognition. The Bank only recognises the
cumulative changes in lifetime ECL since initial recognition, based on a probability-weighting of the three
scenarios, discounted by the credit-adjusted EIR.

Loan When estimating LTECL for undrawn loan commitments, the Bank estimates the expected portion of the
commitments loan commitment that will be drawn down over its expected life. The ECL is then based on the present value
and letters of ofthe expected shortfalls in cash flows if the loan is drawn down. The expected cash shortfalls are discounted
credit at an approximation to the expected EIR on the loan.

For credit cards and revolving facilities that include both a loan and an undrawn commitment, ECL are
calculated and presented together with the loan. For loan commitments and letters of credit, the ECL is
recognised within ‘other liabilities’.

Financial The Bank’s liability under each guarantee is measured at the higher of the amount initially recognised less
guarantee cumulative amortisation recognised in profit or loss, and the ECL provision. For this purpose, the Bank
contracts estimates ECL based on the present value of the expected payments to reimburse the holder for a credit loss

that it incurs. The shortfalls are discounted by the risk-adjusted interest rate relevant to the exposure. The
calculation is made using a probability-weighting of the three scenarios. The ECL related to financial
guarantee contracts are recognised within ‘other liabilities’.

Debt instruments measured at FVOCI

The ECL for debt instruments measured at FVOCI do not reduce the carrying amount of these financial assets in the statement
of financial position, which remains at fair value. Instead, an amount equal to the allowance that would arise if the assets were
measured at amortised cost is recognised in OCI as an accumulated impairment amount, with a corresponding charge to profit
or loss. The accumulated loss recognised in OCI is recycled to the profit and loss upon derecognition of the assets.

Credit cards and other revolving facilities

The Bank’s product offering includes a variety of corporate and retail overdraft and credit cards facilities, in which the Bank
has the right to cancel and/or reduce the facilities with one day’s notice. The Bank does not limit its exposure to credit losses
to the contractual notice period, but instead calculates ECL over a period that reflects its expectations of customer behaviour,
the likelihood of default and its future risk mitigation procedures, which could include reducing or cancelling the facilities.
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The ongoing assessment of whether a significant increase in credit risk has occurred for revolving facilities is similar to other
lending products. This is based on shifts in the customer’s internal credit grade, but greater emphasis is also given to qualitative
factors such as changes in usage.

The interest rate used to discount the ECL for credit cards and overdrafts is based on annualised the average effective interest
rate that is expected to be charged over the expected period of exposure to the facilities. This estimation takes into account that
many facilities are repaid in full each month and are consequently not charged interest.

Forward looking information
In its ECL models, the Bank relies on a broad range of forward-looking information (“FLI”) as economic inputs, such as:

o Inflation Rate

e Gross Domestic Product (“GDP”) growth
e«  MNT/USD Exchange rate (“FX rate”)

o Policy rate

e Credit Growth (YoY)

e« Money M2 Growth (YoY)

o Unemployment rate

o  Credit outstanding of commercial banks

The inputs and models used for calculating ECL may not always capture all characteristics of the market at the date of the
financial statements. To reflect this, qualitative adjustments or overlays are occasionally made as temporary adjustments when
such differences are significantly material.

Credit enhancements: Collateral valuation and financial guarantees

To mitigate its credit risks on financial assets, the Bank seeks to use collateral, where possible. The collateral comes in various
forms, such as cash, securities, letters of credit/guarantees, real estate, receivables, inventories, other non-financial assets and
credit enhancements such as netting agreements. Collateral, unless repossessed, is not recorded on the Bank’s statement of
financial position.

Cash flows expected from credit enhancements which are not required to be recognised separately by IFRS standards and
which are considered integral to the contractual terms of a debt instrument which is subject to ECL, are included in the
measurement of those ECL. On this basis, the fair value of collateral affects the calculation of ECL. Collateral is generally
assessed, at a minimum, at inception and re-assessed on annual basis.

To the extent possible, the Bank uses active market data for valuing financial assets held as collateral. Other financial assets
which do not have readily determinable market values are valued using models. Non-financial collateral, such as real estate, is
valued based on data provided by third parties such as mortgage brokers or based on housing price indices.

Guarantees held are included in the measurement of loan ECL when either they are specified in the contractual terms of the
loan or else are integral to the loan, in that they formed part of the basis on which the loan was extended.

Guarantees that are not integral to the loan’s contractual terms are accounted as separate units of accounts subject to ECL.
Grants

Grants are recognised where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all attached conditions will be
complied with. When the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis over the periods
that the related costs, for which it is intended to compensate, are expensed. When the grant relates to an asset, it is recognised
as income in equal amounts over the expected useful life of the related asset.

When the Bank receives grants of non-monetary assets, the asset and the grant are recorded at nominal amounts and released
to profit or loss over the expected useful life of the asset, based on the pattern of consumption of the benefits of the underlying
asset by equal annual instalments.
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Foreclosed properties

The Bank’s policy is to determine whether a foreclosed asset can be best used for its internal operations or should be sold.
Assets determined to be useful for the internal operations are transferred to their relevant asset category at the lower of their
foreclosed value or the carrying value of the original secured asset. Assets for which selling is determined to be a better option
are transferred to “Assets held for sale” at their fair value (if financial asset) or fair value less cost to sell for non-financial
assets at the repossession date. Assets that are expected to be sold beyond twelve months are included in “Other assets” and
are measured at the lower of the cost and fair value less costs to sell.

Precious metals
Precious metals represent gold and silver which are carried at fair value.
Write-offs

Financial assets are written off either partially or in their entirety only when the Bank has no reasonable expectation of
recovering a financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof. If the amount to be written off is greater than the accumulated
loss allowance, the difference is first treated as an addition to the allowance that is then applied against the gross carrying
amount. Any subsequent recoveries are credited to credit loss expense.

Investment in associate

The Bank’s investment in associate is accounted for using the equity method. An associate is an entity in which the Bank has
significant influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and operating policies.

Under the equity method, the investment in an associate is carried on the statement of financial position at cost plus post
acquisition changes in the Bank’s share of net assets of the associate. Goodwill relating to the associate is included in the
carrying amount of the investment and is neither amortized nor individually tested for impairment.

The statement of profit and loss and other comprehensive income reflects the Bank’s share on the results of operations of the
associate. When there has been a change recognized directly in the equity of the associate, the Bank recognizes its share of any
changes and discloses this, when applicable, in the statement of changes in equity. Unrealized gains and losses resulting from
transactions between the Bank and the associate are eliminated to the extent of the interest in the associate.

The Bank’s share of profit of an associate is shown on the face of the statement profit or loss and other comprehensive income.
This is the profit attributable to equity holders of the associate and, therefore, is profit after tax and non-controlling interests in
the subsidiaries of the associate, if any.

The financial statements of the associate are prepared for the same reporting period as the Bank. When necessary, adjustments
are made to bring the accounting policies in line with those of the Bank.

After application of the equity method, the Bank determines whether it is necessary to recognize an additional impairment loss
on its investment in its associate. The Bank determines at each reporting date whether there is any objective evidence that the
investment in the associate is impaired. If this is the case, the Bank calculates the amount of impairment as the difference
between the recoverable amount of the associate and its carrying value and recognizes the amount in the ‘share of profit of an
associate’ in profit and loss.

Upon loss of significant influence over the associate, the Bank measures and recognizes any retaining investment at its fair
value. Any difference between the carrying amount of the associate upon loss of significant influence and the fair value of the
retained investment and proceeds from disposal is recognized in profit or loss.

Cash and bank balances

Cash and bank balances in the statement of financial position comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with
a maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprises cash on hand, non-restricted current
accounts with banks and amounts due from banks or with an original maturity of three months or less and BoM treasury bills
with an original maturity of three months or less.
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Repurchase and reverse repurchase agreements

Securities sold under agreements to repurchase at a specified future date are not derecognised from the statement of financial
position as the Bank retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership. The corresponding cash received is
recognised in the statement of financial position as an asset with a corresponding obligation to return it, including accrued
interest as a liability within ‘Repurchase agreements’, reflecting the transaction’s economic substance as a loan to the Bank.
The difference between the sale and repurchase prices is treated as interest expense and is accrued over the life of agreement
using the EIR. When the counterparty has the right to sell or re-pledge the securities, the Bank reclassifies those securities in
its statement of financial position to indicate that they are pledged as collateral.

Conversely, securities purchased under agreements to resell at a specified future date are not recognised in the statement of
financial position. The consideration paid, including accrued interest, is recorded in the statement of financial position, within
‘Reverse repurchase agreements’, reflecting the transaction’s economic substance as a loan by the Bank. The difference
between the purchase and resale prices is recorded in ‘Interest and similar income’ and is accrued over the life of the agreement
using the EIR.

Leases

The Bank assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Bank as a lessee

The Bank applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-
value assets. The Bank recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use
the underlying assets.

Right-of-use assets

The Bank recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the underlying asset is available
for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for
any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial
direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. Unless
the Bank is reasonably certain to obtain ownership of the leased asset at the end of the lease term, the recognised right-of-use
assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of its estimated useful life and the lease term. Right-of-use assets
are subject to impairment.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Bank recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of lease payments
to be made over the lease term.

The lease payments include fixed payments (including in substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable,
variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees.
The variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as expense in the period on which the
event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Bank uses the incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement
date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of lease
liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying
amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the in-substance fixed
lease payments or a change in the assessment to purchase the underlying asset.

Short-term leases

The Bank applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases of certain office spaces (i.e., those leases
that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date or spaces for ATMs). Lease payments on short-term
leases are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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Determining the lease term of contracts with renewal options

The Bank determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any periods covered by an option
to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain to be exercised, or any periods covered by an option to terminate the lease, if it is
reasonably certain not to be exercised.

The Bank applies judgement in evaluating whether it is reasonably certain to exercise the option to renew. That is, it considers
all relevant factors that create an economic incentive for it to exercise the renewal. After the commencement date, the Bank
reassesses the lease term if there is a significant event or change in circumstances that is within its control and affects its ability
to exercise (or not to exercise) the option to renew (e.g., a change in business strategy). The Bank included the renewal period
as part of the lease term for leased office spaces due to the significance of these assets to its branch operations.

Property and equipment

Property and equipment are initially recorded at cost. Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of the property and equipment
when the costs are incurred if the recognition criteria are met. When significant parts of property and equipment are required
to be replaced at intervals, the Bank recognises such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciation,
respectively. Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the property and
equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in
profit or loss as incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, items of property and equipment, except for buildings and land are subsequently stated at
cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Buildings and land are measured at fair value. Valuations are undertaken on a three to five year cycle. Between valuation dates,
buildings are depreciated to the extent that reflect erosion of value. Any revaluation reserve is recorded in other comprehensive
income and hence, credited to the asset revaluation reserve in equity, except to the extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease
of the same asset previously recognised in profit or loss, in which case, the increase is recognised in profit or loss. A revaluation
deficit is recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent that it offsets an existing reserve on the same asset recognised in the
asset revaluation reserve.

Accumulated depreciation as at the revaluation date is eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the asset and the net
amount is restated to the revalued amount of the asset. Upon disposal, any revaluation reserve relating to the particular asset
being sold is transferred to retained earnings.

Construction in progress is stated at cost which includes cost of construction equipment and other costs less any impairment in
value. Construction in progress is not depreciated nor depleted until such time as the relevant assets are completed and put into
operational use.

Depreciation of property and equipment is provided for on a straight-line basis to write off the cost of each asset to its residual
value over the estimated useful life as follows:

Type of Asset Estimated Useful Life in Years
Buildings and land 25-60
Office equipment and vehicles 3-15
Computers and others 2-13

Items of property and equipment are derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its
use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the statements of profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

The residual values, useful life and depreciation method are reviewed at each financial year end to ensure that the amount,
method and period of depreciation are consistent with previous estimates and the expected pattern of consumption of the future
economic benefits embodied in the items of property and equipment.
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Intangible assets
The Bank’s intangible assets include the value of computer software.

An intangible asset is recognised only when its cost can be measured reliably, and it is probable that the expected future
economic benefits that are attributable to it will flow to the Bank.

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition, intangible assets
are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised
over the useful economic life. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful
life are reviewed at least at each financial year-end. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption
of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are accounted for by changing the amortisation period or method, as
appropriate, and treated as changes in accounting estimates.

The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in profit or loss in the expense category consistent
with the function of the intangible asset. Amortisation is calculated using the straight—line method to write down the cost of
intangible assets to their residual values over their estimated useful live of three to ten years.

Investment properties

Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are stated at fair value, which reflects market conditions at the reporting date. Gains or losses arising from changes
in the fair values of investment properties are included in profit or loss in the period in which they arise, including the
corresponding tax effect. Fair values are determined based on an annual valuation performed by an accredited external
independent valuer applying a valuation model recommended by the International Valuation Standards Committee.

Investment properties are derecognised either when they have been disposed of (i.e., at the date the recipient obtains control)
or when they are permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected from their disposal. The
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset is recognised in profit or loss in the period
of derecognition. In determining the amount of consideration from the derecognition of investment property the Bank considers
the effects of variable consideration, existence of a significant financing component, non-cash consideration, and consideration
payable to the buyer (if any).

Transfers are made to (or from) investment properties only when there is a change in use. For a transfer from investment
properties to owner-occupied property, the deemed cost for subsequent accounting is the fair value at the date of change in use.
If owner-occupied property becomes an investment property, the Bank accounts for such properties in accordance with the
policy stated under property, plant and equipment up to the date of change in use.

Non-current assets held for sale

The Bank classifies non-current assets as held for sale if their carrying amounts will be recovered principally through a sale
transaction rather than through continuing use. Non-current assets classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of their
carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell. Costs to sell are the incremental costs directly attributable to the disposal of
an asset, excluding finance costs and income tax expense.

The criteria for held for sale classification is regarded as met only when the sale is highly probable and the asset is available
for immediate sale in its present condition. Actions required to complete the sale should indicate that it is unlikely that
significant changes to the sale will be made or that the decision to sell will be withdrawn. Management must be committed to
the plan to sell the asset and the sale expected to be completed within one year from the date of the classification.

Impairment of non—financial assets

The Bank assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists,
or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Bank estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or Cash Generating Unit’s (“CGU”) fair value less costs to sell and its value in
use. Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is
written down to its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre—tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset. In determining fair value less costs to sell, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are
corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded subsidiaries or other available fair value indicators.
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2.5 Summary of material accounting policies (cont’d.)
Impairment of non—financial assets (cont’d.)

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that previously
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such indication exists, the Bank estimates the
asset’s or CGU’s recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in
the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The reversal
is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceeds the carrying amount
that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such
reversal is recognised in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

Employee benefits
Short term benefits

Wages, salaries and other salary related expenses are recognised as an expense in the year in which the associated services are
rendered by employees of the Bank.

Short term accumulating compensated absences such as paid annual leave are recognised when services are rendered by
employees that increase their entitlement to future compensated absences, and short term non-accumulating compensated
absences such as sick leave are recognised when absences occur.

Defined contribution plans

As required by law, companies in Mongolia make contributions to the government pension scheme, social and health fund.
Such contributions are recognised as an expense in profit or loss as incurred.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Bank has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, and it is
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. The expense relating to any provision is presented in profit or loss net
of any reimbursement.

Segment reporting

An operating segment is a component of the Bank that engages in business activities from which it may earn revenues and
incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions with any of the Bank’s other components. All
operating segments’ operating results are regularly reviewed by the Bank’s chief operating decision maker (“CODM”) to make
decisions about resources to be allocated to the segment and assess its performance and for which discrete financial information
is available.

Taxes
Current tax

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior years are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or
paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively
enacted by the statement of financial position date.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences at the statement of financial position date between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes. Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable
temporary differences, except for:

e  Where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or of an asset or liability in a transaction that
is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or
loss.

e In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, where the timing of the reversal of
the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each statement of financial position date and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at each statement of financial position date and are recognised to the
extent that it has become probable that future taxable profit will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.
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2.5 Summary of material accounting policies (cont’d.)
Taxes (cont’d.)
Deferred tax (cont’d.)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realised
or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the statement of
financial position date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognized outside profit or loss is recognized outside profit or loss. Deferred tax items are
recognized in correlation to the underlying transaction either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Equity
Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares are shown in equity
as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Share premium

The amount of contribution in excess of par value is accounted for as “Share premium”. Share premium also arises from
additional capital contribution from the stockholders.

Retained earnings

Retained earnings represent accumulated profits or losses, reduced by dividend declarations. These may also include prior
period adjustments and effects of changes in accounting policies.

Asset revaluation reserve
The revaluation reserve is used to record the reserve arising from the revaluation of the Bank’s land and buildings.
Regulatory reserve

Regulatory reserve mainly represents a difference between impairment provision determined for loan loss and impairment of
foreclosed assets in accordance with the regulations of BoM and impairment provision determined under IFRS. This reserve
represents a part of other reserve and is distributable to shareholder of the Bank subject to BoM's approval.

Fair value reserves

The fair value reserves comprise of the cumulative net change in the fair value of the debt instruments classified at FVOCI,
less the allowance for ECL, and the cumulative net change in fair value of equity instruments at FVOCIL.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the Bank
by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the
Bank (after adjusting for interest on the convertible preference shares and interest on the convertible bond, in each case net of
tax, if any) by weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of ordinary
shares that would be issued on the conversion of all the dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares.
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2.5 Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d.)
Transactions with related parties
A related party is a person or entity that is related to the Bank:

A person or a close member of that person’s family is related to a Bank if that person:

e has control or joint control of the Bank;

e has significant influence over the Bank; or

e is a member of the key management personnel of the Bank or of a parent of the Bank.

An entity is related to a Bank if any of the following conditions applies:

e The entity and the Bank are members of the same group (which means that each parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary
is related to the others).

¢ One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of a group of
which the other entity is a member).
Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.
One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an associate of the third entity.

o The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of either the Bank or an entity related to the Bank.
If the Bank is itself such a plan, the sponsoring employers are also related to the Bank.
The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person who has control or joint control of the Bank.
A person who has control or joint control of the Bank has significant influence over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

e The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part, provides key management personnel services to the Bank or to
the parent of the Bank.

All material transactions and balances with the related parties are disclosed in the relevant notes to financial statements and the
detail is presented in Note 35.

3. Significant accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Bank’s financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amount of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, as well as the
disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a
material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods. In the process of applying the
Bank’s accounting policies, management has made the following judgements and assumptions concerning the future and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments may change due to circumstances beyond the Bank’s
control and are reflected in the assumptions if and when they occur. Items with the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the financial statements with substantial management judgement and/or estimates are collated below with respect
to judgements/estimates involved.

Measurement of impairment losses

The measurement of impairment losses across all categories of financial assets in scope requires judgement, in particular, the
estimation of the amount and timing of future cash flows and collateral values when determining impairment losses and the
assessment of a significant increase in credit risk. These estimates are driven by a number of factors, changes in which can
result in different levels of allowances.

The Bank’s ECL calculations are outputs of complex models with a number of underlying assumptions regarding the choice
of variable inputs and their interdependencies. Elements of the ECL models that are considered accounting judgements and
estimates include:

The Bank’s internal credit grading model, which assigns PDs to the individual grades
The Bank’s criteria for assessing if there has been a significant increase in credit risk and so allowances for financial assets
should be measured on a LTECL basis and the qualitative assessment

e The segmentation of financial assets when their ECL is assessed on a collective basis

e Development of ECL models, including the various formulas and the choice of inputs

e Determination of associations between macroeconomic inputs, such as GDP, unemployment rates and inflation rates, and
the effect on PDs, EADs and LGDs

e  Selection of forward-looking macroeconomic scenarios and their probability weightings, to derive the economic inputs
into the ECL models

It is the Bank’s policy to annually review its models in the context of actual loss experience and adjust when necessary.
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3. Significant accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions (cont’d.)
Fair value of derivative financial instruments

When the fair value of derivative financial instruments recorded in the statement of financial position cannot be measured
based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques including the discounted cash
flow model. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a
degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values. Changes in assumptions could affect the reported fair value of
derivative financial instruments. See Note 34 for further disclosures.

Revaluation of properties

The Bank carries its investment properties at fair value, with changes in fair value being recognised in the statement of profit
or loss. In addition, the Bank measures its land and buildings at revalued amounts, with changes in fair value being recognised
in OCIL The Bank engages an independent valuation specialist to assess fair value of both investment properties and the land
and buildings. Properties were valued principally by reference to market-based evidence, using comparable prices and income
approaches adjusted for specific market factors such as nature, location and condition of the buildings. The Bank engaged an
independent valuation specialist to assess fair values as at 31 December 2024 for the investment properties and as at 31
December 2021 for land and buildings.

This valuation assessment requires exercise of judgment from management and independent valuer based on their experience
of those properties as well as other assumptions described in Note 34.

Determination of significant influence over an entity in which the Bank holds less than 20% voting right

The Bank considers that it has significant influence over MIK Holding JSC (“MIK”) even though it owns less than 20% of the
voting rights. This is because the Bank is one of the largest shareholders of MIK with a 10% equity interest (effective interest
of 13.58%) whilst the majority of the other shareholders hold less than 10% equity interests. Additionally, certain related parties
of the Bank holds around 37.38% (effective interest of 50.78%) equity interests in MIK, thus the voting power of the Bank
together with its related parties are larger than that of any other shareholder of MIK. Furthermore, the Bank enters into material
transactions with MIK throughout the year on a regular basis. Although these transactions are entered into during ordinary
course of business, the volume and amount are considered material.

4. Interest and similar income
2024 2023
MNT’000 MNT’000
Interest income calculated using the effective interest method
Loans and advances to customers 746,005,561 502,863,241
Debt instrument at FVOCI 200,625,130 122,654,748
Due from banks and financial institutions 53,800,126 39,322,246
Cash and balances with BoM 31,390,192 37,570,628
Reverse repurchase agreements 798,388 303,052
Debt instrument at amortised cost 22,147 19,219,201
1,032,641,544 721,933,116
Other interest and similar income
Financial assets at FVTPL 33,424,147 31,745,201
Loans and advances to customers measured at FVTPL 19,930,983 11,034,082
53,355,130 42,779,283
5. Interest and similar expenses
2024 2023
MNT’000 MNT’000
Due to customers 524,718,809 375,598,199
Borrowed funds 61,057,810 78,350,667
Repurchase agreements 4,627,135 10,962,353
Debt securities issued 4,200,696 -
Liabilities for loans sold to MIK with recourse (Note 17) 3,513,169 -
Due to banks and financial institutions 2,558,585 2,086,910
Lease liabilities (Note 22) 1,802,903 2,050,311
602,479,107 469,048,440
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6. Net fees and commission income

2024 2023
MNT’000 MNT’000
Fees and commission income from providing financial services at a point in time:
Card service 45,869,285 39,441,990
Wire transfer 21,330,572 18,975,795
Loan related service 10,790,682 9,789,095
Mobile and internet-banking service 9,831,325 7,581,552
Others 6,219,725 3,556,703
94,041,589 79,345,135
Fee income earned from services that are provided over time
Financial guarantee 18,956,006 12,084,388
Card service 3,987,160 3,089,117
22,943,166 15,173,505
Total fee income 116,984,755 94,518,640
Fees and commission expenses
Card service charges 35,385,841 27,875,380
Others 4,975,200 5,283,671
40,361,041 33,159,051
Net fees and commission income 76,623,714 61,359,589
7. Trading and other operating income
2024 2023
MNT’000 MNT’000
Foreign exchange gain, net 32,676,512 43,851,423
Precious metal trading gain, net 18,510,635 1,630,146
Unrealised gain/(loss) on fair value of derivatives 13,881,202 (2,719,591)
Fair value change of other receivables 7,630,492 -
Valuation gain on investment property (Note 19) 3,053,461 2,873,791
Gain/(loss) on disposal of foreclosed properties, net 1,061,392 2,097,115
Amortisation of deferred grant (Note 29) 748,866 203,242
Gain/(loss) of fair value of financial investments at FVOCI 620,874 (69,385)
Gain on disposal of financial investment at FVTPL (Note 14) 300,000 -
Dividend income (Note 14) 221,276 194,694
Gain on disposal of asset-held-for sale, net 158,782 -
(Loss)/gain on disposal of property and equipment, net (5,306,473) 21,290
Net swap interest expense (4,524,781) (7,137,392)
Loss on repurchase of debt securities (Note 28) (2,246,097) -
Fair value change of equity instrument at FVTPL - 1,700,000
Gain on disposal of investment property - 385,314
Modification loss on other loans receivables - (8,311,181)
Others 21,152,523 19,971,022
87,938,664 54,690,488
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8. Credit loss expense

2024 2023

MNT’000 MNT’000

Loans and advances to customers (Note 17) 16,564,682 11,761,534
Other assets (Note 18) 5,962,840 20,194,888
Debt instrument measured at FVOCI (Note 14) 2,589,426 334,357
Balances with BoM (Note 12) 160,376 138,967
Due from other banks and financial institutions (Note 13) 4,202 35,986
Credit commitment (Note 32) (2,632,953) 3,116,152

Debt instrument measured at amortised cost (Note 14) (15,515) (162,837)
22,633,058 35,419,047

9. Operating expenses

2024 2023

MNT’000 MNT’000

Personnel expense 103,242,976 88,706,960
Insurance 18,837,531 16,126,922
Advertising and public relations 18,248,858 14,280,646
Depreciation on property and equipment (Note 21) 17,364,478 14,180,303
IT maintenance 8,742,276 6,651,094
Technical assistance and foreign bank remittance fee 7,908,945 5,431,175
Depreciation of right-of-use assets (Note 22) 7,386,391 6,782,507
Professional services fee 5,990,902 6,977,664
Stationery and supplies 4,207,310 4,064,581
Communication 3,935,631 3,376,244
Repairs and maintenance 3,576,900 1,040,921
Reception and entertainment 3,203,291 507,053
Cash handling 2,125,830 461,967
Utility expenses 1,843,831 1,701,473
Write-off of property and equipment (Note 21) 1,403,605 110,214
Business travel expenses 1,353,238 1,530,279
Amortisation of intangible asset (Note 23) 1,092,379 920,110
Rental expense 1,074,150 773,674
Transportation 593,274 506,333
Training expenses 365,836 646,280
Security 293,672 1,263,146
Write-off of intangible assets (Note 23) 967 1,809
Loss on disposal of asset held for sale - 8,831
Others 19,416,774 7,710,160
232,209,045 183,760,346

The professional service fee includes audit fees of MNT 980,469 thousand (2023: MNT 902,340 thousand).
10. Income taxes
10.1 Income tax expense

The income tax expense for the year ended 31 December 2024 and 2023 are:

2024 2023
MNT’000 MNT’000
Income tax:
Current income tax 85,569,338 45,160,560
Deferred tax:
Relating to temporary differences (Note 10.2) 4,000,906 427,154
89,570,244 45,587,714
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10. Income taxes (cont’d.)

10.1 Income tax expense (cont’d.)

The Bank provides for income taxes on the basis of its income for financial reporting purposes, adjusted for items which are
not assessable or deductible for income tax purposes. The income tax rate for profits of the Bank is 10% (2023: 10%) for the
first MNT 6 billion (2023: MNT 6 billion) of taxable income and 25% (2023: 25%) on the excess of taxable income over MNT
6 billion (2023: MNT 6 billion). Interest income on government bonds is not subject to income tax.

A reconciliation of income tax expense applicable to profit before tax at the statutory income tax rate to income tax expense at

the effective income tax rate of the Bank for the year ended 31 December 2024 and 2023 are as follows:

Profit before income tax

Tax at statutory rate of 25% (2023: 25%)

Effect of expenses not deductible for income tax purpose

Special tax rate
Tax rate difference
Effect of non-taxable income

Effect of income exempted from taxation

Effect of tax credit
Tax expense

The effective income tax rate for 2024 is 23.07% (2023: 23.16%).

10.2 Deferred tax liabilities

As at 31 December 2024

Deferred tax (assets)/liabilities

Revaluation of financial investments

measured at FVOCI

Revaluation of derivative financial

instruments
Share of profit of an associate
Lease liabilities and ROU asset

As at 31 December 2023

Deferred tax (assets)/liabilities

Revaluation of financial investments

measured at FVOCI

Revaluation of derivative financial

instruments
Share of profit of an associate
Lease liabilities and ROU asset

2024 2023
MNT’000 MNT’000
388,205,863 196,806,181
97,051,466 49,201,545
8,461,841 8,153,101
1,476,229 941,635
(5,756,255) (4,315,919)
(799,235) (1,410,671)
(5,858,602) (6,774,069)
(5,005,200) (207,908)
89,570,244 45,587,714
Recognised in
other
Asat 1 comprehensive Recognised As at 31
January 2024 income in profit or loss December 2024
MNT’000 MNT’000 MNT’000 MNT’000
3,818,137 2,287,234 - 6,105,371
3,058,458 - 3,470,301 6,528,759
(530,605) - 530,605 -
46,872 - - 46,872
6,392,862 2,287,234 4,000,906 12,681,002
Recognised in
other
Asat 1 comprehensive Recognised in As at 31
January 2023 income profitor loss  December 2023
MNT’000 MNT’000 MNT’000 MNT’000
254,219 3,563,918 - 3,818,137
3,058,458 - - 3,058,458
(957,759) - 427,154 (530,605)
46,872 — — 46,872
2,401,790 3,563,918 427,154 6,392,862
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11.  Earnings per share

The following table shows the income and share data used in the basic and diluted earnings per share calculations:

2024 2023
MNT’000 MNT’000
Profit attributable to ordinary equity holders - basic and diluted 298,635,619 151,218,467
Adjusted weighted average number of ordinary shares for EPS 50,600,927 49,690,110
Earnings per share
MNT MNT
Equity holders of the Bank for the period.:
Basic earnings per share 5,902 3,043
Diluted earnings per share 5,902 3,043

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit by the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue
during the year (See Note 30).

12.  Cash and balances with Bank of Mongolia

2024 2023

MNT’000 MNT’000

Cash on hand 64,286,885 68,202,441
Current accounts with BoM 2,756,935,248 1,049,656,108
Deposit accounts with BoM 273,891,188 1,191,259,381
Gross carrying amount 3,095,113,321 2,309,117,930
Less: Allowance for impairment losses on balances with BoM (548,160) (387,784)
Net cash and balances with BoM 3,094,565,161 2,308,730,146

Current accounts with BoM are maintained in accordance with BoM regulations. The balances maintained with BoM are
determined at not less than 11.0% (2023: 8.0%) of customer deposits for local currency and not less than 16.0% (2023: 18.0%)
of customer deposits for foreign currency based on average balance of two weeks.

As at 31 December 2024, the average reserves required by BoM for that period of two weeks were MNT 653,611,546 thousand
(2023: MNT 323,409,967 thousand) for local currency and MNT 537,712,745 thousand (2023: MNT 738,326,513 thousand)
for foreign currency maintained on current accounts with BoM.

Impairment allowance for cash and balances with BoM

The table below shows the credit quality and the maximum exposure excluding cash on hand to credit risk based on the Bank’s
internal credit rating system and year-end stage classification. The amounts presented are gross of impairment allowances. As at 31
December 2024 and 2023, the balances have credit rating of B- and classified as stage 1. Details of the Bank’s internal grading
system and policies about whether ECL allowances are calculated on an individual or collective basis are set out in Note 33:

Total
Exposure at ECL
default
12 month Stage 1 Stage 1
PD range MNT’000 MNT’000
31 December 2024 2.481% 3,030,826,436 (548,160)
31 December 2023 2.447% 2,240,915,489 (387,784)
An analysis of changes in the ECL allowance as at 31 December 2024 and 2023 were as follows:
2024 2023
MNT’000 MNT’000
At 1 January 387,784 248,817
Net charge for the year (Note 8) 160,376 138,967
At 31 December 548,160 387,784
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12.  Cash and balances with Bank of Mongolia (cont’d.)

Additional cashflow information

Cash and balances with BoM (Note 12)

Due from banks and financial institutions (Note 13)

Unquoted BoM treasury bills - less than three months (Note 14)

Gross carrying cash and cash equivalents amount

Less: Minimum reserve with the BoM not available to finance the Bank's day
to day operations

Less: Placement with foreign bank as cash collateral

Less: Unquoted BoM treasury bills - less than three months held as collateral

Net cash and cash equivalents

13.  Due from other banks and financial institutions

Current accounts with foreign banks and financial institutions
Current accounts with local banks and financial institutions
Placement with foreign banks and financial institutions
Placement with local banks and financial institutions
Placement with foreign bank as cash collateral

Gross carrying amount

Less: Allowance for impairment losses

Net due from banks and other financial institutions balance

Impairment allowance for due from other banks and financial institutions

2024
MNT’000

3,095,113,321
1,396,784,669
1,837,294,011

2023
MNT’000

2,309,117,930
1,651,839,858
1,363,375,430

6,329,192,001

5,324,333,218

(1,191,324,291)

(1,061,736,480)

(104,373,133) (3,644,263)
(20,300,191) (46,255,897)
5,013,194,386 4,212,696,578
2024 2023
MNT’000 MNT’000
605,033,198 860,814,839
881,051 5,085,812
342,228,576 488,141,631
344,268,711 294,153,313
104,373,133 3,644,263
1,396,784,669 1,651,839,858
(45,685) (41,483)
1,396,738,984 1,651,798,375

The table below shows the credit quality and the maximum exposure to credit risk based on the Bank’s internal credit rating
system and year-end stage classification. The amounts presented are gross of impairment allowances. Details of the Bank’s
internal grading system and policies about whether ECL allowances are calculated on an individual or collective basis are set

out in Note 33.

12 month
PD range
At 31 December 2024

Internal rating grade

A- to AA+ rated 0.025% - 0.08%

BBB- to BBB+ 0.255%
B- to BB+ 0.814% - 2.605%
Not rated 8.33%

At 31 December 2023

Internal rating grade

A- to AA+ rated 0.011%-0.043%

BBB- to BBB+ 0.173%
B- to BB+ 0.687%-2.735%
Not rated 10.89%

38

Total
Exposure at default ECL
Stage 1 Stage 1
MNT’000 MNT’000
938,894,009 1,237
7,802,859 31
440,707,971 43,163
9,379,830 1,254
1,396,784,669 45,685
1,344,103,021 3,437
1,618,714 4
300,956,089 37,127
5,162,034 915
1,651,839,858 41,483
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13.  Due from other banks and financial institutions (cont’d.)

An analysis of changes in the ECL allowance as at 31 December 2024 and 2023 are as follows:

Gross carrying amount as at 1 January
New assets originated or purchased
Repaid amounts

Foreign exchange adjustments

At 31 December

ECL allowance as at 1 January

New assets originated or purchased

Assets derecognised or repaid (excluding write-offs)
Changes to assumptions

Net charge for the year (Note 8)

At 31 December

14. Financial investments

Debt instruments measured at FVOCI:
Bank of Mongolia bills (a)

Government USD bond (b)

Government MNT bond (c)

Green recycle bond, quoted (d)

MIK USD bond (e)

Equity instruments measured at FVOCI
Quoted equities (f)
Unquoted equities (g)

Equity instruments measured at FVTPL
Unquoted equities (h)

Debt instruments at amortised cost
Loan backed securities - Senior tranche (i)

Financial assets at FVTPL
Residential mortgage-backed securities (j)
Loan backed securities - Junior tranche (i)

2024
Stage 1
MNT’000

1,651,839,858
83,022,870,997
(83,275,066,201)

2023
Stage 1
MNT’000

767,073,137
57,190,702,069
(56,296,422,836)

(2,859,985) (9,512,512)
1,396,784,669 1,651,839,858
41,483 5,497

45,938 32
(40,001) (2,323)
(1,735) 38,277

4202 35,986

45,685 41,483

2024 2023
MNT’000 MNT’000

1,837,294,011

1,363,375,430

492,330,245 105,989,124
150,454,795 -
10,418,175 -

- 41,170,073
2,490,497,226 1,510,534,627
47,094,211 38,804,358
3,538,351 3,168,023
50,632,562 41,972,381

— 1,700,000

- 1,700,000

- 1,311,976

- 1,311,976
362,556,440 360,010,446
292,792 2,399,558
362,849,232 362,410,004
2,903,979,020 1,917,928,988

(a) Unquoted BoM treasury bills are purchased either at par, premium or discount.
(b) Quoted government bonds represent investment in government bonds listed on foreign market.

(¢) Quoted government MNT bonds represent investment in government bonds listed on domestic market.

(d) Quoted corporate bonds represent investment in Green recycle bond listed on domestic market.
(e) Quoted corporate bond represent investment in Mongolian Mortgage Corporation HFC LLC (“MIK HFC”) bond listed

on foreign market, which have fully matured in 2024.
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14. Financial investments (cont’d.)

(f) Quoted equity securities represent investments made in Visa Inc. The Bank received dividends of MNT 221,276 thousand
from its investment in Visa Inc (2023: MNT 194,694 thousand) (see Note 7).

(g) Unquoted equity securities represent investments made in unquoted private companies. The Bank holds non-controlling
interests in these companies. These investments were irrevocably designated at fair value through OCI as the Bank
considers these investments to be strategic in nature.

(h) During the year, the Bank disposed its unquoted equity securities in Mongolian National Rare Earth Corporation LLC and
recognised a gain of MNT 300 million (see Note 7).

(i) Loan-backed securities (“LBSs”) represent Junior and Senior tranches of, and interest-bearing long-term securities issued
by, wholly owned special purpose companies of Securities Financing Corporation LLC (“SFC”). The Bank transferred
fixed rate repurchase agreement financed business loans to SFC without recourse and received the LBSs in exchange.

(j) Residential mortgage-backed securities (“RMBSs”) represent Junior and Senior tranches of interest-bearing long-term
securities issued by MIK HFC (see Note 17).

Impairment allowance for financial investments

The table below shows the fair value of the Bank’s debt instruments measured at FVOCI and measured at amortised cost by
credit risk including ECL allowance, based on the Bank’s internal credit rating system and year-end stage classification. As at
31 December 2024 and 2023, the debt instruments have credit ratings of B- to B+ and are classified as stage 1. Details of the
Bank’s internal grading system and policies for ECL allowances are set out in Note 33.

2024
Fair value/
Gross carrying

2023
Fair value/
Gross carrying

amount ECL amount ECL
MNT’000 MNT’000 MNT’000 MNT’000

Debt instruments at FVOCI
As at 1 January 1,510,534,627 1,051,793 1,079,812,762 717,436
New assets originated or purchased 22,683,500,912 3,641,219 9,232,252,460 935,714

Payments and assets derecognised (21,704,810,075) (1,051,793) (8,819,778,863) (608,578)
Changes in fair value 859,083 - 5,751,514 7,221
Foreign exchange adjustments 412,679 - 12,496,754 -
Net charge for the year (Note 8) - 2,589,426 - 334,357
As at 31 December 2,490,497,226 3,641,219 1,510,534,627 1,051,793
Debt instruments at AC

As at 1 January 1,327,491 15,515 250,731,568 178,352
New assets originated or purchased - - 2,823,891 15,515
Payments and assets derecognised (1,327,491) (15,515) (252,227,968) (178,352)
Net reversal for the year (Note 8) - (15,515) - (162,837)
As at 31 December — — 1,327,491 15,515

15. Investment in associate

As of 31 December 2024, the Bank holds 10.00% (2023: 10.00%) (or effective holding around 13.58% (2023: 13.58%) taking
into account of the effect of treasury shares) in MIK (see Note 3).

MIK’s principal activities include purchasing of mortgage pools by issuing RMBS securitised by those mortgage pools in
Mongolia or proceeds from its senior notes issued in the international capital market. MIK is a public entity that is listed on
the MSE. The Bank holds a total of 2,070,932 MIK shares as of 31 December 2024 (2023: 2,070,932 shares), the closing price
of MIK shares at MSE at 31 December 2024 was MNT 16,570 per share (2023: MNT 22,000 per share).

As of the date of this report, MIK has issued its audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024. The Bank’s
interest in MIK is accounted for using the equity method based on MIK’s audited financial statements as at 31 December 2024
and 2023.
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15. Investment in associate (cont’d.)

MNT’000
1 January 2023 924,685
Share of profit of an associate for the year 3,817,834
Adjustment in Company’s share of profit/loss of prior year 453,704
Total share of profit of an associate 4,271,538
At 31 December 2023 and 1 January 2024 5,196,223

Share of loss of an associate for the year (5,031,979)
At 31 December 2024 164,244

The following table illustrates the summarised financial information of the Bank’s investment in MIK:
2024 2023
MNT’000 MNT’000
Investee: MIK

Total assets 5,107,401,668 5,180,166,368

Total liabilities (5,106,192,211) (5,141,902,576)
Equity 1,209,457 38,263,792
Bank's share of equity 13.58% (2023: 13.58%) 164,244 5,196,223
Net interest income for the year 51,027,270 83,224,706
Total comprehensive income/loss for the year (37,054,335) 28,113,656

16. Derivative financial instruments

The table below shows the fair values of derivative financial instruments recorded as assets or liabilities together with their notional
amounts. The notional amount, recorded gross, is the amount of a derivative’s underlying asset, reference rate or index and is the
basis upon which changes in the value of derivatives are measured. The notional amounts indicate the volume of transactions
outstanding at the year end and are indicative of neither the market risk nor the credit risk.

Notional Fair value
amount Assets Liabilities
MNT'000 MNT'000 MNT'000
At 31 December 2024
Derivatives held for trading
Cross-currency interest rate swaps with BoM (a) 1,126,233,035 11,492,365 9,808,999
Cross-currency interest rate swaps with MIK (b) 620,993,151 4,165,860 1,821,143
Cross-currency interest rate swaps with others (c) 62,351,320 2,764,817 -
Commodity swaps (d) 227,990,889 70,298,397 58,928,045
Forwards 35,604,803 62,692 71,931
2,073,173,198 88,784,131 70,630,118
At 31 December 2023
Derivatives held for trading
Cross-currency interest rate swaps with MIK (b) 515,730,880 1,135,791 152,977,717
Cross-currency interest rate swaps with BoM (a) 726,552,450 167,518,868 6,132,032
Cross-currency interest rate swaps with others (c) 62,351,320 3,533,918 —
1,304,634,650 172,188,577 159,109,749

At their inception, derivatives often involve only a mutual exchange of promises with little or no transfer of consideration.
However, these instruments frequently involve a high degree of leverage and are very volatile. A relatively small movement
in the value of the asset, rate or index underlying a derivative contract may have a significant impact on the profit or loss of
the Bank.

The Bank’s exposure under derivative contracts is closely monitored as part of the overall management of its market risk. The
Bank’s risk management strategy and how it is applied to manage its risks is disclosed in Note 33.
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16. Derivative financial instruments (cont’d.)

(a) The Bank enters into cross-currency interest rate swap agreements with BoM. At initiation, the Bank has paid USD funds
to BoM and received MNT funds at the spot rate. During the term of the agreement with BoM, the Bank receives interest on
USD funds at SOFR plus certain margin and pays interest on MNT funds at the central bank policy rate. At the end of the term
of agreements, the parties shall exchange the principal payments at the exchange rate of the initial transaction.

(b) On 23 February 2024 and 15 April 2024, the Bank entered into cross-currency interest rate swap agreements with MIK
HFC (derivative financial liability) and entered into a respective offsetting position with BoM (derivative financial asset) on
the same day, whereby the Bank has acted as an intermediary institution. At initiation, the Bank received USD funds from MIK
HFC and paid MNT funds at the spot rate, simultaneous to which the Bank has paid USD funds to BoM and received MNT
funds at the spot rate. During the term of the agreement with BoM, the Bank receives interest on USD funds at SOFR plus a
certain margin and pays interest on MNT funds at the central bank policy rate. Whereas during the term of the agreement with
MIK HFC, the Bank pays interest on USD funds at rate equal to the rate received from BoM and receives interest on MNT
funds at central bank repo rate plus 0.1%. At the end of the term of both agreements, the Bank shall pay or receive the difference
incurred by the exchange rates at the end of the term.

(c) The Bank entered into cross-currency interest rate swap agreements with Digital Concept LLC (derivative financial liability)
on 14 August 2023 and 2 October 2023, respectively, and entered into respective offsetting position with BoM (derivative
financial asset) on the same days, whereby the Bank has acted as an intermediary institution. At initiation, the Bank received
USD funds from Digital Concept LLC and paid MNT funds at the spot rate, simultaneous to which the Bank has paid USD
funds to BoM and received MNT funds at the spot rate. During the term of the agreement with BoM, the Bank receives interest
on USD funds at SOFR plus certain margin and pays interest on MNT funds at the central bank policy rate. Whereas during
the term of the agreement with the company, the Bank pays interest on USD funds at rate equal to the rate received from BoM
and receives interest on MNT funds at central bank repo rate plus 1%. At the end of the term of both agreements, the Bank
shall pay or receive the difference incurred by the exchange rates at the end of the term.

(d) On 14 March 2024, the Bank has entered into a forward agreement with Boroo Gold LLC, along with a respective offsetting
position commodity trading financial institution. The agreement is effective from 14 March 2024 until 30 June 2025. In relation
with the trade with commodity trading financial institution, the Bank has placed cash deposits amounting to USD 28.7 million
(MNT 98 billion), included within the placement with foreign bank as cash collateral. (Note 13).

17. Loans and advances to customers

2024
MNT’000

2023
MNT’000

Corporate 3,334,506,297 3,346,336,133
Retail loan 1,881,283,420 1,128,045,255
Small and Medium-sized enterprise (SME) 824,036,260 598,955,743
Loans to executives, directors and staffs 24,622,453 23,475,898
Gross loans and advances to customers 6,064,448,430 5,096,813,029
Allowance for impairment losses (308,214,875) (411,987,392)
Net loans and advances to customers 5,756,233,555 4,684,825,637
Loans and advances to customers at FVTPL 423,335,998 248,631,585
Total loans and advances to customers 6,179,569,553 4,933,457,222

Transferred financial assets that are derecognised in their entirety
Sale of mortgage pools

During the year the Bank sold 100% of the rights of the cash flows arising from portfolios of fixed rate mortgage loans to
wholly owned special purpose companies of MIK HFC in exchange for RMBS. The Bank derecognised the loan portfolio
amounting to MNT 104,590,932 thousand (2023: MNT 279,126,790 thousand) and recognised the Senior RMBS and Junior
RMBS received as financial assets (see Note 14). The Bank’s continuing involvement in the transferred assets is also to act as
a servicer of the transferred assets until their maturity, with a quarterly servicing fee of 2.5% of the serviced amount. The total
servicing fee recognised in 2024 amounted to MNT 5,449 million (2023: MNT 5,205 million) which is included within Fees
and commission income.

Loans and advances to customers at FVPL

As of 31 December 2024, the Bank holds mortgage portfolio of loans and advances to customers to be sold to MIK HFC
amounting to MNT 423,336 million (2023: 248,632 million), which were classified as measured at FVTPL.
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17. Loans and advances to customers (cont’d.)

Transferred financial assets that are not derecognised in their entirety

Furthermore, the Bank participated in monetisation transactions with MIK HFC for selling of loan pools collateralised by
immovable assets with recourse. The Bank sold MNT 50,667 million (2023: nil) of loans to MIK, for which the Bank received
funding bearing an interest rate of 12% p.a. The Bank retained all of the risks and rewards related to the loans sold to MIK
HFC within these transactions. Therefore, the assets do not qualify for derecognition. The assets not qualified for derecognition
amounted to MNT 44,418 million as at 31 December 2024 (2023: nil) (Note 29).

Impairment allowance for loans and advances to customers

The tables below show the credit quality and the maximum exposure to credit risk based on the Bank’s internal credit rating
system and year-end stage classification. The amounts presented are gross of impairment allowances. Details of the Bank’s
internal grading system and policies on whether ECL allowances are calculated on an individual or collective basis are set out

in Note 33.

At 31 December 2024

Gross carrying amount as at 1 January
2024

New assets originated or purchased

Assets derecognised or repaid

Net movement on accrued interest

Movement on segment change

Write-offs

Foreign exchange adjustments

At 31 December 2024

ECL allowance as at 1 January 2024

New assets originated or purchased

Assets derecognised or repaid

Net movement on accrued interest

Impact on ECL from stage transfers and
input changes

Impact on ECL from segment changes

Net charge for the year (Note 8)

Write-offs

Foreign exchange adjustments

At 31 December 2024

Corporate SME Retail Total
MNT’000 MNT’000 MNT’000 MNT’000
3,346,336,133 599,615,465 1,150,861,431 5,096,813,029
1,507,835,539 492,286,444 1,439,890,580 3,440,012,563
(1,396,875,752) (251,101,989) (695,064,953) (2,343,042,694)
(14,387,775) (702,094) 9,537,608 (5,552,261)
15,189,645 (15,189,645) - -
(121,671,012) (29,903) (136,431) (121,837,346)
(1,920,481) (32,134) 7,754 (1,944,861)
3,334,506,297 824,846,144 1,905,095,989 6,064,448,430
359,678,015 36,171,813 16,137,564 411,987,392
41,314,235 4,281,687 5,641,829 51,237,751
(76,679,779) (11,819,363) (6,381,776) (94,880,918)
8,610,636 356,759 1,202,999 10,170,394
40,281,273 6,459,969 3,296,213 50,037,455
179,416 (179,416) - -
13,705,781 (900,364) 3,759,265 16,564,682
(121,671,012) (29,903) (136,431) (121,837,346)
1,459,188 40,578 381 1,500,147
253,171,972 35,282,124 19,760,779 308,214,875
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Impairment allowance for loans and advances to customers (cont’d.)

At 31 December 2023 Corporate SME Retail Total
MNT’000 MNT’000 MNT’000 MNT’000
Gross carrying amount as at 1 January
2023 3,238,302,119 420,167,378 628,521,161 4,286,990,658
New assets originated or purchased 1,225,001,918 368,596,902 913,846,138 2,507,444,958
Assets derecognised or repaid (1,014,257,559) (183,611,608) (391,952,628) (1,589,821,795)
Net movement on accrued interest (11,718,519) (1,372,942) 488,148 (12,603,313)
Movement on segment change 4,145,829 (4,145,829) - -
Write-offs (78,326,253) (14,247) (16,456) (78,356,956)
Foreign exchange adjustments (16,811,402) (4,189) (24,932) (16,840,523)
At 31 December 2023 3,346,336,133 599,615,465 1,150,861,431 5,096,813,029
ECL allowance as at 1 January 2023 429,176,309 33,990,825 17,517,692 480,684,826
New assets originated or purchased 31,557,019 5,312,242 2,847,530 39,716,791
Assets derecognised or repaid (29,181,950) (9,156,939) (5,413,433) (43,752,322)
Net movement on accrued interest 6,940,724 239,847 270,390 7,450,961
Impact on ECL from stage transfers and
input changes 1,532,900 5,866,785 946,419 8,346,104
Impact on ECL from segment changes 66,847 (66,847) — —
Net charge for the year (Note 8) 10,915,540 2,195,088 (1,349,094) 11,761,534
Write-offs (78,326,253) (14,247) (16,456) (78,356,956)
Foreign exchange adjustments (2,087,581) 147 (14,578) (2,102,012)
At 31 December 2023 359,678,015 36,171,813 16,137,564 411,987,392
Corporate SME Retail Total
MNT'000 MNT'000 MNT'000 MNT'000
At 31 December 2024
Performing 2,696,367,463 779,988,555 1,853,791,196 5,330,147,214
Special mention 424,250,947 1,091,510 22,498,246 447,840,703
Substandard 78,491,924 16,000,384 13,829,626 108,321,934
Doubtful 377,025 1,514,920 4,819,774 6,711,719
Loss 135,018,938 26,250,775 10,157,147 171,426,860
Total 3,334,506,297 824,846,144 1,905,095,989 6,064,448,430
At 31 December 2023
Performing 2,386,451,751 554,897,185 1,127,526,777 4,068,875,713
Special mention 391,754,945 4,121,198 5,528,808 401,404,951
Substandard 132,326,310 12,540,207 4,684,732 149,551,249
Doubtful 123,447,377 2,474,805 1,296,954 127,219,136
Loss 312,355,750 25,582,070 11,824,160 349,761,980
Total 3,346,336,133 599,615,465 1,150,861,431 5,096,813,029

The tables also include an analysis of changes in the gross carrying amount and the corresponding ECL allowances including
the credit quality of the financial assets under [FRS 9, as follows:
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17. Loans and advances to customers (cont’d.)

Impairment allowance for loans and advances to customers (cont’d.)

Corporate loan

Gross carrying amount as at 1 January
2024

New assets originated or purchased

Assets derecognised or repaid

Net movement on accrued interest

Movement on segment change

Transfer to/(from) Stage 1

Transfer to/(from) Stage 2

Transfer to/(from) Stage 3

Write-offs

Foreign exchange adjustments

At 31 December 2024

ECL allowance as at 1 January 2024

New assets originated or purchased

Assets derecognised or repaid

Net movement on accrued interest

Transfer to/(from) Stage 1

Transfer to/(from) Stage 2

Transfer to/(from) Stage 3

Impact on ECL from stage transfer and
input changes

Impact on ECL from segment changes

Write-offs

Foreign exchange adjustments

At 31 December 2024

Gross carrying amount as at 1 January
2023

New assets originated or purchased

Assets derecognised or repaid

Net movement on accrued interest

Movement on segment change

Transfer to/(from) Stage 1

Transfer to/(from) Stage 2

Transfer to/(from) Stage 3

Write-offs

Foreign exchange adjustments

At 31 December 2023

ECL allowance as at 1 January 2023

New assets originated or purchased

Assets derecognised or repaid

Net movement on accrued interest

Transfer to/(from) Stage 1

Transfer to/(from) Stage 2

Transfer to/(from) Stage 3

Impact on ECL from stage transfer and
input changes

Impact on ECL from segment changes

Write-offs

Foreign exchange adjustments

At 31 December 2023

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

MNT’000 MNT’000 MNT’000 MNT’000
2,072,288,198 705,918,498 568,129,437 3,346,336,133
1,507,835,539 - - 1,507,835,539

(1,108,087,134) (68,615,535) (220,173,083) (1,396,875,752)

8,975,662 1,247,414 (24,610,851) (14,387,775)
15,189,645 - - 15,189,645
37,582,819 (37,582,819) - -
(41,353,945) 57,524,803 (16,170,858) -
(40,984) (28,300,482) 28,341,466 -

- - (121,671,012) (121,671,012)

(2,453,417) 490,148 42,788 (1,920,481)
2,489,936,383 630,682,027 213,887,887 3,334,506,297
43,034,486 96,236,367 220,407,162 359,678,015
41,314,235 - - 41,314,235

(35,836,750) (20,932,585) (19,910,444) (76,679,779)
(193,695) 9,301,125 (496,794) 8,610,636
930,180 (930,171) ) -
(1,601,110) 2,308,355 (707,245) -
(520) (2,641,291) 2,641,811 -
(26,224,921) 48,509,632 17,996,562 40,281,273
178,459 957 - 179,416

- - (121,671,012) (121,671,012)
(50,843) 68,261 1,441,770 1,459,188
21,549,521 131,920,650 99,701,801 253,171,972
1,388,205,286 1,065,059,888 785,036,945 3,238,302,119
1,225,001,918 - - 1,225,001,918

(856,280,160) (50,136,183) (107,841,216) (1,014,257,559)

(5,858,253) 13,286,446 (19,146,712) (11,718,519)
4,027,653 118,176 - 4,145,829
402,146,665 (373,017,891) (29,128,774) -
(61,146,722) 64,599,609 (3,452,887) -
(10,980,676) (6,480,932) 17,461,608 -

- (4,476,807) (73,849,446) (78,326,253)

(12,827,513) (3,033,808) (950,081) (16,811,402)
2,072,288,198 705,918,498 568,129,437 3,346,336,133
31,516,591 104,711,557 292,948,161 429,176,309
31,557,019 - - 31,557,019

(29,233,793) (1,026,656) 1,078,499 (29,181,950)
(315,829) 3,137,456 4,119,097 6,940,724
21,296,491 (16,681,391) (4,615,100) -
(2,115,175) 3,484,764 (1,369,589) -
(278,292) (524,263) 802,555 -
(8,762,601) 8,090,161 2,205,340 1,532,900
55,902 10,945 - 66,847

- (4,476,807) (73,849,446) (78,326,253)

(685,827) (489,399) (912,355) (2,087,581)
43,034,486 96,236,367 220,407,162 359,678,015
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17. Loans and advances to customers (cont’d.)

Corporate loan (cont’d.)

Credit quality of gross carrying amounts as at 31 December 2024 and 2023:

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
MNT'000 MNT'000 MNT'000 MNT'000
At 31 December 2024
Performing 2,489,936,383 206,431,080 - 2,696,367,463
Special mention - 424,250,947 - 424,250,947
Substandard - - 78,491,924 78,491,924
Doubtful - - 377,025 377,025
Loss - - 135,018,938 135,018,938
Total 2,489,936,383 630,682,027 213,887,887 3,334,506,297
At 31 December 2023
Performing 2,072,288,198 314,163,553 - 2,386,451,751
Special mention - 391,754,945 - 391,754,945
Substandard - - 132,326,310 132,326,310
Doubtful - - 123,447,377 123,447,377
Loss — — 312,355,750 312,355,750
Total 2,072,288,198 705,918,498 568,129,437 3,346,336,133
SME loan
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
MNT’000 MNT’000 MNT’000 MNT’000
Gross carrying amount as at 1 January
2024 538,704,781 20,313,602 40,597,082 599,615,465
New assets originated or purchased 492,286,444 - - 492,286,444
Assets derecognised or repaid (233,652,370) (4,198,273) (13,251,346) (251,101,989)
Net movement on accrued interest (816,505) 180,421 (66,010) (702,094)
Movement on segment change (15,189,645) - - (15,189,645)
Transfer to/(from) Stage 1 5,832,021 (4,241,667) (1,590,354) -
Transfer to/(from) Stage 2 (16,582,599) 16,582,599 - -
Transfer to/(from) Stage 3 (9,245,992) (8,860,618) 18,106,610 -
Write-offs - - (29,903) (29,903)
Foreign exchange adjustments (9,494) (22,640) — (32,134)
At 31 December 2024 761,326,641 19,753,424 43,766,079 824,846,144
ECL allowance as at 1 January 2024 6,109,688 1,437,858 28,624,267 36,171,813
New assets originated or purchased 4,281,687 - - 4,281,687
Assets derecognised or repaid (3,283,859) (279,318) (8,256,186) (11,819,363)
Net movement on accrued interest (63,470) 26,998 393,231 356,759
Transfer to/(from) Stage 1 1,400,441 (179,761) (1,220,680) -
Transfer to/(from) Stage 2 (220,589) 220,589 - -
Transfer to/(from) Stage 3 (259,283) (850,505) 1,109,788 -
Impact on ECL from stage transfer and
input changes (2,445,959) 861,412 8,044,516 6,459,969
Impact on ECL from segment changes (178,459) (957) - (179,416)
Write-offs - - (29,903) (29,903)
Foreign exchange adjustments 40,578 - — 40,578
At 31 December 2024 5,380,775 1,236,316 28,665,033 35,282,124
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17. Loans and advances to customers (cont’d.)

SME loan (cont’d.)

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
MNT’000 MNT’000 MNT’000 MNT’000
Gross carrying amount as at 1 January
2023 354,463,706 20,071,784 45,631,888 420,167,378
New assets originated or purchased 368,596,902 - - 368,596,902
Assets derecognised or repaid (170,908,911) (2,821,350) (9,881,347) (183,611,608)
Net movement on accrued interest (1,555,711) 155,604 27,165 (1,372,942)
Movement on segment change (4,027,653) (118,176) - (4,145,829)
Transfer to/(from) Stage 1 9,331,861 (8,857,971) (473,890) -
Transfer to/(from) Stage 2 (12,433,364) 12,888,288 (454,924) -
Transfer to/(from) Stage 3 (4,751,975) (1,010,462) 5,762,437 -
Write-offs - - (14,247) (14,247)
Foreign exchange adjustments (10,074) 5,885 — (4,189)
At 31 December 2023 538,704,781 20,313,602 40,597,082 599,615,465
ECL allowance as at 1 January 2023 6,240,269 1,161,930 26,588,626 33,990,825
New assets originated or purchased 5,312,242 - - 5,312,242
Assets derecognised or repaid (3,697,638) (535,342) (4,923,959) (9,156,939)
Net movement on accrued interest (77,365) 13,200 304,012 239,847
Transfer to/(from) Stage 1 746,073 (517,921) (228,152) -
Transfer to/(from) Stage 2 (435,641) 552,709 (117,068) -
Transfer to/(from) Stage 3 (134,858) (70,251) 205,109 -
Impact on ECL from stage transfer and
input changes (1,787,538) 844,377 6,809,946 5,866,785
Impact on ECL from segment changes (55,902) (10,945) - (66,847)
Write-offs - - (14,247) (14,247)
Foreign exchange adjustments 46 101 — 147
At 31 December 2023 6,109,688 1,437,858 28,624,267 36,171,813
Credit quality of gross carrying amounts as at 31 December 2024 and 2023:
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
MNT'000 MNT'000 MNT'000 MNT'000
At 31 December 2024
Performing 761,326,641 18,661,914 - 779,988,555
Special mention - 1,091,510 - 1,091,510
Substandard - - 16,000,384 16,000,384
Doubtful - - 1,514,920 1,514,920
Loss - - 26,250,775 26,250,775
Total 761,326,641 19,753,424 43,766,079 824,846,144
At 31 December 2023
Performing 538,704,781 16,192,404 - 554,897,185
Special mention - 4,121,198 - 4,121,198
Substandard - - 12,540,207 12,540,207
Doubtful - - 2,474,805 2,474,805
Loss - - 25,582,070 25,582,070
Total 538,704,781 20,313,602 40,597,082 599,615,465
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17. Loans and advances to customers (cont’d.)
Retail loan
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
MNT’000 MNT’000 MNT’000 MNT’000
Gross carrying amount as at 1 January
2024 1,113,951,815 19,103,770 17,805,846 1,150,861,431
New assets originated or purchased 1,439,890,580 - - 1,439,890,580
Assets derecognised or repaid (676,473,390) (10,932,175) (7,659,388) (695,064,953)
Net movement on accrued interest (546,096) 57,110 10,026,594 9,537,608
Transfer to/(from) Stage 1 7,226,349 (5,705,234) (1,521,115) -
Transfer to/(from) Stage 2 (13,943,584) 14,450,195 (506,611) -
Transfer to/(from) Stage 3 (26,530,458) 15,819,370 10,711,088 -
Write-offs (77,816) (8,271) (50,344) (136,431)
Foreign exchange adjustments 6,210 1,067 477 7,754
At 31 December 2024 1,843,503,610 32,785,832 28,806,547 1,905,095,989
ECL allowance as at 1 January 2024 2,898,856 790,369 12,448,339 16,137,564
New assets originated or purchased 5,641,829 - - 5,641,829
Assets derecognised or repaid (4,646,559) (243,257) (1,491,960) (6,381,776)
Net movement on accrued interest (54,182) (5,337) 1,262,518 1,202,999
Transfer to/(from) Stage 1 863,124 (215,922) (647,202) -
Transfer to/(from) Stage 2 (84,654) 230,743 (146,089) -
Transfer to/(from) Stage 3 (39,130) 542,689 (503,559) -
Impact on ECL from stage transfer and
input changes (422,603) 78,029 3,640,787 3,296,213
Write-offs (77,816) (8,271) (50,344) (136,431)
Foreign exchange adjustments 9D 2 470 381
At 31 December 2024 4,078,774 1,169,045 14,512,960 19,760,779
Gross carrying amount as at 1 January
2023 591,488,998 15,401,768 21,630,395 628,521,161
New assets originated or purchased 913,846,138 - - 913,846,138
Assets derecognised or repaid (384,111,529) (2,487,112) (5,353.,987) (391,952,628)
Net movement on accrued interest 144,467 107,194 236,487 488,148
Transfer to/(from) Stage 1 6,133,846 (5,477,567) (656,279) -
Transfer to/(from) Stage 2 (10,998,286) 13,110,071 (2,111,785) -
Transfer to/(from) Stage 3 (2,531,755) (1,548,764) 4,080,519 -
Write-offs - - (16,456) (16,456)
Foreign exchange adjustments (20,064) (1,820) (3,048) (24,932)
At 31 December 2023 1,113,951,815 19,103,770 17,805,846 1,150,861,431
ECL allowance as at 1 January 2023 2,648,028 761,536 14,108,128 17,517,692
New assets originated or purchased 2,847,530 - - 2,847,530
Assets derecognised or repaid (2,030,201) (110,358) (3,272,874) (5,413,433)
Net movement on accrued interest (75,323) (32,340) 378,053 270,390
Transfer to/(from) Stage 1 634,930 (294,591) (340,339) -
Transfer to/(from) Stage 2 (114,698) 1,117,402 (1,002,704) -
Transfer to/(from) Stage 3 (31,493) (107,687) 139,180 -
Impact on ECL from stage transfer and
input changes (969,942) (541,186) 2,457,547 946,419
Write-offs - - (16,456) (16,456)
Foreign exchange adjustments (9,975) (2,407) (2,196) (14,578)
At 31 December 2023 2,898,856 790,369 12,448,339 16,137,564
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17. Loans and advances to customers (cont’d.)
Retail loan (cont’d.,)
Credit quality of gross carrying amounts as at 31 December 2024 and 2023:

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
MNT'000 MNT'000 MNT'000 MNT'000
At 31 December 2024

Performing 1,843,503,610 10,287,586 - 1,853,791,196
Special mention - 22,498,246 - 22,498,246
Substandard - - 13,829,626 13,829,626
Doubtful - - 4,819,774 4,819,774
Loss — — 10,157,147 10,157,147
Total 1,843,503,610 32,785,832 28,806,547 1,905,095,989
At 31 December 2023

Performing 1,113,951,815 13,574,962 - 1,127,526,777
Special mention - 5,528,808 - 5,528,808
Substandard - - 4,684,732 4,684,732
Doubtful - - 1,296,954 1,296,954
Loss — — 11,824,160 11,824,160
Total 1,113,951,815 19,103,770 17,805,846 1,150,861,431

Impairment of loans receivables from Mongolian Copper Corporation LLC

As at the reporting date, the Bank has total outstanding loan receivable from Mongolian Copper Corporation LLC (“MCC”) of
MNT 181.8 billion (2023: MNT 182.8 billion). The recoverability of the loan is highly dependent on the favourable outcome
of the ongoing discussions between MCC and the GoM regarding the takeover of the 49% equity interest in Erdenet Mining
Corporation LLC. As of 31 December 2024, the Bank has provided an allowance for expected credit losses for the loan
receivable from MCC of MNT 31.02 billion (2023: MNT 28.3 billion).

18.  Other assets

2024 2023

MNT’000 MNT’000

Prepaid expenses and advances 35,930,641 29,855,704
Settlement receivables 9,475,546 29,370,837
Consumables and other office supplies 14,513,521 5,151,016
Deferred employee benefit 1,547,185 1,743,267
Precious metals 163,162 24,703,649
Other receivables 142,950,850 170,800,519
Less: Allowance for other receivables (38,720,423) (36,678,145)
165,860,482 224,946,847

Foreclosed properties 414,145,046 306,207,932
Allowance for impairment (24,694,879) (21,916,317)
Foreclosed properties, net of impairment 389,450,167 284,291,615
Total other assets 555,310,649 509,238,462

Included in prepaid expenses and advances are guarantee deposits held for international card payment organisations amounting
to MNT 14,329 million (2023: MNT 12,773 million).

Settlement receivables mainly relates to the amount of receivables on cash and settlement services. Related balances are
generally settled on the next working day.

Deferred employee benefit represents outstanding fair value adjustments of the loans granted to its employees at preferential
rates. In accordance with IFRS, fair value adjustments at initial recognition are recognised as deferred employee benefits and
are amortised according to the terms of the loan.

Foreclosed properties represent non-financial assets acquired by the Bank in settlement of overdue loans. The Bank expects to
dispose of these assets in the foreseeable future.
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18.  Other assets (cont’d.)

Other receivables include other loan receivables that represent interest free or lower interest rate receivables from various
entities for which the Bank recognised a day 1 loss at initial recognition and modification loss upon the extension of term of
these receivables and classified them as Stage 2. The total modification loss recognised with respect the receivables amount to
nil as of 31 December 2024 (2023: MNT 8,311,181 thousand) (See Note 7).

A reconciliation of the allowance for impairment losses is as follows:

Impairment allowance Other Foreclosed

receivables properties Total

MNT’000 MNT’000 MNT’000

2024
As at 1 January 36,678,145 21,916,317 58,594,462
Charge for the year 42,214,137 2,778,562 44,992,699
Reversal (39,029,859) - (39,029,859)
Net charge for the year (Note 8) 3,184,278 2,778,562 5,962,840
Write-off during the year (1,142,000) - (1,142,000)
As at 31 December 38,720,423 24,694,879 63,415,302
2023
At 1 January 38,884,014 - 38,884,014
Charge for the year 8,287,286 21,916,317 30,203,603
Reversal (10,008,715) - (10,008,715)
Net charge/(reversal) for the year (Note 8) (1,721,429) 21,916,317 20,194,888
Write off during the year (484,440) - (484,440)
As at 31 December 36,678,145 21,916,317 58,594,462

The tables below show the credit quality and the maximum exposure to credit risk of other receivables based on the Bank’s
internal credit rating system and year-end stage classification. The amounts presented are gross of impairment allowances.
Details of the Bank’s internal grading system are set out in Note 33.

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
MNT'000 MNT'000 MNT'000 MNT'000
At 31 December 2024
Performing 43,830,519 - - 43,830,519
Special mention - 76,281,573 - 76,281,573
Substandard - - 18,701 18,701
Doubtful - - 32,229 32,229
Loss — — 22,787,828 22,787,828
Total 43,830,519 76,281,573 22,838,758 142,950,850
At 31 December 2023
Performing 52,792,595 587,308 - 53,379,903
Special mention - 93,691,571 - 93,691,571
Substandard - - 10,548 10,548
Doubtful - - 4,213 4,213
Loss — — 23,714,284 23,714,284
Total 52,792,595 94,278,879 23,729,045 170,800,519
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19. Investment properties

2024 2023

MNT’000 MNT’000
At 1 January 53,256,860 79,997,754
Transfer from property and equipment (Note 21) 16,874,948 -
Transfer from foreclosed asset (Note 18) 3,502,814 -

Disposal - (29,614,685)
Change in fair value (Note 7, 30) 7,114919 2,873,791
At 31 December 80,749,541 53,256,860

20. Assets held for sale

2024 2023

MNT’000 MNT’000
Buildings and real estate 94,987,026 8,162,951
Vehicle 393,989 96,179
95,381,015 8,259,130

The Management assessed that those buildings, real estates and vehicles are available for immediate sale and can be sold to
the buyer in its current condition. The actions to complete the sale were initiated and expected to be completed within one year
from the date of initial classification. A potential buyer has been identified and negotiations as at reporting date are at an
advanced stage.

21. Property and equipment

Office
Buildings equipment Computers Construction
and land and vehicles and others -in-progress Total
MNT'000 MNT'000 MNT'000 MNT'000 MNT'000
At 31 December 2024
At cost/valuation
At 1 January 2024 226,755,875 18,175,013 65,677,084 320,640,709 631,248,681
Additions* 5,794,186 40,108 20,511,628 2,229,051 28,574,973
Disposals* (11,299,955) (390,943) - - (11,690,898)
Write-offs (Note 9) (1,081,351) (434,262) (4,541,231) - (6,056,844)
Reclassification 1,544,449 (1,544,449) - -
Transfer to investment property (Note 19) (17,715,601) - - (17,715,601)
Transfer to assets held for sale (Note 20) (1,265,299) - - — (1,265,299)
At 31 December 2024 201,187,855 18,934,365 80,103,032 322,869,760 623,095,012
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2024 10,730,951 11,082,877 41,460,270 - 63,274,098
Charge for the year (Note 9) 5,229,221 2,291,874 9,843,383 - 17,364,478
Disposals (141,709) (325,975) - - (467,684)
Write-off (Note 9) - (418,413) (4,234,826) - (4,653,239)
Transfer to investment property (Note 19) (840,653) - - - (840,653)
Transfer to assets held for sale (Note 20) (103,946) - - — (103,946)
At 31 December 2024 14,873,864 12,630,363 47,068,827 — 74,573,054
Net carrying amount as at 31 December
2024 186,313,991 6,304,002 33,034,205 322,869,760 548,521,958
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21.  Property and equipment (cont’d.)

Office
Buildings equipment Computers  Construction-
and land and vehicles and others in-progress Total
MNT'000 MNT'000 MNT'000 MNT'000 MNT'000
At 31 December 2023
At cost/valuation
At 1 January 2023 230,776,304 17,450,498 71,553,865 202,686,413 522,467,080
Additions - 315,850 20,132,393 117,954,296 138,402,539
Disposals (4,020,429) (143,122) (887,987) - (5,051,538)
Write-offs (Note 9) - (110,081) (1,618,732) - (1,728,813)
Reclassification - 661,868 (661,868) - -
Transfer to intangible assets — - (22,840,587) — (22,840,587)
At 31 December 2023 226,755,875 18,175,013 65,677,084 320,640,709 631,248,681
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2023 5,467,103 9,800,889 36,573,945 - 51,841,937
Charge for the year (Note 9) 5,365,425 1,528,431 7,286,447 - 14,180,303
Disposals (101,577) (139,979) (887,987) - (1,129,543)
Write-offs (Note 9) — (106,464) (1,512,135) — (1,618,599)
At 31 December 2023 10,730,951 11,082,877 41,460,270 — 63,274,098
Net carrying amount as at 31 December
2023 216,024,924 7,092,136 24,216,814 320,640,709 567,974,583

Construction-in-progress account mainly consists of costs for construction of the Bank’s new office building. The Bank made
a contract to build its new corporate head office with Riverstone (see Note 32). The building is expected to be completed in
2026.

Buildings are carried at fair value. Had these buildings been recognised under the cost model as at 31 December 2024, the
carrying amount of land and buildings would have been MNT 132,684 million (2023: MNT 138,526 million). In 2021, the
Bank engaged an accredited independent valuer, to determine the fair value of its land and buildings. The fair value is
determined based on market comparable approach. Fair value hierarchy disclosures and valuation techniques used in measuring
the fair value, including the description of significant inputs used are presented in Note 34.

52



m7

Kunnin tainan 2024

TRADE AND DEVELOPMENT BANK OF MONGOLIA JSC

Notes to the financial statements — 31 December 2024

22.  Right-of-use assets and Lease liabilities

The Bank has lease contracts for branch office spaces used in its operations. These leases on average have lease term of four
years. The Bank’s obligations under its leases are secured by the lessor’s title to the leased assets. The Bank also has certain
leases of office spaces, garages and ATM spaces with lease terms of 12 months or less. The Bank applies the ‘short-term lease’

recognition exemption for these leases.

Set out below are the carrying amounts of right-of-use assets and lease liabilities and the reconciliation of movements during

the year:
Right-of-use

assets Lease liabilities

MNT’000 MNT’000

As at 1 January 2023 15,449,135 (15,869,783)
Additions 2,937,257 (2,562,951)
Lease modification 2,020,078 (2,020,078)
Termination of lease (384,089) 402,054
Depreciation charge for the year (Note 9) (6,782,507) -
Accretion of interest (Note 5) - (2,050,311)
Lease payments — 8,230,591
As at 31 December 2023 and 1 January 2024 13,239,874 (13,870,478)
Additions 643,803 (282,280)
Lease modification 2,581,034 (2,581,034)
Termination of lease (92,680) 104,435
Depreciation charge for the year (Note 9) (7,386,391) -
Accretion of interest (Note 5) - (1,802,903)
Lease payments - 8,887,577
As at 31 December 2024 8,985,640 (9,544,683)

The Bank recognised rent expense from short-term leases of MNT 1,074,150 thousand for the year ended 31 December 2024
(2023: MNT 779,986). Also included within Utility expenses of Operating expenses are variable lease payments that do not
depend on an index or rate of MNT 673,573 thousand for the year ended 31 December 2024 (2023: MNT MNT 1,372,004).

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities are disclosed in Note 36.

23. Intangible assets

2024 2023

MNT’000 MNT’000
At cost
At 1 January 40,955,934 16,153,277
Additions 23,404,029 24,808,663
Write-offs (Note 9) (40,356) (6,006)
At 31 December 64,319,607 40,955,934
Accumulated amortisation
At 1 January 15,647,829 14,731,916
Charge for the year (Note 9) 1,092,379 920,110
Write-offs (Note 9) (39,389) (4,197)
At 31 December 16,700,819 15,647,829
Net carrying amount 47,618,788 25,308,105

In 2024, the Bank capitalized its new core system “Temenos” of MNT 21,658 million (2023: MNT 24,050 million) which was

not brought into actual use as of 31 December 2024.
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24. Due to banks and other financial institutions

2024 2023

MNT’000 MNT’000

Current accounts from banks and financial institutions 23,232,611 23,869,685
Time deposits from banks and financial institutions 355,628,395 294,542,326
378,861,006 318,412,011

At 31 December 2024, time deposits included deposit from local banks denominated in MNT, USD, and EUR, with interest
rates ranging from 1.5% to 12.2% per annum and original maturity from 3 months (2023: time deposits with interest rate of 4-
12.00% per annum and original maturity from 3 months).

25. Repurchase agreements

2024 2023
MNT’000 MNT’000
Asset backed securities program 25,675,412 51,285,052

The Bank entered into long-term reverse repurchase agreement with BoM, whereas as of 31 December 2024 the Bank sold
unquoted BoM bills amounting MNT 22 billion in total (2023: MNT 46 billion). The agreements bear annual interests ranging
between 6% to 10.5% and latest one shall mature in May 2025.

26. Due to customers

Government deposits
- Current accounts

2024
MNT’000

1,055,737,336

2023
MNT’000

1,523,591,116

- Time deposits 862,019,275 237,000,800
- Guarantee and LC fund 1,477,605 12,425,170
Private sector deposits

- Current accounts 2,302,439,462 2,203,683,611
- Time deposits 907,341,930 825,152,216
- Guarantee and LC fund 54,278,267 41,639,920
- Other 21,850,687 2,268,947

Individual deposits
- Time deposits

3,804,997,072

3,137,438,603

- Current accounts 680,252,212 598,304,524
- Demand deposits 646,866,029 504,902,567
- Other 550,896 409,938

10,337,810,771 9,086,817,412
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27. Borrowed funds

2024 2023
MNT’000 MNT’000

Borrowed funds from foreign banks and financial institutions
United States International Development Finance Corporation 167,613,877 -
Cargill International Trading Pte Ltd 75,245,499 73,213,903
International Bank of Economic Cooperation 56,323,884 96,462,147
International Investment Bank 37,982,769 53,027,104
China Development Bank 32,254,075 49,995,866
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China 31,572,026 12,286,676
Crown Agents Bank 30,927,378 31,843,486
Exim Bank of Russia 25,670,923 34,219,794
Atlantic Forfaitierungs AG 24,994,584 21,717,365
Commerzbank AG 17,689,956 4,966,402
Japan International Cooperation Agency 17,885,220 15,755,391
Asian Development Bank 15,266,306 20,213,797
Deutsche Zentral-Genossenschaftsbank 11,860,986 527,455
Erste Group Bank 3,218,581 12,040,023
International Development Association 1,002,054 1,081,888
China Trade Solutions 932,483 1,275,202
Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation 763,758 14,224,611
Kreditanstalt fuer Wiederaufbau 224,203 797,728
The World Bank 15,191 83,796
Crowdcredit Estonia OU - 955,460
Huishang Bank - 17,306,108
Borrowed funds from government organizations
BoM overnight loan 800,378,326 -
Mortgage financing 306,950,437 187,069,081
Employment support 3,336,598 3,336,598
SME Development Fund 1,150,000 -
Ministry of Finance 878,251 847,159
Bank of Mongolia - Petroleum project — 219,420,737

1,664,137,365 872,667,777

Borrowings are all unsecured except for the funds obtained from China Development Bank with outstanding balance of CNY
24.2 million (2023: CNY 37.3 million) and USD 5.8 million (2023: USD 8.9 million) and fund obtained from Deutsche Bank
Aktiengesellschaft with outstanding balance of USD 3 million (2023: nil). The funds obtained from China Development Bank
and Deutsche Bank Aktiengesellschaft are secured by cash deposits amounting to USD 1 million (MNT 3.6 billion) and USD
694 thousand (MNT 2.4 billion), included within the placement with foreign bank as cash collateral (Note 13).

Some of the borrowing agreements require compliance with certain debt covenants, which can be grouped into the following
categories:

capital related ratios (such as risk weighted capital adequacy ratio, ratio between tier 1 capital and total capital);

o financial risks related ratios (such as aggregate foreign currency open position, single currency foreign exchange risk ratio,
liquidity ratio);

e credit related ratios (such as single largest borrowers to the equity ratio, related party lending ratio and aggregate large
exposures ratio);

e Other ratios (non-current assets to total assets, non-performing loans to total loan ratio, etc.).

In the case of non-compliance with covenants, the borrowing may become payable on demand, subject to the outcome of
remedial actions of the Bank and waiver negotiations between the lender and the Bank. For this reason, the Bank monitors its
compliance with BoM prudential ratios and other debt covenants on a monthly basis (See Note 37).

55



120

Kunnin tainan 2024

TRADE AND DEVELOPMENT BANK OF MONGOLIA JSC

Notes to the financial statements — 31 December 2024

28. Debt securities issued

2024 2023
MNT’000 MNT’000
Debt securities issued in foreign market 670,569,956 —

The bank issued a USD 50 million bond for green and social loan financing on 23 October 2024, and a USD 200 million bond
for general operational financing on 23 December 2024, both listed on the Vienna Stock Exchange. The interest rates for these
bonds are 9% and 8.5%, payable semi-annually, with maturity dates of 5 years and 3 years, respectively.

During the year, the Bank repurchased a portion of its Senior unsecured USD 200 million bond in principal amounts of USD
50 million, resulting in a loss on repurchase of debt securities amounting to MNT 2,246,097 thousand (see Note 7).

The senior notes had an outstanding balance of USD 150 million or MNT 670,569,956 thousand as at 31 December 2024.
29.  Other liabilities

2024 2023

MNT’000 MNT’000

Liabilities for loans sold to MIK with recourse (Note 17) 52,787,550 -
Delay on clearing settlement 37,544,195 115,757,845
Payables to third parties 26,167,129 31,601,877
Taxes payable other than income tax 6,241,458 5,674,019
Provision on off-balance sheet commitments (Note 32) 5,424,585 8,057,538
Contract liability (unearned fees and commission) 3,312,575 3,284,475
Deferred revenue and income 2,878,920 4,625,493
Deferred grant 359,404 795,459
Finance lease payable (computer lease) - 14,226
Others 2,537,527 2,923,964
137,253,343 172,734,896

Delay on clearing settlement accounts mainly related to the amount of payables on cash and settlements services. Related
balances are generally settled on the next working day.

Deferred revenue and income pertains to partial advances received for sale of foreclosed properties.
All unearned fees and commissions at the end of the previous year have been recognised as revenue in the current year.
Deferred grant

The Bank entered into a grant support agreement with the United Nations Office for Project Services (“UNOPS”) in 2022 for
the Green Climate Fund, receiving a total of USD 291,772 to accelerate the private sector's contribution to achieving Mongolia's
critical climate and development policy targets. As at 31 December 2024 the outstanding balance of the grant was USD 11,931
(2023: USD 53,270).

In 2023, the Bank entered into another grant support agreement with UNOPS for the Green Climate Fund, receiving a total
project approval of USD 200,860 to support green regional development in Khanbogd soum, Mongolia. The Bank received the
first tranche of USD 180,000 upon signing the agreement, which has been fully amortized as of 31 December 2024. The Bank
received the second tranche in 2024 and the outstanding balance of the grant was USD 89,970 as at 31 December 2024. The
total amortisation for the year amounted to MNT 748,866 thousand (2023: MNT 203,242) (See Note 7).
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30. Share capital, Share premium and Other reserves

Share capital and share premium

Number of Share capital Share premium
ordinary shares . 2024 2023 . 2024 2023
2024 2023 MNT'000 MNT'000 MNT'000 MNT'000
At 1 January 50,600,927 48,070,880 340,852,905 323,810,329 64,069,779 664
Issued during the year - 2,530,047 - 17,042,650 - 64,069,041
Transfer — - — (74) — 74
At 31 December 50,600,927 50,600,927 340,852,905 340,852,905 64,069,779 64,069,779

On 12 May 2023, the Bank was listed on the MSE. As part of initial public offering (IPO) the Bank issued 2,530,047 additional
new shares at subscription price of MNT 33,000 per share, resulting in total net cash proceed of MNT 81,611,691 thousand
after netting off transaction cost related to the IPO. Thereby, share capital was increased by MNT 17,042,650 thousand and
share premium by MNT 64,069,041 thousands, respectively.

As of 31 December 2024, the Bank had 55,000,000 shares authorized for issue from which a total of 50,600,927 shares were
issued. All issued shares were fully paid.

The shareholders of the Bank as of 31 December 2024 and 2023 and percentage of ownership are as follows:

2024 2023
Globull Investment and Development PTE Ltd 60.80% 60.80%
TDB Capital LLC 29.69% 29.69%
GS Mongolia Investment Limited (Goldman Sachs) 3.12% 3.12%
Public shareholders 6.39% 6.39%
100.00% 100.00%

Dividend

On 5 April 2024 and 16 July 2024, the Bank declared a dividend of total MNT 104,541,514 thousand (2023: MNT 59,992,458
thousand) to its shareholders in proportion to their ownership. The BoM had approved the dividend disbursement on 23 April
2024 and 23 September 2024, respectively. As of 31 December 2024, MNT 412,245 thousand of dividend has not yet been
paid out and is included within other liabilities in Note 29.
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30. Share capital, Share premium and Other reserves (cont’d.)

Other reserves

Asset FVOCI
revaluation revaluation Regulatory

reserve reserve reserve Total
MNT'000 MNT'000 MNT'000 MNT'000
At 1 January 2024 143,479,413 35,415,035 134,778,728 313,673,176
Net gain on FVOCI instruments - 9,148,937 - 9,148,937
Deferred tax liability (Note 10.2) - (2,287,234) - (2,287,234)

Transfer of revaluation reserve due to
disposal (4,176,217) - - (4,176,217)

Revaluation of asset transfered to
investment properties (Note 19) 4,061,458 - - 4,061,458

Net changes in allowance for ECL on
debt instruments at FVOCI - 2,589,426 - 2,589,426
Movement on regulatory reserve — — (5,380,016) (5,380,016)
At 31 December 2024 143,364,654 44,866,164 129,398,712 317,629,530
At 1 January 2023 145,651,452 3,005,413 110,252,115 258,908,980
Net gain on FVOCI instruments - 35,639,183 - 35,639,183
Deferred tax liability (Note 10.2) - (3,563,918) - (3,563,918)

Transfer of revaluation reserve due to
disposal (2,172,039) - - (2,172,039)

Net changes in allowance for ECL on
debt instruments at FVOCI - 334,357 - 334,357
Movement on regulatory reserve — — 24,526,613 24,526,613
At 31 December 2023 143,479,413 35,415,035 134,778,728 313,673,176

Regulatory reserve represents additional provision required under BoM provisioning guidelines that is in addition to IFRS
requirements.

31. Segment reporting

Segment information is presented in respect of the Bank's business segments. The primary format, operating segments, is based
on the Bank's management and internal reporting structure. Operating segments pay to and receive interest from the Treasury
on an arm's length basis to reflect the allocation of capital and funding costs. Segment capital expenditure is the total cost
incurred during the period to acquire property and equipment and intangible assets other than goodwill.

Operating segments
The Bank comprises the following main operating segments:

Corporate Banking: Includes loans, deposits and other transactions and balances with corporate customers. The Bank classifies
its customer as Corporate Banking customer, where the loan amount is greater than MNT 3 billion, or the borrower’s sales
amount reported in the financial statements is greater than MNT 6 billion (or, for customers whose financial statements are
unavailable to the Bank, two-year average total income transacted through the current account held with the Bank is greater
than 4 billion), and State-owned enterprises.

Small and Medium sized Enterprise (“SME ") Banking: Includes loans, deposits and other transactions and balances with SME
customers (both individuals and entities). The Bank classifies its customer as SME Banking customer, where the loan amount
is below MNT 3 billion, or the borrower’s sales amount is below MNT 6 billion (or, for customers whose financial statements
are unavailable to the Bank, two-year average total income transacted through the current account held with the Bank is below
4 billion), and individuals receiving products and services with business nature.

Retail Banking: Includes individual’s mortgage, consumers loans and deposits and other transactions and digital banking with
retail customers. The Bank classifies its salary and fixed income customers as retail. Retail segment consists sub segments,
depending on their income, deposits and asset level: Premier, VIP, Comfort and classic.

International Banking: Includes the Bank's trading, corporate finance, borrowing from foreign financial institutions, issues of
debt securities and bond in the international capital market.
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31. Segment reporting (cont’d.)

Others: Includes Headquarter operations and central shared services operations that manage the Bank's premises and certain corporate costs. And also includes, the Bank's funding and centralised
risk management activities through borrowings, use of derivatives for risk management purposes and investing in assets such as short term placements and corporate and government debt securities.

As the Bank’s operations are located in Mongolia, no further geographical segment information is provided. No revenue from transactions with a single external customer or counterparty amounted
to 10% or more of the Bank’s total revenue in 2024 or 2023.

At 31 December 2024 Corporate SME Retail International
Banking Banking Banking Banking Other Total
MNT'000 MNT'000 MNT'000 MNT'000 MNT'000 MNT'000

Segment results
External revenue

Interest income 371,554,525 115,918,655 253,068,774 - 345,454,720 1,085,996,674
Interest expense (146,412,553) (52,399,810) (357,004,235) (35,820,784) (10,841,725) (602,479,107)
Fee and commission income 11,619,433 25,749,524 50,811,868 224,250 28,579,680 116,984,755
Fee and commission expenses (1,700) - (17,564) - (40,341,777) (40,361,041)
Trading and other operating income, net 30,468,941 1,531,850 2,123,475 - 53,814,398 87,938,664
Intersegment revenue/(expense) (105,871,414) (293,041) 216,942,204 40,051,404 (150,829,153) -
Total segment revenue 161,357,232 90,507,178 165,924,522 4,454,870 225,836,143 648,079,945
Operating expense 14,007,185 5,513,987 15,148,573 4,461,493 193,077,807 232,209,045
Share of loss of an associate - - - - 5,031,979 5,031,979
Credit loss expense/(reversal) on financial assets 10,195,913 (9,854,385) (5,763,209) — 28,054,739 22,633,058
Profit/(loss) before tax 137,154,134 94,847,576 156,539,158 (6,623) (328,382) 388,205,863
Income tax expense — — — — 89,570,244 89,570,244
Net profit/(loss) for the year 137,154,134 94,847,576 156,539,158 (6,623) (89,898,626) 298,635,619
Segment assets 3,572,318,639 805,954,776 2,209,097,713 4,835,324 8,408,162,232 15,000,368,684
Segment liabilities 3,909,215,149 1,611,769,118 4,979,780,354 1,377,796,639 1,505,821,837 13,384,383,097
Depreciation and amortisation 36,365 28,395 34,588 44,414 25,699,486 25,843,248
Capital expenditure*® - - - - 51,979,002 51,979,002
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31. Segment reporting (cont’d.)

At 31 December 2023 Corporate SME Retail International
Banking Banking Banking Banking Other Total
MNT'000 MNT'000 MNT'000 MNT'000 MNT'000 MNT'000

Segment results
External revenue

Interest income 282,741,360 74,395,401 139,039,750 - 268,535,388 764,712,399
Interest expense (111,191,503) (35,372,318) (266,434,935) (42,648,072) (13,401,612) (469,048,440)
Fee and commission income 36,942,324 20,289,902 24,604,037 215,356 12,467,021 94,518,640
Fee and commission expenses (2,261) - - - (33,156,790) (33,159,051)
Trading and other operating income/(expense), net (13,829,991) 2,255,837 979,817 - 65,284,825 54,690,488
Intersegment revenue/(expense) (142,088,083) 2,292,186 207,598,120 49,966,660 (117,768,883) —
Total segment revenue 52,571,846 63,861,008 105,786,789 7,533,944 181,960,449 411,714,036
Operating expense 13,767,489 4,057,485 9,793,448 3,065,786 153,076,138 183,760,346
Share of profit of an associate - - - - 4,271,538 4,271,538
Credit loss expense on financial assets 24,169,806 4,375,414 1,503,397 — 5,370,430 35,419,047
Profit before tax 14,634,551 55,428,109 94,489,944 4,468,158 27,785,419 196,806,181
Income tax expense — — — — 45,587,714 45,587,714
Net profit/(loss) for the year 14,634,551 55,428,109 94,489,944 4,468,158 (17,802,295) 151,218,467
Segment assets 3,314,253,597 573,122,136 1,336,492,445 206,360 6,942,502,007 12,166,576,545
Segment liabilities 4,095,233,216 1,169,744,290 4,135,160,702 447,828,712 910,230,730 10,758,197,650
Depreciation and amortisation 48,382 35,664 6,826,928 41,070 14,930,876 21,882,920
Capital expenditure* - - - - 76,717,767 76,717,767

*Represents total cash additions to property and equipment and intangible assets.
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32. Contingent liabilities and commitments

To meet the financial needs of customers, the Bank enters into various irrevocable commitments and contingent liabilities.
Even though these obligations may not be recognised on the statement of financial position, they do contain credit risk and are

therefore part of the overall risk of the Bank (see Note 32).

Uncovered Guarantees and Letters of credit
Undrawn credit lines

The table below shows the movement on allowance for impairment losses recognised on off-balance commitments:

ECL allowance as at 1 January 2024

New exposures

Exposures derecognised or matured/lapsed

Impact on ECL from stage transfer and input changes
Net reversal for the year (Note 8)

At 31 December 2024

ECL allowance as at 1 January 2023

New exposures

Exposures derecognised or matured/lapsed

Impact on ECL from stage transfer and input changes
Net charge for the year (Note 8)

At 31 December 2023

2024 2023

MNT’000 MNT’000

646,648,741 522,557,915

635,742,427 455,919,038

1,282,391,168 978,476,953

Uncovered
Guarantees and  Undrawn credit

Letters of credit lines Total
MNT’000 MNT’000 MNT’000

5,170,512 2,887,026 8,057,538

2,140,630 860,440 3,001,070
(2,082,476) (683,292) (2,765,768)
(1,448,619) (1,419,636) (2,868,255)
(1,390,465) (1,242,488) (2,632,953)

3,780,047 1,644,538 5,424,585

2,566,608 2,374,778 4,941,386

3,817,460 3,672,654 7,490,114
(1,108,222) (885,201) (1,993,423)
(105,334) (2,275,205) (2,380,539)

2,603,904 512,248 3,116,152

5,170,512 2,887,026 8,057,538

An analysis of changes in the outstanding exposures and the corresponding ECL allowance as at 31 December 2024 and 31

December 2023 including credit quality is, as follows:

Uncovered Guarantees and Letters of credits:

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
MNT’000 MNT’000 MNT’000 MNT’000
Outstanding exposure as at 1 January
2024 504,036,573 17,427,106 1,094,236 522,557,915
New exposures 454,098,454 - - 454,098,454
Exposures derecognised or matured/lapsed (318,554,882) (11,252,444) (200,302) (330,007,628)
Transfer to/(from) Stage 1 6,134,062 (6,174,662) 40,600 —
At 31 December 2024 645,714,207 - 934,534 646,648,741
ECL allowance as at 1 January 2024 4,582,687 43,772 544,053 5,170,512
New exposures 2,140,630 - - 2,140,630
Exposures derecognised or
matured/lapsed (2,024,559) (23,373) (34,544) (2,082,476)
Transfer to/(from) Stage 1 19,321 (19,327) 6 -
Impact on ECL from stage transfer and
input changes (1,657,699) (1,072) 210,152 (1,448,619)
At 31 December 2024 3,060,380 — 719,667 3,780,047
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Uncovered Guarantees and Letters of credits (cont’d.)

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
MNT’000 MNT’000 MNT’000 MNT’000
Outstanding exposure as at 1 January
2023 308,769,629 11,809,226 918,662 321,497,517
New exposures 429,013,252 - - 429,013,252
Exposures derecognised or
matured/lapsed (226,282,340) (1,586,389) (84,125) (227,952,854)
Transfer to/(from) Stage 1 1,875,880 (1,875,880) - -
Transfer to/(from) Stage 2 (9,339,848) 9,080,149 259,699 —
At 31 December 2023 504,036,573 17,427,106 1,094,236 522,557,915
ECL allowance as at 1 January 2023 3,522,506 (955,898) - 2,566,608
New exposures 3,817,460.0 - - 3,817,460
Exposures derecognised or
matured/lapsed (1,085,518.0) (21,561) (1,143) (1,108,222)
Transfer to/(from) Stage 1 27,080.0 (27,080) - -
Transfer to/(from) Stage 2 (188,441.0) 131,080 57,361 -
Impact on ECL from stage transfer and
input changes (1,510,400.0) 917,231 487,835 (105,334)
At 31 December 2023 4,582,687 43,772 544,053 5,170,512
Credit quality of gross carrying amounts as at 31 December 2024 and 2023:
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
MNT'000 MNT'000 MNT'000 MNT'000
At 31 December 2024
Performing 645,714,207 - - 645,714,207
Special mention - - - -
Substandard — — 934,534 934,534
Total 645,714,207 - 934,534 646,648,741
At 31 December 2023
Performing 504,036,573 - - 504,036,573
Special mention - 17,427,106 - 17,427,106
Substandard — — 1,094,236 1,094,236
Total 504,036,573 17,427,106 1,094,236 522,557,915
Undrawn credit balances:
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
MNT’000 MNT’000 MNT’000 MNT’000
Outstanding exposure as at 1 January
2024 454,478,513 1,333,132 107,393 455,919,038
New exposures 357,170,324 2,352,287 - 359,522,611
Exposures derecognised or
matured/lapsed (178,927,333) (740,476) (31,413) (179,699,222)
Transfer to/(from) Stage 1 2,395,055 (2,393,661) (1,394) -
Transfer to/(from) Stage 2 (229,439) 229,439 - -
Transfer to/(from) Stage 3 (1,068) (24,881) 25,949 —
At 31 December 2024 634,886,052 755,840 100,535 635,742,427
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32. Contingent liabilities and commitments (cont’d.)

Undrawn credit balances (cont’d.)

ECL allowance as at 1 January 2024

New exposures

Exposures derecognised or
matured/lapsed

Transfer to/(from) Stage 1

Transfer to/(from) Stage 2

Transfer to/(from) Stage 3

Impact on ECL from stage transfer and
input changes

At 31 December 2024

Outstanding exposure as at 1 January
2023

New exposures

Exposures derecognised or
matured/lapsed

Transfer to/(from) Stage 1

Transfer to/(from) Stage 2

Transfer to/(from) Stage 3

At 31 December 2023

ECL allowance as at 1 January 2023

New exposures

Exposures derecognised or
matured/lapsed

Transfer to/(from) Stage 1

Transfer to/(from) Stage 2

Transfer to/(from) Stage 3

Impact on ECL from stage transfer and
input changes

At 31 December 2023

Credit quality of gross carrying amounts as at 31 December 2024 and 2023:

At 31 December 2024
Performing

Special mention
Substandard

Total

At 31 December 2023
Performing

Special mention
Substandard

Total

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
MNT’000 MNT’000 MNT’000 MNT’000
2,829,379 53,570 4,077 2,887,026

833,632 26,808 - 860,440
(672,140) (7,076) (4,076) (683,292)
5,190 (5,186) @) _
411) 411 - -
(438) (20,000) 20,438 -
(1,430,415) (12,825) 23,604 (1,419,636)
1,564,797 35,702 44,039 1,644,538
243,344,806 4,817,058 85,520 248,247,384
313,013,943 637,122 70,298 313,721,363
(101,885,134) (4,091,946) (72,629) (106,049,709)
464,972 (452,080) (12,892) -
(422,978) 422,978 - -
(37,096) - 37,096 -
454,478,513 1,333,132 107,393 455,919,038
2,340,987 33,782 9 2,374,778
3,611,247 57,331 4,076 3,672,654
(846,481) (34,613) (4,107) (885,201)
441 (438) 3) -
(1,041) 1,041 - -
(4,069) - 4,069 _
(2,271,705) (3,533) 33 (2,275,205)
2,829,379 53,570 4,077 2,887,026
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
MNT'000 MNT'000 MNT'000 MNT'000
634,886,052 - - 634,886,052
- 755,840 - 755,840
- - 100,535 100,535
634,886,052 755,840 100,535 635,742,427
454,478,513 - - 454,478,513
- 1,333,132 - 1,333,132
- - 107,393 107,393
454,478,513 1,333,132 107,393 455,919,038

As of 31 December 2024, the Bank had capital commitments for construction in progress of USD 83.4 million (2023: USD 74

million) (Note 21) and other contractual commitments of MNT 2,920 million (2023: MNT 3,100 million).

Contingent liabilities

Guarantees and letter of credits commit the Bank to make payments on behalf of customers in the event of a specific act,
generally related to tender and bid auction. They generally carry the same risk as loans even though they are of a contingent

nature.
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32. Contingent liabilities and commitments (cont’d.)
Commitments

Commitments to extend credit represent contractual commitments to make loans and revolving credit. Commitments have
fixed expiry dates or other termination clauses. Since commitments may expire without being drawn upon and require the
customer to meet specific requirements, the total contract amounts do not necessarily represent future cash requirements.

Undrawn credit lines

The primary purpose of these instruments is to ensure that funds are available to a customer as required. Commitments to
extend credit represent unused portions of authorized credit line. With respect to credit risk on commitments to extend credit,
the Bank can be exposed to loss in an amount equal to the total unused credit commitments. However, the likely amount of
loss is less than the total unused commitments since most commitments to extend credit are contingent upon customers
maintaining certain specific credit standards.

Legal claims

Litigation is a common occurrence in the banking industry due to the nature of the business undertaken. The Bank has formal
controls and policies for managing legal claims. Once professional advice has been obtained and the amount of loss can be
reasonably estimated, the Bank makes provision to account for any adverse effects on its financial statements.

As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, there were no major litigation cases involving the Bank.
Tax legislation

Mongolian tax legislation is subject to varying interpretations, and changes, which can occur frequently. Management's
interpretation of such legislation as applied to the transactions and activity of the Bank may be challenged by tax authorities.

Mongolian tax authorities may be taking a more assertive position in their interpretation of the legislation and assessments, and
it is possible that transactions and activities that have not been challenged in the past may be challenged by tax authorities. As
a result, significant additional taxes, penalties and interest may be assessed. Fiscal periods remain open to review by the
authorities in respect of taxes for five calendar years preceding the year of review. Under certain circumstances reviews may
cover longer periods.

Mongolian transfer pricing legislation provides the possibility for tax authorities to make transfer pricing adjustments and
impose additional tax liabilities in respect of all controllable transactions, including those related to domestic transfer pricing.
In case of deviation of transaction terms from market terms, the tax authorities have the right to adjust taxable items and to
impose additional taxes, fines and interest penalties. Given the brief nature of the current Mongolian transfer pricing rules, the
impact of any such challenge cannot be reliably estimated. However, it may be significant to the financial position and/or the
overall operations of the entity.

Mongolian tax legislation does not provide definitive guidance in certain areas, specifically in areas such as VAT, withholding
tax, corporate income tax, personal income tax and other areas. From time to time, the Bank adopts interpretations of such
uncertain areas that reduce the overall tax rate of the Bank. As noted above, such tax positions may come under heightened
scrutiny as a result of recent developments in administrative and court practices. The impact of any challenge by the tax
authorities cannot be reliably estimated; however, it may be significant to the financial position and/or the overall operations
of the entity.

Management performs regular re-assessment of tax risks, and its position may change in the future as a result of the change in
conditions that cannot be anticipated with sufficient certainty at present.
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33. Risk management
(1) Introduction

The main risks inherent in the Bank’s operations are credit risks, liquidity risks and market risks. The Bank’s Credit
Underwriting Department ("CUD") is responsible for managing the Bank’s credit risks, while Risk Management Policy and
Validation Department is responsible for managing market, liquidity risks and supporting risk management activities in general.
This note provides information about the Bank's exposure to each of the above risks, the Bank's objectives, policies and
processes for measuring and managing risk, and the Bank's management of capital.

Board of Directors

The Board of Directors (“BoD”) is responsible for establishing sound management framework and approving the risk
management policies and the Bank’s risk appetite in general.

Internal Audit

Internal Audit undertakes both regular and ad-hoc reviews of risk management controls and procedures, the result of which are
reported to the BoD. Internal audit examines both the efficiency of the procedures and the Bank's compliance with the
procedures.

Executive Committee

The Executive Committee consists of all the executive management of the Bank and is chaired by the CEO and holds regular
meetings to discuss and decide the Bank’s strategic issues and planning required for sustainable business management.

Asset and Liability Committee (""ALCO")

ALCO is responsible for providing centralized assets and liabilities management of the funding, liquidity, foreign currency
exposure, maturity mismatch and interest rate risks to which the Bank is exposed. The purpose of ALCO is to set up the asset
and liability structure of the Bank’s balance sheet conducive for sustainable growth of the Bank, its profitability and liquidity
through comprehensive management.

Risk Management Committee (“RMC”)

The Risk Management Committee is responsible for approving risk management policy, Risk appetite, [CAAP, ILAAP and
other risk management tools within the framework of its main purpose, monitor their implementation, and make suggestions
and recommendations for changes if necessary.

Credit Committees

The Bank’s Credit Committee’s structure was established to manage the Bank’s credit risk at various levels. The Bank has
following types of credit committees for loan approval and monitoring:

1. Credit committee is responsible for the overall credit policies and procedures of the Bank and currently approves all credit
exposures above MNT 1.5 billion.

2. Credit subcommittee is responsible for approving all credit exposures above MNT 800 million and up to MNT 1.5 billion.

3. Credit council is responsible for approving all credit exposures exceeding branch credit authorization limit and up to MNT
500 million.

4. Branch credit council approves all loans except for consumer loan, business micro loan, easy loan and car loans that
amounts exceeding authorization limits of Branch director and up to authorization limit of Branch credit council.

5. Credit council approves consumer loans exceeding MNT 50 million and business micro loan, easy loan and car loans
exceeding MNT 100 million.

6. Branch credit council, depending on the branch size approves credit exposures from MNT 100 million up to MNT 300
million.

The Bank’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Bank, to set appropriate risk
limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly
to reflect changes in market conditions, products and services offered. The Bank, through its training and management
standards and procedures, aims to develop a disciplined and constructive control environment, in which all employees
understand their roles and obligations.
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33. Risk management (cont’d.)
(1) Introduction (cont’d.)
Risk measurement and reporting system

The Bank’s risks are measured using a method which reflects both the expected loss likely to arise in normal circumstances
and unexpected losses, which are estimated based on statistical models. The models make use of probabilities derived from
historical experience, adjusted to reflect the current economic environment.

One of the key tools to monitoring and controlling risks is internal risk appetite limits. The Bank determines its risk appetite
for its operations by taking into account various factors such as the laws of Mongolia, prudential criteria approved by the Bank
of Mongolia, procedures for monitoring them, international recommendations for risk management issued by the Basel
Committee, as well as the Bank's own risk management policy. All of these factors serve as a guide for the Bank to establish
its risk appetite.

With the risk appetite established, the Bank determines the level of risk it will accept in a given year to achieve its strategic
and medium-term goals while considering the main risks that may hinder the successful implementation of the Bank's strategic
objectives.

Reports compiled from all the bank units are examined and processed in order to analyse, control and identify early risks. The
findings are presented to the BoD, ALCO, RMC and Credit Committees, and the head of each business departments. Both
ALCO and RMC receive a comprehensive risk report every quarter which is designed to provide all the necessary information
to assess and conclude on the risk exposure of the Bank.

Risk mitigation
As a part of its risk management, the Bank uses scenario analysis to measure and analyse exposures resulting from changes in

interest rates, foreign currencies, credit risks, and estimate potential exposures. The Bank mitigate its credit risks through
collaterals and personal guarantees.

Concentration risk

The high concentration of loans granted to bank customers in one economic sector, a small number of borrowers, and certain
products and services increases the credit risk. Therefore, the Bank adheres to the limits of credit concentration established by
BoM in its daily operations, determines the optimal structure of the loan portfolio, and adheres to the policy and strategy of
diversifying the over-concentrated structure.

In order to mitigate concentration risk, the Bank’s policies and procedures include specific guidelines to focus on maintaining
well-diversified portfolio.

To ensure a harmonized approach to managing credit concentration risks and the Bank's risk-bearing capacity, the regulatory
body establishes limits in accordance with the 'Procedures for Establishing and Monitoring the Appropriateness of the Bank's
Operations.'

» Loans granted to a single borrower and other assets classified as loans shall not exceed 20% of the equity of the Bank.
» Loans to single related party shall not exceed 5% of equity, and loans to all related parties shall not exceed 20% of equity.

(2) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that the Bank will incur a loss because its customers, clients or counterparties fail to fulfil their contractual
obligations. The Bank manages and controls credit risk by carefully screening credit applications, setting interest rate adjusted
for risk level, and setting limits on credit exposures for individual counterparties, geographical area, and industry, and
monitoring exposures in relation to such limits.

The Bank has established a credit quality review process to provide early identification of possible changes in the
creditworthiness of counterparties, including regular collateral revisions. The credit quality review process allows the Bank to
identify potential losses and take early corrective actions.

The Bank regularly examines and improves credit policies and procedures to keep its lending activities in line with the best
practice.
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33. Risk management (cont’d.)
(2) Credit risk (cont’d.)
Credit-related Commitments Risks

The Bank makes available to its customers guarantees that may require that the Bank makes payments on their behalf and
enters into commitments to extend credit lines to secure their liquidity needs. Letters of credit and guarantees (including standby
letters of credit) commit the Bank to make payments on behalf of customers in the event of a specific act, generally related to
the import or export of goods. Such commitments expose the Bank to similar risks to loans and are mitigated by the same
control processes and policies.

Impairment assessment
Definition of default, impaired and cure

The Bank considers exposure to be in default for ECL calculations in all cases when the borrower becomes 90 days past due
on its contractual payments, or where the obligor is unlikely to repay the exposure fully without the Bank’s realisation of
collaterals.

As part of the qualitative assessment of whether an exposure is credit-impaired, the Bank also considers a variety of instances
that may indicate unlikeliness to pay. When such events occur, the Bank carefully considers whether the event should result in
treating the customer as defaulted and therefore assessed as Stage 3 for ECL calculations or whether Stage 2 is appropriate.
Such events include:

* An exposure is forborne or modified due to financial difficulties of the borrower

*  The debtor’s exposure to the Bank is more than 90 days past due

+ Internal rating of the borrower indicating default or near-default

*  The borrower is deceased or became disabled

*  The borrower’s operations had experienced unexpected operational risks

* A material decrease in the underlying collateral value where the recovery of the loan is expected from the sale of the
collateral

*  The debtor filing for official bankruptcy

It is the Bank’s policy to consider a financial instrument as ‘cured’ and therefore re-classified out of Stage 3 when none of the
default criteria have been present for at least six consecutive months. The decision whether to classify an asset as Stage 2 or
Stage 1 once cured depends on the updated credit grade, at the time of the cure, and whether this indicates there has been a
significant increase in credit risk compared to initial recognition.

The Bank’s internal rating and PD estimation process

The Bank’s Credit Underwriting Department operates its internal rating models. The models incorporate both qualitative and
quantitative information and, in addition to information specific to the borrower, utilise supplemental external information that
could affect the borrower’s behaviour. Where practical, they also build on information from international rating agencies, such
as Moody’s, Standard & Poor’s and/or Fitch rating. These information sources are first used to determine the stage classification
of the exposures.

The PD for loans and advances to customers is derived from historical data and adjusted to incorporate forward looking
information using available forecasts projected from relevant macroeconomic factors, when applicable. The PD is defined as
conditional PD given that the account has not defaulted in prior periods taking into account full and partial prepayments,
therefore the marginal PD’s are considered to build the PD curve. Further, the Bank uses cohort analysis to estimate the multi
period PD curves.

The PD model used for financial assets other than loans and advances are based on rating matrices and are derived using
international credit ratings of the counterparties, which intrinsically contains forward-looking information.

Treasury, trading and interbank relationships

The Bank’s treasury, trading and interbank relationships and counterparties comprise financial services institutions, banks,
broker-dealers, exchanges and clearing-houses. For these relationships, the Bank’s Risk Management Policy and Validation
Department analyses publicly available external information such the ratings of international rating agencies, e.g. Moody’s,
and assigns the internal rating.
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33. Risk management (cont’d.)
(2) Credit risk (cont’d.)
Corporate and SME loans

For corporate and SME loans, the borrowers are assessed by loan specialists under the supervision of the credit risk analysts
from Credit Underwriting Department (“CUD”). The credit risk assessment takes into account various historical, current and
forward-looking information such as:

* Historical financial information together with forecasts and budgets prepared by the client. This financial information
includes realised and expected results, solvency ratios, liquidity ratios and any other relevant ratios to measure the client’s
financial performance. Some of these indicators are captured in covenants with the clients and are, therefore, measured
with greater attention.

* Any publicly available information on the clients from external parties.

* Any macro-economic or geopolitical information relevant to the borrower and/or portfolio

¢ Any other objectively supportable information on the quality and abilities of the client’s management relevant for the
borrower’s performance.

The complexity and granularity of the rating techniques varies based on the exposure of the Bank and the complexity and size
of the customer. Some of the less complex small business loans are rated within the Bank’s models for retail products.

Retail loans

Retail loans comprises all types of consumer loans, mortgage loans, credit cards and overdrafts. These products along with
some of the less complex SME loans are rated by methodology primarily driven by days past due. Herein: demographics, credit
history of loan applicants, collateral, current income levels, changes in account income, outstanding liabilities and desired loan
conditions.

The Bank’s internal credit rating grades

Internal Internal rating International rating
rating description (when applicable)
Performing High grade A- to AA+ rated
Special mention Upper medium grade BBB- to BBB+
Substandard Lower medium grade B- to BB+

Doubtful Low grade Caa-C

Loss Credit impaired -

Not rated Not rated -

Individually impaired Individually impaired -

Exposure at default

The EAD represents the estimate of the exposure at a future default date, taking into account expected changes in the exposure
after the reporting date, including repayments of principal and interest, whether scheduled by contract or otherwise, expected
drawdowns on committed facilities, and accrued interest from missed payments. The EAD of a financial asset represents its
gross carrying amount subject to the impairment calculation, addressing both the client’s ability to increase its exposure while
approaching default and potential early repayments too. EAD for credit cards and other revolving facilities is set out in Note
2.5.

To calculate the EAD for a Stage 1 loan, the Bank assesses the possible default events within 12 months for the calculation of
the 12mECL. For Stage 2 and Stage 3 financial assets, the exposure at default is considered for events over the lifetime of the
instruments.

The 12-month and lifetime EADs are determined based on the expected payment profile, which varies by product type:

*  For amortising product and bullet repayment loans, this is based on the contractual repayments owed by the borrower over
12 month or lifetime basis. This will also be adjusted for any expected overpayments made by borrower. Early
repayment/refinance assumptions are also incorporated into the calculation.

*  For the revolving products, the EAD is predicted by taking current drawn balance and adding “credit conversion factor”
which allows for the expected drawdown of the remaining limit by the time of default. These assumptions vary by product
type and current limit utilization.
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33. Risk management (cont’d.)
(2) Credit risk (cont’d.)
Loss given default

LGD represents the Bank’s expectation of the extent of loss on defaulted exposure. LGD varies by customer segments, which
represents customer potential and credit exposure. LGD is expressed as a percentage loss per unit of exposures at the time of
default. LGD is calculated on a 12-month or lifetime basis, where 12-month LGD is the percentage of loss expected to be made
if the default occurs in the next 12 months and Lifetime LGD is the percentage of loss expected to be made if the default occurs
over the remaining expected lifetime of the loan.

LGD varies over time depending on the payments and the value of collateral. The key elements of the LGD coefficient are:

*  Time dimension (dividing the EAD parameter into a secured and unsecured part) and
*  Change in the value of collateral over time (in the case of such collateral as real estate, the value may remain unchanged)

In the absence of collateral for the financial instrument and sufficient historical data on default, the Bank applies expert
judgment. Depending on the circumstances and completeness of the data at the reporting date, the Bank applies historical data
approach or historical data from external sources to determine the LGD coefficient in stages.

Significant increase in credit risk

The Bank continuously monitors all assets subject to ECL. In order to determine whether an instrument or a portfolio of
instruments is subject to 12mECL or LTECL, the Bank assesses whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition.

When determining whether the risk of default on a financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition, the
Bank considers reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes
both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the Bank’s historical experience and expert credit
assessment and including forward-looking information.

The Bank applies qualitative method for triggering a significant increase in credit risk for an asset, such as the account becoming
forborne. In certain cases, the Bank may also consider that events explained in “Definition of default” are a significant increase
in credit risk as opposed to a default. Regardless of the change in credit grades, if contractual payments are more than 30 days
past due, the credit risk is deemed to have increased significantly since initial recognition.

When estimating ECL on a collective basis for a group of similar assets, the Bank applies the same principles for assessing
whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition.

Grouping financial assets measured on collective basis

As explained in Note 2.5 “Overview of the ECL principles” dependant on the factors below, the Bank calculates the allowance
for ECL either on collective or individual basis.

Asset classes where the Bank calculates ECL on an individual basis include:

»  Stage 3 borrowers who have total exposure of more than MNT 5 billion

» Stage 3 borrowers with exposure of less than MNT 5 billion, who relate to a group of related parties for which the total
group exposure exceed MNT 5 billion

*  Large and unique exposures of the Corporate loan portfolio regardless of the staging

Asset classes where the Bank calculates ECL on a collective bases include all the remaining exposures not assessed
individually. The bank groups these exposures into smaller portfolios, based on customer segments:

»  Corporate loans
*  SME loans
*  Retail loans
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33. Risk management (cont’d.)
(2) Credit risk (cont’d.)
Analysis of inputs to ECL model — forward looking information

The Bank has incorporated the effect of future macroeconomic developments into the ECL by applying forward-looking
information on the component of the ECL, the PD. A simple linear model was built to analyse the relationship between the
observed default rates and macroeconomic variables. The data set includes quarterly time series of main macro indicators and
probability of default per customer segment. Macroeconomic variables are taken from the database of the National Statistical
Office and BoM, and PD rates are derived from the bank's internal database. The Bank has selected Policy rate and Credit
growth for Retail and Policy rate and GDP growth with one quarter lag for SME and Corporate loans for 2024 (2023: Policy
rate and Inflation rate for Retail and Inflation rate and GDP growth with one quarter lag for SME and Corporate loans), which
had the highest correlation with the default rate.

In terms of the methodology, correlation analysis was conducted initially to preselect the suitable macroeconomic variables.
Then coefficients were estimated applying simple regression analysis. From the estimated coefficients and forecasts,
adjustment factors to incorporate forward-looking information into PD were derived as the ratio between the predicted default
rate and historical average default rate. These adjustment factors and adjusted PD rates are considered as Base scenario for
ECL model, as it represents the best prediction of the future economic development. The good and bad scenarios are derived
from historical adjustment factors based on the model predicted default rates and selected as certain quantiles of the adjustment
factor distribution. Expected loss for different scenarios are calculated based on those estimated PD rates under the different
scenarios, and the actual expected credit loss allowance is estimated as weights of 3 scenarios: 15% for Good and Bad, and
70% for Base scenario.

The following table sets out the results of adjustment factors under 3 different scenarios:

Corporate loans SME loans Retail loans

31 December 2024

Bad case 2.0961 2.0961 1.8730
Base case 0.5192 0.5192 0.4225
Good case 0.1163 0.1163 0.2349
31 December 2023

Bad case 2.2921 2.2921 1.7680
Base case 0.7850 0.7850 0.5053
Good case 0.4222 0.4222 0.2669

Overview of modified and forborne loans

From a risk management point of view, once an asset is forborne or modified, the Bank’s credit risk department and special
department for distressed assets continues to monitor the exposure until it is completely and ultimately derecognised.

The table below shows the gross carrying amount of restructured financial assets with corresponding ECL for the year ended
31 December 2024 and 2023, as follow:

2024 2023
MNT’000 MNT’000
Restructured loans
Gross carrying amount 120,153,646 52,614,502
Corresponding ECL (28,772,011) (33,749,533)
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33. Risk management (cont’d.)
(2) Credit risk (cont’d.)
Analysis of risk concentration

Disclosure of credit quality and maximum exposure for credit risk based on the Bank’s internal credit rating system and year-
end stage classification are disclosed in Notes 12, 13, 14 and 17 where relevant.

The table below show the analysis per industry sector of the Bank’s loans and advances to customers (Note 17) in gross
amounts, before taking into account the fair value of the loan collateral held or other credit enhancements.

Gross maximum exposure

2024 2023

MNT’000 % MNT’000 %

Trading 1,049,433,342 17% 939,847,708 18%
Mortgage loan 980,662,839 15% 609,560,516 11%
Card loan 897,243,240 14% 528,421,873 10%
Mining and quarrying 727,755,885 11% 594,847,744 11%
Manufacturing 632,796,023 10% 586,842,868 11%
Construction 410,270,276 6% 376,491,765 7%
Financial service 370,447,384 6% 377,195,935 7%
Transportation and communication 251,173,809 4% 259,503,316 5%
Hotel, restaurant and tourism 157,707,649 2% 135,283,643 3%
Deposit collateralized loan 155,630,363 2% 118,298,002 2%
Import and trade of fuel 98,754,286 2% 215,092,310 4%
Education 95,751,625 1% 72,855,274 1%
Health 64,329,812 1% 37,971,252 1%
Agriculture 45,799,175 1% 71,627,403 1%
Electricity and thermal energy 9,092,642 0% 11,654,177 0%
Other 540,936,078 8% 409,950,828 8%
6,487,784,428 100% 5,345,444,614 100%

*The Bank classified the holding company that only owns shares of companies in other industries as financial services in
accordance with the Bank’s sector codification.

Collateral and other credit enhancements

The amount and type of collateral required depends on the assessment of the credit risk of the borrower or counterparty and
the type of loan granted. The main types of collateral obtained are as follows:

e corporate lending: charges over real-estate properties, equipment and machineries;

o retail lending: charges over automobiles and assignment of income; charges over real estate properties; and mortgages over
residential properties;

e small and medium-sized enterprise lending: charges over real estate properties.

The Bank regularly monitors the market value of collateral and requests additional collateral when necessary in accordance
with the underlying agreement.

It is the Bank’s policy to dispose of foreclosed properties in an orderly fashion. The proceeds are used to reduce or repay the
outstanding claim. The Bank does not occupy foreclosed properties for business use.

Disclosure of credit quality and the maximum exposure for credit risk per categories based on the Bank’s internal credit rating
system and year end stage classification are further disclosed in Notes 12, 13, 14 and 17.

Where financial instruments are recorded at fair value the amounts shown in Note 14 represent the current credit risk exposure
but not the maximum risk exposure that could arise in the future as a result of changes in values.
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33. Risk management (cont’d.)
(2) Credit risk (cont’d.)
Collateral and other credit enhancements (cont’d.)

The table below summarise the Bank's collateral for loans and advances:

31 December 2024

Gross carrying Fair value of Coverage
amount collaterals
MNT’000 MNT’000 %

Corporate 3,334,506,297 8,933,241,960 268%

SME 824,846,144 1,884,480,206 228%

Retail 1,905,095,989 2,459,326,960 129%
6,064,448,430 13,277,049,126

31 December 2023

Corporate 3,346,336,133 8,664,934,415 259%

SME 599,615,465 1,648,591,251 275%

Retail 1,150,861,431 1,817,582,235 158%
5,096,813,029 12,131,107,901

Credit concentration ratio

As stipulated in the Banking Law of Mongolia, the total value of loans, loan equivalent assets and guarantees provided to single
borrower or group of related borrowers shall not exceed 20% of the total equity of the Bank. The maximum value of loans,
loan equivalent assets and guarantees provided to a shareholder, the chairman, a member of the Representative Governing
Board, an executive director or a bank officer or any related person thereof shall not exceed 5% of the capital of the Bank, and
the total amount shall not exceed 20% of the capital of the Bank respectively. There were no such breaches as at 31 December
2024.

(3) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Bank will be unable to meet its payment obligations when they fall due under normal and
stressed circumstances. To limit this risk, management has arranged diversified funding sources in addition to its core deposit
base, manages assets with liquidity in mind, and monitors future cash flows and liquidity on a daily basis. This incorporates an
assessment of expected cash flows and the availability of high grade collateral which could be used to secure additional funding
if required.

The Bank is exposed to frequent calls on its available cash resources from current deposits, maturing deposits and loan
drawdowns. The Bank’s ALCO sets limits on the minimum proportion of maturing funds available to cover such cash outflows
and on the minimum level of interbank and other borrowing facilities that should be in place to cover withdrawals at unexpected
levels of demand.

Exposure to liquidity risk

The key measure used by the Bank for managing liquidity risk is the ratio of liquid assets to total liabilities, which is in line
with the liquidity ratio described in Banking Law of Mongolia.

For this purpose the Bank maintains a liquidity ratio; calculated as a ratio of a the Bank’s liquid assets, including cash on hand,
deposits and placements with banks and other financial institutions, balances with BoM and investment securities to the Bank’s
liquid liabilities; including deposit from customers, deposits and placements from the banks and other financial institutions,
loans from foreign financial institutions, taxation and debt securities issued.

Details of the reported ratio at the reporting date were as follows:

2024 2023

At 31 December 49.5% 49.7%

Analysis of financial assets and financial liabilities by remaining contractual maturities

The table below summarizes the maturity profile of the Bank’s financial assets and financial liabilities as at 31 December 2024
and 2023 based on contractual undiscounted repayment obligations. However, the Bank expects that many customers will not
request repayment on the earliest date the Bank could be required to pay, and the table does not reflect the expected cash flows
indicated by the Bank’s deposit retention history.
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33. Risk management (cont’d.)
(3) Liquidity risk (cont’d.)

Analysis of financial assets and financial liabilities by remaining contractual maturities (cont’d.)

Less than 3 6 months to 1
At 31 December 2024 On demand months 3 to 6 months year 1 to 5 years Over 5 years Total
MNT’000 MNT’000 MNT’000 MNT’000 MNT’000 MNT’000 MNT’000
Financial assets
Cash and balances with Bank of Mongolia 2,821,222,133 274,128,477 - - - - 3,095,350,610
Due from other banks and financial
institutions 710,287,382 686,822,009 - - - - 1,397,109,391
Financial investments - 1,884,433,045 17,626,200 35,853,708 850,068,759 1,015,375,875 3,803,357,587
Gross settled swaps:
- Inflows - 20,965,874 15,537,676 30,895,142 79,479,349 - 146,878,041
- Outflows - (26,216,472) (25,373,805) (52,261,698) (144,920,802) - (248,772,777)
Loans and advances to customers 433,915,693 866,768,140 754,524,616 1,542,779,329 3,401,461,935 2,227,369,984 9,226,819,697
Other financial assets 75,831,379 10,267,357 22,552,813 41,506,954 330,306,514 55,376,343 535,841,360
4,041,256,587 3,717,168,430 784,867,500 1,598,773,435 4,516,395,755 3,298,122,202 17,956,583,909
Financial liabilities
Due to banks and other financial
institutions 23,232,611 345,283,487 3,589,115 - 7,318,679 - 379,423,892
Repurchase agreements - 18,102,153 8,065,875 - - - 26,168,028
Due to customers 4,773,809,898 1,550,996,135 938,996,354 2,154,474,148 1,401,185,353 28,854,324 10,848,316,212
Gross settled swaps:
- Inflows - 22,124,396 21,371,730 44,090,204 107,629,960 - 195,216,290
- Outflows - (25,786,142) (16,956,695) (34,366,635) (97,861,569) - (174,971,041)
Borrowed funds - 876,900,717 48,564,401 457,242,608 367,993,982 78,699,158 1,829,400,866
Debt securities issued - - 29,927,188 29,927,188 838,344,318 - 898,198,694
Lease liabilities - - - 5,417,926 - - 5,417,926
Other financial liabilities - 74,606,415 - 72,703,534 - 8,057,538 155,367,487
Uncovered Guarantees and Letters of
credit 646,648,741 - - - - - 646,648,741
Undrawn credit lines 635,742,427 - - - — — 635,742,427
6,079,433,677 2,862,227,161 1,033,557,968 2,729,488,973 2,624,610,723 115,611,020 15,444,929,522
(2,038,177,090) 854,941,269 (248,690,468) (1,130,715,538) 1,891,785,032 3,182,511,182 2,511,654,387
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33. Risk management (cont’d.)

(3) Liquidity risk (cont’d.)

Analysis of financial assets and financial liabilities by remaining contractual maturities (cont’d.)

At 31 December 2023

Financial assets

Cash and balances with Bank of Mongolia

Due from other banks and financial
institutions
Financial investments
Gross settled swaps:
- Inflows
- Outflows
Loans and advances to customers
Other financial assets

Financial liabilities
Due to banks and other financial
institutions
Repurchase agreements
Due to customers
Gross settled swaps:
- Inflows
- Outflows
Borrowed funds
Lease liabilities
Other financial liabilities
Uncovered Guarantees and Letters of
credit
Undrawn credit lines

Less than 3 3to6 6 months to 1

On demand months months year 1 to 5 years Over 5 years Total
MNT’000 MNT’000 MNT’000 MNT’000 MNT’000 MNT’000 MNT’000
1,117,858,549 1,193,856,976 - - - - 2,311,715,525
869,544,915 783,230,812 - - - - 1,652,775,727
- 1,224,738,338 247,269,570 107,443,178 186,940,736 956,661,854 2,723,053,676

- 39,750,576 3,646,159 4,473,604 11,755,341 - 59,625,680
- (40,440,564) (6,363,445) (7,121,919) (22,983,257) - (76,909,185)

554,076,511 802,131,637 615,471,775 1,415,886,826 2,876,815,855 1,877,285,064 8,141,667,668
30,996,818 27,724,891 13,496,593 49,488,420 268,656,334 - 390,363,056
2,572,476,793 4,030,992,666 873,520,652 1,570,170,109 3,321,185,009 2,833,946,918 15,202,292,147
23,863,949 294,709,383 - - - - 318,573,332

- - - 35,363,068 19,680,137 - 55,043,205
4,962,670,005 1,308,989,787 836,125,118 1,628,943,151 573,473,246 18,825,467 9,329,026,774
- 41,396,162 3,087,757 2,583,633 8,858,627 - 55,926,179
- (46,489,388) (4,861,811) (4,400,466) (16,465,645) - (72,217,310)

- 159,310,715 83,352,194 536,071,195 131,063,322 25,411,246 935,208,672

- 2,089,904 1,979,903 3,841,872 7,888,740 - 15,800,419

- 166,628,192 - - 5,558,789 547914 172,734,895
522,557,915 - - - - - 522,557,915
455,919,038 - - - - - 455,919,038
5,965,010,907 1,926,634,755 919,683,161 2,202,402,453 730,057,216 44,784,627 11,788,573,119
(3,392,534,114) 2,104,357,911 (46,162,509) (632,232,344) 2,591,127,793 2,789,162,291 3,413,719,028
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33. Risk management (cont’d.)
(4) Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as interest rates and foreign exchange rates will affect the Bank’s
income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control
market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return on risk.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk arises from the possibility that changes in interest rates will affect bank’s profitability, future cash flows or
the fair values of financial instruments. The Bank’s lending, funding and investment activities give rise to interest rate risk.
The immediate impact of variation in interest rate is on Bank’s net interest income, while a long term impact is on the Bank’s
net worth since the economic value of the Bank’s assets, liabilities and off-balance sheet exposures will be affected. Interest
rate risk is managed by increasing or decreasing positions within limits specified by the Bank’s management. These limits
restrict the potential effect of movements in interest rates on interest margin and on the value of interest sensitive assets and
liabilities.

The management of interest rate risk against interest rate gap limits is supplemented by monitoring the sensitivity of the Bank’s
financial assets and liabilities to various standard and non-standard interest rate scenarios. An analysis of the Bank’s sensitivity
to a 100 basis point (BP) increase or decrease in market interest rates (assuming no asymmetrical movement in yield curves
and a constant statement of financial position) is as follows:

Change in Sensitivity of Risk limit set
basis net interest for profit or Sensitivity Risk limit set
points income loss of equity for equity
MNT'000 MNT'000 MNT'000 MNT'000
At 31 December 2024
Currency
USD +/- 100 +/- 11,324,946 +/- 389,506,817 +/- 10,192,451 +/- 389,506,817
MNT +/- 100 +/- 21,527,228 +/- 389,506,817 +/- 19,374,505 +/- 389,506,817
OTHER +/- 100 +/- 2,341,557 +/- 389,506,817 +/- 2,107,401 +/- 389,506,817
At 31 December 2023
Currency
USD +/- 100 +/- 789,541 +/- 328,411,715 +/- 710,587 +/- 328,411,715
MNT +/- 100 +/- 8,001,304 +/- 328,411,715 +/- 7,201,174 +/- 328,411,715
OTHER +/- 100 +/- 1,367,075 +/- 328,411,715 +/- 1,230,368 +/- 328,411,715

Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in foreign exchange rates. ALCO
sets limits on the level of exposure by currencies (primarily USD), which are monitored on a frequent basis. The Bank manages
its currency risk primarily through ensuring compliance with the prudential ratio for foreign currency open position established
by the BoM and through assessing the impact of foreign currency exchange rate movements on the Bank’s liquidity and
profitability. Also the Bank uses limits, calculated using Value-at-Risk method, for foreign exchange risk management. ALCO
approves stop loss limits for overall currency positions on a quarterly basis. Market Risk Department oversees that the currency
exchange operations are managed within the approved limits.

Objectives and limitations of the VaR Methodology

The use of VaR has limitations because it is based on historical correlations and volatilities in market prices and assumes that
future price movements will follow a statistical distribution. Due to the fact that VaR relies heavily on historical data to provide
information and may not clearly predict the future changes and modifications of the risk factors, the probability of large market
moves may be underestimated if changes in risk factors fail to align with the normal distribution assumption. VaR may also be
under or over-estimated due to the assumptions placed on risk factors and the relationship between such factors for specific
instruments. Even though positions may change throughout the day, the VaR only represents the risk of the portfolios at the
close of each business day, and it does not account for any losses that may occur beyond the 99% confidence level.
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33. Risk management (cont’d.)

(4) Market risk (cont’d.)

Currency risk (cont’d.)

Objectives and limitations of the VaR Methodology (cont’d.)

VaR limits have been established for all foreign currency open positions and exposures are reviewed daily against the limits
by management. The estimated potential one-day losses on its foreign currency denominated financial instruments, as
calculated in the VAR models are the following:

31 December
Average Daily
Highest
Lowest

2024

MNT’000

(248,091)
(432,318)
(14,770)

(1,279,752)

Historical Simulation

2023
MNT’000

(58,141)
(792,656)
(24,615)
(3,185,897)

The table below summarizes the Bank's exposure to foreign exchange risk as at 31 December 2024 and 2023. Included in the
table are the Bank’s financial assets and liabilities at carrying amounts:

Financial assets

Cash and balances with
Bank of Mongolia

Due from other banks
and financial
institutions

Financial investments

Derivative financial
instruments

Loans and advances to
customers

Other financial assets

Financial liabilities

Due to banks and other
financial
institutions

Repurchase agreements

Due to customers

Derivative financial
instruments

Borrowed funds

Debt securities issued

Lease liabilities

Other financial
liabilities

Off-balance foreign currency exposure, net

MNT
denominated
MNT’000

1,396,899,459
171,235,411
2,401,179,297

88,784,131

5,065,234,190
96,730,864

2024
Foreign
currencies
MNT’000

1,697,665,702

1,225,503,573
502,799,723

1,114,335,363
31,214,109

Total
MNT’000

3,094,565,161
1,396,738,984
2,903,979,020

88,784,131

6,179,569,553
127,944,973

MNT
denominated
MNT’000

560,676,633
224,175,940
1,770,718,631

172,188,577

3,881,801,871
156,904,267

2023
Foreign
currencies
MNT’000

1,748,053,513

1,427,622,435
147,210,357

1,051,655,351
19,361,978

Total
MNT’000

2,308,730,146
1,651,798,375
1,917,928,988

172,188,577

4,933,457,222
176,266,245

9,220,063,352

4,571,518,470

13,791,581,822

6,766,465,919

4,393,903,634

11,160,369,553

Net foreign currency exposure

176,001,370 202,859,636 378,861,006 71,414,293 246,997,718 318,412,011
25,675,412 - 25,675,412 51,285,052 - 51,285,052
6,736944,757  3,600,866,014  10,337,810,771  5,026,726,104  4,060,091,308  9,086,817,412
70,630,118 - 70,630,118 159,109,749 - 159,109,749
1,093,092,572 571,044,793  1,664,137,365 521,393,763 351,274,014 872,667,777
- 670,569,956 670,569,956 - - -
9,544,683 - 9,544,683 13,870,478 - 13,870,478
42,032,282 77,004,119 119,036,401 106,936,691 43,361,221 150,297,912
8,153921,194  5,122344518  13,276265,712 _ 5.950,736,130 _ 4,701,724261  10,652,460,391

463,071,501 160,301,851

(87,754,547) (147,518,776)
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33. Risk management (cont’d.)
(4) Market risk (cont’d.)
Currency risk (cont’d.)

An analysis of the Bank’s open position sensitivity to a 10 percent appreciation or depreciation of MNT against USD (assuming
all other variables constant) is as follows:

Sensitivity of Risk limit for
Change in open position net positions
currency rate MNT'000 MNT'000
At 31 December 2024
Currency
USD +/- 10% +/- 450,274 +/- 230,000,000
OTHER +/- 10% +/-671,904 +/- 230,000,000
At 31 December 2023
Currency
USD +/- 10% +/- 6,442,978 +/- 230,000,000
OTHER +/- 10% +/-255,377 +/- 230,000,000

Prepayment risk

Prepayment risk is the risk that the Bank will incur a financial loss because its customers and counterparties repay or request
repayment earlier or later than expected.

The Bank uses the simplified approach to project the impact of varying levels of prepayment on its net interest income. If 20%
of repayable financial instruments were prepaid at the beginning of the year, with all other variables held constant, the interest
income for the year would be reduced by MNT 217,199,335 thousand (2023: MNT 152,942,480 thousand).

Operational risk

Operational risk is the risk of loss arising from systems failure, human error, fraud or external events. When controls fail to
operate effectively, operational risks can cause damage to reputation, have legal or regulatory implications, or lead to financial
loss. The Bank cannot expect to eliminate all operational risks, but it endeavours to manage these risks through a control
framework and by monitoring and responding to potential risks. Controls include effective segregation of duties, access,
authorisation and reconciliation procedures, staff education and assessment processes, such as the use of internal audit.

34.  Fair value disclosures
Determination of fair value and fair value hierarchy

Fair value is the amount at which a financial instrument or other asset could be exchanged in a current transaction between
willing parties, other than in a forced sale or liquidation, and is best evidenced by an active quoted market price. Where quoted
market prices are not available, the Bank used valuation techniques.
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34.  Fair value disclosures (cont’d.)

Determination of fair value and fair value hierarchy (cont’d.)

The following table shows an analysis of financial instruments and other assets recorded at fair value by level of the fair value

hierarchy.

At 31 December 2024

Financial assets

Debt instruments measured at FVOCI

Quoted government bonds, USD

Quoted government bonds, MNT

Green recycle bond

Unquoted BoM treasury bills

Equity instruments measured at FVOCI

Unquoted equities

Quoted equities

Financial assets at FVTPL

Residential mortgage-backed securities

Loan backed securities - Junior tranche

Loans and advances to customers at
FVTPL

Derivative financial instruments

Non-financial assets

Revalued properties

Investment properties

Financial liabilities
Derivative financial instruments

At 31 December 2023

Financial assets

Debt instruments measured at FVOCI

Quoted government bonds

Unquoted BoM treasury bills

MIK USD bond

Equity instruments measured at FVOCI

Unquoted equities

Quoted equities

Equity instruments measured at FVTPL

Unquoted equities

Financial assets at FVTPL

Residential mortgage-backed securities

Loan backed securities - Junior tranche

Loans and advances to customers at
FVTPL

Derivative financial instruments

Non-financial assets

Revalued properties

Investment properties

Financial liabilities
Derivative financial instruments

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
MNT’000 MNT’000 MNT’000 MNT’000
492,330,245 - - 492,330,245
150,454,795 - - 150,454,795
10,418,175 - - 10,418,175
- 1,837,294,011 - 1,837,294,011
- - 3,538,351 3,538,351
47,094,211 - - 47,094,211
- - 362,556,440 362,556,440
- - 292,792 292,792
- 423,335,998 - 423,335,998
- 88,784,131 - 88,784,131
- - 186,313,991 186,313,991
— — 80,749,541 80,749,541
700,297,426 2,349,414,140 633,451,115 3,683,162,681
— 70,630,118 — 70,630,118
105,989,124 - - 105,989,124
- 1,363,375,430 - 1,363,375,430
41,170,073 - - 41,170,073
- - 3,168,023 3,168,023
38,804,358 - - 38,804,358
- - 1,700,000 1,700,000
- - 360,010,446 360,010,446
- - 2,399,558 2,399,558
- 248,631,585 - 248,631,585
- 172,188,577 - 172,188,577
- - 216,024,924 216,024,924
— — 53,256,860 53,256,860
185,963,555 1,784,195,592 636,559,811 2,606,718,958
- 159,109,749 - 159,109,749
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34. Fair value disclosures (cont’d.)
Transfers between level 1, 2 and 3

There were no transfers between level 1, 2 and 3 of the fair value hierarchy for the assets and liabilities which are recorded at
fair value.

The description of valuation technique and description of inputs used in the fair value measurement for level 2 measurements
at 31 December 2024 and 2023:

Fair value
2024
MNT'000

2023
MNT'000

Valuation
technique Inputs
Financial assets

Market value

approach

Central bank policy
and repo rates

Unquoted BoM treasury bills 1,837,294,011 1,363,375,430
Future cash flows, PD,
LGD and market
interest rate of

instruments

Discounted Cash
Flow approach

Loans and advances to customers at

FVTPL 423,335,998 248,631,585

SOFR rate, repo rate,
sovernment bond yield,
exchange rate,
commodity forward
price, USD discount
Derivative financial instruments Market value rate, PD

88,784,131 172,188,577

Financial liabilities
SOFR rate, repo rate,
sovernment bond yield,
exchange rate,
commodity forward
price, USD discount
Derivative financial instruments Market value rate, PD

70,630,118 159,109,749

The were no change in valuation technique for level 2 recurring fair value measurements during the years ended 31 December
2024 and 2023.

The disclosure of significant unobservable inputs and sensitivity to reasonably possible changes to inputs used in the fair value
measurement for level 3 financial instrument is described below:

Sensitivity of the
Fair value Reasonable input to fair value Valuation Significant
At 31 December 2024 MNT 000 change MNT'000 technique unobservable inputs Range of inputs
Financial assets
Residential mortgage- Discounted Cash
backed securities 362,556,440 +/- 1% +/- 3,625,564 Flow method Market interest rates 9.0% - 13.0%
Loan backed securities - Discounted Cash
Junior tranche 292,792 +/- 1% +/-2,928 Flow method Market interest rates 9.5%
Market share price, MNT 1,000 - MNT
Unquoted equities 3,538,351 +/-10% +/- 353,835  Net assets value Transaction price 5,691,675
Non-financial assets
Equivalent property MNT 0.5 million -
prices/Market proxy with 2.4 million per sq
appropriate adjustments for ~ meter; MNT 2.5 -
location, condition, and 8.7 million per
Revalued properties 186,313,991 +/- 10% +/- 18,631,399 Market proxy similar factors sq.meters
Equivalent property
prices/Market proxy with
appropriate adjustments for  MNT 8.3 million -
location, condition, and 10.2 million per
Investment properties 80,749,541 +/-10% +/- 8,074,954 Market proxy similar factors sq.meters
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34.  Fair value disclosures (cont’d.)

Fair value Reasonable
At 31 December 2023 MNT 000 change
Financial assets
Residential mortgage-

backed securities 360,010,446 +-1%
Loan backed securities -

Junior tranche 2,399,558 +/- 1%
Unquoted equities 4,868,023 +/- 10%
Non-financial assets
Revalued properties 216,024,924 +/-10%
Investment properties 53,256,860 +/- 10%

Sensitivity of the

input to fair value

MNT'000

+/- 3,600,104

+/- 23,996

+/- 486,802

+/- 21,602,492

+/- 5,325,686

Valuation
technique

Discounted
Cash Flow
method
Discounted

Cash Flow
method

Net assets value

Market proxy

Market proxy

Significant
unobservable inputs

Market interest rates

Market interest rates

Market share price,
Transaction price

Equivalent property
prices/Market proxy with
appropriate adjustments for
location, condition, and
similar factors

Equivalent property
prices/Market proxy with
appropriate adjustments for
location, condition, and
similar factors

Range of inputs

7.0% -9.0%

9.5%

MNT 1,000 -
MNT 5,691,675

MNT 0.5 million -
2.4 million per sq
meter; MNT 2.5 -
8.7 million per
sq.meters

MNT 8.0 million-

9 million per
sq.meters

There were no changes in valuation techniques during the year ended 31 December 2024 and 2023. Management believes that
the fair value of financial assets is unlikely to be materially different from their carrying value as of 31 December 2024.

Movements in fair value measurements within Level 3 during the year

Residential mortgage-backed securities
At 1 January

Addition

Sold

Interest accrued

Interest received

At 31 December

Loan backed securities - Junior tranche
At 1 January

Addition

Paid

Interest accrued

Interest received

At 31 December

Unquoted equity

At 1 January

Addition

Disposal

Foreign exchange difference
At 31 December

80

2024 2023
MNT’000 MNT’000
360,010,446 260,184,968
106,602,800 279,302,268
(98,873,000) (182,110,768)
33,326,919 31,223,300
(38,510,725) (28,589,322)
362,556,440 360,010,446
2,399,558 5,832,160

- 700,500
(2,032,200) (4,136,100)
97,228 515,301
(171,794) (512,303)
292,792 2,399,558
3,168,023 3,168,532
370,184 -

- (509)

144 -
3,538,351 3,168,023
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34.  Fair value disclosures (cont’d.)

Movements in fair value measurements within Level 3 during the year (cont’d.)

145

2024 2023
MNT’000 MNT’000
Revalued properties
At 1 January 216,024,924 225,309,201
Addition 5,794,186 -
Transfer (18,036,301) -
Disposal (11,158,246) (3,918,852)
Depreciation charged in profit or loss (5,229,221) (5,365,425)
Write-off (1,081,351) -
At 31 December 186,313,991 216,024,924
Investment properties
At 1 January 53,256,860 79,997,754
Disposal - (29,614,686)
Transfer 20,377,762 -
Revaluation 7,114.919 2,873,792
At 31 December 80,749,541 53,256,860

Revaluation of properties and investment properties

The properties’ fair values are based on valuations performed by an accredited independent valuer. The fair value of the land
and buildings were determined using market approach. Market approach means that the valuations performed by the valuer
were based on transactions and advertised process for similar buildings in the market, applying comparison adjustments for
location, condition age, listing, and similar factors.

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities not carried at fair value

The following describes the methodologies and assumptions used to determine fair values for those financial instruments which
are not already recorded at fair value in the financial statements:

Assets for which fair value approximates carrying value

For financial assets and financial liabilities that are liquid or have short term maturity (less than one year), it is assumed that
the carrying amounts approximate to their fair value. Based on fair value assessments performed by the management, the
estimated fair values of due from banks of more than one year approximate their carrying amounts as shown in the statement
of financial position. This is due principally to the fact that the current market rates offered for similar deposit products do not
differ significantly from market rates at inception.

Fixed rate financial instruments

The fair value of fixed rate financial assets and liabilities carried at amortised cost are estimated by comparing market interest
rates when they were first recognised with current market rates offered for similar financial instruments available in Mongolia.
Set out below is a comparison of the carrying amounts and fair values of the Bank's financial instruments in the financial
statements where there is a significant difference between the two values which are categorized in level 2.
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34.  Fair value disclosures (cont’d.)
Fixed rate financial instruments (cont’d.)
Carrying amount Fair value

As at 31 December 2024 MNT’000 MNT’000
Financial assets
Loans and advances to customers 6,179,569,553 6,387,826,556
Financial liabilities
Due to customers 10,337,810,771 10,470,011,420
As at 31 December 2023
Financial assets
Loans and advances to customers 4,933,457,222 4,937,767,391
Debt instruments at amortised cost 1,311,976 1,327,492
Financial liabilities
Due to customers 9,086,817,412 9,507,939,129

3s.

Related party disclosures

The following are considered as related parties of the Bank:

Valiant Art LLC - The Bank’s executive officer’s immediate relative owns Valiant Art LLC

TDB Securities LLC (former TDB Capital LLC), TDB Asset Management SC LLC, Supreme 17 Holding Limited — The
companies are subsidiaries of TDB Capital LLC (former United Banking corporation LLC), the shareholder of the Bank.
Mongolian National Rare Earth Corporation LLC (“MNREC”) — Supreme 17 Holding Limited owns 90 % equity interest.
MIK — An associate (see Note 15)

Mongol General Leasing LLC and its subsidiaries (“MGL”) — The Bank owns 10% equity interest in MGL and the
company is owned by close family member of beneficial owner of the Bank

National News Corporation LLC (“NNC”) — The Bank owns 9.85% equity interest in NNC and the Bank's beneficial
owner is a BoD member of the company

NNC Publishing LLC, JCDecaux LLC - The companies are subsidiaries of NNC

CNB Consulting LLC (“CNB”) — CEO of CNB is immediate family member of the beneficial owner of the Bank
Absolute Management LLC — The company is owned by close family member of beneficial owner of the Bank

Times Media Corporation — The company is subsidiary of TDB Capital LLC

Key management personnel — Key management personnel are those individuals who have the authority and responsibility
for planning and exercising power to directly or indirectly control the activities of the Bank and its employees. The Bank
considers the members of the Board of Directors, Executive officers and their immediate relatives to be related parties.

Transactions with key management personnel of the Bank:

The aggregate remuneration of directors and members of the Board of Directors during the year, paid by the Bank, was as

follows:
2024 2023
MNT’000 MNT’000
Short term benefits:
Salaries and other allowances 18,497,556 21,951,864
Contribution to social and health fund 2,312,195 2,361,190
20,809,751 24,313,054
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35. Related party disclosures (cont’d.)

Significant transactions and balances with related parties as of 31 December 2024 and 2023 and for the years then ended were as follows:

Outstanding balances:
At 31 December 2024

TDB Capital LLC

Globull Investment And Development Pte. Ltd
US Global Investment LLC
National News Corporation LLC
Mongol General Leasing LLC
Mongolian Banking Association
Credit Information Bureau LLC
ZGMM LLC

TDB Securities LLC

Supreme 17 Holding Limited
NNCUB Omni Media LLC
Luxor International LLC
Lagardere Mongolia LLC

MIK And Its Subsidiaries
Times Media Corporation LLC
TDB Leasing LLC

TDB Asset Management ScLLC
NNC Publishing LLC
JCDecaux LLC

Absolute Management LLC

Mongolian National Rare Earth Corporation LLC

Asia Diversified Real Estate Fund LLC
Valiant Art LLC

Beneficial Owner And Its Inmediate Family
Key Management Personnel

Deposit and
accrued
interest
MNT'000

45,294,051

228,793,802
902
508,436
938
96,606,808
37
10,304,126
3,653
9,508
4,831,943
7,595
71,279,585

1,690
277,986
1,879,516

Loan and
advances, Receivables
accrued and
interest  prepayments
MNT'000 MNT'000
1,000,921 -
- 5,052,393
9,062,962 2,273,635
24,210,411 -
16,693,320 -
43,392,707 -
72,509 -
2,389,470 -
83

RMBSs
(Note 14)
MNT'000

Accrued
interest payable
on swap
MNT'000

Other
liabilities
MNT'000

Letter of credit
and Letter of
guarantee
MNT'000

Undrawn
credit line
MNT'000

821,471
552,901

Derivative
financial
liability
MNT'000
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35. Related party disclosures (cont’d.)
Outstanding balances (cont’d.):
At 31 December 2023

TDB Capital LLC

Globull Investment and Development Pte. Ltd
US Global Investment LLC

JCDecaux LLC

MIK And Its Subsidiaries

TDB Securities LLC

TDB Leasing LLC

NNC LLC

NNC Publishing LLC

CNB Consulting LLC

Absolute Management LLC

Mongolian National Rare Earth Corporation LLC
Mongol General Leasing LLC

Times Media Corporation LLC

Valiant Art LLC

TDB Asset Management SC LLC

Supreme 17 LLC

Asia Diversified Real Estate Fund LLC
Beneficial owner and its immediate family
Key Management Personnel

Deposit and
accrued
interest
MNT'000

62,403

354

309
4,270,253
96,657,784
140,443,557
10,710,054
7,614
11,941

7,642
1,456,184
8,749

56

2,278
7,150

3,297,251
711,453

Loan and
advances,
accrued
interest
MNT'000

16,835,868

9,577,149
1,500
20,679,726
300,430

9,651,352

19,058,632

40,165,610
102,460
2,082,041

Accrued
Receivables interest
and Quoted USD payable on
prepayments RMBSs bonds swap
MNT'000 MNT'000 MNT'000 MNT'000
547,500 - - -
2,289,826 360,010,446 41,170,073 1,135,791
54,584 - - -
22,732,386 - - -
10,053,446 - - -
3,100,000 - - -

84

Other
liabilities
MNT'000

Letter of
credit and
Letter of
guarantee
MNT'000

Undrawn
credit line
MNT'000

838,861
607,969

Derivative
financial
liability
MNT'000

152,977,717
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35. Related party disclosures (cont’d.)

Transactions:
Interest income
on loan,

As at 31 December 2024 advances and  Interest income  Interest income

receivable on RMBSs on Swap

MNT'000 MNT'000 MNT'000
TDB Capital LLC 352,938 - -
National News Corporation LLC 131,040 - -
Mongol General Leasing LLC - - -
Mongolian Banking Association - - -
Credit Information Bureau LLC - - -
TDB Securities LLC - - -
Luxor International LLC - - -
MIK And Its Subsidiaries 1,333,759 33,326,919 24,008,242
Times Media Corporation LLC - - -
TDB Leasing LLC 3,812,164 - -
TDB Asset Management ScLLC - - -
NNC Publishing LLC - - -
JCDECAUX LLC - - -
Absolute Management LLC - - -
Mongolian National Rare Earth Corporation LLC - - -
Asia Diversified Real Estate Fund LLC 3,227,097 - -
Valiant Art LLC - - -
Beneficial Owner And Its Inmediate Family 19,390 - -
Key Management Personnel 213,401 - -
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Interest income
on quoted USD
bond
MNT'000

Interest
expense on
deposits
MNT'000

8,820
439,584

5,839,620

376,655

424,559

Purchase of
Quoted USD
bond

Services

obtained .

MNT'000

98,534
5,162,527

122,940
147,650

163,315
300
560,413

Commission
income
MNT'000

69,399

24
674
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Notes to the financial statements — 31 December 2024

35.  Related party disclosures (cont’d.)

Transactions (cont’d.):

As at 31 December 2023 Interest income
on loans, Interest income

advances and on financial Interest income Interest income Interest expense Commission
receivable instruments on RMBSs on Swap on deposits  Services obtained income
MNT'000 MNT'000 MNT'000 MNT'000 MNT'000 MNT'000 MNT'000

TDB Capital LLC 963,460 - - - - - 7,379
Globull - - - - - - 4
US Global Investment LLC - - - - - - 4
JCDecaux LLC - - - - 320,120 210,430 169
MIK 1,398,737 - 38,311,632 7,088,332 5,383,638 - 11,602
TDB Securities LLC 5 - - - 200,715 415,000 3,117
TDB Leasing LLC 2,706,094 - - - 538,866 72,793 10,494
NNC LLC 5,453 - - - - 5,089,144 5,564
NNC Publishing LLC - - - - - - 13
CNB Consulting LLC 2,792,679 - - - - - 42
Absolute Management LLC - - - - - - 28
MNREC 1,532,062 - - - - - 8,136
Mongol General Leasing LLC - - - - - - 24
Times Media Corporation LLC - - - - - - 24
Valiant Art LLC - - - - - - 60
TDB Asset Management SC LLC - - - - - - 13
Supreme 17 LLC - - - - - - -
Asia Diversified Real Estate Fund LLC 5,184,239 — - - — - -
Beneficial owner and its immediate family 23,640 - - - 1,080 - 783
Key Management Personnel 245,122 - - - 33,724 - 2,928

Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties

The above outstanding balances and transactions arose in the ordinary course of business. The interest charged to and by related parties are at normal commercial rates. Outstanding balances except
for loans and advances to related parties at the period-end are unsecured. There have been no guarantees provided or received for any related party receivables or payables.

Key management have banking relationships with the Bank which are entered into in the normal course of business.

86



151

Kunnin tainan 2024

TRADE AND DEVELOPMENT BANK OF MONGOLIA JSC

Notes to the financial statements - 31 December 2024

36. Maturity analysis of assets and liabilities

The table shows an analysis of assets and liabilities analysed according to when they are expected to be recovered or settled.
See Note 33 'Liquidity risk' for the Bank's contractual undiscounted repayment obligations.

At 31 December 2024

Assets
Cash and balances with BoM

Due from other banks and financial institutions
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Debt instruments at FVOCI
Equity instruments at FVOCI
Investment in associate
Derivative financial instruments
Loans and advances to customers
Other assets

Investment property

Assets held for sale

Property and equipment
Right-of-use assets

Intangible assets

Total assets

Liabilities

Due to banks and other financial institutions
Repurchase agreements

Due to customers

Derivative financial instruments
Borrowed funds

Debt securities issued

Other liabilities

Lease liabilities

Income tax liabilities

Deferred tax liabilities

Total liabilities

Net*
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Less than
12 months
MNT’000

3,094,565,161
1,396,738,984

21,179,446
1,842,366,571

73,112,680
2,583,601,964
100,998,697

95,381,015

More than
12 months
MNT’000

341,669,786
648,130,655
50,632,562
164,244
15,671,451
3,595,967,589
454311,952
80,749,541

548,521,958
8,985,640
47,618,788

Total
MNT’000

3,094,565,161
1,396,738,984
362,849,232
2,490,497,226
50,632,562
164,244
88,784,131
6,179,569,553
555,310,649
80,749,541
95,381,015
548,521,958
8,985,640
47,618,788

9,207,944,518

5,792,424,166

15,000,368,684

371,879,479
25,675,412
9,149,529,248
59,151,775
1,336,297,329
3,721,897
76,408,255
9,544,683
77,219,441

6,981,527

1,188,281,523
11,478,343
327,840,036
666,848,059
60,845,088

12,681,002

378,861,006
25,675,412
10,337,810,771
70,630,118
1,664,137,365
670,569,956
137,253,343
9,544,683
77,219,441
12,681,002

11,109,427,519

2,274,955,578

13,384,383,097

(1,901,483,001)

3,517,468,588

1,615,985,587
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36. Maturity analysis of assets and liabilities (cont’d.)

At 31 December 2023

Assets
Cash and balances with BoM

Due from other banks and financial institutions
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Debt instruments at FVOCI
Equity instruments at FVOCI
Equity instruments at FVTPL
Debt instruments at amortised cost
Investment in associate
Derivative financial instruments
Loans and advances to customers
Other assets

Investment property

Assets held for sale

Property and equipment
Right-of-use assets

Intangible assets

Total assets

Liabilities

Due to banks and other financial institutions
Repurchase agreements

Due to customers

Derivative financial instruments
Borrowed funds

Other liabilities

Lease liabilities

Income tax liabilities

Deferred tax liabilities

Total liabilities

Net*

Less than More than

12 months 12 months Total
MNT’000 MNT’000 MNT’000
2,308,730,146 - 2,308,730,146
1,651,798,375 - 1,651,798,375
26,422,303 335,987,701 362,410,004
1,367,587,636 142,946,991 1,510,534,627
- 41,972,381 41,972,381

1,700,000 - 1,700,000
6,376 1,305,600 1,311,976

- 5,196,223 5,196,223

162,296,283 9,892,294 172,188,577
2,368,190,226 2,565,266,996 4,933,457,222
121,706,721 387,531,741 509,238,462

- 53,256,860 53,256,860

8,259,130 - 8,259,130

- 567,974,583 567,974,583

- 13,239,874 13,239,874

— 25,308,105 25,308,105
8,016,697,196 4,149,879,349 12,166,576,545
318,412,011 - 318,412,011
32,787,807 18,497,245 51,285,052
8,637,077,230 449,740,182 9,086,817,412
156,992,593 2,117,156 159,109,749
656,533,954 216,133,823 872,667,777
169,297,809 3,437,087 172,734,896
6,526,939 7,343,539 13,870,478
76,203,276 704,137 76,907,413

— 6,392,862 6,392,862
10,053,831,619 704,366,031 10,758,197,650
(2,037,134,423) 3,445,513,318 1,408,378,895

*Certain classification of financial assets and liabilities were based on contractual obligations. However, the Bank expects that
many customers will not request repayment on the earliest date the Bank could be required to pay and the table does not reflect
the expected cash flows indicated by the Bank’s deposit retention history.

37.  Capital adequacy

The adequacy of the Bank’s capital is monitored using the rules and ratios established by BoM.

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Bank's capital management are to ensure that the Bank complies with externally imposed capital
requirements and that the Bank maintains healthy capital ratios to be able to absorb negative shocks.

The Bank manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic conditions and the risk

characteristics of its activities.
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37. Capital adequacy (cont’d.)
Regulatory capital

BoM requires commercial banks to maintain a minimum core capital adequacy ratio of 9% (2023: 9%) and risk weighted
capital ratio of at least 12% (2023: 12%) compiled on the basis of total capital and total assets as adjusted for their intrinsic
risk characteristics.

The capital adequacy ratios of the Bank as at 31 December were as follows:

2024 2023
Core capital adequacy ratio 14.80% 16.56%
Risk-weighted capital ratio 14.80% 16.56%
2024 2023
MNT'000 MNT'000

Tier I Capital
Share capital 340,852,905 340,852,905
Share premium 64,069,779 66,449,640
Retained earnings 887,536,052 745,028,843

Total Tier I Capital 1,292,458,736 1,152,331,388

Total Tier II Capital - _

Total capital /capital base 1,292,458,736 1,152,331,388

The breakdown of risk weighted assets into the various categories of risk weights as at 31 December was as follows:

2024 2023

Risk Assets Weighted Risk Assets Weighted
% MNT'000 MNT'000 MNT'000 MNT'000
0 5,436,224,452 - 3,970,590,870 -
20 1,559,295,864 272,456,343 1,850,945,772 303,501,968
50 2,445,582,209 1,192,951,993 1,858,520,029 907,607,991
75 19,306,661 14,407,596 - -
100 6,122,090,877 5,613,238,183 4,925,159,162 4,578,195,448
150 1,239,103,055 1,541,635,918 1,056,959,222 1,034,018,974
Adjustments:
Operational risk ratio - 75,988,824 - 77,045,444
Foreign exchange risk ratio — 19,525,490 — 56,861,978
Total 16,821,603,118 8,730,204,347 13,662,175,055 6,957,231,803

The core capital adequacy ratio and risk-weighted capital ratio presented above are prepared based on unaudited financial
information and according to BOM regulations as of 31 December 2024 that were submitted by the Bank to BoM. The core
capital adequacy ratio and the risk weighted capital ratio calculated based on the audited financial results prepared in
accordance with IFRS are 14.79% and 14.79% (2023: 15.59% and 15.59%), respectively.

38. Events after reporting date

On 28 February 2025, the bank issued a Senior unsecured bond for principal amount of USD 100 million bond, listed on the
Vienna Stock Exchange. The interest rate for the bond is 8.5% per annum, payable semi-annually, with maturity date of 3
years. The issued bond is to be consolidated and form a single series with the Senior unsecured USD 200 million bond due
2027, issued on 23 December 2024 (see Note 28).

Management is not aware of any other events that occurred after the end of the reporting period, which would have any impact
on these financial statements.

39. Mongolian translation

These financial statements are also prepared in the Mongolian language. In the event of discrepancies or contradictions between
the English version and the Mongolian version, the English version will prevail.
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